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1. Group Structure and Operations

1.1 Policy and business overview

1.1.1 Overview of the vision, objectives, goals and business strategies

Message from the chairman

Dear Shareholders,

For the year 2024, the global economy tends to slow down, but the tourism industry has recovered continuously, resulting in the
service sector starting to expand to accommodate tourists continuously. The demand for photographic equipment has grown from the
previous year, whether for tourism, education, or work. Therefore, the photography equipment business has continued to grow in

revenue and profit from the previous year.

In addition, the digital camera market has changed significantly in recent years due to several factors such as technological
development, the production of technological devices that have been continuously affected by the outbreak of the Coronavirus
disease (Covid-19), including the popularity of smartphones and changing consumer behavior. However, despite the impact of

smartphones, high-quality cameras with specific features remain popular.

The Company believes that in 2025, the Company remains committed to improving and developing the camera and photographic
equipment business, which is the Company's core business. The Company plans to increase the number of orders, import modern
products and goods continuously to meet consumer needs as much as possible. We will begin to implement sustainable management
fully by recognizing the development alongside maintaining good relationships between society, community, environment, and

economy.

Moreover, the Company has promoted and developed its personnel in terms of knowledge, expertise, and proficiency in each field
to be ready to serve customers, including building a wider network of business alliances to generate income and profit for the
Company to grow and be sustainable.

Finally, on behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to thank our shareholders, valued customers, business partners who
have always supported the Company. | would also like to thank the management and all employees who have worked together with
diligence, honesty, and dedication to the best of their ability, enabling the Company to achieve success and stand firm as it is

today. | believe that with the cooperation and unity of all employees, we can make our organization grow, progress stably, and
achieve our goals sustainably.

(Mr. Chan Thirakarnjanawong)

Chairman of the Board

Image Message from the chairman
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Vision

Big Camera is committed to being a leader in the integrated imaging equipment business, being the first name that comes to mind
when customers think of capturing memories in both still and moving images. We focus on delivering experiences and services for
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Message from the President

capturing images with standards and quality to achieve the highest satisfaction in products and services.

Objectives

Big Camera responds to all customer needs in image capturing with a wide variety of products.

Big Camera is committed to offering products and services with quality standards in comprehensive photographic equipment,

catering to all applications and lifestyles of everyone. To maintain and develop good and sustainable relationships with

customers and all trading partners with transparency and honesty. To create a bond and sincerity in living together forever.
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Big Camera focuses on personnel development by creating a culture of creativity to cultivate knowledge and develop the

organization's potential for sustainable growth.

Big Camera is committed to managing the organization under the principles of good governance, including promoting social

responsibility participation and environmental preservation.

Goals

The Company's business objective is to operate a business for sustainable growth by conducting operations that encompass 3 main
issues: society, environment, and good corporate governance. The Company aims to be a professional in providing excellent service
to customers, focusing on developing service models and selecting products to create leadership in the imaging equipment and
printing services businesses. The Company will develop modern services to enhance service efficiency and maximize customer

satisfaction.

Business strategies

The company strives to be a leader in the distribution of photography equipment through retail channels. This means focusing on
selling products that are carefully selected to meet the needs of all consumer groups, offering a wide variety of modern

products, and being able to directly source products that meet consumer needs. Therefore, the company focuses on expanding its
market base to maximize market share and maintain its leadership in the photography equipment market. This is achieved by
expanding distribution channels, increasing product diversity, and directly importing products for sale as an authorized

distributor appointed by manufacturers. The company places importance on retaining its existing customer base and expanding its
new customer base through Big Camera's network of distribution channels. This includes existing branches, expanding new branches
alongside shopping malls, and expanding other distribution channels such as online sales. Currently, Big Camera's online sales
channels include platforms such as Shopee, Lazada, M-Online, Central Online, TikTok, Noc Noc, This Shop, and Big Camera's own
website.

In the highly competitive retail market for photography equipment, where products are similar or almost identical, Big Camera has
chosen a competitive strategy of differentiation. They focus on providing comprehensive or "One Stop Service" at all Big Camera
branches nationwide. This involves offering a full range of products and services, from camera sales and equipment to photo
printing, repair, camera maintenance, and various photo printing services. They also aim to add value for consumers who choose to
purchase products and services through Big Camera, such as offering camera training courses with professional photographers in
various photography styles.

Over the past several years, in addition to taking photos for developing and keeping as memories, the trend of taking photos to
share on various social media platforms has become increasingly popular. For example, taking videos to record stories (Vlogs) and
posting them on online platforms such as YouTube has become a rapidly growing trend. This is coupled with the trend of live
broadcasting through various social media platforms such as live streaming on Facebook, YouTube, or TikTok, creating stories on
Instagram, and making short clips on TikTok. These trends have led to a higher demand for digital cameras with video recording
functions, as well as photography equipment such as lighting, microphones, and tripods. In 2020, Big Camera expanded its brand
portfolio by launching Exclusif by BIG Camera, located in Central World shopping center. This new flagship store caters to
customers seeking high-end to professional-level photography and videography equipment, including various accessories for a
complete photography and videography experience. Product specialists are available to provide close consultation. In 2021-2022,
the company continued to organize activities under the Exclusif by BIG Camera brand, creating activities to promote knowledge and
experience sharing, teaching, and providing equipment trials. They set up a corner simulating a real studio, allowing consumers

to try out products before making a purchase. They also created training courses that provide knowledge from experts in content

production, from beginner to large-scale production levels.

Furthermore, the company continues to expand its business vertically by acquiring shares in Piccasus Co., Ltd. ("Subsidiary").

This subsidiary imports photography equipment for distribution, including being an authorized distributor, selling products, and
providing official services under leading global brands. These brands include DJI, covering products such as photography drones,
image stabilizers, action cameras; OM-System, covering products such as mirrorless cameras, compact underwater cameras, M.Zuiko
Series lenses, binoculars, and voice recorders; and Cynova and Startrc, which are brands of high-quality accessories for DJI

products. Currently, Piccasus Co., Ltd. ("Subsidiary") has been granted the right to distribute popular leading brands of
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photography equipment in Thailand, strengthening the company's distribution channels from import to consumers.

1.1.2 Material changes and developments

Details regarding material changes and developments

Year Material changes and developments

2020
1. On July 1, 2020, Big Camera Holding Co., Ltd. (“the subsidiary”) was registered for liquidation with

the Department of Business Development, Ministry of Commerce, and ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company.

2. On November 13, 2020, the 5/2020 Board of Directors Meeting resolved to acquire 100% of the ordinary
shares of Picasso Co., Ltd. from the existing shareholders and approved a capital increase in Picasso Co.,
Ltd. amounting to 20,000,000 Baht to support its role as a distributor and importer of goods for sale.

3. On November 16, 2020, the Company acquired ordinary shares of Picasso Co., Ltd. and registered the
change of registration of Picasso Co., Ltd. (“the subsidiary”) with the Department of Business
Development, Ministry of Commerce. On December 3, 2020, the Company registered a capital increase in
Picasso Co., Ltd. (“the subsidiary”) by issuing 199,900 newly issued ordinary shares with a par value of
100 Baht per share, totaling 19,990,000 Baht, resulting in a total registered capital of 20,000,000 Baht.

The objective is to support its role as a distributor and importer of goods for sale.

1.1.3 Spending of the raised fund to serve the objectives declared in the registration statement

for securities offering
Is there an issuance of equity securities or debt : No

securities?

1.1.4 The obligations to which the company has committed in the
registration statement, including the compliance with such

obligations or conditions in the following years
Are there any issued securities with obligations or : No

conditions?

1.1.5 Company information

Company name : BIG CAMERA CORPORATION PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
Symbol : BIG
Address  : No. 115, 115/1 Sawatdikarn 1 Road, Nong Khaem Subdistrict, Nong Khaem
District
Province :  Bangkok
Postcode 10160
Business : Retailing of photographic equipment and mobile phone.
Registration number : 0107537001404
Telephone :  0-2809-9956-65
Facsimile number :  0-2809-9950
Website www.bigcamera.co.th
Email ir@bigcamera.co.th

Total shares sold
Common stock 3,528,878,800

Preferred stock : 0
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1.2 Nature of business

1.2.1 Revenue structure

Revenue structure by product line or business group

2022 2023 2024
Total revenue from operations (thousand baht) 2,830,252.00 3,155,164.00 3,894,131.56
Sales Revenue (thousand baht) 2,679,019.84 2,958,119.00 3,684,886.41
Service Income (thousand baht) 75,551.72 88,465.00 93,182.88
Other Income (thousand baht) 75,680.43 108,569.00 116,062.25
Total revenue from operations (%) 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Sales Revenue (%) 94.66% 93.75% 94.63%
Service Income (%) 2.67% 2.80% 2.39%
Other Income (%) 2.67% 3.44% 2.98%
By geographical area or market
2022 2023 2024
Total revenue (thousand baht) 2,830,252.00 3,155,164.00 3,894,131.56
Domestic (thousand baht) 2,830,252.00 3,155,164.00 3,894,131.56
International (thousand baht) 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total revenue (%) 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Domestic (%) 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
International (%) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Other income as specified in the financial statements
2022 2023 2024
Total other income (thousand baht) 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other income from operations (thousand baht) 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other income not from operations (thousand baht) 0.00 0.00 0.00
Share of profit of joint ventures and associates accounted for using equity method
2022 2023 2024
Share of profit (thousand baht) 0.00 0.00 0.00
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1.2.2 Information on products and services

1.2.2.1 Product/service information and business innovation development

BIG Camera

BIG Camera Corporation Public Company Limited (“the Company” or “BIG Camera”) operates a retail business for cameras,
photographic equipment, and other related services under the name “BIG Camera”. The company first started its business in 1997 as
a retail store for photographic equipment with its first branch at Carrefour Suwinthawong, a stand-alone store located on

Carrefour's rental space at that time. Later, the company's management saw that the camera retail business had the opportunity to
grow further. Therefore, it adjusted its business strategy by expanding its store branches to shopping centers and department

stores nationwide to respond to competition in the camera industry and to adapt to technological changes and the changing needs

of consumers.

The company has 6 business models.

1. Retail Business BIG Camera operates as a retailer of comprehensive photographic equipment, ranging from digital photographic
equipment from leading brands such as Leica, Canon, Panasonic, Fuji, Sony, OM SYSTEM, DJI, etc., including other related
equipment such as lenses, filters, memory cards, tripods, etc. Currently, BIG Camera operates its photographic equipment
distribution business through its own branches with more than 160 distribution channels covering the entire country under the
name “BIG Camera”, which emphasizes the main concept: “BlG Camera is the happiest center of digital cameras with the most
choices.” These branches are located in leading shopping centers and modern trade centers such as Central, The Mall, Robinson,
MBK, Siam Paragon, Seacon Square, ICONSIAM, Terminal 21, including Big C Supercenter, Tesco Lotus, and others.

In the past, Big Camera has seen the importance of The Mall partners who have the power of sales, so it has expanded its stores
into the Power Mall zone. There are a total of 5 branches: Siam Paragon, The Mall Tha Phra, Emporium, The Mall Bangkapi, The Mall
Bangkae, which is a zone for electronic equipment and IT products, including the most modern gaming equipment in the heart of the

city to reach customers of all ages even more.

Currently, the company has expanded its store branches in leading shopping centers in Thailand to over 160 branches, covering 69
out of 77 provinces to support customer service nationwide under the names “BIG Camera”, “BIG Camera Galleria”, “Exclusif by BIG
Camera”, “Wonder Photo Shop by BIG Camera”, “Pop! Print by Big Camera”, “DJI”, “Insta360”, “AlS”, and “Telewiz”. The company's
stores come in many formats with the following background:

- Photographic equipment retail stores. The company focuses on expanding its market base to increase its market share as much as
possible and maintain its leadership in the photographic equipment market by expanding distribution channels and increasing
product diversity. Therefore, it has a policy to improve the company's stores to be stores that provide retail services for
photographic equipment and photo printing in one place. It also improves the image and atmosphere inside the store to make
customers and service users feel impressed when receiving services, able to choose products and receive services that meet a
variety of needs to support consumers who need to use products related to photographic equipment and photo printing services. The
company has been appointed as a distributor (retail) of photographic equipment from leading brands worldwide, such as Leica,
Canon, Sony, Fujifilm, Panasonic, DJI, OM System, etc., including related equipment (Accessories) such as video cameras,
photographic lenses, flashes, studio lighting, microphones, binoculars, memory cards, filters, camera bags, tripods, batteries,

and other accessories. Currently, most of the company's branches are located in leading shopping centers and hypermarkets,
covering areas in Bangkok, perimeter, and other provinces according to various communities such as Siam Paragon, EmQuiartier,
ICONSIAM, all Central branches, all The Mall branches, Fashion Island, Seacon Square, Future Park, Terminal 21, Lotus, Big C, and

local shopping centers in major provinces.

- Mobile phone retail stores. Big Camera has partnered with Advanced Wireless Network Company Limited (“AWN”) since 2016 to
manage AIS Shop by Partner, a store that is fully managed by the company. It brings in modern technology as a tool to facilitate
customers with the best service standards. Currently, customers are attached to the emblems and logos of the aforementioned
brands, resulting in most customers still receiving services through these stores. Big Camera has a team with experience in sales
management and customer service. Currently, Big Camera continues to collaborate with AWN in managing AIS and Telewiz stores. Big

Camera has tried to select products to cover all famous brands to meet the needs of customers at all levels, whether it's premium
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smartphones, mid-range products, including products with affordable prices, and smartphones in AlS special projects. It also
meticulously manages the selection of products sold in each store (Product assortment) to correspond with the location and
purchasing behavior of consumers in that branch, as well as services related to products, which can facilitate a full digital

lifestyle for customers all in one place, such as high-speed internet with fiber optic technology, bill payment, and various

digital services. The company has a team with experience in sales management, customer service, including the recruitment of
quality personnel, and the development of training and knowledge for salespeople on an ongoing basis, whether it's joint training
with AIS, in-house training, as well as sending salespeople to training with product brands or participating in various training

programs to develop the sales potential of employees to keep up with communication technology in the present and future, and to

be prepared for the work of employees amidst the digital disruption trend and to meet customer needs.

- Brand stores. In addition to creating store branches under its own brand, the company also has stores selling products under

other brands as follows: o DJI Brand Stores. DJI is a brand that manufactures unmanned aerial vehicles (drones). It is a product

that uses advanced technology and can fly to capture images from above. There has been significant development in terms of the
quality of still images and videos, programs that support photography, and safety systems for flying, resulting in high-quality

still images and recorded videos. Drones come in various forms. Currently, DJI products are widely popular, whether it's

individual customers, companies, organizations, both sovernment and private sectors across the country, who want to use drones
for general photography in various activities or for surveying areas, which drones meet the needs of aerial photography in

various businesses. The company has a team to clearly introduce products, teach how to use them correctly along with precautions,
and provide after-sales service with a standardized repair center. In addition, DJI also has many other products, such as

Stabilization Equipment, which helps prevent camera shake during photography, allowing customers who use such equipment to obtain
professional-quality video files, and Action Cameras, which are cameras with upgraded functions to meet the needs of customers
who want to shoot various types of adventure videos, including the advantage of using them to create various types of content,
which people in today's society are increasingly using to create content. Big Camera has opened the DJI Experience Store by BIG
Camera at MBK Center because Piccasus Company Limited (“a subsidiary”) is an official importer of DJI products and wants to
enhance its leadership in the DJI business group. Therefore, it opened the DJI Experience Store MBK Center by BIG Camera, based

on the concept of “The largest and most comprehensive DJI product center, One Stop Service”, the ultimate experience. Specialized
staff are ready to provide advice and services. There are in-store workshops every month, along with the privilege of

participating in outdoor workshops before anyone else, led by DJI Product Specialists who will take care of and advise on all
customer creations closely to meet the needs of new-generation content creators who want products that facilitate content
creation, such as DJI Osmo Pocket 3, Osmo Action 4, Drone, Mic, Gimbal, with experts to advise and take care of them closely, as

well as handle flight registration documents for all customers who purchase products from the store.

o Insta360 Brand Stores. Insta360 is a brand that manufactures and sells virtual reality cameras and spherical cameras. The

unusual shape doesn't look like any ordinary camera or action camera we've seen before. It can shoot 360-degree images, helping
to convey unusual perspectives and effects, enhancing content creation more than shooting with ordinary cameras, making Insta360
more well-known. People around the world like to use it for travel, production work, and daily vlogging, etc. Stores selling

products under these brands are a collaboration in business between the company and various brands, both in terms of branch
expansion and organizing various sales promotions. These brand stores benefit both the company and the product brand itself, both

in terms of credibility and increasing sales channels to make products easily accessible to consumers.

In the past year, Big Camera has been committed to meeting the needs of outdoor enthusiasts who are passionate about photography
and videography. Therefore, it has partnered with Insta360 to open its first branch at Central Festival Phuket and later opened

another branch in the heart of Bangkok to deliver New Action Experiences in 360 degrees at CentralWorld.

2. Business to Business (B2B)

The company distributes products to various corporate customers, whether they are government agencies or private organizations,
including various educational institutions. In other words, it is a direct sale to general companies that are juristic persons in

a variety of businesses and industries by leveraging the strengths of the retail business with branches nationwide to support
corporate customers and general agencies, including various educational institutions. From the rapid development and changes in
technology, it has resulted in every sector needing to procure and purchase modern products and equipment to meet the growth of
technology in the digital world. The company sees the opportunity to sell products and continuously expand its business from the
demand for products from these consumers. Therefore, it has a department that specifically supports services for this business.

3. Service Business
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The company's services are divided into several categories as follows:

- Photo printing services. The company is committed to providing comprehensive customer service. Therefore, it has an idea to

find similar products that can meet the diverse needs of customers, namely, photo printing services. To add more exclusivity, the
company also offers general photo printing services with image decoration or text insertion (DIY print), which customers can
decorate, insert text, or add various layouts themselves through the Wonder Print Station. In 2017, the company opened a flagship
store under the name Wonder Photo Shop by BIG Camera. Wonder Photo Shop by BIG Camera is considered the most comprehensive
prototype store in Southeast Asia and the first time that the company has partnered in marketing with Fujifilm (Thailand) Co.,

Ltd. to install the FDI Station (Fuji Digital Image Station) and Wonder Print Station in BIG Camera stores nationwide under the

concept of “BIG Printing Solution” to meet the needs of consumers who want to keep impressive photos and important photos from
various events. Customers can order prints from all types of digital media and can print work recorded from mobile phones via a
wireless system, whether it's WiFi, Bluetooth, or choosing to print images from social media. Later, in 2023, the company

developed its photo printing business to meet all lifestyles comprehensively, whether it's taking ID photos, instant photo

printing, printing photo books, canvases, modern frames, various large photos, or producing business cards, posters, and logo

stickers for SMEs. Every production process is integrated with the latest technology to create high-quality work and meet the
lifestyles of people today. The company, therefore, provides photo printing services under the name POP! Print to expand its
photography business. “POP! PRINT - MAKE IT POP!” targets small and medium-sized SMEs that provide services such as photo books,
large photo printing, printing images on materials other than paper, as well as other products applied in printing. To meet the

needs and provide a new, comprehensive photo printing service under the concept of ‘Everything is Possible’, POP! Print has

opened its first flagship store at Central Festival Chiang Mai and has POP! PRINT Corner branches in every BIG Camera store
nationwide. Due to the changing times, the company has opened “POP! PRINT” One-Stop Printing Center, its first branch at Central
Chiang Mai, 3rd floor, a store that truly meets the demands of the new world. It reinforces the timeless value of tangible photo
printing that has long been a part of society from the analog to the digital age. Customers will find a full range of photography

and printing services, whether it's PHOTO ID, an instant ID photo service that can be picked up immediately, and a variety of

photo printing options that revolutionize traditional printing, whether it's photo stickers, photo cards, photo books that can be

fully customized with patterns and designs as desired, suitable for special gifts for loved ones, or canvas prints in modern and
minimalist floating frames that will please every family. In addition, POP! PRINT is ready to support printing work for SMEs,

including business cards, stickers, product labels, brochures, posters, and currently, Image Plus has been rebranded to POP!

PRINT to fully elevate the One-Stop Printing Center.

- After-sales service is a service that extends the warranty period for photographic equipment. For customers who have purchased
products from Big Camera stores, they can receive service at every Big Camera branch. Currently, customers can receive service in

two ways: products that are still under warranty, Big Camera will be responsible for sending them for repair to customers (under
warranty conditions). In the case of products that are out of warranty, Big Camera will send them for repair and charge a fee or

service charge to customers under various conditions, such as a 120-day repair warranty for the same symptoms and spare parts. -

OM System Service Center, Piccasus Company Limited (a subsidiary), has been granted the exclusive right to distribute products

under the OM SYSTEM brand in Thailand. As a distributor and importer of products for sale in the country, it also provides repair

and maintenance services for OM SYSTEM cameras and equipment. - AlS and Telewiz Service Shops by BIG Camera. Big Camera has
partnered with Advanced Wireless Network Company Limited (“AWN”) to manage AIS Shop by Partner. It has been granted the right to
manage AIS Shop under the name “AIS” and the right to manage Telewiz Shop under the name “Telewiz”, providing network and mobile
phone services from many leading brands under names such as Apple, Samsung, Huawei, Oppo, Vivo, Redmi, etc. Currently, there are

13 branches in total.

4. Online Retail Business

Currently, online shopping has become part of consumer behavior and has a growth rate every year. The company, therefore, sees
the importance and has online product distribution channels to enhance the strength of the business and support the changing
behavior and needs of consumers in the digital age. The company, therefore, focuses on developing strategies under the approach
of integrating all communication channels into one place, both online and offline, to reach the target customer base
comprehensively and to link various data to work together effectively and efficiently, and to increase sales opportunities and

help enhance services even better. - www.bigcamera.co.th (BIG Camera Online) is a platform for BIG Camera stores to distribute
various types of cameras and photographic equipment under brands such as Leica, Canon, Sony, Fujifilm, Panasonic, DJI, OM System,

etc.

Part 1 Business Operations and Performance
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- www.popprintthailand.com It is a platform that provides a new, comprehensive photo printing service, including exclusive

products and a variety of prints that respond to the imagination of recording stories, whether it's canvas prints, photo books,
postcards, stickers, calendars, and new forms of photo printing with professional printing standards to be sent as gifts on
special occasions or festivals.

- www.piccasus.co.th/ It is a platform for recommending products imported by Piccasus Company Limited. Currently, Piccasus is an
official importer and distributor of DJI and OM System brand products, as well as many other leading brands in the world. It also
provides after-sales services for DJI and OM System brand products. In addition to continuous development in updating online
sales channels on the aforementioned website, we are still developing online sales through Marketplace channels such as Lazada,
Shopee, Tik Tok, and other E-Marketplaces in the future to cover online shopping behavior.

5. Import Business

The company has a business that supports the direct import of cameras and photographic equipment, including unmanned aerial
vehicles (drones), from manufacturers for distribution in the country through its subsidiary, Piccasus Company Limited, which
imports DJI, OM System, and other brand products. In addition, BIG Camera has currently been granted the right by Leica Camera
Asia Pacific to become the official BIG CAMERA Leica Authorized Dealer in Thailand to jointly open the market under the Leica

brand together and has expanded the import of photographic equipment brands from Leica to be sold in Thailand as well.

6. Photographic Equipment Wholesale Business (Distributor)

Although the retail business is the company's core business, the company never stops looking for new growth opportunities to
strengthen the company. In 2020, the company began importing products directly from manufacturers, starting with products under
the OM SYSTEM brand, a brand developed from Olympus, which has a long-

standing reputation for photographic equipment. The company

has been appointed as the sole official importer and distributor in Thailand for cameras and photographic equipment.

Diagram of BIG Camera
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iin puus StasnamsimihefudanunolasutisandunslduSmstiunih s iuaztaamnis

aaulml 1ivamausuasanudaamsasndlidlasiofigs uiseandunamlszin il

® 11 BIG Camera :ﬁimmﬂnﬁammmmm:qﬂnﬁﬁﬁLﬁmﬂﬂ“ﬂu fituuwifandn “audundasddiia
ﬁﬁmmqﬂulﬁlﬁ anmnﬁ@m" %38 "Digital Camera Lifestyle Store” ﬁ'ﬂaunn‘[aﬂﬂm 23AusNMSTNBAW HaNa NG
1 “’u‘%mmﬁ'mﬁmmgnﬁﬂmmﬁmﬁma 5 1iiafiazldidu One Stop Service ludun1sinanw anfidu n1s
LduSnmsiunwinslugpluouen g mslduSnsessszoznaiudsiuaUnsalitanw naufamslduinig
TauuTugUnyoldisnw ‘Aﬁﬂﬂﬁ!ﬁlﬁu fin enanddwiugnit 160 sdsznd lasdiuiu “BIG Camera”

lafu 136 M1 lasnsuSwsiamsmlumsdufivnuazdsnavdanagnflumsinsonlunanodd viald

UiENen Lﬁuq‘sﬁﬂﬂ aa”mimﬁmLm:ﬁﬂizﬁﬂﬁmwgaqﬂ

NInuaad 314 BIG Camera
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® 1 BIG Camera Galleria : On s laonszdumslduims Lﬁaﬂaufumjugnﬁmuu exclusive
Lm:m@1ﬁaﬂulﬁmaapj’ﬁuﬁaum‘smUmW A1 BIG Camera Galleria ﬁﬁm‘uﬁuamnmmﬁaam‘sﬁmm‘smmmw
dummansallna iy ﬁm‘fﬂﬂﬁwnﬁaaﬁ%ﬁﬂiuﬁw UMY Lm:qﬂﬂmn‘sﬁﬁmmfm’mry‘lunnqﬂn‘mi
Iigndmmriwldsuanussmnaunslunstay s wisudislusludugafiay uszu3mmsimsmeildunesgs
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= ; . - . vd v e d = o
L“ﬂil{ll‘ﬂll 13314 ﬁuﬂfﬂ’l'ﬁﬂ’]L‘E%ﬂiﬁQLﬁﬂ WanLsasn ﬂ?ﬂlﬂ’ﬂa'ﬂu “BIG Camera Galleria ‘Hﬂﬂ'ﬁ]ﬁéuu&lﬂﬂﬁu 7 1711 N7

132N

DINUERY 374 BIG Camera Galleria

® 3w Exclusif by Big Camera

fin aua Wdnsdeds Experience Store wiswsnluuszinedng nuléd@a Exclusif by Big Camera
T 4 quinisduduniaiad Lﬁa‘mﬁugnﬁ’wﬁﬁﬂﬂuﬁaamﬁuﬁam:@mmitﬁmﬁm:ﬁulu‘[nnmaamm’wmw
vanfedu Tasdaduiuusnuszdfidor ludszinalng drwsudndsraufaadw Manuuniwiiouas
mwnaaulm AsaURARUNNFUMUIzMIlALTMT fzdaulanmamistonwraiidl luiiies Lﬁamauhﬂﬁnn

Iafwlad vasme Content Creator sa i

#1970 Exclusif by Big Camera fazfnslissmzimih ofudwiaus auuSmsReBuuY Exclusive
rlumﬂﬁﬁwﬂ‘%nmLm:ﬂ@maﬂ’ﬁﬁuﬁwﬁuﬁ'alﬁmﬂﬁu'iﬂﬂavlﬂﬁaﬂwgnﬁaaLm:LL&iuﬂw lagwwsn Product Specialists
sreufiaondwann fin s wiaurisimsliusmaiessszuunsiaiu limsiin Set Live Steaming, mIsan
waznivousuaaulad aufiamen Vdo Content un: Viog wianyeaidalusandulwiv Husznaums uaziwa
Content Creator Matsiidsz@nTawuuy Private Goaching MoFwfIdszinguinnizion wianuinisiiae

AT ‘3% LARYIATURZE 1A NADILAZLAUS

uanand 1% Exclusif by Big Camera 4§ Experience Production Zone L1l wRwAdmuaaassd
Uz aumInMUY Exclusive fiaznaudssaumssianmanasasldauaieny fudlsnanndasnanuaogluuy
Twivaunsallnidngs wazLaudTg LM Aanannanefians Production #aslinena mfiviu loundaus: a1 nstiie
115717 Live aauuyudaanin, ‘[ﬂmﬂ”ﬂﬁiamwﬁa?ﬁ‘[aﬁmw%’auq'ﬂmrﬁﬁﬁuau‘”ﬂw%’aulﬁ’gnﬁ’w‘lﬁﬁﬂujﬁomiﬁﬂﬂ‘a
Salauvuasuas uanmnﬁﬁam‘ﬂunﬁaoLm:qﬂm;ﬁﬁm%ﬂ a7 Youtuber uaz Viogger TildiSuuifiamaldnu
331 warmpsni Il lunsdarinialaldadreasda amansaaaulandmsidu Content Greator yalwinyy
ATUIAT
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® Wonder Photo Shop by BIG Camera

fin e JusSmsmsRadnwisialdwiasanudeniw wialegenina (DIY print) f‘ﬁagn@ﬁmmm
anusis ladannu wiatiuima1rane g Ieasua3as wonder print station Tanu3uny'lsfifladm Flagship Store
muléia Wonder Photo Shop

Wonder Photo Shop by BIG Camera ﬁmﬁui’mﬁmwuﬁmmwsﬁg@llu Southeast Asia uaziilua3swan
luﬂ's:mﬁ“iﬂﬂﬁnnmmm‘mhﬁ::gnmwa@\am‘mﬁmﬁﬁmﬂrlﬁuﬂfﬂmmﬁmﬁummuaglu AETzuUMSANUWAIN
ﬁﬁuaﬁﬂﬁé"mmuﬁwqmmwnﬁuﬁmmmmﬁ Fujifim sauiladmshendas aUNITAM BN Instax WULATUMAT
muléfauusud Fuiim wazdafiatnsalfud D.LY wWadumsaoamuiilivsmsludnememsiarnmwia
Wuaaswinluwlanadrs g wialtiduwsasanudsfiuanslad a"{ﬂﬁﬁlmmanﬁnuﬁmm:yﬂm UAZTBITUNTAY
ﬁagn‘lwﬁmwmn Smart phone @830 Wifi 1% Application L% Smart phone

NINUFEAY T4 Wonder Photo Shop

wananiusEny fldhndiannsamany uSEn Widldu iszinelng drria @‘im‘faguﬂ‘uﬁﬂ A9%ia FDI
Station (Fuji Digital Image Station) Lm:m"?aa Wonder Print Station 1451% BIG Camera ﬁﬂ‘iau@]q&lﬁiﬂ‘i:mﬂ
muldunafin “BIG Printing Solution” 1a® a‘uaummmﬁaamwaa;ju‘ﬂmﬁm”aanwuﬁumwﬂ‘izﬂ“uh nwaney
TuanuRdne g lasandrelduimasansa ﬁ'aﬁuﬁa”suﬂ@i’%anﬁau”uﬁnﬁﬁﬁnnnmﬁm s oA nuituinldain
TnsenriiaRanil Fmszuy Wireless lainaziiu WiFi - Bluetooth wiantsianiiuwinanain Social Media
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518zt B2 admEndmeiuazuSnslag Wonder Photo Shop by BIG Camera

Fudnlédmaduiiueunas Wonder Photo Shop by BIG Camera iR anasmaimua p3uuy

1. FwAINA24 Instax UNWiaaINMIUTMIANWAWLEI Wonder Photo Shop S9duSnmsivshandasuas
Ay Instax AnviasiTaislismsusmssminendasdsria nduazaunyoiaiy nolduu g Fujiim
w¥aufiszuy touch & try Lﬂm:uuLﬁa‘lﬁ’lumﬁﬂmaumﬂ‘ﬁa’ma‘%amnnﬁaum:mua‘nnjm DI TS
Fuijifilm

L FuAINaD Instax 112114313 Wonder Photo Shap

2. uSmisfinaIwanan1falulu (Smart Print) uazndaedaia vinisfuninsnodomeluladd
viumibamnsnRadawldiasuundaluali@ Snviaanansnsasiuriaszuy 108 uaz android snalodinasgin
wamunmormaldifanamanudaanisvasgndt lasrwios 3 dunanitn g iR lnanualniiati
Bauda uazdviud anlofnaspusanaaeina T@m@n@ﬁmuﬂ'sn‘l’ﬂ”u?n'mhum“%m wonder print

station #IUALBIANALD
202191038 970NN Fuji Digital Image n12:Tu$71 Wonder Photo Shop
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maluiu mmﬁsmﬁﬂnﬂfﬁnmugﬂ mwsumsltanuldaunnumaneay

#0819 U1 POP! PRINT 14311 Wonder Photo Shop

Fuaanuds (D.LY) wialdFudrn wae fassassdundu nelufu Wonder Photo Shop faiiusms
FminaFud anues (D.LY) 11w a@ininas gy a”mu:ugﬂ n1§a Masking tape Uaz Scrapbook aneg
sansnaantaidslddandigndias ﬂ"mﬁ]:l.”wn‘iﬂ”hLﬁuﬂuawﬁfm‘fmﬁmlﬂanﬁgnmmmﬂman
mmjﬁnﬂhwuawfmﬁsﬁu’fuﬁﬁmuﬁﬁu‘lﬁmn

shangvEusmea lufiu Wonder Photo Shop

u3n1yie3l&aidas (Phote ID) uimsdiggufiadasdon wiawuimsinanmuszandhaansosaiuled
LB TR Env‘i?ﬂﬂ”aﬁu?miﬁwwﬁ”ugnﬁiﬁmwﬁmw Lidaansinazlv anfaanmesslinlduims
Friwldituin lyieadugufadasadasim wisdadadt wassiniSowsindne safeduimanduriz
mwmﬂﬁgnﬁ"’lﬁmmi SIUUNIEAHMNNAI TN IARY

ﬁﬁaﬁwmm?mmwgﬂﬁﬂy“m (Photo ID) n78111437% Wonder Photo Shop
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o 1w DJI Experience Store by BIG Camera

Tuditrhuan fin anw I6idasan DI Experience Store by BIG Camera ﬁgﬁuﬁmiﬁ’ﬂmqnﬂmmuiuma%
titesan vSEn Rnendw e (USunday’) iWudunumaiudnFudn DI adradumsuasdaanisanszduaany
Wudinlunduudrsnia DI Fsvimsiaiu DIl Experience Store by BIG Camera #l MBK Center laznain
uwafia “gudaiudud DJI ﬁﬁa1ﬂnjLLﬂ:ﬂiUﬂ§uﬁ1§ﬂ 1MLEEI90 USMIATUI937 One Stop Service” Lﬁalﬁgmﬁ
jﬁnﬁaﬁ“n s dusumididaudiasuies Tmsiamiud Lm:‘qﬂﬂmmﬁﬂmmjﬂwwﬁwmmﬁLﬁuﬁ'm“s”u
ané1 DJI wazwnsnguihnansldasavaaunnanadasmyzesaaiandas Tasnwlufmazininnufifany
L”ﬁm%1mmm:mn winalWiuuziuaziims nubadifianssy In - store Workshop nnidiaw wiaudnanifian

lumsdhitufianssn Outdoor Workshop riawles siifinlas DJI Product Specialist #&"’ﬁ’m’mjm‘iﬁlﬂﬂﬁ%:ﬂaﬂ@m

- a

wazlddninsmnanusiassdvasandiainalndfa thaaaulang Content Creator palwaifidasnsfudiil

d1U78A21URZAINAANTIHN Content LT% DJI Osmo Pocket 3, Osmo Action 4, Drone W82 Mic, Gimbal Tilaufls

disznaumysaunaTiig AifnudaIn I IUM BN RE1TI AT uANUTEN URwASTIA uaz Ay |CH
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® % Insta360 Experience Store by BIG Camera

Insta360 Lﬂuuumm‘ﬁlﬂugwﬁmm:mmnﬁmmﬁauﬁaLm:nﬁaammmu 31Jmaﬁ|.mmnm aldmfaundas
ﬁlas]"l,ﬂ wiauaatuuauiiaufun o sansadenwlduuy 360 asan 19 an‘wmmwwaamwm:mmwﬂﬁ
wanen dapaamssdasssfnawmudldunnitmstieyhdaondasia gl aurild nsta3so Lﬁuﬁﬁnmnﬂfu
aualanfoani i IFnuiadumsiasiion, sulsantu uaz Mo Viog ludiaumsin iudu

o 2 = v o an = . 4 v
rluﬂaaﬁ;‘uummﬁ"uaam‘ﬁ‘mn%mmnmaLLﬁmn’;m"lmum’mmuamamn uazwnitalundasfianauTandnsld

a 1Y

ﬂuﬁm%’u@ﬁ’fn’ﬂaumiﬁﬁﬁan‘smnmmﬁa"ﬂmnﬁqaﬁﬂa ndas Action Camera 94 Insta360 fawilalunumdaudy
duvasamandaslumad fin a1 luguzhundasiienagaliifaninnige Ssldiudanu nfinity Plus
Trading fi L&A Insta360 Tudszinalnaatiaduniens tawaulszaunisollna ldriuawitinlufanssy
naudennyine e undssdmiuinua i Insta360 Experience Store by BIG Camera Tasdaldusnisman
wsndi gudmsfuadia iunia giia Lm:@iam"l.ﬁl.ﬂm‘lﬁu?nﬁﬁnﬁﬁammhnm‘mymm Wauay New Action
Experiences U1 360 aaendi quin GentralWorld Wan avlszaunsoian Action T2WRAUAM Insta360 Lm"h”nn
iu ldhandundas wia Accessories W30 IwawIBNsE AL Rare ftem 284 Insta360 Soniminesn Hasuay
TuduLden

{ a o oa 2 idd o

s N udanaudaniuinue naswihlninnsianiasuaulaludindas Action Camera inmz il

difsimyassaualddiuuzsiiaglndda tialdannn insta3eo lddtinsaauninidlavasnmlunisaiianssd

Content waztiuifmszaumsalfiauasnm

. o . 4
® WAINTINIID WY EEH‘IRH

Lﬁaaﬁﬂnﬁﬁ:ﬁ;u‘”uﬂqﬁnﬁumﬂ“ﬁﬁhmJ aa;ju%lmﬁumﬁﬂuwﬂﬂﬁ Taswuinmafaruriwtasmanawlsl
iufumliunmsmnodetsmad wofans:Taauniu ;ju"‘s‘[m%a?ﬁuﬁﬂmwﬁaamaaauﬁnmﬁm‘fuLWﬂ:ﬂau
TanfmeafunsdmlIsnuRzAIN ﬁnvﬂgﬁlmﬁﬁﬂﬂmwnﬁanﬁvﬂ mMswTaYAFU uAzUS 3N 9 anfa
aaulml n M aszwinfewgdnssunisuilnafiaouu s W3 sldumnotasmamssmihedus tiadue
m*}mt:mnLLn:LﬁmﬁLﬁan‘lﬁ’l.l,rignﬁimwﬁaammau‘lmﬂ@muwwwafu"ﬂaafn A3 LA N

www.bigcamera.co.th ugzpwd aantsuwaawasudu a17iitn Shopee , Lazada, Central Online Tiktok ,NocNoc Laz

This Shop tIudu
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NARRAIUSIUA
SupUesdouan
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nort: [130- 422

(3) s3nATSMBBIUAzanAa9ANST (B2B)

u“‘iﬁmﬁmﬁm‘hﬂmUﬁuﬁﬂﬁ"ﬁugnﬁw 846N WilBwTTINT wezandunsinen 88 msvoasely g
u‘%ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬂﬁLﬁuﬁﬁqﬂﬂmlunéuq‘sﬁa KAZAARTANTINTNIRMINARAE WIEUIITNT TufamInedauazasdns
ndnene g lasadvyaudsvasssfed@nfifiaesasunsliuSnmaiidszinant 160 21 lunsiugndn

LULBIRNT W E9ITMS wazinSeu wnAnsaniiin

anmywanuyas uameiamaluladfiidulyatsdaiias vdinmfauusudlng g Aedaans
floumanziugasdy nagsiakaenilbin g lddnaziflunihiauianss viBn BTN RIankanan
anfumsdnsisfanuiuiuiiazdasdann ﬂ‘i"uﬂ‘gaqﬂniri1ﬁﬂLﬂﬂIuIaﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬂ SH[ED Ralwmauauasda
msidvlavannalulaiddns lapuSinsuanfuanudaamsdananlunnmiaonu wu ssfissuwiadn aua
nate Lazaunalng %ia wisuTnT wia sondunsdinsnens g vSsmaiaiulamalunsnnsuaznisea

vaarsia Sedalddnsliimedmitfaillasawi:

(4) Qsﬁaﬁwﬂﬁﬂfﬂ‘sﬁwﬁmsawﬁ (Retailers)

madacaloes Fou Tas Tn mwh Ta91in vy ldsuantlunisuinig AIS Shop 1ntalatew $uam
5 s maldda “als SHOP” ldur sanidunsa indsia Wnen, a1 lsdud W33, §121 Terminal 21 Wne,
g lstuduaino WldRa wisa dino0) weemladad o Samdadoslne Jofu AlS sHOP EAVREALT
Lz fnFlumsuims AIS Telewiz muldda “AlS Telewiz” lagldsuiiunnialdusmaudans 8 man dun s

Tadiw Bauaw, sanlads wilsiiay, aanlads IUAMA, MUnT Basaw, mm‘[ﬂﬁaﬁmﬂq?, fandnd du

o
& = oo

wazaz1dnd d11the waz@ntluni13uSwis AIS Buddy Exclusive 1alduSnisudd 1 121 béun svviuasald
Wa1m Fandauns daensuinisnuiamliesdoasneiidula n1susnisitd awuiasgud AIS fwue 1
@ W a a & m . & - was W v a w oA o a

Tiandanlgvimafdsduduimwanen dn e Sldivanulindalduiasnu Suanfanda 8 meudu
13 @ lutfagriu

12917% din ana ganasanilany AWN lunmsdauSwisthu AIS Shop waz AIS Telewiz lao fin aus
Tewen muﬂ“ﬂmiﬁuﬁﬂﬁmamqumunmmm i64 tleaAaufualu daImsTagnaAmnIEeL Taddendusunia
TusunSidon vufangundadmainanmdunang wasiudmmiinnandudadld sunfaliululasinsfiasa

oo a a

wlales HavisinsviwrdamsegRtfdulunsdalanfud fidadimiieluwdaz s (Product assortment) 19
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(In house training) FIWTIMTRININ UL UTIBUN UL TUARUT wiamadiiaalasams aUTNA Y

81#i Apple Excellence program tanswa widnsmwaunisueesswinauldvivdamalulagnisvasisiu

Taatikuazamng uaztWabiwsandmsumarhnuaaawinuviunasnszuadsva aasutn
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waniwiteanld Insean-susme wia Su-setannuud? sursaliudimunsnsassumsviasBunafitariums
\Houdarn 56 uazn1sidaude'lme WIFI meludiinandondadinen sademsldnuladoafiaifnua:
LatWEIRT I U TWINAE TS AM 3 e-mail Immﬁﬂ"lm"mm'mT,V.mmaﬂwﬁmﬁumﬂ’ﬁmuﬁm‘s’ﬂlwurlﬁmaﬁu
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induaauRaadwnm Lm:nﬁawmmﬁnﬁmmmwnwﬂﬂ"l.ﬁv_]nﬁ Iﬂaluﬂafgu”uLLmuﬁr;jﬂﬁmi’mﬂu'lﬂﬁ
awdlunmsdsznaans myaanuuuntaaldfivnalnajusziiniuazioags msiawgmaIwsandas
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T.‘Nurluﬂmﬂﬁﬂ‘mUﬂQuﬂﬂ’ﬁNﬁﬂ’wﬁLL‘:ﬂ' Smart Entry ﬁmﬁaju Premium (Hi-End) Lﬁaﬂaut}nﬂ NUABINTVRIARA
lutfaain

dathaderpaian e Iy uas winda

2. vimaunsilaweimniueiatnalnsdwyiiafaudl (Operator)

ludagtiu AIS dudrnlumslduimsdeiatioluamaldinswaniaadodd i:ﬁﬂ%mwga"fu
aansorassunalulad luaduanaiiansg s 56 uaz 46 ﬁLﬂumﬁauﬂ‘s:@g’IﬂnﬁLﬁamaﬁuma‘iﬁm‘luﬂm:ﬁu
520919 WiFi tiaaauauasdantslfuautdalwuilamosddnsnniu I@nﬂpju%‘[nﬂmm'mLﬁﬂnmﬁ’ml’ﬁ’u“ﬁnﬁvﬁlu
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sunwwasellfuSnrsdnwe Jaghevan
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¢ = s o e .
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auUnsoliasy (accessories) uazuianssunivnaluladans g (gadgets) MlFdiusuiialu anfivsu anrfataad
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Shop by Partner 1w2% 5 $1u muoldia “AlS SHOP” TuTagtiuldiladnfunsuds ldun medunia andin
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Telewiz” lavlddnfiumndaliuinisudanis 8 man ldun sanlads deuwaw, malass wigliey, s lada
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Research and development policy in various areas, and details regarding innovation

development in processes, products and/or services, or business models.
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Research and development (R&D) policy :  No

1.2.2.2 Marketing policies of the major products or services during the preceding year

Marketing Policy and Competitive Environment

- The product diversity strategy (Product) offers outstanding, valuable, and customer-centric products. It involves designing

personalized pieces that meet and exceed customer satisfaction.

- Process Strategy: Marketing must coordinate with production to find simple, convenient, fast, and standardized working methods.
Products and packaging must meet standards to impress customers and generate repeat orders. Marketing is responsible for
surveying satisfaction with product delivery standards and using the information gathered to review both strengths and weaknesses
to ensure that all stakeholders are aware of the feedback.

- Packaging Design Strategy: The organization prioritizes guidance and collaboration to achieve perfect production. Suggestions

are made to ensure that the work is easy to produce, practical, economical, and meets customer needs to the fullest extent.

- Promotion Strategy: The organization determines the market trends for products in each period, including peak seasons (High
Season) in the first and fourth quarters of each year. The organization leverages its strengths in sales management through its
nationwide branch network and efficient sales staff who provide product knowledge and customer service. This enables the
organization to drive sales from all product categories and set special promotions or campaigns for various festivals. The
organization also prioritizes online marketing as a tool to reach all target customer groups. This includes providing product
information through product reviews and recommendations via the organization's social media channels such as Website, Facebook,
Line Official Account, Tik Tok, Instagram, YouTube, and through communication channels of Influencers to maximize reach to the

target audience.

- Place Strategy: The POP! PRINT brand operates a printing product distribution business within Big Camera branches, with over
150 distribution channels covering the entire country. These branches are located in leading shopping centers and modern trade
outlets nationwide, such as Central, The Mall, Robinson, MBK, Seacon, Icon Siam, Terminal 21, as well as Big C Supercenter, Tesco

Lotus, and others. This includes the Power Mall zone, a vast zone for electronic devices and IT products. The organization

continuously conducts market research to meet customer needs comprehensively. Moreover, consumers are changing their behavior by

increasingly shifting from purchasing products at physical stores to online channels. The organization has also established

online distribution through its website platform and Line Official Account to meet market demands.

- Personal Selling Strategy: Big Camera has highly knowledgeable and skilled personnel who provide excellent service for various
products. They can advise on the use of products to suit the lifestyle and needs of customers of all ages. Due to market demand
across all age groups and product development, the organization is dedicated to continuously training Big Camera's sales staff.
This ensures they have a deep understanding of the products and the art of customer service for everyone who visits "BIG Camera"
and "POP! PRINT" stores.

Competitive Environment

Public Relations and Brand Building: Image recognizes that when making a purchase, consumers place significant importance on the
retailer's brand, no less than the product brand and quality. Therefore, Image prioritizes building brand recognition and recall

for POP! PRINT among customers. This is achieved through public relations, marketing activities, and consistent marketing
collaborations with various product brand representatives to reach consumers. Examples include participating in Big Camera's
annual exhibition, BIG Pro Days or Big Festival, participating in the national photography exhibition Photo Fair, and organizing
photography and printing activities with shopping centers during various festivals. These public relations efforts aim to

establish POP! PRINT's brand image as one that represents product diversity, comprehensiveness, quality, trustworthiness,

excellent customer service, and efficient pre-sales and after-sales services.
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The industry competition during the preceding year

Risks from operating in a highly competitive industry

Currently, the photographic equipment retail business is highly competitive, both from existing operators and new entrants. These
competitors include medium-sized companies with registered capital not exceeding 10 million baht and small companies located in
major provinces across the country. This high level of competition may impact the company's operating results. In addition, Big
Camera faces risks from competitors in the industry who may sell substitute products, such as second-hand goods, tax-avoided
goods, or illegal goods. These substitute products are cheaper, giving consumers more choices. During economic downturns,
consumers may turn to substitute products, leading to a risk of declining sales for Big Camera, which would negatively impact

profitability.

However, the company expects that the risks from these issues will be minimal. This is because new entrants to the photographic
equipment retail business face several significant limitations, such as a lack of bargaining power with brand suppliers in terms

of trade discounts, credit limits, and payment terms. This is due to the relatively low order volume of new entrants compared to

Big Camera. As for concerns that businesses related to the photographic equipment retail business, such as second-hand camera
businesses and related equipment businesses like photo printing centers, may enter the retail market, the company expects that
new entrants may not enter the retail business. This is due to their unfamiliarity with the market, inability to find suitable

locations, and lack of effective bargaining power with distributors. In addition, the company offers a wide range of products and
comprehensive services to meet the needs of all customer groups. It has branches nationwide, online distribution channels, and
collaborates with manufacturers on ongoing sales promotions. The company also provides training to its sales staff to ensure they
have a thorough understanding of the products. These factors will drive a positive image for Big Camera. Furthermore, with over

20 years of experience in retail management, the management team can manage branches efficiently and has a deep understanding of
the retail and camera businesses. This enables the company to adapt well to competitive conditions and maintain its leadership in
the photographic equipment retail business to date. The company also has consistently good inventory management, which is crucial

in the retail business.

1.2.2.3 Procurement of products or services

BIG Camera

Procurement of Raw Materials: The Company prioritizes the procurement of goods both domestically and through imports from
abroad. This involves selecting high-quality products with advanced technology, innovations, safety for customers, environmental
friendliness, and products that have been certified by the Thai Industrial Standards Institute (TISI) under the Ministry of
Industry or have passed the inspection and certification standards for telecommunications equipment and devices issued by the
NBTC. This is to ensure consumer confidence in purchasing and using our services, promote responsible consumption among
customers, and manage inventory to meet sales demands across all branches nationwide, ultimately serving the best interests of

our customers.

1.2.2.4 Assets used in business undertaking

Core permanent assets

Buildings and equipment

The carrying amount of buildings and equipment as of December 31, 2024 is shown below.
Type (Unit: Million Baht) Cost Accumulated Depreciation Impairment Charges Net Book Value
Buildings and building systems 5.89 3.55 - 2.34

Service equipment 129.46 105.12 - 24.34
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Furniture and office equipment 394.79 323.79 - 71.00
Vehicles 33.05 22.26 - 10.79

Computers 69.36 63.83 - 5.53

Assets under installation 11.68 - - 11.68

Total 644.23 518.55 - 125.68

As of December 31, 2024, Big Camera Group has a number of equipment that has been fully depreciated but is still in use. The

carrying amount of such assets before deducting accumulated depreciation is approximately 507 million baht.

Core intangible assets

As of December 31, 2024, Big Camera Group had intangible assets used in its business, including computer software copyrights and

other rights, with a net book value of 42 million baht.

Investment policy in the subsidiaries and associated companies

Investment policy in the subsidiaries and associated :  Yes

companies

The company has an investment and management policy in subsidiaries to invest in related, similar, or beneficial businesses that
can support the company's business operations. This is to enhance the company's stability and operational performance for greater
growth. The company will consider the investment amount, profit, expected returns, potential risks, and the company's financial
status before deciding to invest in any projects. The investment approval must be considered by the board of directors' meeting
and/or the shareholders' meeting according to the scope of approval authority specified by the company.

1.2.2.5 Under-construction projects

Under-construction projects : No

Details of under-construction projects
Total projects @ N/A
Values of total ongoing projects :  N/A
Realized value : N/A
Unrealized value of remaining projects : N/A

Additional details : -
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1.3 Shareholding structure
1.3.1 Shareholding structure of the group of companies
Policy on operational organization within the group of companies

Currently, Big Camera Corporation Public Company Limited has 2 subsidiaries in the group:
1. Image Solution Plus Company Limited, in which the Company holds 100% of the shares, has a registered capital of 50 million
baht and a paid-up capital of 37.5 million baht. It operates a business of manufacturing and distributing printing products and

providing comprehensive printing services.

2. Piccasus Company Limited, in which the Company holds 100% of the shares, has a registered capital of 20 million baht, paid-up
capital of 20 million baht. Its objective is to support the distribution of products and import products for distribution.

Shareholding diagram of the group of companies

Shareholding diagram
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Shareholding Structure (Top 10 Major Shareholders)
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Company name

Juristic person who holds shares of
the company

Shareholding
proportion (%)

Voting right
proportion (%)

Piccasus Company Limited BIG CAMERA CORPORATION PUBLIC 99.99% 99.99%
COMPANY LIMITED
Image Solution Plus Company BIG CAMERA CORPORATION PUBLIC 99.99% 99.99%
Limited COMPANY LIMITED
Company that holds 10% or more of the total shares sold
Name and the location of Type of The number The number
Type of business
the head office shares of shares of shares sold
Pikachu Co., Ltd. Product distributor and Common 200,000 200,000
908/1 Soi Sawatdikhamn 1, importer for distribution shares
Nongkhaem, Nongkhaem District
Bangkok 10160
Telephone : 02-809-9956
Facsimile number : -
Image Solution Plus Company Limited Operates a printing Common 5,000,000 5,000,000
115 Soi Phetchakasem 77, business, producing and shares
Sawatdikarn 1 Road, Nong Khaem distributing printing
Subdistrict, Nong Khaem District products and providing
Bangkok 10160 comprehensive printing
Telephone : 02-809-9956 services.
Facsimile number : -
1.3.2 Shareholding by a person with a potential conflict of interest holding exceeding 10
percent of the voting shares in a subsidiary or associated company
Does the company have a person with potential : No
conflicts of interest holding shares in a subsidiary or
associated company?
1.3.3 Relationship with major shareholders’ business
Does the company have a relationship with a business : No
group of a major shareholder?
1.3.4 Shareholders
List of major shareholders
0
Group/List of major shareholders T 22 617 5@
shares (shares) shares
1. We ¥y L%‘&Jimzyamw? 1,115,614,000 31.61
2. Uy Ynde L%EJiﬂ’liyﬁ]u’NF; 376,552,000 10.67
3, W18 SUAVS 1BESNALINA 371,552,000 10.53
4. U3 SBINUA BesnIeyauIed 321,552,000 9.11
5. W.d. olgns Bosnayausd 87,591,600 2.48
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Group/List of major shareholders L2 @ @

shares (shares) shares
6. u.a. USAs1 Busmayaunsd 87,382,800 2.48
7. WA fladssa L‘%ﬂimﬁyﬂmaﬁ 85,240,500 2.42
8. w1y Unsnl 338139 57,564,468 1.63
9. LA NUANW FeRveared 46,719,600 1.32
10. Wy Yaaudd ﬁmﬁumzyuﬁmé 26,838,100 0.76
11. ua. meﬁiyaﬁ Lamqaﬁiiaﬁ 26,663,000 0.76
12. MR. SOMCHAI VUJITSANGRAT 25,550,000 0.72
13, we §udte Weauysaifa 25,279,800 0.72
14. MISS PACHARAT WALEELERKSUP 24,150,000 0.68
15. w1 350300 Bundllad 20,000,000 0.57

Major shareholders’ agreement

Does the company have major shareholders’ : No

agreements?
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1.4 Amounts of registered capital and paid-up capital
1.4.1 Registered capital and paid-up capital

Registered capital and paid-up capital

Registered capital (Million Baht) :  352,887,880.00
Paid-up capital (Million Baht) :  352,887,880.00
Common shares (number of shares) 3,528,878,800
Value of common shares (per share) (baht) :  0.10
Preferred shares (number of shares) : 0
Value of preferred share (per share) :  0.00

Has the company listed in other stock exchange?

Has the company listed in other stock exchange? :  No

1.4.2 Other types of share whose rights or terms differ from those of ordinary share

Other types of share whose rights or terms differ from those of :  No
ordinary share

1.4.3 Shareholding by Thai NVDR Company Limited (NVDR)

Are shares held by Thai NVDR Company Limited (NVDR)? :  No
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1.5 Issuance of other securities

1.5.1 Convertible securities

Convertible securities

1.5.2 Debt securities

Debt securities

No

No
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1.6 Dividend policy

The dividend policy of the company

Big Camera Corporation Public Company Limited has a policy to pay dividends to shareholders at a rate of not less than 50 percent
of net profit after deducting various legal reserves and other reserves (if any). However, such dividend payment may be subject

to change depending on the operating results, financial position, liquidity, the need for working capital, future investment and
business expansion plans, market conditions, appropriateness, and other factors related to the Company's operations and
management. This is subject to the condition that the Company must have sufficient cash flow for business operations, and such
actions must be in the best interests of the shareholders as deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors and/or the shareholders

of the Company. The resolution of the Board of Directors approving the dividend payment shall be submitted to the shareholders'

meeting for approval, except for the interim dividend payment, which the Board of Directors has the authority to approve. The

interim dividend payment will be reported to the shareholders' meeting at the next meeting.

The dividend policy of subsidiaries

The subsidiary company has a dividend payment policy of not less than 50 percent of net profit after deducting all reserves,

unless there is a necessity or justifiable reason for not being able to pay. However, the dividend payment shall take into

consideration factors such as financial position, economic conditions, business expansion, and other relevant factors in the

company's management.

Historical dividend payment information

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Net profit per share (baht : share) N/A N/A 0.0300 0.0200 0.0200
Dividend per share (baht : share) N/A N/A 0.0200 0.0150 0.0150
Ratio of stock dividend payment (existing N/A N/A 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000
share : stock dividend)
Value of stock dividend per share (baht : N/A N/A 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000
share)
Total dividend payment (baht : share) N/A N/A | 70,577,576.000 |52,933,182.000 |52,933,182.000

0 0 0

Dividend payout ratio compared to net N/A N/A 89.08 90.29 54.94
profit (%)
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2. Risk management

2.1 Risk management policy and plan
Risk management policy and plan

Risk Management

Risk Policy

The Company Group recognizes the risks that exist and may affect the business operations and performance of the Company Group.
These risk factors may arise from internal or external factors. The Board of Directors has established a risk management policy,
risk management plan, and risk assessment both qualitatively and quantitatively. The risk factors mentioned below, if they occur,

will negatively affect the business operations, operating results, and financial position.

The risks identified below are some of the key risks that could adversely affect the business, financial position, results of
operations, business opportunities, and the value of the Company's common stock. In addition, there may be other risks that the

Company Group cannot foresee at present or that the Company Group has considered and believes will not have a material impact on
the Company Group's business operations.

In addition, forward-looking statements such as "believe," "anticipate," "expect," "plan," "intend," "approximately," or
projections of future financial performance, operating results, business operations, expansion plans, changes in relevant laws
and regulations, and other factors, are based on the Company's current views and do not constitute a guarantee of future

performance or events in any way. Actual results or events may differ materially from such estimates or projections.

Part 1 Business Operations and Performance a1



2.2 Risk factors

2.2.1 Risk that might affect the company's business, including environmental, social and

corporate governance issues
Risk 1 Risks related to the group of companies

Related risk topics : Strategic Risk

« Corporate ownership structure risk

Risk characteristics

Risk from having a group of major shareholders who have influence over the determination of management policies. Currently, the
Company has a group of major shareholders, the Thirakanyanon Family, holding 69.30 percent of the total issued and outstanding
shares of the Company. In addition, Mr. Chan Thirakanyanon also serves as the Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief
Executive Officer, and is an authorized director of the Company. Therefore, the said group of shareholders has the power to
manage and control the voting rights in almost all important resolutions, whether in the appointment of directors or requesting
resolutions on other matters that require a majority vote of the shareholders' meeting, except in matters of law or company
regulations that require a 3/4 vote of the shares attending the meeting and entitled to vote, such as capital increase, capital
reduction. Therefore, other shareholders attending the meeting and entitled to vote may not be able to combine their votes to

scrutinize or balance the management of the group of major shareholders.

Risk-related consequences

Mr. Chan Thienkanjanawong still holds the positions of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, and is an authorized
director of the company. This allows the aforementioned shareholder group to have the power to manage and control almost all of
the votes cast at important resolutions, whether it be the appointment of directors or other resolutions requiring a majority

vote of the shareholders' meeting. Exceptions include matters of law or company regulations that require a 3/4 vote of the shares
present and voting, such as capital increases or reductions. Therefore, other shareholders attending the meeting and entitled to
vote may not be able to gather enough votes to scrutinize or counterbalance the management of the major shareholder group.

Risk management measures

The Company has a management structure consisting of the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee, each with clearly defined
scope of authority and responsibilities. This ensures that the Company's operating system is standardized and easily auditable.
Moreover, the Company's Board of Directors comprises six independent directors out of a total of ten directors, and the Audit
Committee comprises three independent directors, each of whom is qualified and experienced. This enables the Audit Committee to
review the Company's operations with transparency and to balance the power in presenting matters for consideration by the
shareholders' meeting to a certain extent. In addition, the Group has established regulations for transactions involving

directors, major shareholders, or persons having control over the business, as well as persons who may have conflicts of

interest. Such persons shall not have independent approval authority for such transactions, which can further mitigate potential

risks.

Risk 2 Risks of operating in a highly competitive industry

Related risk topics : Strategic Risk
« Volatility in the industry in which the company operates

» Competition risk

Risk characteristics

Currently, the retail photography equipment business is highly competitive, both from existing operators and new entrants. These
competitors include medium-sized companies with registered capital not exceeding 10 million baht or small companies located in
various provinces across the country. This situation exposes the company to high competition, potentially impacting operating
results. Additionally, Big Camera faces risks from competitors in the industry selling substitute products such as second-hand
goods, tax-avoided goods, or illegal goods. These substitutes are often cheaper, providing consumers with more choices,
especially during economic downturns, which may lead them to opt for substitutes, potentially decreasing Big Camera's sales and
negatively impacting profitability. However, the company believes that the risks from these issues are minimal. New entrants in
the retail photography equipment business face significant limitations, such as a lack of bargaining power with brand suppliers

in terms of trade discounts, credit limits, and payment terms due to their relatively low order volumes compared to Big Camera.
Regarding concerns about businesses related to the retail photography equipment industry, such as second-hand camera businesses
or related equipment businesses like photo developing centers, entering the retail market, the company believes that new players
may hesitate due to unfamiliarity with the market, difficulty in finding suitable locations, and lack of effective bargaining
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power with distributors. Furthermore, the company offers a diverse range of products and services to meet the needs of all
customer groups, with branches nationwide, online distribution channels, and continuous collaborations with manufacturers for
sales promotions. Additionally, sales staff receive comprehensive product training, enhancing the positive image of Big Camera
stores. Moreover, with over 20 years of experience in retail management, the management team effectively manages branches and
possesses a deep understanding of the retail and photography industries, enabling the company to adapt well to competitive
conditions and maintain its leadership in the retail photography equipment market. The company also maintains efficient inventory

management, which is crucial in the retail business.

Risk-related consequences

Big Camera faces risks from competitors in the industry who may sell substitute products such as secondhand goods, tax-avoided
goods, or illegal goods. These substitute products are cheaper, giving consumers more choices. During economic downturns,
consumers may switch to buying more substitute products, putting Big Camera at risk of declining sales, which will negatively

impact profitability.
Risk 3 Risk of inventory obsolescence

Related risk topics  : Operational Risk
« Product obsolescence

« Inventory risk

Risk characteristics

The Company must maintain a sufficient inventory level to facilitate product distribution, especially for cameras and related
equipment. As of December 31, 2023, the Company's inventory represented 52 percent of total assets. The Company's main products
are technological goods in the category of photographic equipment, which are constantly being developed and changed. The nature
of the retail business for photographic equipment and mobile phones involves product diversity. It is essential for the Company

to manage inventory to meet the needs of a variety of customers. The Company expects that the impact of the risk of inventory

impairment will have a relatively small impact on its current financial position.

Risk-related consequences

The company may face risks from inventory obsolescence due to technological changes, the release of superior new products, or
shifts in consumer behavior, which could render existing inventory unsalable or decrease its value. Although the company may
experience periods of higher than usual inventory levels, it has been able to successfully manage and sell off excess inventory.
Additionally, the company closely manages certain product categories, resulting in current inventory levels returning to a normal

state.

Risk management measures

As the Company continuously studies and explores consumer needs and behaviors, closely monitors technological advancements, and
leverages the management's extensive experience in the retail industry of photographic equipment and related devices, coupled

with strong relationships with brand suppliers, the Company is able to select product models from each brand that cater to

customer needs within the prevailing competitive landscape and adapt to technological changes effectively. Moreover, the close
collaboration between the management and distributors of major photography equipment brands ensures efficient inventory control
and management through joint efforts. Sales performance monitoring, inventory reporting, and weekly inventory reports shared with
partners facilitate the determination of monthly order quantities. Furthermore, the Company closely tracks sales performance and
inventory reports, enabling the management team to monitor and analyze inventory in real-time, ensuring effective risk control

and mitigation. The policy of establishing an allowance for obsolete, slow-moving, or deteriorated inventory, categorized by

product groups, is implemented. In 2024, the Company increased its purchase orders to accommodate the rising demand for products,
driven by the recovery in demand for cameras, photography equipment, and mobile phones. This aligns with the nature of the retail
business, which necessitates inventory procurement to support sales across all branches, resulting in an increase of 11.5 million

Baht in the allowance for obsolete and impaired inventory compared to the previous year. For new product launches, the Company
and distributors collaborate on sales forecasting to determine optimal inventory levels. In case of forecasting discrepancies,

brand suppliers share responsibility through various means, such as price adjustments to accelerate sales of slow-moving

products. Negotiations for price compensation based on remaining inventory may also occur.

Risk 4 Risks from reliance on teams and executives

Related risk topics : Operational Risk
» Reliance on employees in key positions
« Shortage or reliance on skilled workers

« Human error in business operations
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Risk characteristics
Management and the team play a crucial role in formulating strategies, goals, and business operation policies, as well as

directing the business to proceed in accordance with the defined direction.

However, the Group has measures in place to appropriately allocate and distribute authority. In conducting business, management
and the team have always been involved in formulating business plans and strategies. Furthermore, the Group has plans in place to
continuously develop the knowledge and abilities of its personnel. Therefore, the Group is confident that it will have competent

personnel to succeed the business should the aforementioned executives resign or retire.

Risk-related consequences
If the group lacks key executives, especially the Chief Executive Officer who determines the strategies and directions of the

business, it may cause the group to be unable to operate as planned and result in lower than expected profits.

Risk 5 Operational-level employee fraud risk

Related risk topics  : Operational Risk
« Corruption

Risk characteristics

The Company operates a retail business of photographic equipment and related equipment, which requires the distribution of
products to various branches both in Bangkok and its vicinity, as well as in major provinces throughout the country. Coupled with
the fact that such products are of considerable value, easily movable, and in high demand, the Company may face the risk of fraud
from operational level employees, such as branch salespeople and stock keepers, which could cause damage to the Company's
operating results. The Company is well aware of the possibility of such incidents and has therefore established a well-controlled
internal control system and review system by using information technology to support it, such as in the area of storefront sales.

The Company records the serial number of each camera sold, transfers all proceeds from product sales daily, and regularly checks
the quantity of goods by having the internal control system audit team conduct inventory counts. In terms of the warehousing
system, the Company also has measures in place to inspect goods in detail and to physically count them every month. All
merchandise handling staff are jointly responsible for any lost goods. In addition, there are severe legal penalties for fraud,

and normally, the Company's employees are required to make a performance bond. As a result of these measures, the Company is
confident that even if fraud does occur, it can be detected in a timely manner. The various measures and systems that the Company
has put in place will help limit the damage to a level that is not material to the operating results. In 2023 and 2024, there

were damages from employee fraud of approximately 0.36 million baht and 0.52 million baht, respectively. In addition, there are
still minor damages caused by sales errors, for which the Company has collected such damages from the employees who made the

errors, which is in accordance with the mutual agreement between the employees and the Company.

Risk-related consequences
Due to these characteristics, the company may face risks from fraud committed by operational-level employees, such as branch

salespeople and stock clerks, which could potentially damage the company's financial performance.

Risk 6 Risk of losing market share as a leading distributor of photographic equipment

Related risk topics : Strategic Risk

« Volatility in the industry in which the company operates

Risk characteristics

As the company group has been appointed as a distributor of photographic equipment and related devices from leading brand
manufacturers and distributors in Thailand such as Fuji, OM System, Panasonic, Canon, Sony, Leica, and DJI, etc., the product
image of each brand is considered an important part of consumer confidence in making purchasing decisions. In addition, at some

periods of popularity of certain product models and brands, it may cause sales of those products to be better than normal.

Risk-related consequences
If the Company loses its position as a leading distributor of photographic equipment due to various reasons such as not having
its distributorship agreement renewed by manufacturers and distributors of various brands, or if the manufacturers and

distributors change their policies on appointing distributors, etc., it may affect the Group's sales.

Risk management measures

However, since the Group has signed a distribution agreement with leading camera equipment manufacturers and distributors, the
Group has continued to be a distributor of various leading brands. The Group has been able to comply with the agreed-upon trade
terms and has therefore gained the trust of camera equipment manufacturers and distributors. In addition, the Group currently has
the largest distribution network in Thailand and an efficient sales team. The Group is therefore confident that camera equipment
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manufacturers and distributors will continue to entrust the Group as a major distributor of their products. Furthermore, the

Company does not rely on any single camera equipment manufacturer or distributor. The Company has a policy of purchasing products

from each manufacturer and distributor in a proportion not exceeding 20 percent of total sales. However, the Company has a policy
to maintain the purchase order for each item not exceeding 25 percent of the total purchase order. Therefore, for the foregoing
reasons, the Company has reduced the risk of losing its distributorship of leading camera equipment.

Risk 7 Risks of Not Renewing a Lease Agreement/Shop Rental Agreement

Related risk topics : Operational Risk

« Property lease agreement execution

Risk characteristics

The majority of the Company's products are distributed through branches, which are the main revenue-generating channels for the
Company. Most of them are leased spaces where the Company has entered into short-term lease agreements (1-3 years) with
landlords, such as shopping centers or modern trade retailers. This poses a risk of not having the lease renewed or facing rental
and service charge increases upon renewal, which could impact the Company's revenue and net profit. However, in the Company's
business, it is inevitable to avoid the risk of short-term leases from landlords as it is a common business practice. Moreover,

the Company has been operating for a long time, has a good reputation, is well-accepted, and is in demand by landlords.
Therefore, the Company has always been granted the right of first refusal for lease renewals. In the past, the Company has

strictly adhered to lease agreements and has never had a lease terminated. This leads to the belief that the Company will
continue to have its leases renewed in the future. Furthermore, these short-term leases help mitigate risks if the business
performance does not meet expectations. Big Camera may also consider not renewing leases if certain landlords demand rental and
service charge increases at rates that the Company deems not worthwhile for investment in those branches.

Risk-related consequences

Most of the spaces are leased under short-term contracts (1-3 years) from landlords, such as shopping centers or modern trade
retailers. This poses a risk of not having the lease renewed or facing increased rental and service charges upon renewal, which
could impact the company's revenue and net profit.

Risk 8 Risks of Contract Renewal with Related Parties

Related risk topics : Operational Risk

« Property lease agreement execution

Risk characteristics

Currently, the Group leases office buildings (headquarters) from Midas Development Company Limited (with Ms. Wannakamol
Thirakachanawong as the authorized director) and leases office buildings and warehouses from Ms. Nataporn Thirakachanawong,
including leasing land for the construction of employee dormitories (to accommodate employees from other provinces who have to
attend training and testing on sales operations) from Ms. Prisara Thirakachanawong. In addition, there is a lease of land and

buildings used as warehouses from Ms. Prisara Thirakachanawong. Moreover, the subsidiary leases office buildings and warehouses
from Ms. Nataporn Thirakachanawong. These lease agreements are transactions with related parties for the purpose of using them as
the location of the head office, warehouses, and for the normal course of business. The Group also has the right to renew the

lease before others (First right of refusal) under the condition that the lessor cannot increase the price by more than 10

percent of the last year's rental rate. Therefore, the Group has a risk of dependence on leasing office buildings and land from
related parties (major shareholders and directors), which may pose risks from not renewing the lease agreement and the risk of
rental rates that may increase significantly in the new lease agreement, which may affect the Group's future operating results.
Although the Group leases office buildings and land from related parties for a period of 1-3 years, the Company expects to be

able to continuously renew such leases. In addition, the Group also has the right to choose to renew the lease before others.

These lease agreements result in rental expenses payable to the aforementioned companies and related parties totaling 9.76
million baht per year. Compared to the Group's revenue in 2024, this represents only 0.20 percent. Furthermore, managing assets
through leases allows the Group to maintain high financial liquidity without having to invest a large amount of cash in office
buildings. This also has a positive effect on operational efficiency, as reflected in financial ratios such as the high return on

assets.

Risk-related consequences
The Group is exposed to the risk of dependence on leasing office buildings and land from related parties (major shareholders and
directors). There is a risk of not being able to renew the lease agreement and the risk of a significant increase in rental rates

upon renewal, which may affect the Group's future operations.

Risk 9 Long-term business sustainability risks
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Related risk topics : Strategic Risk
« Behavior or needs of customers / consumers

« Changes in technologies

Risk characteristics

The Company is a distributor of cameras and related photographic equipment with the most extensive branch network in Thailand.
These products are technology products, which may be classified as fashion products that change according to trends. These
changes depend on several factors, such as changes in the products themselves, consumer behavior, including consumer tastes,
product convenience, and lifestyle. If the Company is unable to adapt to the changing trends in both technology and consumer
behavior in a timely manner, it may result in the Company not being of interest to various customer groups. This will have a
negative impact on sales, operating results, and the financial position of Big Camera. Although in the past, cameras have
undergone a technological transition from film cameras to digital cameras, and changes related to camera technology and
substitute products are currently difficult to avoid. For example, the growth rate of the compact camera market has been

declining continuously over the past period. This is due to the increasing growth rate of mobile phones (smartphones), with
consumers nowadays preferring to take pictures with cameras from mobile phones. The convenience of carrying them is also a factor

that has contributed to the continuous growth of the mobile phone (smartphone) market.

However, the increase in mobile phone sales has led to an increase in sales of cameras in the higher technology segment. This is
due to the increase in the number of customers who are interested in photography, resulting in a continued demand for cameras
with higher resolution. Overall, the value of the camera market, including related equipment, has not decreased but rather tends
to be higher. In addition, leading digital camera manufacturers are constantly adapting by offering new products and functions to
meet the rapidly changing needs of consumers. For example, adding connectivity devices that make it easier to share photos,
cameras that can make phone calls, cameras that are more compact and portable, as well as cameras with higher definition or

resolution.

However, due to the aforementioned risk factors and the Company's strengths in its close proximity and long-standing business
relationships with camera brand suppliers and distributors, coupled with its expertise in the photographic equipment retail
business, with management and personnel who are knowledgeable and experienced in photography, the Company will maintain its
ability to operate its business steadily. The Company is not tied to any particular camera brand supplier or distributor, or to

any particular type of product. The Company is ready to adapt to changes in various forms, both in terms of technology and

consumer behavior.

In addition to the retail business of cameras and related photographic equipment, the Company has partnered with Advanced

Wireless Network Company Limited ("AWN") to manage AIS Shop by Partner. The Company has been granted the right to manage AIS Shop
from AWN under the name "AIS". The Company also provides a new photo printing service with a DIY customer experience and supports
sending image files from consumers' smartphones to the service system via Wifi through an application called "POP! PRINT". https:

//www.popprintthailand.com

In addition, the subsidiary operates a photo printing and distribution business, providing a full range of photo printing
services under the name "POP! PRINT by BIG Camera". The distribution channels are through all Big Camera branches, online via the
website, and direct sales to various agencies. The group is confident that this will help reduce the risk of continuing business

operations in the long run.

Risk-related consequences

If the Company is unable to adapt to the changing trends in technology and consumer behavior in a timely manner, it may result in
the Company not receiving interest from various customer groups. This will negatively affect sales, operating results, and the
financial position of Big Camera. Although in the past, cameras have undergone a technological transition from film cameras to
digital cameras, the changes related to camera technology and substitutes are currently difficult to avoid. For example, the

growth rate of the compact camera market has been continuously declining over the past period. This is due to the increasing
growth rate of mobile phones (smartphones), as consumers nowadays prefer to take pictures with cameras from mobile phones. The
convenience of carrying is also a factor that has contributed to the continuous increase in the market value of mobile phones

(smartphones).

2.2.2 Risk to securities holders
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Are there any risk factors affecting securities holders? : No

2.2.3 Risk to securities holders from investing in foreign securities (applicable to only foreign

companies)
Are there any risk factors affecting securities holders : No

from investing in foreign securities?
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3. Sustainable Development

3.1 Policy and goals of sustainable management

Sustainability Policy

Sustainability Policy :  Yes

Driving Business for Sustainability at Big Camera

Due to the rapid changes in technology and consumer behavior, businesses are facing challenges from economic uncertainty arising
from both domestic and international factors, as well as increasingly severe environmental problems. The company has therefore
defined a corporate sustainability strategy to continuously develop and improve operational efficiency to meet these challenges.
This includes establishing communication with employees, business partners, and relevant stakeholders to generate good returns
and achieve sustainable operational goals. Big Camera Public Company Limited has established a business direction with the aim of
seeking returns on investment and business progress for future sustainability. The company recognizes that sustainable business
growth does not solely rely on the company's profits or benefits but also requires giving back to society. This has led the

company to strive to become a leading organization that develops and grows alongside improving the well-being of people in the

community and caring for the environment to create continuous and sustainable value and growth.

Sustainability management goals

Does the company set sustainability management goals :  Yes

Sustainable Management Policies and Goals

1. Sustainable Development Strategy: Big Camera is committed to creating long-term growth and generating higher returns
sustainably. The company has therefore incorporated the concept of sustainability in the economic, social, and environmental
dimensions into its organizational development by establishing strategic plans, organizational structures, information technology
systems and processes that enable its personnel to create quality work, deliver value through products and services, and
strengthen the company in the face of challenges in order to give back and grow sustainably with its stakeholders. The company's

strategy covers three main areas:

1.1. Focus on the use of new technologies and innovations, including modern equipment and machinery, to enhance the efficiency of
the company's services and production. In addition, the company continuously introduces modern products and goods to meet the
needs of consumers to the fullest extent possible. The company aims to be a leader in the distribution of modern photographic

technology products with excellent service through management by an efficient team to enhance the quality of customer service.

1.2. Improving and developing the camera and photography equipment business by supporting the expansion of the technology
industry and focusing on developing transportation systems to provide everyone with access to services, including retail
businesses, commercial businesses, corporate customers, service businesses, and online retail businesses, by focusing on
providing services through branches covering all areas of the country and developing product placement to meet the needs of

different market segments.

1.3. Sustainability: The company focuses on promoting and developing its personnel in terms of knowledge, expertise, and
proficiency, including managing social, environmental, and economic risks by adhering to good governance principles to create
sustainability for the company and to be a part of the efforts to achieve the country's sustainable development goals.
Sustainable Business Practices

The company has incorporated sustainability into its business strategy to address long-term risk factors such as changes in

products, consumer behavior, and technology, as well as inequality in various dimensions, including environmental and climate

change issues.
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In order to respond to stakeholders who expect to play a role in helping to care for and enhance the quality of the environment
and society, the company has adopted the concept of sustainability in its business operations to create sustainable value and

good performance.

Sustainable Development Goals

The company recognizes the importance of the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) by analyzing impacts and
creating value to achieve a balance in three areas: economy, society, and environment. The company operates under good corporate
governance, from product selection, resource utilization, inventory management, and transportation to the distribution of goods

to customers, consumers, and after-sales service. The company has established a corporate governance framework that adheres to
the organization's mission for effective operations, including delivering value to all stakeholders and prioritizing the 17

Sustainable Development Goals, which are in line with the company's materiality and aim to create sustainable value for all

stakeholders.

Sustainability Policy

The company prioritizes sustainable development goals in accordance with the company's materiality. The company will operate and
create sustainable business growth under good corporate governance throughout the value chain, taking into account the impact on
stakeholders, society, and the environment to create sustainable value for all stakeholders. The company has therefore

established a framework and policies for sustainability development, with the following essential elements:

1) Economic: The company is committed to conducting business with fairness, honesty, and integrity, operating in accordance with
good corporate governance principles, and creating sustainable value for the organization and its stakeholders. The company
focuses on providing fair customer service, selecting and delivering quality products, and creating new and innovative services

to meet the needs of its customers and ensure their utmost satisfaction.

2) Social: Focus on developing and maintaining relationships so that employees are socially responsible and accountable to all
stakeholder groups, including maintaining the security and privacy of stakeholder information, consumer responsibility,

respecting human rights and diversity, and treating customers, partners, competitors, and employees fairly and equitably. The
company also focuses on developing the potential of youth and conducting environmental, social, and public service activities for

the benefit of society.

3) Environment: Committed to developing, caring for, and preserving the environment and using resources wisely. The company
strives to raise awareness and responsibility for sustainable development practices among the surrounding community and society,
recognizing that we are a part of society that will move towards economic development in line with the interests of society, the
environment, and stakeholders. The company also promotes responsible operations throughout its value chain on an ongoing basis as

a guideline for sustainable development.

Defining Material Sustainability Issues

The company considers both internal and external issues, including those relevant to all stakeholder groups, in order to analyze
the economic, environmental, social, and human rights impacts of its business operations. The company uses the Global Reporting

Initiative (GRI) Standards, which consist of four steps:

1. Materiality Identification

The company analyzes various external factors such as global economic trends, changes in consumer behavior, and market
competition by benchmarking the company against companies in the same industry, along with analyzing internal factors such as
performance, business strategies, risk factors, and opportunities for sustainability and corporate social, environmental, and
economic responsibility. Data is collected from both internal and external stakeholders through various activities and projects
throughout the year, such as promotional activities, opinion surveys, meetings, interviews, and receiving complaints through
various channels of the company. The factors in determining the scope of each material issue are also considered to ensure
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coverage of key issues in the environmental, social, and economic dimensions.
2. Materiality Assessment

The company prioritizes the identified issues based on their significance, opportunity, and impact on the company's business

operations, as well as their impact on stakeholders, according to the organization's risk assessment criteria.
3. Monitoring

The company prioritizes material issues and reports them to the Sustainability Development Committee for consideration and
verification of the accuracy and completeness of the information before disclosing it in the company's Sustainability Report and

Annual Report.
4. Continuous Review and Development

The company is open to receiving feedback and suggestions, including having channels for receiving complaints from all
stakeholder groups, through various channels both inside and outside the company, in order to further develop the company's

operations to be more efficient.

Material Sustainability Issues

Social Sustainability Economic Sustainability Environmental Sustainability - Respect for diversity and equality - Participation

in community and educational activities - Promoting employment for women, the elderly, and people with disabilities - Fair
employment practices in accordance with the law - Human resource management - Community relations management and social
responsibility - Conducting business fairly to achieve good and stable performance - Sourcing good, diverse, and quality products
and services - Good customer relations - Good partner relations - Cybersecurity - Data protection and privacy - Anti-corruption

in the organization - Designing and developing ECO Packaging - Waste and waste management - Energy management - Water management

United Nations SDGs that align with the organization's :  Goal 1 No Poverty, Goal 2 Zero Hunger, Goal 3 Good Health and
sustainability management goals Well-being, Goal 4 Quality Education, Goal 5 Gender Equality, Goal 6

Clean Water and Sanitation, Goal 7 Affordable and Clean Energy,
Goal 8 Decent Work and Economic Growth, Goal 9 Industry,
Innovation and Infrastructure, Goal 10 Reduce Inequalities, Goal 11
Sustainable Cities and Communities, Goal 12 Responsible
Consumption and Production, Goal 13 Climate Action, Goal 14 Life
below Water, Goal 15 Life on Land, Goal 16 Peace, Justice and
Strong Institutions, Goal 17 Partnerships for the Goals

Review of policy and/or goals of sustainable management over the past year

Has the company reviewed the policy and/or goals of :  Yes

sustainable management over the past year

Has the company changed and developed the policy and/or :  No

goals of sustainable management over the past year
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3.2 Management of impacts on stakeholders in the business value chain
3.2.1 Business value chain

Business Value Chain Management

Business Value Chain Management is crucial for sustainable business operations and organizational growth. Currently, many
situations pose obstacles to business operations, including technological changes, political issues, climate change, natural

resource depletion, and rising energy prices. These issues affect the Company's business operations. Therefore, the Company
prioritizes managing every process of the business value chain to prevent disruptions in business operations. The Company
promotes skills development for employees in the organization, including ethics, legal compliance, fair business practices, risk
management, and commitment to combating corruption. We consider sustainability in economic, social, and environmental aspects,

including responsibility towards all stakeholders.
The business value chain can be divided as follows:

- Supply Chain: We focus on resource management to enhance efficiency and business competitiveness, reduce costs, and increase

customer satisfaction by improving product and service quality to meet diverse customer needs.

- Value Chain: We focus on creating value from the product selection process to the final stage of product delivery and after-

sales service to customers to meet diverse customer needs.

- Procurement The Company prioritizes procuring high-quality products both domestically and internationally. We select products
with advanced technology, innovation, safety for customers, environmental friendliness, and products that have been certified by

the Thai Industrial Standards Institute (TISI) under the Ministry of Industry or have passed the inspection and certification

standards for telecommunications equipment and devices issued by the NBTC. This is to build consumer confidence in purchasing and
choosing our services and to promote responsible consumption for customers. We also manage inventory to be sufficient for sales

at branches nationwide to meet the needs and best interests of our customers.

- Operations The Company focuses on designing products and services to meet customer needs to the fullest extent. As a retailer
of modern photographic products with over 160 branches nationwide, we can reach consumers comprehensively. We also inspect the
quality of products before they reach consumers to ensure they receive genuinely high-quality products.

- Distribution The Company utilizes an online system connected to all branches nationwide to ensure efficient product
distribution, enabling traceability and error prevention. We also have a product distribution plan calculated from sales

statistics of each branch to estimate the appropriate inventory level, ensuring it does not fall below the defined threshold to
meet customer demand. For deliveries within Bangkok and its vicinity, the Company manages its own delivery service with a fleet
of vehicles covering all delivery areas. For other delivery areas nationwide, we utilize third-party logistics services.

- Marketing and Sales The Company is committed to treating customers fairly and is responsible for the sale of goods and
services. We consider fair trade competition, business ethics, and relevant laws. We strive to build good relationships with
customers, partners, and consumers continuously. Marketing that can meet customer needs is also essential for sustainable
development. The Company has marketing and public relations channels, including sales promotion activities, to deliver goods and
services efficiently. We also have multiple distribution channels, including branches in department stores, shopping centers,
community malls, and standalone stores outside of shopping centers located throughout the country, as well as online channels.
The Company continues to prioritize expanding distribution channels to align with changes and new lifestyles of consumers to

facilitate and serve customers comprehensively.

- Service The Company prioritizes service and after-sales service systems for customers. We support product exchanges and returns
from leading manufacturers and importers to enhance consumer confidence in purchasing products from the Company. If there are any
issues with the products after purchase, customers can access services at all branches nationwide and seek advice and usage

instructions from staff at every branch.
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3.2.2 Analysis of stakeholders in the business value chain

Details of stakeholder analysis in the business value chain
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Group of stakeholders

Stakeholders’ expectations

Responses to stakeholder
expectations

Channels for engagement

and communication

External stakeholders
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Group of stakeholders

Stakeholders’ expectations

Responses to stakeholder
expectations

Channels for engagement

and communication

* Suppliers

» Community

« Shareholders

» Employees

« Customers

« Society

+ Government agencies and

Regulators

Shareholders and Investors

Consistent good performance
and growth

Good corporate governance

Transparent and verifiable

management

Effective risk management
that affects the Company's
business operations

Accurate and timely
disclosure of information

and the Company's operating
results

Customers

Receive good quality
products that meet their

needs and impressive services

Have a variety of products

and services

Reasonable product prices

Accurate product information

and communication

Safety in products and

services

Good after-sales service

Shareholders and Investors

« Conducting business with
good corporate governance
principles: transparency,
accountability,

verifiability, and adherence
to good governance.

« Providing opportunities
for shareholders to directly
submit complaints and
suggestions to the company.
» Developing quality and
management to achieve
effective competitiveness,
building confidence, and
maximizing returns.

« Disclosing financial and
other material information
of the company accurately,
in accordance with the
disclosure practices for
listed companies.

* Analyzing, monitoring,
inspecting, surveilling, and
preparing risk management
measures for the
organization in the short
and long term, including

emerging risks.

Customers

« Developing and expanding
product distribution and
service channels to be
comprehensive and cover all
areas.

« Conducting business with
morality, ethics, and
business etiquette.

« Selling quality products
certified to international
standards.

« Building customer
confidence in product
quality and services,
including after-sales

service and product warranty.

» Adhering to the principle

« Social Event

« Online Communication
« Annual General Meeting
(AGM)

» Complaint Reception

« Satisfaction Survey

« Training / Seminar
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Group of stakeholders

Stakeholders’ expectations

Responses to stakeholder
expectations

Channels for engagement

and communication

Treating customers fairly,
respecting human rights, and
not taking advantage of

customers

Protecting customer privacy
in accordance with

international standards

Partners

Conducting business with
honesty, transparency, and

fairness

Jointly developing
activities and organizing

events to promote sales

Not taking advantage of

partners

Mutual business growth

Employees

Appropriate compensation,

benefits, and welfare

Career advancement
opportunities and job

security

Good quality of life,
safety, and occupational

health in the workplace

Skills, knowledge, and
abilities development to

enhance work potential

of treating customers fairly
and equally, without taking
advantage of consumers.

» Conducting customer
satisfaction surveys to
improve products and
services.

« Implementing a process for
receiving customer
complaints through multiple
channels, with prompt and
effective resolution.

+ Developing a customer
information management
system to maintain privacy
and security in accordance
with international standards.

Partners

« Conducting business with
business ethics.

« Ensuring accurate,
complete, and timely
payments.

» Maintaining partner
information confidentiality.
« Declaring intentions and
jointly combating corruption.
» Building professionalism
in business operations and
fostering strong
partnerships.

« Supporting and promoting
partners who are socially
and environmentally

responsible.

Employees

« Implementing a fair and
equitable performance
evaluation system.

» Providing competitive
compensation, benefits, and
welfare, with appropriate
consideration for promotions
and transfers.

» Listening to feedback and

suggestions for improvement.
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Group of stakeholders

Stakeholders’ expectations

Responses to stakeholder
expectations

Channels for engagement

and communication

Happiness at work

Treating employees based on
human rights principles

Community and Society

Conducting business with
consideration for safety,
responsibility towards the
community, society, and

environmental impact

Participating in community

and social activities

Supporting and promoting
activities that benefit the

community

Creating jobs

Local and Government

Regulatory Agencies

Complying with laws and good

governance principles

Effectively handling

complaints

Cooperation in participating

in various activities

« Organizing training

courses to enhance knowledge

and skills for work
performance.

« Facilitating the exchange
of ideas between supervisors
and subordinates.

« Conducting annual employee

engagement surveys.
» Communicating regularly
through internal electronic

media.

Community and Society

» Complying with laws,
regulations, and relevant
international practices.

« Conducting business with
caution and prudence to
prevent potential impacts on
the community, society, and
the environment.

» Respecting human rights
and promoting social
equality.

« Raising awareness in the
community by supporting
activities or projects that
benefit society, the
community, and environmenta
l

preservation, in line with

business operations.

Local and State Regulatory

Agencies

» Conducting business
transparently and
accountably, complying with
relevant laws and
regulations.

« Cooperating with
government agencies in

various activities.
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3.3 Management of environmental sustainability
3.3.1 Environmental policy and guidelines

Environmental policy and guidelines
Environmental policy and guidelines :  Yes

Environmental guidelines :  Electricity Management, Renewable/Clean Energy Management,
Water Management, Waste Management

Sustainable Management Policies and Goals

Sustainable Development Strategy Big Camera is committed to creating long-term growth and generating higher returns sustainably.
The company has therefore incorporated sustainability concepts in all three dimensions: economic, social, and environmental. to
be a part of organizational development By setting strategic plans, organizational structure, providing information systems and
technology and work processes that allow personnel to create quality work Delivering value through products and services
Strengthen the company amidst the challenges that arise to reward and grow with stakeholders sustainably. The company's strategy

covers 3 issues as follows:

1. Focus on the use of new technologies and innovations, including modern equipment and machinery, to be used in providing
services and producing the company's work to be more efficient. In addition, continuously increase the introduction of modern
products and goods to meet the needs of consumers as much as possible. with the aim of becoming a leader in the distribution of
modern photographic technology products With excellent service By management from an efficient team To enhance the quality of

service to customers.

2. Improving the development of the camera and photographic equipment business by supporting the expansion of the technology
industry and focus on developing transportation systems to allow everyone to access services equally Both retail business,
commercial business and corporate customers, service businesses and online retail businesses By focusing on providing services
through branches covering all areas of the country. and develop product placement to meet the needs of each different market

segment.

3. Sustainability operations The company focuses on promoting and developing the company's personnel in terms of knowledge,
expertise, and proficiency. Including managing social, environmental and economic risks By adhering to good corporate governance
principles to create sustainability for the company and be a part of working towards achieving the country's sustainable
development goals.

Sustainable Business Practices

The company has incorporated sustainability into its business strategy. to accommodate long-term risk factors such as changes in
products, consumer behavior, and technology Including inequality in various dimensions, both environmental problems and climate,
etc. In order to respond to stakeholders who expect to play a role in helping to care for and enhance the quality of the
environment and society, the company has therefore adopted the concept of sustainability in its business operations in order to

create value and good performance sustainably.

Review of environmental policies, guidelines, and/or goals over the past year

Review of environmental policies, guidelines, and/or goals :  Yes

over the past year
Changes in environmental policies, suidelines, and/or goals :  Electricity Management, Renewable/Clean Energy Management,
Water Management, Waste Management

The Company is committed to managing environmental issues by focusing on conducting business in conjunction with management to
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reduce environmental impacts and striving to reduce pollution that may arise from the Company's and stakeholders' business

operations for sustainable development. In the past year, the Company has carried out the following important operations:

1. Waste Management

The rapid change in technology has led to increased production and consumption. In addition, currently, technological products
play an important role in facilitating the lives of consumers, which is why there is currently an increasing amount of electronic
waste. The disposal of electronic waste is complex and expensive because it contains hazardous substances and is composed of
metal and iron. It is therefore necessary to dispose of it properly to reduce potential impacts on the health of people in

society. Commitment and goals

The Company is committed to continuous environmental operations to create organizational value that covers all dimensions:
economic, social, environmental, and corporate governance. The Company therefore attaches importance to reducing the amount of
waste and systematically separating it both outside and inside the organization, as well as instilling good awareness in the

Company's personnel in taking responsibility for properly separating waste in order to lead to sustainable environmentally

friendly behavioral changes. The Company aims to have 100% correct waste sorting by 2027 in order to be able to bring the sorted

waste into the recycling process as much as possible or dispose of it by type correctly and appropriately.

Management approach

The Company is committed to continuous environmental operations by focusing on raising awareness and changing behaviors with the

aim of reducing waste generation and promoting continuous reuse in order to reduce the waste of natural resources and reduce

potential environmental impacts.

Efficient waste management

The Company campaigns for employees to be aware of waste disposal by instilling in employees an understanding of proper waste
sorting management to reduce environmental impacts that may cause pollution and various germs in the office. Employees are
encouraged to learn how to dispose of waste according to the specified sorting system, separating it into food waste, plastic

waste, and paper waste, which has clearly designated disposal points in order to be able to bring the sorted waste into the
recycling process as much as possible or dispose of it by type correctly and appropriately, and to lead to sustainable

environmentally friendly behavioral changes.

Campaigning for reuse

In the past, employees in the organization often ordered bottled drinking water for consumption, which in addition to being a
financial burden, also increases the amount of plastic waste that affects the environment in the long term. Therefore, the
Company has procured clean drinking water sources that are easily accessible and safe within the organization to ensure that all
employees have access to clean drinking water and to reduce the use of single-use plastic bottles, reduce employee expenses,
including campaigning for employees to use their own reusable containers, and help promote a culture of sustainable resource use

within the organization.

Global warming reduction bag project

Currently, the way of life in Thai society has changed, with more plastic being used in everyday life. Because plastic is cheap

and lightweight, it does not waste transportation costs. Plastic is a material with a low density and can withstand compression
better than other types of garbage. It is resistant to chemicals and is not decomposed by microorganisms, resulting in plastic
having a long lifespan of hundreds of years. Statistics show that millions of tons of plastic waste are generated, with plastic

bags accounting for about 80% of all plastic waste, such as hot bags, cold food bags, T-shirt bags, plastic envelopes, foam

boxes, and plastic water bottles. In the future, it is expected that the impact of global warming will become more and more
severe, which tends to increase in volume. The Company is directly involved in the use of "plastic bags" to put products for
customers who come to receive services at the BIG Camera storefront. Therefore, the Company is aware of the problem of "global

warming', which has an impact on the entire ecosystem, from the use of plastic bags beyond necessity from the services received
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in the past. Therefore, it began to find ways to produce bags that can help reduce global warming. Therefore, the Company has
changed from using plastic bags to using paper bags by changing from using both plastic bags and photo envelopes to paper bags
and paper envelopes in order to reduce the amount of plastic waste that affects the environment and to reduce the Company's
expenses, including reducing the impact on environmental sanitation, which can reduce greenhouse gases as well. The Company has
been doing this for many years in order to aim to be a part of creating environmental sustainability for the community, society,

and changing customer behavior to be aware of participating in reducing the amount of plastic bag waste in the environment, which
is one of the causes of global warming.

In the past year, the Company has used 2,500 paper bags instead of plastic bags.

Cost-effective management of office equipment

The Company manages various office equipment to be used worthwhilely by bringing used office equipment that is still in good
condition back to be reused for maximum benefit, such as computers, document files, and envelopes. For paper management, used
paper is reused for benefit by making it into note paper. In addition, the use of unnecessary documents has been eliminated, such
as the elimination of writing leave requests, salary documents, and others that can be managed online. It also encourages

employees to refrain from unnecessary printing.

2. Energy Management, Commitment and Goals

The Company is committed to continuously improving its environmental operations to create organizational value that covers all
dimensions: economic, social, environmental, and corporate governance, including instilling good awareness in the Company's
personnel in taking responsibility for environmental problems in using limited natural resources. The Company therefore organizes
projects to conserve natural resources and use energy worthwhilely to the fullest extent by controlling energy use efficiently to

reduce environmental impacts as much as possible.

Management approach

The Company has continuously managed the environment, conserved natural resources, and promoted energy efficiency. A policy
manual and environmental practice guidelines have been prepared, along with inventing, seeking ways, and methods to reduce the
use of natural resources and energy, as well as waste and greenhouse gas emissions, as guidelines for the practice of employees

in the organization, including all stakeholders of the organization in preventing, controlling, and reducing environmental,
community, and social impacts as much as possible, as well as creating awareness of the importance of energy conservation. There
is public relations to provide knowledge about energy conservation and organize activities for employees to participate in and be

aware of reducing energy consumption, such as the "BIG will take you wherever you go" project.

Although the nature of the Company's business does not have a direct impact on the environment, the Company has always attached
importance to and paid attention to the conservation of environmental resources. The Company has carried out environmental
management by campaigning and instilling in its employees a sense of responsibility for the environment and aims to encourage the
reduction of resource use as much as necessary and to be able to reuse them for benefit, as well as finding alternative materials

or methods to reduce resource use and using materials and equipment that help reduce global warming in order to reduce

environmental impacts as much as possible.

Automatic lighting system project

The Company has changed the lighting system to an automatic on-off system in 8 restrooms at the head office to help reduce
employees forgetting to turn off the lights after use. In this regard, the Company has publicized through the Company's E-Mail

and Line application channels to inform all employees about the installation of motion detection equipment (Monitor Sensor) and a
user manual for turning on and off the lights in every restroom. The system change saves electricity.

“Energy-saving light bulbs” project

The Company recognizes the importance of saving energy, reducing electricity consumption, reducing wasteful energy consumption,
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and helping to reduce greenhouse gases generated from various activities within the Company's stores, all of which emit
greenhouse gases. The Company has therefore established an energy-saving project to change light bulbs with the objective of
reducing energy consumption, reducing costs, and creating awareness of participation for everyone to reduce energy consumption
along with caring for the environment. The goal is to change the light bulbs in 160 stores nationwide to energy-saving LED bulbs
to 100% by 2031. Currently, the Company uses a total of 10,457 light bulbs, of which 8,145 are energy-saving LED bulbs,
accounting for 78% of the total number of light bulbs, and 2,312 are non-LED bulbs, accounting for 22% of the total number of
light bulbs.

“Solar cell” project

The Company has installed solar cells to convert natural energy from sunlight into electricity in the parking lot and around the
building since 2021. In 2022, the project continued to change light bulbs and install more solar-powered electrical systems, as

well as cultivate employees to use electricity economically through various activities such as turning off lights during the day

and immediately after work, and campaigning for economical electricity consumption. In addition, the Company also considers

saving electricity by considering purchasing office appliances that have energy-saving features. The "BIG will take you wherever

you go" project has been running continuously since 2021. In addition to helping to save on employee travel expenses, it also

helps to reduce carbon dioxide emissions (CO2 Emissions) and reduce PM 2.5 dust. The Company focuses on business operations and
growth in conjunction with management to reduce environmental impacts in order to reduce pollution to the ecosystem. In 2024, the
Company continued to campaign for employees to use public transportation, with an increase in the number of employees using the

service from an average of 40 employees per day in 2023 to 45 employees per day in 2024.

3. Water Management, Commitment and Goals

The Company is committed to continuously improving its environmental operations to create organizational value that covers all
dimensions: economic, social, environmental, and corporate governance, including instilling good awareness in the Company's
personnel of the value of the resources used and taking responsibility for environmental problems in using limited natural
resources in order to use them efficiently and reduce water waste. The Company therefore organizes projects to conserve natural
resources and use energy worthwhilely to the fullest extent by controlling energy use efficiently to reduce environmental impacts

as much as possible.

Management approach

The Company's use of tap water is for the consumption of employees. The Company has promoted awareness among employees in the
organization about water conservation and economical water use for the benefit of the organization and to reduce environmental
impacts, and has a work plan to carry out activities that create awareness in the use of resources and the environment by

specifying that there is diversity and incorporating related activities. In addition, the Company has regularly inspected,

maintained, and repaired plumbing pipes and equipment, and has chosen to use water-saving toilets, faucets, and bidet hoses,

including having an efficient wastewater treatment system, ensuring that wastewater that has been treated before being released

into public water sources is in accordance with the law and does not affect the environment and surrounding communities.

Water usage management

The group of companies has campaigned and instilled in employees the awareness of using water sparingly in order to take into
account the worthwhile use of water resources. The group of companies has organized training to provide knowledge to employees in
the organization about campaigning for the knowledgeable use of resources. In the past year, 100% of employees in the

organization have been trained on the knowledgeable use of resources.

Wastewater management

The Company has installed an efficient water treatment system and has regular maintenance and inspection of the condition of
the treatment system. Wastewater from the building mainly comes from the consumption of employees, such as excretion, cooking,

and laundry. There are contaminants in the wastewater generated from various activities that may affect health and the

environment. The Company will treat wastewater physically by using a screen to catch large debris such as wood and plastic
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scraps. There is also a grease trap that helps separate grease from flowing into the wastewater, helping to maintain the
condition of the water initially before releasing it to the wastewater treatment system, which will have a water storage pond
before releasing the wastewater into public water sources from operations in accordance with the law. In 2024, the Company did

not find any environmental complaints from stakeholders.
3.3.2 Environmental operating results

Information on energy management

Energy management plan

The company's energy management plan :  Yes

The Company has continuously implemented environmental management, natural resource conservation, and energy efficiency
promotion. The Company has developed a handbook on environmental policies and guidelines, as well as explored and sought ways and
means to reduce the use of natural resources and energy, including waste and greenhouse gas emissions. This serves as a guideline

for employees within the organization, as well as all stakeholders, in preventing, controlling, and minimizing impacts on the

environment, community, and society. The Company also raises awareness about the importance of energy conservation by publicizing
and providing knowledge about energy conservation. Activities are organized to encourage employee participation and awareness in

reducing energy consumption, such as the "BIG Delivery Service" project.

Setting goals for managing electricity and/or oil and fuel

Does the company set goals for electricity and/or fuel :  No

management

Performance and outcomes of energy management

Performance and outcomes of energy management :  No

Energy management: Electricity consumption

2022 2023 2024

Total electricity consumption within the 275,133.00 292,242.00 286,380.00
organization (Kilowatt-Hours)

Information on water management

Water management plan
The Company's water management plan :  Yes
Water Management
The group has campaigned and raised awareness among employees to use water efficiently to ensure the sustainable use of water
resources. The group has organized training to educate employees on resource conservation campaigns. In the past year, 100% of

employees have received training on efficient resource utilization.

Setting goals for water management

Does the company set goals for water management :  No
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Performance and outcomes of water management

Performance and outcomes of water management :  No

Water management: Water withdrawal by source

2022 2023 2024

Total water withdrawal (Cubic meters) 2,879.00 6,296.00 2,824.00
Water management: Water consumption

2022 2023 2024

Total water consumption (Cubic meters) 2,879.00 6,296.00 2,824.00

Information on waste management

Waste management plan

The company's waste management plan :  Yes

The company is committed to continuous environmental operations to create organizational value that encompasses all dimensions:

economic, social, environmental, and corporate governance. The company prioritizes waste reduction and systematic waste

management both externally and internally, including cultivating a strong sense of responsibility among its personnel for proper

waste sorting. This aims to foster sustainable and environmentally friendly behavioral changes. The company sets a target of 100%

accurate waste sorting by 2037 to maximize the amount of sorted waste entering the recycling process or ensure its proper and

appropriate disposal by type.

Setting goals for waste management

Does the company set goals for waste management :  No

Performance and outcomes of waste management

Performance and outcomes of waste management :  No

Information on greenhouse gas management

Greenhouse gas management plan

The company’s greenhouse gas management plan :  No

Setting greenhouse gas emission goals

Does the company set greenhouse gas management goals :  No

Performance and outcomes of greenhouse gas management

Performance and outcomes of greenhouse gas management :  No

Greenhouse gas management : Corporate greenhouse gas emission
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2022

2023

2024

Total greenhouse gas emissions (Metric tonnes of

carbon dioxide equivalent)

0.00

N/A

Greenhouse gas management: Verification of the company's greenhouse gas emissions over the

past year

Verification of the company's greenhouse gas emissions

Information on incidents related to legal violations or negative environmental impacts

Number of cases and incidents of legal violations or negative environmental impacts

2022

2023

2024

Number of cases or incidents of legal violations or

negative environmental impact (cases)
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3.4 Social sustainability management

3.4.1 Social policy and guidelines
Social and human rights policy and guidelines :  Yes

Social and human rights guidelines :  Employee rights, Community and environmental rights, Safety and

occupational health at work, Non-discrimination

Focus on developing and maintaining relationships so that employees are socially responsible and accountable to all stakeholders,
including maintaining the security and privacy of stakeholder information, consumer responsibility, respecting human rights and
diversity, as well as treating customers, partners, competitors, and employees equally and fairly. Develop the potential of youth
and carry out environmental, social, and public benefit activities for the greatest benefit to society.

Compliance with human rights principles and standards

Human rights management principles and standards :  Thai Labour Standard: Corporate Social Responsibility of Thai
Businesses (TLS 8001-2010) by the Ministry of Labour

Review of social and human rights policies, guidelines, and/or goals over the past year
Review of social and human rights policies, guidelines, and/or : No

goals over the past year

Human Rights Due Diligence : HRDD

Does the company have an HRDD process :  No

3.4.2 Social operating results

Information on employees and labor

Employees and labor management plan

The company's employee and labor management plan :  Yes
Employee and labor management plan implemented by the :  Fair employee compensation, Employee training and development,
Company in the past year Promoting employee relations and participation, Safety and

occupational health at work

Employee Compensation

The company provides compensation to employees in various forms, including salary, bonuses, and other employee benefits such as
commissions, provident fund contributions, social security contributions, health insurance, and vehicle allowances. This is in
accordance with the company's and subsidiaries' employment policies. This employee compensation does not include executives of

the company and subsidiaries.

Provident Fund
The company registered its provident fund on September 15, 1964, under the management of Thanachart Fund Management Company
Limited, currently renamed Eastspring Asset Management (Thailand) Company Limited. The objective is to create morale and

motivation for employees and to encourage them to work with the company in the long term. In 2024, 255 employees participated in
the provident fund, representing 38.35% of the total number of employees.
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Personnel Development Policy

The company places importance on training, developing knowledge, skills, abilities, and potential necessary for the performance
of personnel at all levels on an ongoing basis, both in the present and in the future of employees. The company will encourage
personnel to develop their knowledge and expertise from on-the-job training, especially salespeople who need to have a good
knowledge of the products and services they sell, as well as having good standards of customer service. Big Camera salespeople
will receive training from various brand suppliers, including how to create sales strategies and close sales. The company's
employees will also have managers in each line of work to provide on-the-job training. The company will consider sending
employees and executives in various lines of work to participate in training and seminars on topics related to the work of each
department as a supplement, as well as instilling organizational culture and ethics in parallel. This is to ensure alignment and
support for the company's strategies, business plans, and readiness to support business growth. As human resources are one of the
main resources that support operations, they can clearly create differentiation and competitive advantage for the business, as
well as being a key factor in driving the business towards its future goals. They are also a key driving force in helping to

support the growth and progress of the organization. The company therefore has the following policies for personnel development:

1. The company promotes the development of knowledge for employees at all levels appropriately and adequately.

2. The Human Resources Department is responsible for preparing the annual development plan and the annual personnel development
budget according to the specified timeframe.

Training and Development

1. The company systematically develops a development plan for all employees at all levels of the organization on an annual basis.
A clear training roadmap is created, divided by job level, that aligns with responsibilities, capabilities, and competencies
necessary for effective job performance, both at the head office and in the storefront business. All courses focus on developing

employee capabilities, such as:

- Core Competency refers to the capabilities that reflect the work culture of the organization, which all personnel in the

organization should possess and be aligned with in order for the organization to achieve its operational goals.

- Managerial Competency refers to the management capabilities that personnel at each level and position in the organization need

to have in order to manage themselves and their subordinates to achieve organizational goals.

- Functional Competency refers to the abilities and professional skills necessary to perform work successfully, which vary
according to the nature of the work. The training roadmap defines the core content of the training courses that employees at each
level must attend in order to develop their potential. These include both soft skills that enhance core and managerial
competencies, and hard skills to enable employees to become proficient in their actual line of work, as well as to build a

variety of work skills.

2. The company requires all new employees to attend a company orientation program to emphasize and remind them of the company's
goals, mission, organizational culture, business ethics, code of conduct, and anti-corruption policy, as well as to create an
understanding of the business and build a bond with the company from the first day of work.

3. The company has developed a short-term training plan in the form of knowledge sharing, which is in addition to the main
training plan. Experts in various fields are invited to share their knowledge with employees to enhance new knowledge beyond the

core curriculum.

Leadership and Executive Development Planning

The company has a plan to develop the potential of its people and executives to be ready to lead change and drive strategies into
actions that yield even greater results. This is in conjunction with creating a work culture and values that can help promote and
drive the development of modern management systems, as well as knowledge management and a learning organization to be passed on

to personnel in the agency. This is to encourage the development of work processes to be more efficient and lead to overall
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success. This is a continuous employee development model throughout the year to ensure continuity and create a pool of future

executives.
Knowledge Management System and Organization
The company promotes the development of knowledge and skills of employees at all levels to reach their full potential by

organizing training courses in various subjects for both new and current employees. The company has a system in place to collect

data for use in employee development or to create knowledge to enhance employee potential in a variety of ways, such as the

Performance Management System, which is a system developed and used internally by the company. For training, the company uses the

Easy LMS system for online course learning and evaluation. Currently, the company has developed training courses for personnel in

the organization as follows:
1. The company focuses on providing employees with knowledge about products and services to create expertise and readiness to
provide services. It also maintains standards of practice that will build customer confidence and impress them with excellent

service.

2. Establish a mentoring system to supervise, train, and provide work guidance to new employees, including knowledge transfer
among colleagues and joint learning between executives and employees following the Learning Organization approach.

3. The Human Resources Department must follow the training plan. If there is a need to change or adjust, the relevant departments

must be notified in advance.
4. The Human Resources Department must control the personnel development budsget to stay within the established budget plan.

5. The Human Resources Department is responsible for evaluating and monitoring the results of the various courses that have been

conducted.

6. The company encourages the company's directors to attend training and seminars in relevant and appropriate courses to

continuously develop their knowledge and lead the company to grow progressively.

7. The Human Resources Department is responsible for coordinating with various departments on personnel development to ensure
that the plan is aligned with the company's strategic plan and business direction, and to prepare employees to be ready for
increased responsibilities, career advancement, and the ability to fill vacant positions.

8. Training and Development Management

8.1 The company provides development according to the annual development plan.

8.2 The company provides development in addition to the annual development plan as requested by the relevant departments.
8.3 The company sends employees to training courses organized by various institutions.

9. The Human Resources Department is responsible for collecting data related to training and personnel development.

10. In the event that an employee who has been nominated for training is unable to attend the training on the scheduled date and
time, they must notify their department manager and the Human Resources Manager in advance. Approval or disapproval is at the

discretion of the employee's department manager. If approved, the incident will be recorded in the employee's training history
for consideration in selecting participants for future training.

Setting employee and labor management goals

Does the company set employee and labor management :  No

goals
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Performance and outcomes for employee and labor management

Performance and outcomes for employee and labor

management

No

Employee and labor management: Employment

Hiring employees

2022 2023 2024
Total employees (persons) 592 625 665
Male employees (persons) 220 231 247
Female employees (persons) 372 394 418
Employment of workers with disabilities
2022 2023 2024
Total employment of workers with disabilities 2 2 2
(persons)
Total number of employees with disabilities 2 2 2
(persons)
Total male employees with disabilities (persons) 1 1 1
Total female employees with disabilities (persons) 1 1 1
Contributions to empowerment for persons with No No No
disabilities fund
Employee and labor management: Remuneration
Employee remuneration
2022 2023 2024
Total employee remuneration (baht) 187,000,000.00 194,000,000.00 224,000,000.00
Total male employee remuneration (Baht) 80,000,000.00 84,000,000.00 95,000,000.00
Total female employee remuneration (Baht) 107,000,000.00 110,000,000.00 129,000,000.00
Employee and labor management: Employee training and development
Employee training and development
2022 2023 2024
Average employee training hours (hours / person / 2.90 4.70 6.00

year)
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2022 2023 2024
Training and development expenses for employees 750,000.00 2,100,000.00 3,100,000.00
(baht)
Employee and labor management: Employee engagement and internal employee groups
Employee engagement
2022 2023 2024
Total number of employee turnover leaving the 249 252 206
company voluntarily (persons)
Total number of male employee turnover leaving the 97 86 80
company voluntarily (persons)
Total number of female employee turnover leaving 152 166 126
the company voluntarily (persons)
Proportion of voluntary resignations (%) 42.06 40.32 30.98
2022 2023 2024
Evaluation result of employee engagement Yes Yes Yes

Employee internal groups

Employee internal groups

Types of employee internal groups

Information about customers

Customer management plan

Company's customer

management plan

Customer management plan implemented by the company

Maintaining Good Customer Relationships

Commitment and Goals

over the past year

Yes

Welfare committee

Yes

Responsible production and services for customers, Communication

of product and service impacts to customers/consumers,

Development of customer satisfaction and customer relationship,

Consumer data privacy and protection

The Company is committed to selecting modern and comprehensive products and services to meet customer needs and create the

highest impression and satisfaction. Currently, customers can access information without limits and have a variety of channels to

purchase products and services. They can easily search for sellers, compare prices, and have competitors both domestically and

internationally. Therefore, the Company places importance on maintaining good relationships with customers to create satisfaction

and engagement, including with employees who are a vital force in promoting and driving sustainable business growth. The Company

aims to achieve 100% customer satisfaction.

Management Approach
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The Company prioritizes building customer confidence in product quality and service provision, along with continuously
strengthening good customer relationships. This aims to create maximum satisfaction, customer loyalty, and a positive brand image

for products and services, as follows:

1. Utilizing technology in conjunction with personnel to enhance customer service levels, understand customer needs, and
effectively respond to customer demands for products and services to achieve maximum customer satisfaction.

2. Develop product knowledge, service skills, product usage skills, sales skills, and communication skills for employees within
the organization. They should have good interpersonal skills, be polite, and enthusiastic about providing customer service to

ensure efficient customer service.

3. Raise awareness among employees within the organization about the importance of accessing, collecting, using, and disclosing
personal data, which may adversely affect data owners and the Company. This must be protected under the Personal Data Protection

Act B.E. 2562 and international human rights principles.

4. Continuously strengthen customer relationships by listening to their thoughts, suggestions, complaints, or needs. This
information is used to formulate sales and marketing strategies and select quality products and services. It is communicated to
relevant departments for acknowledgment and process improvement to deliver better products and services to customers, meeting

their needs and convenience.

5. Analyze data appearing on social media or other channels to understand customer opinions and respond to customer needs

effectively and promptly.

6. Organize marketing activities, promotions, and appropriate product pricing.

7. Organize workshops for customers who have purchased products from Big Camera to provide them with knowledge and understanding

of how to use cameras and related photographic equipment correctly.

Performance in 2024

The Company has carried out various activities and projects to create engagement and a positive image for its products and the
organization. Combined with creating positive customer experiences, this encourages customers to make purchases and return to buy

or use services at Big Camera, enabling the Company to expand its customer base effectively.

1. The Company provides training to sales staff at branches. The Company has a team of specialized experts with knowledge and
understanding of in-store sales and expertise in products from various brands and categories. They also have experience in
teaching and knowledge transfer. The curriculum is planned to align with the Company's policies to provide customers with
knowledge and specific features of different product categories. The sales staff preparation program aims to equip employees with
sales skills, negotiation skills, good interpersonal skills, and good listening skills. It also includes supervisor development

to enable them to provide product and service information, usage instructions, and effective communication to customers for
greater satisfaction.

2. The Company has a contact center to receive inquiries and suggestions from customers through various channels, including
email, bighotline@bigcamera.co.th , the company website www.bigcamera.co.th , via social media channels such as Facebook, Line
Official, Instagram, Tik Tok, etc.

3. The Company analyzes and manages customer data from product purchase registrations in its database in various formats to
communicate marketing messages or announce promotional activities on each occasion that aligns with the needs of the target
customer group. The Company employs a targeted marketing approach, such as organizing in-store marketing activities, marketing
communication promotions, and workshops, to impress customers with the Company's services and attract them to learn about the
store and return to purchase products and use various services. The Company provides product warranties to support product

exchanges and repairs from leading manufacturers and importers. The conditions are as specified by the manufacturer or
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distributor to build customer confidence in purchasing products from the Company. The Company focuses on providing quality
services with dedication to create maximum customer satisfaction. If there are any problems with the product after purchase,

customers can access product exchange or repair services at all Big Camera stores nationwide.

Quality and Comprehensive Services

The Company intends to provide quality services to achieve maximum customer satisfaction in all distribution channels. The

Company's main services consist of
- Customer Service

- The Company has a selection of knowledgeable personnel who can provide excellent product recommendations to customers.

Additionally, the Company offers various payment methods, including bank transfers and credit card payments.

- Product Warranty and After-Sales Service

- All products of the Company and its subsidiaries are guaranteed. There is support for product exchanges and repairs from
leading manufacturers and importers. Customers can access services at all Big Camera branches nationwide, subject to the terms
and conditions of the manufacturers and/or distributors.

- Product Delivery

- The Company has numerous delivery channels to deliver products to customers safely, such as nationwide delivery services

through leading private parcel delivery companies, which are reliable in handling shipments with care, safety, and speed.
- Ordering products online
- The Company continuously develops its website to allow customers to conveniently search for product information, details, and

make purchases. The Company has a user-friendly payment system, including credit card payments and bank transfers. The Company

also has a security system in place for managing customer personal data to prevent the misuse of customer personal information.

Setting customer management goals

Does the company set customer management goals : No

Performance and outcomes of customer management

Performance and outcomes of customer management  : No

Customer management: Customer satisfaction

Customer satisfaction

2022 2023 2024

Evaluation results of customer satisfaction N/A No No

Information on community and society

Community and social management plan
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Company's community and social management plan :  Yes

Community and social management plan implemented by the :  Employment and professional skill development, Sports and
company over the past year recreation, Occupational health, safety, health, and quality of life,

Water and sanitation management

Community Relations Management and Social Responsibility

Policies and Practices

The company is committed to sustainable business growth while upholding its responsibility towards society, the environment, and

the well-being of the people. The company promotes community participation, prioritizes communication for peaceful coexistence

with the community, and supports community development and empowerment for a good and sustainable quality of life. The company
also promotes activities that emphasize creativity and social development. Therefore, the company has established policies and
guidelines for social responsibility for all employees to strictly adhere to. The company also has a duty to care for society and

the surrounding community, ensuring a good quality of life and harmonious coexistence.

Commitment and Goals

The company places importance on participating in social responsibility and community care to enhance the quality of life. To
create corporate value that encompasses all dimensions, including the economy, society, environment, and corporate governance,
the company is committed to continuously improving the quality of life for people in the community while simultaneously
developing society. This aims to foster happiness within society and the community. The company emphasizes instilling and
building good consciousness among its personnel in participating in creating a positive mindset towards sharing, helping, and

giving. The company regularly reviews the results of its operations to promote a good quality of life and sustainable coexistence.

Management Approach

The company places importance on participating in social responsibility and community care to enhance the quality of life. To
create corporate value that encompasses all dimensions, including the economy, society, the environment, and corporate
governance, the company has established a social responsibility policy and guidelines. These serve as a guide for employees and

all stakeholders of the organization. The key points are as follows:

1. Continuously promote creative activities and projects that benefit the community and society.

2. Collaborate with relevant agencies to implement standards for building a better community and society.

2024 Performance Results

The company strongly believes that all creativity is possible. Therefore, the company promotes and prioritizes participation in

caring for society and the community to enhance their quality of life. This project was conceived with a focus on youth

development and education. The objective is to focus on teaching participants to access the functions and various modes available

in cameras and photography equipment. The project aims to develop youth and education by providing knowledge and understanding of
photography, including the essential elements of photography, video, and the various equipment used in content creation. This
knowledge is gained from practical experience shared by leading professional photographers and videographers in Thailand,

enabling participants to effectively apply it to their work. The project also provides opportunities by assisting underprivileged

individuals in local communities.
Dream Weaving and Knowledge Sharing Project
The Dream Weaving and Knowledge Sharing Project is a collaboration between the company and the university. The company will be a

part of the working group in managing knowledge for youth in photography, equipment usage, and content creation. This aims to
promote knowledge, skills, and good attitudes in creating works from images and videos, including the ability to apply them to
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university-level education and future careers. The company will build a fully equipped photography studio for the university and
jointly promote photography knowledge. The company plans to send experienced and successful individuals in various fields of

photography

Since the inception of the "Dream Weaving and Knowledge Sharing" project in 2022, Big Camera Corporation Public Company Limited
has played a significant role in disseminating photography knowledge. The company has sent experienced and successful individuals
from various fields of photography to develop skills and open up learning opportunities, providing hands-on experience directly
to students in the classroom. The company also provides continuous scholarship support to enhance the production of skilled

photography personnel and introduce them to the photography industry.

Last year, BIG Camera signed an MOU for the Dream Weaving and Knowledge Sharing Project with Rajamangala University of Technology

Rattanakosin.

In this MOU signing, the company recognizes its role as a private sector entity in driving knowledge in the world of photography.
The company will participate as a working group in managing knowledge for youth in photography, equipment usage, and content
creation. This aims to promote knowledge, skills, and good attitudes in creating works from images and videos, including the

ability to apply them to university-level education and future careers. Last year, the company played a role in building a studio

for Rajamangala University of Technology Rattanakosin and jointly promoting photography knowledge. The company plans to send
experienced and successful individuals in various fields of photography to develop skills, open up learning opportunities, and

Big Camera organized a basic drone operation training course to enhance skills and understanding of drone usage for creative
media production. The course focused on providing participants with knowledge and understanding of flight techniques, equipment
selection, shooting planning, and video editing to enable them to produce high-quality media. It also aimed to promote creative
thinking, innovative presentations, and learning new shooting techniques from different perspectives that are not possible with
traditional methods. This allows for the creation of outstanding and captivating works, ensures safe drone operation, and fosters
collaboration between educational institutions and the private sector. Participants had the opportunity to exchange knowledge and

experiences with experts from Big Camera, building good relationships and potential future collaborations.

Furthermore, Big Camera has provided equipment for the studio at Poh-Chang Academy of Arts to enable students to utilize it in
their photography courses. Students from Poh-Chang Academy of Arts have used the studio to experiment with photography

techniques, lighting setups, and practical applications to foster creativity and enhance their proficiency in using the equipment.

Furthermore, Big Camera provides educational support by awarding scholarships to outstanding students at the Chudhadhuj 100 Years
Building, Poh-Chang Academy of Arts, Rajamangala University of Technology Rattanakosin. This initiative aims to enhance the

knowledge of Thai photographers and creators under the "Dream Weaving and Knowledge Sharing" project.

During the 18th BIG PRO DAY event, which featured off-campus learning, Big Camera invited guest speaker Khun Han - Sittipong
Kongthong, a leading professional director of photography in Thailand. He shared his knowledge and perspectives on commercial
photography, revealing techniques for creating short films and advertisements. He also provided insights into his work process,
drawing from his real-world experience, which is not readily available elsewhere. Big Camera invited students from King Mongkut's

University of Technology North Bangkok and King Mongkut's University of Technology Thonburi to attend.

Khun Han - Sittipong Kongthong shared his knowledge with participating university students. He imparted knowledge and shared
perspectives on commercial photography, revealing techniques for creating short films and advertisements. He simulated shooting
angles and scene breakdowns for commercial filming, including short film production, to motivate and inspire students to create
effective work and guide them towards future careers.

One Pic Big Dream Project

This is a tourism photography competition that offers a fresh perspective, providing a platform for the new generation to

showcase their creativity. It also aims to stimulate the tourism industry. Last year marked the 4th edition of this event.

New Generation's Creative Power Project
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This project supports the creativity of the new generation, encouraging them to explore new perspectives in photography and

create multi-dimensional works. The target group for this project is young photographers who are passionate about photography.

The aim is to help these photographers break free from conventional boundaries and learn to create diverse photographic

dimensions. The company will coordinate with photography competitions and organize photography contests. Upon completion of the

competition, awards will be presented to the winners.

Last year, the company collaborated with Bangkok University to organize the "BIG CAMERA x Bangkok University: Creativity of
Creator" event. This was an off-campus learning activity aimed at elevating influencer skills to the next level through a
workshop format. The event revealed secrets on how to establish oneself as an influencer sought after by agencies. It garnered

significant interest from students eager to learn from professional photographers.

Open Eyes to Thai Society Project

The "Open Eyes to Thai Society" project is a fundraising project to donate to the "Thai Red Cross Society Eye Surgery Unit under
the patronage of Her Royal Highness Princess Maha Chakri Sirindhorn, Princess Royal". This project aims to restore sight and
provide opportunities for visually impaired individuals to see the world around them once again. The company recognizes eye
problems as a crucial factor in daily life, especially among the elderly living in remote and underprivileged areas. Therefore,

the company participates in fundraising by organizing activities to receive donations from the public. The company collaborates
with the government and the Thai Red Cross Society's Fundraising Bureau to organize the "Open Eyes to Thai Society" project. All
proceeds will be used for eye care, medical equipment purchases, and operational costs for mobile eye clinics. These clinics are
staffed with doctors and nurses who travel to provide assistance, including eye examinations, cataract and glaucoma treatments,

retinal examinations, and treatment assessments for those who have been examined.

To support the "Open Eyes to Thai Society" project, the company organized a camera auction starting at 0 baht during the BIG

CAMERA BIG FESTIVAL and BIG CAMERA BIG PRO DAYS promotional events. For customers who win the auction, the Red Cross Society will

issue a tax deduction certificate, allowing them to claim a tax deduction of up to twice the amount. Additionally, the company

has set up donation boxes at Big Camera branches, cashier counters, and entrances to photography workshops organized by the
company. Every year, Big Camera summarizes the total amount and donates it to the Thai Red Cross Society's Fundraising Bureau to
support the mobile eye clinic unit. To date, the company has donated a total of 10,266,295 baht to the "Open Eyes to Thai
Society" project from its first to seventh year, contributing to the treatment of 1,466 eyes.

Blood Donation Project in collaboration with Wichaiyut Hospital, Nong Khaem

The company encourages its employees to have a spirit of volunteerism in sharing social responsibility. The company opened for
blood donation registration with Wichaiyut Hospital, Nong Khaem, to provide blood to those in need. A large number of employees
expressed interest in participating.

Big Camera Together We Play Project

The company recognizes the importance of building relationships, love, and unity among employees. Therefore, the company
organizes the "Big Camera Together We Play" project to encourage employees to get to know each other and build good relationships
through sports activities. The project also allows employees to showcase their athletic abilities, teamwork skills, and promotes
systematic collaboration.

Big Camera PC Meeting Project
The company prioritizes self-development, team development, and building organizational engagement, particularly for sales
staff who are crucial to sales and customer service. Therefore, the company organizes the "Big Camera PC Meeting" project to

enable sales staff to build relationships within and between branches, fostering teamwork. It also serves as an assessment of

employee knowledge to ensure a skilled workforce in each branch.
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Setting community and social management goals

Does the company set community and social management :  No

goals
Performance and outcomes of community and social management

Performance and outcomes of community and social :  No

management

Information on incidents related to legal or social and human rights violations

Number of cases and incidents of significant legal or social and human rights violations

2022 2023 2024
Total number of cases or incidents of significant 0 0 0
legal or social and human rights violations (cases)
Total number of cases or incidents leading to 0 0 0
significant labor disputes (cases)
Total number of incidents or complaints related to 0 0 0
business partner’s rights violations (cases)
The total number of cases or complaints related to 0 0 0
partner rights violations (Cases)
Total number of cases or incidents leading to disputes 0 0 0
with the community/society (cases)
Total number of cases or incidents related to 0 0 0
cybersecurity or customer data breaches (cases)
Total number of cases or incidents related to 0 0 0
workplace safety and occupational health (cases)
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4. Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

4.1 Operation, financial condition and material changes
Operational overview

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
1 Important Financial Information
Independent Auditor's Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the Year Ended December 31, 256 7

Audited by Ms. Kongkaew Limp kitikul, Certified Public Accountant No. 5874, from the Office of EY Limited, the auditor approved

by the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission. The auditor's report on the consolidated financial statements of Big

Camera Corporation Public Company Limited for the year ended December 31, 2024, expressed an unqualified opinion with an emphasis
of matter paragraph regarding the Company's receipt of a court order regarding the guarantee of an overdraft facility with a bank

creditor of a former subsidiary. Summary of the Company's consolidated financial statements for the years 2022 to 2027

Big Camera Corporation Public Company Limited (the "Company") operates as a retailer of cameras and provides photo printing
services. Currently, it has branches in leading shopping centers in almost every province across the country under the names "BIG
Camera", "Wonder Photo Shop", and "Pop! Print". In addition, the Company has been granted the right to manage "AlS Shop by

Partner", "Telewiz Shop", and "AlS Buddy" stores from Advanced Wireless Network Co., Ltd., totaling 13 branches. Furthermore, the
Company has been entrusted by brand owners to operate brand shops, including "DJI Experience Store" at MBK Center and Terminal 21
Pattaya, which are the largest and most comprehensive DJI product centers, and "Insta360" at Central Phuket Festival, which is

the first Insta360 store opened in Thailand, and the second branch at CentralWorld.

The Company has two subsidiaries: Image Solution Plus Co., Ltd., which operates in the production of printed image products,
which are distributed through BIG Camera branches and Image Solution Plus Co., Ltd.'s own online channels, and Piccasus Co.,
Ltd., which was established to support the import of products related to photographic equipment, with the aim of being an
importer and distributor fully authorized by the product owners, to give customers confidence in the products distributed by the
Group. Currently, Piccasus Co., Ltd. has been appointed as an official distributor by the manufacturers of products under the OM
System, DJI, and Kodak brands.

Overview of past performance

Big Camera Corporation Public Company Limited ("the Company") is engaged in the retail business of photographic equipment,
photography-related products, including photo printing services, comprehensive photo printing services, and camera repair

services. It has branches in almost every province in Thailand under the names "BIG Camera", "Wonder Photo Shop", "Pop! Print",

"DJI", "Insta360", including participation in the AIS shop by Partner and Telewiz Shop projects with Advanced Wireless Network

Public Company Limited. The Company's main revenue is from the sale of photographic equipment. During 2022, although the Company
continued to be affected by the COVID-19 pandemic since 2020, both the government and the private sector have tried to cooperate
to bring the situation back to normal as soon as possible in order to restore the country's economy to normal in all sectors,

resulting in a return of purchasing power. In addition, the policy of promoting tourism and welcoming tourists to stimulate the
economy, including shopping centers, has begun to implement projects to stimulate public spending, resulting in the Company's
total revenue increasing by more than 40%. As the group saw an opportunity for growth in the drone product group, it entered into
an agreement to be an importer and distributor. During the year, the company implemented a strategy to sell drone products
through various sales channels that the company has, including organizing workshops to enable customers to use drones, understand
how to use them, and be able to use them according to their needs, resulting in this product group becoming increasingly popular
during the year. In addition, the company has expanded its distribution channels by partnering with The Mall Group to sell

products in Power Mall stores. In 2022, three branches were opened: Siam Paragon, Emporium, and The Mall Tha Phra. For 2023, the
situation is considered to be back to normal. During the year, the company has been able to build confidence in the Thai
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photographic equipment market, giving brand manufacturers confidence, and has partnered with several brand manufacturers to
stimulate the camera and photographic equipment market in the country, such as Leica, which has chosen the company to organize
the launch of new products in Thailand, as well as being granted the right to open a DJI Brand Shop, which opened at MBK Center

in early 2024. In addition, seeing the potential in the photo printing market, the group invested more in this business during

the year by developing a photo printing sales channel through the website under the name www.popprintthailand.com Including the
opening of a prototype store or flagship store at Central Festival Chiang Mai to provide a one-stop photo printing service center

that customers can access and support the growth of future printing formats. The concept is to allow customers to create their

own work using quality materials and equipment from Fuijifilm, a long-time business partner of the group. This includes adjusting

the interior of BIG Camera stores to include a photo printing service corner under the name "Pop! Print" to provide customers

with access to services nationwide and cover services throughout the country. In addition, the company continued to cooperate
with The Mall Group to sell products in Power Mall stores, adding two more locations during the year: The Mall Bangkapi and The
Mall Bangkae.

For 2027, the Company's overall operating results were satisfactory, although some sesments were still unable to return to
profitability as they were before the COVID-19 situation. However, the Company has not been complacent but has used this
situation as an impetus to plan its operations to achieve its targets even better in the following years. During 2027, the

product group that continued to be popular among consumers was unmanned aerial vehicles, or drones. The Company recognized the
demand for this product group and planned marketing activities and training courses for customers on the use of unmanned aerial
vehicles on an ongoing basis, to enable customers to use them correctly, in line with their individual needs, and in compliance
with various government regulations. This has resulted in both the Company and its subsidiary, Piccasus, which imports drones,
experiencing tremendous growth. During the year, the Company and its subsidiary jointly expanded the DJI Brand Shop, which
currently has 2 branches at MBK Center and Terminal 21 Pattaya. In addition, the Company has also gained the trust of the
manufacturer of action cameras under the Insta360 brand, which has partnered with the Company to increase its reach to target
customers and to increase confidence in its products by opening two Insta360 specialty stores during 2027 at Central Phuket
Festival and CentralWorld. In addition, due to its efficient management, the Company was granted the right to manage 4 additional

AlS Telewiz stores by Advanced Wireless Network Co., Ltd. in the northern region of the country during the year.

Operating results analysis

Sales revenue

Since the Company operates a retail business, the Company's main revenue is from the sale of goods. The photographic equipment
and related equipment group is considered the main revenue-generating group for the Company, accounting for more than 90% of
sales revenue. Sales are made through BIG Camera stores, which have more than 150 branches in shopping centers, and through
online distribution channels, both from the Company's website and through Shopee, Lazada, as well as in collaboration with The
Mall Group to sell products in Power Mall. The Company is an authorized distributor of leading photographic equipment

manufacturers such as DJI, Leica, OM System, Canon, Panasonic, Sony, and Gopro.

In 2022, the Company had total revenue from sales of 2,679 million baht, an increase of 40% from the previous year, which is
considered a good sign of the beginning of a return to normalcy after more than two years of the COVID-19 pandemic. However,
during some periods, both the imaging equipment and mobile phone product groups were affected by the global chip shortage, which
is one of the key components of electronic devices, resulting in camera and mobile phone manufacturers being unable to produce
enough products to meet market demand. The increase in sales revenue in 2022 was partly due to the sale of drones, which Big
Camera Group has been aggressively marketing during the year, resulting in a continuous increase in sales value of this product

group. This includes the expansion of distribution channels to reach more customers, such as sales through popular online

platforms in Thailand such as Shopee, Lazada, and M-Online, as well as collaboration with shopping centers in The Mall Group,

which has enabled Big Camera to sell its products in Power Mall stores. Currently, Big Camera products are available in 5 Power

Mall stores.

In 2023, the Group's total revenue from sales was 2,958 million baht, an increase of 10% from the previous year. This growth was
mainly driven by the imaging equipment business, as in the latter part of the year, brand manufacturers were able to start

delivering more products to the Company after being unable to meet demand due to the global shortage of chipsets, which are a key

component used in the production of electronic products worldwide.

In 2027, the Group's total revenue from sales was 3,685 million baht, an increase of 25% from the previous year. This growth was
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driven by all of the Company's business groups, including imaging equipment, mobile phones, and the printing business. The

chipset shortage began to ease during the year, and domestic purchasing power increased. The product groups that continued to
gain popularity were unmanned aerial vehicles, or drones, which the Company's subsidiary imports into Thailand, and action
cameras, which are very popular among content producers and family users due to their ease of use and ability to connect to
smartphones and easily share images on social media. In addition, the mobile phone product group also experienced growth, partly
due to the Company's demonstrated ability to manage AIS and Telewiz stores, which it was granted the right to manage by Advanced

Wireless Network Co., Ltd., resulting in the right to manage an additional 4 stores in the northern region during the year.

Service revenue

Service revenue is considered a complement to the Company's core business, consisting of photo printing services, camera repair
services, photo book production services under the Pop Print trademark, as well as photo printing and equipment services from
Wonder Photo Shop and Pop Print, which opened its first flagship store in early 2023, and camera warranty extension services (BIG
Camera Care), as well as camera repair and maintenance services. These services are available at all branches. In addition, the
subsidiary also provides drone registration services to provide comprehensive services to customers. In 2022, the group's total
service revenue was 76 million baht, an increase of 62% from the previous year. In 2023, the group's service revenue was 88
million baht, an increase of 17%, with an increase in all service groups, both in terms of photo printing, which increased due to
the return of the tourism sector, and in terms of warranty and repair services, which are directly related to the increase in

sales of photographic equipment. In 2024, the group's service revenue was 93 million baht, an increase of 5%, due to an increase

in photo printing services and product warranty extension services, which increased in line with the increase in sales revenue.

Other income

The Company's other income consists of interest income from bank deposits, support funds received from product agents to support
and boost sales and support various marketing activities, and other income. For 2022, the Group had total other income of 76
million baht, an increase of 70% from the previous year, as a result of the Company being able to resume marketing activities

during the year, which continued into 2023, resulting in the Group having other income of 109 million baht, an increase of 43%

from the previous year. In 2027, the Group had other income of 116 million baht, an increase of 7% from the previous year, mainly
due to an increase in support funds received from product agents for sales promotion and marketing activities during the year,

both in terms of online media production and training courses on the use of various photographic equipment to enhance the

potential for using photographic equipment, which will be able to generate product sales in the future.

Cost of sales and services

Cost of sales

Cost of sales consists of the cost of finished goods and other costs related to the direct sale of goods, including the provision
for obsolete inventory, less sales support received from distributors in Thailand. Cost of sales in 2022 was 2,080 million baht,
an increase of 34% from the previous year, in line with the increase in sales revenue. During the year, the company was able to
reduce the amount of inventory, resulting in a reversal of the provision for obsolete inventory, resulting in a lower increase in
cost of sales than the increase in sales revenue. In 2023, the cost of sales was 2,358 million baht, an increase of 13% from the
previous year, which was higher than the increase in sales revenue. Due to the preparation to support increased sales, the
company began to increase its purchases of goods during the year, resulting in a lower reversal of the provision for obsolete
inventory than in the previous year. For 2024, the group's cost of sales was 2,995 million baht, an increase of 27%, which was

the same rate as the increase in sales revenue.

Cost of services

Cost of services comprises depreciation of tools and equipment, consumables used in photo developing and printing, and camera
repair costs. In 2022, the cost of services was 38 million baht, an increase of 10% from the previous year. In 2023, the cost of
services was 33 million baht, a decrease of 11% from the previous year. This was due to the fact that some of the tools and
equipment used in photo developing and printing had reached the end of their useful lives and were fully depreciated during the
year 2023, resulting in a decrease in expenses in this area. In 2027, the cost of services was 27 million baht, an increase of

20% from the previous year, due to an increase in service revenue and the fact that a large portion of the cost of services is

fixed costs, such as depreciation. Gross profit margin
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The Company's overall gross profit margin averages around 20-25%, with fluctuations partly dependent on the estimated allowance
for obsolete inventory and reversals. During 2022 and 2023, there were some reversals of the allowance for obsolete inventory as

a result of being able to promote the sale of some old inventory. There were no such reversals in 2027, which is why the gross
profit margin for 2027 was lower than in previous years. However, due to increased sales and service revenue, the total gross

profit for 2027 was higher than in 2022 and 2023.

Selling and administrative expenses

Selling expenses consist of rent and service fees for store space in leading shopping centers in the country, advertising

expenses, sales staff expenses including commissions, and expenses related to various marketing activities and CSR activities.
Some of these expenses will vary with sales revenue. In 2022, selling expenses amounted to 418 million baht, an increase of 23%
from 2021, which was due to a decrease in rental discounts received for business premises as a result of the return to normal
circumstances after the closure of various store operations in shopping centers in 2020 and 2021, resulting in the Company having
to pay rent at normal rates in 2022, as well as an increase in other selling expenses that vary directly with sales revenue, such

as commissions and advertising expenses. However, comparing the ratio of selling expenses to revenue from sales and services, in
2022, the ratio was 15%, which was lower than the 17% ratio in 2021. In 2023, the Group had selling expenses of 466 million baht,
an increase of 11% from the previous year, which was the same rate of increase as the increase in sales revenue, and partly due
to the resumption of full-fledged sales promotion and marketing activities during the year, resulting in higher expenses in this
area. For 2027, selling and distribution expenses amounted to 532 million baht, an increase of 14% from the previous year, with
the increase being attributable to commissions, advertising, and sales promotion expenses, which were in line with the increase

in revenue from sales and services. As for the portion of expenses related to the rental of business premises, it increased in

line with the normal rate of increase in rent from shopping centers.

Administrative expenses consist of employee expenses and general administrative expenses. In 2022, administrative expenses were
173 million baht, a decrease of 7% from 2021. The majority of administrative expenses were employee expenses, depreciation, and
rental expenses for the head office and warehouse. During 2022, following the participation in the sustainability project, which

was led by the human resources department to provide knowledge and understanding to personnel within the organization, to
understand and jointly plan the cost-effective use of resources, including efforts to reduce unnecessary expenses, to enable
everyone in the organization to be a part of contributing to the group's lower administrative expenses. For 2023, administrative
expenses were 186 million baht, an increase of 8% from the previous year, partly due to the annual salary adjustment for
employees, including the importance of developing employee skills and abilities. During the year, training was provided to both
sales staff to enhance their work potential and to increase their knowledge and understanding of various products in order to be
able to support customers more effectively. For 2024, the group's administrative expenses were 202 million baht, an increase of
8% from the previous year. The majority of the increase was related to employee expenses, including annual salary adjustments, an
increase in annual bonuses to encourage employees after the COVID-19 situation, and an increase in employment to support the

expansion of branches and the company's business during the year.

Financial Costs

Finance costs are expenses related to various borrowings, such as interest on short-term and long-term loans. The Company had
finance costs in 2022, 2023, and 2027 of 11 million baht, 8 million baht, and 4 million baht, respectively, all of which were
interest expenses from lease liabilities under TFRS 16.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense consists of corporate income tax and deferred tax. For 2022, the Group had income tax expense of 11 million
baht, which increased from the previous year due to the Group's significantly improved overall operating results compared to

2021. In addition, in 2022, the Company utilized the benefit of brought forward accumulated losses, resulting in income tax
expense in 2023 being double that of 2022. In 2023, the Group had total income tax expense of 21 million baht. In 2027, as the
Group's profit before income tax increased, income tax expense amounted to 28 million baht, an increase of 31% from the previous

year.

Profit (loss)
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In 2022, due to the beginning of a return to normalcy following the COVID-19 outbreak, the Group had a net profit of 99 million
baht and total comprehensive income of 102 million baht. In 2023, the Group had a net profit of 82 million baht. In 2027, the
Group had a total net profit of 106 million baht.

Financial position analysis

Assets

The Company's total assets during the years 2022 to 2027 were 2,655 million baht, 2,586 million baht, and 2,633 million baht,
respectively. As the Group's core business is retail, with more than 150 retail stores nationwide, more than 30% of total assets

are merchandise held to meet the diverse needs of consumers. In 2022, the Group's total assets amounted to 2,655 million baht, a
decrease of 63 million baht or 2% from 2021, due to a decrease in right-of-use assets, which decreased in line with the

calculation of depreciation for the year. In 2023, the Group's total assets decreased by 69 million baht, or 3%, compared to

2022, due to a decrease in right-of-use assets, which decreased from depreciation for the year, similar to 2022. For 2027, the
Group's total assets increased by 2% from the previous year, with total assets of 2,633 million baht.

Cash and cash equivalents

At the end of 2022, cash and cash equivalents were 254 million baht, a decrease of 35% from 2021, due to the fact that business
operations began to return to normal during the year, resulting in higher purchases of goods to support sales, as well as the use
of some cash to invest in debt instruments with banks in the amount of 205 million baht. At the end of 2023, cash and cash
equivalents were 169 million baht, a decrease of 33% from 2022, due to the purchase and reservation of inventory during the year
to support the increased demand for goods. At the end of 2024, the group had cash and cash equivalents of 206 million baht, an
increase of 22% from the previous year, partly because during the year, a fixed deposit of 405 million baht matured and the

company decided to use it for working capital.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables consist of receivables from the sale of goods, the majority of which are banks that own credit card
swipe machines, accounting for 31%, receivables from sales promotions from business partners, accounting for 68%, and the
remaining 1% being accrued interest and other receivables, which had an outstanding balance as of December 31, 2022 of 66 million
baht, representing 3% of the Group's total assets, an increase of 45% from the previous year. The increase was mainly due to an
increase in trade receivables and prepaid expenses for goods. During the year, the Company received full payment from a debtor
for sales promotion receivables, which had been in litigation since 2022, for which an allowance for doubtful accounts of 10
million baht had been provided. Therefore, during 2022, there was a reversal of this provision, which was one of the factors
contributing to the increase in trade and other receivables from the previous year. For 2023, trade and other receivables
outstanding amounted to 91 million baht, an increase of 25 million baht or 37% from 2022, due to the launch of new popular
products at the end of the year, resulting in pre-orders and prepayments for goods to overseas manufacturers, as well as an
increase in sales promotion revenue during the year, especially in the latter part of the year, which is a period of high order
volume, resulting in an increase in the Group's sales promotion receivables outstanding at the end of 2023. For 2027, the Group
had total trade and other receivables of 101 million baht, an increase of 10% from the previous year, due to an increase in both
trade receivables from credit card sales and sales promotion receivables during the year, which was in line with the increase in

sales and other income.

Inventories

Inventories are the Company's main assets. As of December 31, 2022, the Group had inventories of 802 million baht, an increase of
11% from 2021, due to the business beginning to return to normal and the increase in drone inventory to meet the increasing
demand for the product. Almost all of the products imported by the Company for sale are purchased from leading manufacturers or
distributors in the country, who have been granted the right to sell them legally. In addition, the products are guaranteed by

the manufacturers and distributors, which makes the Company's products highly reliable among consumers. For 2023, the Group had
inventories of 995 million baht, an increase of 193 million baht or 24% from 2022, due to the increasing demand for products in

the country and the easing of the chipset shortage, which is a key component in the production of electronic devices, in late

2023, allowing imaging equipment manufacturers to deliver more products during the year. In 2027, the Group had inventories of

1,365 million baht, or 52% of total assets, which is in line with the nature of the retail business, which requires the purchase
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of goods to support sales in all branches. On average, each of the Company's stores will have a total inventory value of
approximately 7 million baht, depending on the size of the store and its location. In addition, the products offered for sale in
each store may vary depending on the diverse needs of customers in each region. Overall, inventories increased by 37% or 370

million baht from the previous year.

Other current assets

These are prepaid expenses, deposits, input VAT that can be used in the future, and withholding tax. As of December 31, 2022, the
balance was 42 million baht. In 2023, the balance was 62 million baht, an increase from the previous year due to deposits for

goods purchased by a subsidiary from abroad. In 2024, the balance was 73 million baht.

Restricted deposits

Fixed deposits with financial institutions are used to guarantee credit lines used to finance the business and to issue bank
guarantees. As of December 31, 2022, 2023, and 2024, the amount was 120 million baht.

Buildings and Equipment

The Group's buildings and equipment consist of buildings used to accommodate sales staff from various branches who rotate to the
head office for training throughout the year, office and branch decorations, vehicles, photo developing and printing machines,
computers, and office equipment, which had a net book value as of December 31, 2023 of 114 million baht, an increase of 17
million baht from the previous year. This increase was due to the expansion of 5 new branches during the year, as well as the
decoration of the subsidiary's permanent office building to accommodate the operations and serve as a repair center for OM System
products, for which the subsidiary was granted the right to operate. As of December 31, 2027, the Company had buildings and
equipment with a net book value of 126 million baht, an increase of 12 million baht from the previous year, which was in line

with the increase in the number of branches during the year.

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets arose from the adoption of TFRS 16 during the year 2020. As of January 1, 2020, the value of lease payments

over the lease term for office space at the head office and branches was calculated to be 1,098 million baht as right-of-use

assets and 1,012 million baht as lease liabilities. Right-of-use assets will be gradually adjusted to depreciation from the right

of use. As of December 31, 2022, the outstanding balance was 569 million baht. As of December 31, 2023, the outstanding balance
was 413 million baht. As of December 31, 2027, the outstanding balance was 409 million baht. The changes were due to the increase

in the number of branches, contract terminations, and depreciation during the year. Intangible assets

Intangible assets consist of computer software and management service rights. As of December 31, 2022, the amount was 26 million
baht. As of December 31, 2023, the amount was 37 million baht, an increase from the previous year, as during the year, the
Company decided to invest in an Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) software package to support both sales and management
operations in order to be able to prepare data used in management more efficiently, as well as to further invest in the

subsidiary's website to support the offering of printed image products. As of December 31, 2027, the amount was 42 million baht,
an increase of approximately 5 million baht from the previous year, partly due to the acquisition of the right to manage

additional AIS and Telewiz stores during the year.

Deferred Tax Assets

This is a tax benefit that can be used to reduce future tax payments. It arises from differences between accounting income or
expenses and tax income or expenses, which have different criteria for consideration. The Company's deferred tax assets arose
from tax benefits from the allowance for inventory obsolescence, long-term employee benefit provisions, purchase discounts, the
estimated allowance for expected credit losses on receivables, and the impairment loss on assets. As of December 31, 2022, the
balance was 66 million baht. As of December 31, 2023, the balance was 66 million baht. As of December 31, 2027, the balance was
73 million baht. This was partly due to changes in the estimates of the allowance for inventory obsolescence, purchase discounts,

the estimated allowance for impairment of assets, and the estimated employee benefit liability.

Other Non-Current Assets
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These are mainly security deposits related to the lease of branch premises, which will be refunded upon the return of the
premises to the shopping center. As of December 31, 2022, the amount was 106 million baht. As of December 31, 2023, the amount
was 113 million baht. As of December 31, 2027, the amount was 119 million baht. The increase or decrease was a result of changes

in the number of branches during the year.

Sources of funds

Capital structure

The Company's debt-to-equity ratio was 0.54, 0.49, and 0.48 times in 2022, 2023, and 2027, respectively. Almost all of the total
liabilities are non-interest-bearing liabilities, which include trade payables, accrued income taxes, and employee benefit

provisions, except for lease liabilities calculated in accordance with the relevant financial reporting standards.

Trade and other receivables

More than 80% of trade and other payables are trade payables from the purchase of goods for sale, with an average repayment

period of approximately 60-180 days. The remainder is accrued expenses, which consist of rent, service fees, and utility bills.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities arose from the adoption of TFRS 16 during the year 2020. As of January 1, 2020, the value of lease payments
over the lease term for office space at the head office and branches was calculated to be 1,098 million baht as right-of-use
assets and 1,012 million baht as lease liabilities. Lease liabilities will decrease as lease payments are made to the lessor. As

of December 31, 2022, 2023, and 2027, the outstanding balances were 526 million baht, 378 million baht, and 375 million baht,
respectively. The changes were in line with the lease payments made in accordance with the payment schedule agreed with the
lessor.

Other current liabilities

This consists of employee deposits and performance guarantees, social security, withholding tax, and sales tax payable to the
Revenue Department. As of December 31, 2022, the outstanding balance was 7 million baht. As of December 31, 2023, the outstanding
balance was 6 million baht. As of December 31, 2027, the outstanding balance was 6 million baht.

Employee benefit provisions

This is a provision for benefits that the Company is required to pay to employees if they work until the retirement age
stipulated by labor law. It is an estimate of the liability estimated under actuarial principles. As of December 31, 2022, the
Group had a total provision for employee benefits of 49 million baht. As of December 31, 2023, the provision for employee

benefits was 56 million baht. As of December 31, 2027, the provision for employee benefits was 63 million baht.

Shareholders' equity

Registered capital

Currently, the Company has a registered and paid-up capital of 3,528,878,800 ordinary shares with a par value of 0.10 baht per
share, totaling 352,887,880 baht.

Liquidity and cash flow

In 2022, the group had cash flow from operating activities of 315 million baht, a decrease of 33% from the previous year, due to
the fact that various operations began to return to normal, resulting in higher purchases of goods to support sales. Cash flow
used in investing activities was 250 million baht, which was used to invest in debt instruments of a bank in addition to the
previous year, as well as to invest in ERP software to support both sales and administrative operations. Overall, the group had a

decrease in cash and cash equivalents of 138 million baht.
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In 2023, the group had cash flow from operating activities of 188 million baht, a decrease of 40% from the previous year, due to
the higher volume of purchases of goods to support sales during the year. Cash received from investing activities was 40 million
baht from a decrease in investments in other current financial assets and investments in intangible assets in the form of
accounting software and websites to support sales for the printing business. Cash paid for financing activities was 309 million
baht, an increase of 52% from the previous year, due to the declaration of dividends to shareholders during the year according to
the resolution of the 2023 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in the amount of 70 million baht.

In 2027, the Group had negative cash flow from operations of 0.04 million baht. This was due to the fact that during the year,
there were increased purchases of goods to support higher sales due to higher demand during the year, and because some of the
imported goods were in a group of goods that had to be paid for in advance, the Group had to set aside more cash for this
purpose. Cash flow from investing activities amounted to 352 million baht, which was mainly due to the maturity of fixed deposits
during the year in the amount of 405 million baht. Cash flow used in financing activities was for the payment of dividends to

shareholders during the year in the amount of 53 million baht and for the payment of lease liabilities in accordance with TFRS 16.
Commitments and contingencies

As of December 31, 2027, the Company had bank guarantees outstanding in the Company's name in the amount of 47 million baht,
relating to certain normal operating obligations of the Company, a decrease of 15 million baht from the previous year due to the
fact that some customers waived the requirement for letters of guarantee for the purchase of goods because they were confident in
the Company's ability to make payments, and had obligations relating to the purchase of equipment and the installation of

computer software in the amount of 5 million baht.
Key financial ratios

Gross profit margin The overall increase in 2022 from 2021 was due to a decrease in sales promotions with product manufacturers
and network service providers to maintain consumer purchasing power during the COVID-19 pandemic, as the situation began to
return to normal. For 2023, the gross profit margin decreased from 2022, specifically in terms of gross profit from sales, due to

a decrease in the reversal of the allowance for obsolete inventory in 2023, which was significantly lower than in 2022, as the
Company increased its purchases to meet the increased demand for products during the year. For 2027, the decrease from 2023 was
partly due to the fact that some of the product groups sold had lower gross profit margins, and during the year, the allowance

for obsolete inventory was increased due to the increase in the quantity of inventories.

Net profit margin In 2022, as operations began to return to normal following the COVID-19 pandemic, the Company began to return
to profitability, with a net profit margin of 3.5%, and in 2023, the Group had a net profit margin of 2.6% and an increased net
profit margin of 2.71% in 2027.

Debt-to-equity ratio In the past year, the Company has maintained its policy of primarily using internal sources of funds for
expenditures in order to reduce borrowing rates and interest rates. Excluding lease liabilities under TFRS 16, almost all of the
Company's liabilities are non-interest-bearing liabilities, which include trade payables, accrued income taxes, and employee

benefit provisions.

Issuance of debt securities with an obligation to maintain financial ratios

Is there an issuance of debt securities with an obligation : No

to maintain financial ratios?
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4.2 Potential factors or incidents that may materially affect the financial
condition or the operating results

Significant factors or incidents that may materially affect the future financial condition or the

operating results

Currently, the photographic equipment retail business is highly competitive, both from existing operators and new entrants who

are increasingly competing in the business. The competitors include medium-sized companies with registered capital not exceeding
10 million baht or small companies located in various locations in major provinces across the country, causing the company to

face high competition and may affect operating results. In addition, Big Camera is at risk from competitors in the industry who

may sell substitute products, such as second-hand goods, tax-avoidance goods, or illegal goods. These substitute products are
cheap, giving consumers more choices. During an economic downturn, this may cause consumers to switch to buying more substitute

products, putting Big Camera at risk from declining sales, which will negatively affect profitability.

However, the company expects that the risk from this issue will not be significant. This is due to several key limitations for

new entrants in the photographic equipment retail business. These include the lack of bargaining power with various distributors
(Brand Suppliers) in terms of trade discounts, credit limits, and payment terms. This is because the purchase volume of new
entrants is relatively low compared to Big Camera. In the case of concerns that businesses related to the photographic equipment
retail business, such as second-hand camera businesses, related equipment businesses, such as photo printing centers, will enter
the photographic equipment retail business, the company expects that new entrants may not enter the retail business due to
unfamiliarity with market conditions, the inability to find a suitable location, and the lack of effective bargaining power with
distributors. In addition, the company also has a wide range of products and services to meet the needs of all customer groups.
There are branches nationwide, including online channels, and collaboration with manufacturers in organizing continuous sales
promotions. As well as training sales staff to have a good understanding of the products, which will be a driving force, creating

a good image for Big Camera stores. In addition, with the experience of executives in retail for more than 20 years, they can
manage branches efficiently and have a deep understanding of the retail and camera businesses, enabling the company to adapt well
to competitive conditions. And remains a leader in the photographic equipment retail business to the present, including always

having good inventory management, which is very important in the retail business.
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4.3 Information from financial statements and

Information from financial statements

Summary of financial position statements

significant financial ratios

THB

31 Dec 2022

31 Dec 2023

31 Dec 2024

Consolidate

Consolidate

Consolidate

AUDITED AUDITED AUDITED
Assets
Cash And Cash Equivalents 253,680.51 169,004.65 205,954.15
(ThousandTHB)
Trade And Other Receivables - 89,389.40 126,819.88 100,507.00
Current - Net
(ThousandTHB)
Inventories - Net 802,269.42 995,489.28 1,365,441.60
(ThousandTHB)
Other Current Assets 18,772.47 26,499.29 72,524.47
(ThousandTHB)
Other Current Assets - 18,772.47 26,499.29 72,524.47
Others
(ThousandTHB)
Total Current Assets 1,670,879.34 1,723,151.38 1,744,427.22
(ThousandTHB)
Restricted Deposits - Non- 120,175.00 120,175.00 120,175.00
Current
(ThousandTHB)
Property, Plant And Equipment 96,430.33 113,922.08 125,686.35
- Net
(ThousandTHB)
Right-Of-Use Assets - Net 569,370.58 412,634.32 408,770.77
(ThousandTHB)
Intangible Assets - Net 26,377.80 36,761.75 41,828.25
(ThousandTHB)
Intangible Assets - Others 26,377.80 36,761.75 41,828.25
(ThousandTHB)
Deferred Tax Assets 65,619.51 66,196.15 73,151.75
(ThousandTHB)
Other Non-Current Assets 105,832.88 112,765.00 118,879.82
(ThousandTHB)
Other Non-Current Assets - 105,832.88 112,765.00 118,879.82
Others
(ThousandTHB)
Total Non-Current Assets 983,806.09 862,454.30 888,491.94

(ThousandTHB)
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THB

31 Dec 2022

31 Dec 2023

31 Dec 2024

Consolidate

Consolidate

Consolidate

AUDITED AUDITED AUDITED
Total Assets 2,654,685.43 2,585,605.67 2,632,919.16
(ThousandTHB)
Liabilities
Trade And Other Payables - 340,501.42 397,502.58 380,417.83
Current
(ThousandTHB)
Current Portion Of Lease 211,806.53 206,995.76 196,198.56
Liabilities
(ThousandTHB)
Income Tax Payable 6,376.06 9,951.33 17,520.09
(ThousandTHB)
Other Current Liabilities 6,513.76 6,267.34 6,133.57
(ThousandTHB)
Total Current Liabilities 565,197.77 620,717.01 600,270.05
(ThousandTHB)
Non-Current Portion Of Lease 313,845.96 170,505.63 178,396.11
Liabilities
(ThousandTHB)
Long-Term Provisions 8,440.24 8,612.89 8,933.76
(ThousandTHB)
Provisions For Employee 48,548.85 55,761.35 62,537.81
Benefit Obligations - Non-
Current
(ThousandTHB)
Total Non-Current Liabilities 370,835.05 234,879.87 249,867.68
(ThousandTHB)
Total Liabilities 936,032.82 855,596.87 850,137.73

(ThousandTHB)
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THB

31 Dec 2022

31 Dec 2023

31 Dec 2024

Consolidate

Consolidate

Consolidate

AUDITED AUDITED AUDITED
Shareholders' equity
Authorised Share Capital 352,887.88 352,887.88 352,887.88
(ThousandTHB)
Authorised Ordinary Shares 352,887.88 352,887.88 352,887.88
(ThousandTHB)
Issued And Paid-Up Share 352,887.88 352,887.88 352,887.88
Capital
(ThousandTHB)
Paid-Up Ordinary Shares 352,887.88 352,887.88 352,887.88
(ThousandTHB)
Retained Earnings (Deficits) 1,365,764.73 1,377,120.92 1,429,893.55
(ThousandTHB)
Retained Earnings - 35,288.79 35,288.79 35,288.79
Appropriated
(ThousandTHB)
Legal And Statutory 35,288.79 35,288.79 35,288.79
Reserves
(ThousandTHB)
Retained Earnings 1,330,475.95 1,341,832.13 1,394,604.76
(Deficits) - Unappropriated
(ThousandTHB)
Equity Attributable To Owners 1,718,652.61 1,730,008.80 1,782,781.43
Of The Parent
(ThousandTHB)
Total Equity 1,718,652.61 1,730,008.80 1,782,781.43
(ThousandTHB)
Total Liabilities And Equity 2,654,685.43 2,585,605.67 2,632,919.16

(ThousandTHB)
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Summary of income statement

THB

31 Dec 2022

31 Dec 2023

31 Dec 2024

Consolidate

Consolidate

Consolidate

AUDITED AUDITED AUDITED
Statement of Comprehensive Income
Revenue From Operations 2,754,571.57 3,046,594.93 3,778,069.30
(ThousandTHB)
Revenue From Sales 2,679,019.85 2,958,119.21 3,684,886.41
(ThousandTHB)
Revenue From Rendering 75,551.72 88,475.72 93,182.89
Services
(ThousandTHB)
Other Income 75,680.43 108,569.96 116,062.26
(ThousandTHB)
Total Revenue 2,830,252.00 3,155,164.89 3,894,131.56
(ThousandTHB)
Costs 2,117,679.69 2,391,848.74 3,021,691.39
(ThousandTHB)
Cost Of Sales 2,080,046.46 2,358,383.31 2,994,894.18
(ThousandTHB)
Cost Of Rendering Services 37,633.23 33,465.43 26,797.22
(ThousandTHB)
Selling And Administrative 591,354.08 652,078.42 734,598.63
Expenses
(ThousandTHB)
Selling Expenses 418,243.29 465,851.05 532,259.92
(ThousandTHB)
Administrative Expenses 173,110.79 186,227.37 202,338.71
(ThousandTHB)
Total Cost And Expenses 2,709,033.77 3,043,927.15 3,756,290.02
(ThousandTHB)
Profit (Loss) Before Finance 121,218.24 111,237.73 137,841.54
Costs And Income Tax Expense
(ThousandTHB)
Finance Costs 11,305.19 8,258.12 4,494.09
(ThousandTHB)
Income Tax Expense 10,798.76 21,046.75 27,642.31
(ThousandTHB)
Profit (Loss) For The Period 99,114.29 81,932.86 105,705.13
From Continuing Operations
(ThousandTHB)
Net Profit (Loss) For The 99,114.29 81,932.86 105,705.13

Period

(ThousandTHB)
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THB

31 Dec 2022

31 Dec 2023

31 Dec 2024

Consolidate

Consolidate

Consolidate

AUDITED

AUDITED

AUDITED

Net Profit (Loss) For The
Period / Profit (Loss) For
The Period From Continuing
Operations

(ThousandTHB)

99,114.29

81,932.86

105,705.13

Total Comprehensive Income
(Expense) For The Period

(ThousandTHB)

101,525.57

81,932.86

105,705.13

Net Profit (Loss)
Attributable To : Owners Of
The Parent

(ThousandTHB)

99,114.29

81,932.86

105,705.13

Total Comprehensive Income
(Expense) Attributable To :
Owners Of The Parent

(ThousandTHB)

101,525.57

81,932.86

105,705.13

Basic Earnings (Loss) Per
Share (Baht/Share)

(ThousandTHB)

0.03

0.03

EBITDA

(ThousandTHB)

418,592.32

400,460.36

436,682.05

Operating Profit
(ThousandTHB)

45,537.80

2,667.78

21,779.28

Normalize Profit

(ThousandTHB)

99,114.29

81,932.86

105,705.13
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Summary of cash flow statement

THB

31 Dec 2022

31 Dec 2023

31 Dec 2024

Consolidate

Consolidate

Consolidate

AUDITED AUDITED AUDITED
Cash flow statement
Profit (Loss) Before Finance 109,913.05 102,979.61 133,347.44
Costs And/Or Income Tax
Expense
(ThousandTHB)
Depreciation And Amortisation 297,374.08 289,222.62 298,840.51
(ThousandTHB)
Depreciation 249,543.00 250,287.57 259,369.71
(ThousandTHB)
(Reversal Of) Expected Credit -8,973.14 -605.76 -1,331.04
Losses
(ThousandTHB)
(Reversal Of) Loss From -30,571.01 -3,906.73 11,551.39
Diminution In Value Of
Inventories
(ThousandTHB)
(Gains) Losses On Disposal 2,277.48 338.37 -1,905.06
And Write-Off Of Fixed Assets
(ThousandTHB)
(Reversal Of) Impairment Loss -1,615.71 400.57 -418.05
Of Fixed Assets
(ThousandTHB)
Dividend And Interest Income -7,080.46 -10,411.69 -6,454.88
(ThousandTHB)
Interest Income -7,080.46 -10,411.69 -6,454.88
(ThousandTHB)
Finance Costs 11,305.19 8,258.12 4,494.09
(ThousandTHB)
Employee Benefit Expenses 6,338.22 7,212.50 8,007.66
(ThousandTHB)
Other Reconciliation Items -42,997.94 -11,769.82 -363.86
(ThousandTHB)
Cash Flows From (Used In) 335,969.76 381,717.80 445,768.22
Operations Before Changes In
Operating Assets And
Liabilities
(ThousandTHB)
(Increase) Decrease In Trade -18,735.49 -36,508.80 -7,956.01

And Other Receivables

(ThousandTHB)
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THB

31 Dec 2022

31 Dec 2023

31 Dec 2024

Consolidate

Consolidate

Consolidate

AUDITED AUDITED AUDITED
(Increase) Decrease In -46,178.09 -189,313.14 -381,503.70
Inventories
(ThousandTHB)
(Increase) Decrease In Other 10,723.49 -14,531.44 -16,279.36
Operating Assets
(ThousandTHB)
Increase (Decrease) In Trade 39,616.06 56,527.30 -17,825.63
And Other Payables
(ThousandTHB)
Increase (Decrease) In -493.33 N/A -1,231.20
Provisions For Employee
Benefit Obligations
(ThousandTHB)
Increase (Decrease) In Other -5,004.45 -335.74 -178.40
Operating Liabilities
(ThousandTHB)
Cash Generated From (Used In) 315,897.93 197,555.99 20,793.92
Operations
(ThousandTHB)
Interest Received 4,734.54 8,542.02 6,257.83
(ThousandTHB)
Income Tax (Paid) Received -6,033.55 -18,175.62 -27,092.83
(ThousandTHB)
Net Cash From (Used In) 314,598.84 187,922.39 -41.08
Operating Activities
(ThousandTHB)
Proceeds From Disposal Of 961.91 1,463.51 5,039.98
Fixed Assets
(ThousandTHB)
Property, Plant And 961.91 1,463.51 5,039.98
Equipment
(ThousandTHB)
Payment For Purchase Of Fixed -48,016.37 -68,539.34 -58,277.56
Assets
(ThousandTHB)
Property, Plant And -35,265.80 -53,551.66 -47,077.78
Equipment
(ThousandTHB)
Intangible Assets -12,750.58 -14,987.67 -11,199.78
(ThousandTHB)
Other Items (Investing N/A 102,983.02 405,338.28

Activities)

(ThousandTHB)
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THB

31 Dec 2022

31 Dec 2023

31 Dec 2024

Consolidate

Consolidate

Consolidate

AUDITED AUDITED AUDITED
Net Cash From (Used In) -250,242.94 35,907.19 352,100.70
Investing Activities
(ThousandTHB)
Repayments On Lease N/A -229,903.19 -257,920.05
Liabilities
(ThousandTHB)
Dividend Paid N/A -70,487.36 -52,887.87
(ThousandTHB)
Interest Paid N/A -8,114.89 -4,302.20
(ThousandTHB)
Net Cash From (Used In) -202,769.88 -308,505.44 -315,110.12
Financing Activities
(ThousandTHB)
Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash -138,413.98 -84,675.86 36,949.51
And Cash Equivalent
(ThousandTHB)
Cash And Cash Equivalents, 392,094.48 253,680.51 169,004.65
Beginning Balance
(ThousandTHB)
Cash And Cash Equivalents, 253,680.51 169,004.65 205,954.15

Ending Balance

(ThousandTHB)
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Key financial ratios

2022 2023 2024
Liquidity ratio
Current ratio 2.96 2.78 291
(times)
Quick ratio 0.61 0.42 0.51
(times)
Cash flow liquidity ratio 0.57 14.28 0.00
(times)
Average account recievable turnover 126.91 113.59 129.47
(times)
Average collection period 3.00 3.00 3.00
(days)
Average finish goods turnover period N/A N/A N/A
(days)
Average inventory turnover 2.72 2.62 2.54
(times)
Average inventory turnover period 132.00 137.00 142.00
(days)
Average account payable turnover 8.41 7.86 9.17
(times)
Average payment period 43.00 46.00 39.00
(days)
Average cash cycle 92.00 94.00 106.00
(days)
Profitability ratio
Gross profit margin 25.18 24.19 22.41
%)
Operating margin 12.20 12.53 11.80
(%)
Other income to total income N/A N/A N/A
%)
Cash from operation to operating profit 93.64 49.23 0.01
%)
Net profit margin 3.50 2.60 271
%)
Return on equity (ROE) 5.94 4.75 6.02
%)
Financial policy ratio
Total debts to total equity 0.54 0.49 0.48
(times)
Interest coverage ratio 29.55 26.43 7.29

(times)
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2022 2023 2024
Interest bearing debt to EBITDA ratio N/A N/A N/A
(times)
Debt service coverage ratio 1.31 0.51 0.00
(times)
Dividend payout ratio 89.00 90.00 55.00
%)
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5. General information and other material facts

5.1 General information
General information

Securities registrar
Name of securities registrar
Address/location
Subdistrict
District
Province
Postcode
Telephone

Facsimile number

Auditing firm
Name of auditing firm*

Address/location

Subdistrict
District

Province
Postcode
Telephone
Facsimile number
List of auditors

License number

Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd.
93 Ratchadaphisek Road

Din Daeng

Din Daeng

Bangkok

10400

02-009-9000

02-009-9991

EY OFFICE LIMITED

33RD FLOOR, LAKE RAJADA OFFICE COMPLEX, 193/136-137
RAJADAPISEK ROAD

KHLONG TOEI

KHLONG TOElI

Bangkok

10110

+66 2264 9090

+66 2264 0789-90

Miss KRONGKAEW LIMKITTIKUL

5874
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5.2 Other material facts

5.2.1 Other information that may significantly influence investors' decision making

Other information that may influence investors' decision : No

making

5.2.2 Restrictions of foreign shareholders

Are there restrictions on foreign shareholders? : No
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5.3 Legal disputes

Legal disputes

Is there any legal dispute? : No
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5.4 Secondary market
Secondary market

Has the company's security been listed on a stock exchangein  :  No

another country?
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5.5 Financial institution with regular contact (in case of debt securities offeror)

Financial institution with regular contact

Are there any debt securities offered? :  No
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6. Corporate governance policy

6.1 Overview of the policy and guidelines

Overview of the policy and guidelines

Corporate governance policy and guidelines :  Yes

Overview of Corporate Governance Policies and Practices

BIG Camera Corporation Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries are committed to operating under good corporate governance
principles, the best practices for listed companies, and the rules, regulations, and guidelines of the Stock Exchange of Thailand

and the Securities and Exchange Commission. This commitment aims to foster sustainable organizational growth and ensure ethical
business practices in accordance with the law. The company upholds ethical and moral principles in its business dealings,
maintains transparency in information disclosure, develops internal control systems, implements effective and appropriate audit
mechanisms, and operates with a sense of responsibility towards shareholders, investors, and all stakeholders. The company has
established operational procedures that demonstrate its capabilities and responsibilities in various areas, aligning with best

practice frameworks and the company's good corporate governance policy.

To promote good corporate governance and to serve as good practice guidelines for directors, executives, and employees within the
organization, both of the company and its subsidiaries, and all stakeholders, leading to a truly sustainable organization, the

Board of Directors has reviewed and approved the company's vision, mission, strategies, goals, and business direction. This

includes reviewing the company's key policies to ensure they are appropriate, consistent with good corporate governance

principles, and relevant to the current situation. The company discloses its corporate governance policies and practices,

including a code of business conduct that reflects its business practices, as follows:
Policy and Practices Regarding the Board of Directors
1. Board of Directors

The Board of Directors plays a crucial role in corporate governance and is accountable to shareholders for the performance of its
duties. The Board of Directors comprises directors with knowledge, abilities, and experience in business operations as required

by the company. They must possess the qualifications and not be disqualified under the Public Limited Companies Act and other
relevant laws. Their responsibilities include setting policies, vision, strategies, objectives, missions, business plans, and

budgets for the company. They oversee the management to ensure operations align with established policies effectively, within the
framework of laws, objectives, articles of association, resolutions of the Board of Directors, and resolutions of the

shareholders' meeting. They operate with responsibility, honesty, integrity, and prudence, adhering to good corporate governance

principles to maximize economic value for the business and ensure maximum security for shareholders.

The Board of Directors is crucial to the company's good corporate governance. It must comprise individuals with knowledge,
expertise, and experience that can greatly benefit the company. They must be dedicated and fully committed to fulfilling their
responsibilities. Therefore, the Board of Directors has established the following important composition, qualifications, and

appointment procedures for the Board of Directors:

Components

The Board of Directors consists of no less than 5 but no more than 15 directors, with independent directors comprising no less
than 1/3 of the total number of directors, which must be no less than 3 persons. Independent directors are individuals who meet
the qualifications stipulated in the relevant notifications of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of
Thailand. At least one director must possess knowledge and expertise in accounting and finance. At least half of the total number

of directors must reside in Thailand.

Qualifications of the Board of Directors
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1) Each director can perform his/her duties and exercise his/her independent judgment in considering and deciding on various
matters. They can ask questions, express opinions, or object in the event of a disagreement on matters that affect the interests
of shareholders or stakeholders without being under the influence of any group of persons.

2) Be experts in various fields to combine knowledge and abilities that are beneficial to the company's business operations.
3) Possess the qualifications and not possess any prohibited characteristics as stipulated in the Public Limited Company Act, the
Act on Criteria and Qualifications for Directors, the Company's Articles of Association, and other relevant laws, including the

regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

4) Perform duties with honesty, integrity, and ethics within the framework of the law, as well as good corporate governance

guidelines and business ethics.

5) Be responsible for performing their duties as directors and be able to dedicate sufficient time to fulfill their

responsibilities to the company. They must also be accountable to shareholders consistently and make decisions with prudence to
safeguard the best interests of the company.

Term of Office of the Board of Directors

At each Annual General Meeting, one-third (1/3) of the directors shall retire by rotation. If the number of directors to retire

by rotation is not divisible by three (3), the number closest to one-third (1/3) shall retire. In the first and second years, the
directors whose terms are to expire shall determine by lot who shall retire. In the third year, the director who has held office

the longest shall retire. The retiring directors may be re-elected at the shareholders' meeting.
The term of office for an independent director of the company shall not exceed 9 consecutive years from the date of their initial
appointment as an independent director. In the event that the company needs to reappoint an independent director for a term
exceeding 9 years, the company will provide justification and the necessity for considering the reappointment of that particular
independent director.

In addition to retirement by rotation, a director shall cease to hold office upon

1. Death

2. Resignation

3. Lack qualifications or possess prohibited characteristics as stipulated by law.

4. The shareholders' meeting resolves to remove a director by a vote of not less than three-fourths of the votes of the
shareholders present at the meeting and entitled to vote, representing not less than one-half of the total number of shares held
by the shareholders present at the meeting and entitled to vote.

5. Court order for removal.

In the event of a vacancy on the Board of Directors for reasons other than the expiration of a term, the Board of Directors shall
elect a qualified individual who does not possess any prohibited characteristics as stipulated in Section 68 of the Public

Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535 to serve as a replacement director at the next Board of Directors meeting, unless the remaining
term of the vacating director is less than two months. The replacement director shall serve only for the remainder of the term of
the director they are replacing.

Election/Appointment of the Board of Directors

1) The election of directors to replace directors who retire by rotation must be approved by the shareholders' meeting.

2) The election of directors must be transparent and clear, with nominations for directors accompanied by sufficient background
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information for decision-making through the Board of Directors. This process considers knowledge, abilities, expertise,
experience, a good work history, a broad vision, ethics, the ability to dedicate sufficient time to the company, and diligence in
performing duties responsibly for the benefit of the company's business operations. The Board of Directors will then propose the
nominations to the shareholders' meeting for approval.

3) Appointment of Directors During the Term Due to a Vacancy: The Board of Directors may consider and select a suitable candidate

to fill the vacancy and present the nomination to the shareholders' meeting for approval.

4) In the election of directors, the company will consider diversity in the board structure to determine the qualifications of
the directors to be recruited. This will be based on the necessary skills that are lacking, as well as appropriate qualifications
that align with the composition and structure of the board according to the company's business strategy plan. There will be no

discrimination based on gender, age, ethnicity, religion, or other differences.

Roles, Responsibilities, and Liabilities of the Board of Directors

Role
The Board of Directors is the leader in setting the direction, goals, and business policies and is responsible for monitoring the
performance of management by empowering management to operate in accordance with the goals. However, operations on important

matters must be approved by the Board of Directors first.

The company requires the Board of Directors to comply with the Code of Best Practices for Directors of Listed Companies, as
outlined by the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The Board of Directors must understand and be aware of their roles, responsibilities,
and liabilities in overseeing the company's operations in accordance with laws, objectives, company regulations, resolutions of
the shareholders' meeting, and prioritize the interests of the company and its shareholders. The Board of Directors takes the
lead in setting strategic directions, business policies, and monitoring the management's performance. They delegate authority to
the management to operate in accordance with the objectives. However, significant operations require prior approval from the
Board of Directors.

Responsibilities

1) The Board of Directors shall ensure that there is a clear separation of duties and responsibilities between the Board of

Directors and the management as stipulated in the Company's Articles of Association and that there is a balance of power in the
operations. The Board of Directors will be responsible for setting policies and overseeing the management's performance at the
policy level, while the management will be responsible for managing the Company's operations in various areas in accordance with

the policies set.

2) The Board of Directors is responsible for setting the vision, mission, and key policies, monitoring the performance of

management, and ensuring that there are appropriate internal control and risk management processes in place.

3) Oversee good corporate governance and ensure that there is communication on various matters with stakeholders and the public,

as well as promote cooperation for the ultimate and sustainable benefit.

4) Monitor and ensure the implementation of the company's strategies. During the quarterly Board of Directors meetings, the Board

will monitor the performance of the management team. The management team is required to report on the company's operational and
financial performance, particularly in terms of financial targets and various work plans, to ensure alignment with the company's
established strategies.

5) The Board of Directors has the duty to report to the Company any conflict of interest of the directors or related persons that
is related to the management of the Company or its subsidiaries, and to report any changes in such conflict of interest by
completing the details of the conflict of interest of the directors and related persons in the Directors' Conflict of Interest
Report Form in accordance with the criteria set by the Capital Market Supervisory Board and submitting it to the Company
Secretary for compilation.

6) Appoint various subcommittees to assist in overseeing the company's operations. Each director can perform their duties and
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exercise independent judgment in making decisions on various matters. They can raise questions, express opinions, or object in

cases of conflicting views on matters that affect the interests of shareholders or stakeholders.

Scope of Authority and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

1. Perform duties using knowledge, abilities, and experience to benefit the Company's business operations in accordance with the
law, the Company's objectives, the Company's Articles of Association, and resolutions of the shareholders' meeting, with care and

honesty, to protect the interests of the Company and be accountable to shareholders.

2. Consider, determine details, and approve the vision, business strategies, business direction, business policies, goals,
operational plans, and budgets of the Company and its subsidiaries as prepared by the Chief Executive Officer and management.

3. Supervise the management and performance of the Chief Executive Officer, the management team, or any individuals assigned to

perform such duties, to ensure alignment with the policies established by the Board of Directors.

4. Continuously monitor the performance and strategies of the company and its subsidiaries to ensure alignment with the company's
operational plans and budget.

5. Ensure that the company and its subsidiaries utilize appropriate and efficient accounting systems, including the establishment

of internal control and internal audit systems.

6. Prepare the financial statements at the end of the company's fiscal year and sign to certify such statements for presentation
to the shareholders' meeting at the Annual General Meeting for approval.

7. Consider and approve the selection and proposed appointment of auditors and determine appropriate remuneration as presented by

the Audit Committee before presenting it to the shareholders' meeting at the Annual General Meeting for approval.

8. Establish a written policy on corporate governance based on good governance principles and effectively implement such policy
to ensure that the Company is accountable to all stakeholders fairly.

9. Consider and approve the appointment of individuals who meet the qualifications and do not possess any prohibited
characteristics as stipulated in the Public Limited Company Act B.E. 2535 (including amendments), the Securities and Exchange Act
B.E. 2535 (including amendments), as well as relevant notifications, regulations, and/or rules, to fill vacant director positions

that arise for reasons other than the expiration of their term. The Board will also consider and recommend the appointment of
directors to replace those whose terms have expired and determine director remuneration for presentation to the shareholders'

meeting for approval.

10. Appoint subcommittees, such as the Audit Committee, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Risk Management Committe
e,

the Corporate Governance Committee, or any other subcommittees, and define the authority and duties of such subcommittees to

assist and support the Board of Directors.

11. Consider, determine, and amend the names of directors who have the authority to bind the Company.

12. Consider the appointment of executives as defined by the Securities and Exchange Commission or the Capital Market Supervisory
Board, as well as the company secretary. Determine the remuneration of such executives as proposed by the Remuneration Committee.

13. Seek professional opinions from external organizations if necessary to make appropriate decisions.

14. Encourage directors and executives of the company to participate in relevant training programs and seminars offered by the

Thai Institute of Directors Association, focusing on their duties and responsibilities as directors and executives.

15. Appoint ad hoc subcommittees as deemed necessary and appropriate.

16. The Board of Directors may delegate authority to any person to act on one or more matters as it deems appropriate. Such
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delegation of authority shall not empower the delegate to approve any transaction in which they or any person who may have a
conflict of interest (as defined in the SEC Notification or the Capital Market Supervisory Board Notification), or have any

interest or benefit, or any other conflict of interest with the company or its subsidiaries, except for the approval of

transactions that are in accordance with the policies and criteria approved by the shareholders' meeting or the Board of
Directors.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board

1. Convene Board of Directors Meetings: Preside over Board of Directors meetings and shareholders' meetings, and play a role in
setting the meeting agenda in collaboration with the Chief Executive Officer.

2. Control the meeting to be efficient and in accordance with the Company's Articles of Association, supporting and providing

opportunities for directors to express their opinions independently.

3. Support and encourage the Board of Directors to perform their duties to the best of their ability, within the scope of their

authority, responsibilities, and good corporate governance principles.

4. Supervise, monitor, and manage the work of the Board of Directors and subcommittees to achieve their objectives.

5. Be the deciding vote in the event that the Board of Directors' meeting decides to take a majority vote and the votes are tied.
Roles and Responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer

1. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for overseeing the day-to-day operations and/or management of the company in
accordance with its business objectives. In managing the company's business, the Chief Executive Officer must comply with any
policies, regulations, or orders established by the Board of Directors.

2. Formulate and present the vision, business strategies, business direction, policies, objectives, guidelines, operational

plans, and budgets of the company and its subsidiaries to the Board of Directors. This is for the purpose of preparing such
matters for presentation to the Board of Directors, with the Chief Executive Officer participating in the consideration of these
matters with the Board.

3. Issue orders, regulations, announcements, and memoranda to ensure that the operations are in accordance with the policy.
4. Coordinate with executives and employees to implement policies and business directions received from the Board of Directors.
5. Have the authority to consider and approve only cases or actions that are in the ordinary course of business of the Company
within the annual budget or limit approved by the Board of Directors and the authority to act as prescribed. In carrying out any
of the foregoing actions, the Chief Executive Officer shall not incur any liabilities or obligations exceeding 30 million Baht

per contract. The liabilities or obligations shall include project financing that the Company has with any financial institution.

6. Consider and approve investments in securities, instruments, or deposits for the Company's accounts within the limits

authorized by the Board of Directors.

7. Consider investments in business expansion, including joint ventures with other business operators, and present them to the
Board of Directors for approval at the next meeting.

8. Approve significant capital expenditures as specified in the annual budget or as previously approved in principle by the Board

of Directors.

9. Oversee the work of employees to ensure compliance with policies, regulations, and good corporate governance practices in
business operations.

10. Promote the development of employee knowledge, abilities, and potential to enhance organizational capabilities.
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11. Consider the appointment of various advisors necessary for the Company's operations.

12. Approve the appointment, transfer, and termination of employees and executives of the Company.

13. Negotiate, consider, and review documents and contracts related to the company's normal operations. Provide advice and

suggestions on such matters for the Board of Directors and/or responsible parties to consider and reach a conclusion.

14. Consider and approve related party transactions that are on normal commercial terms, such as the purchase and sale of goods
at market prices, charging service fees at normal rates, and providing credit terms similar to those offered to general

customers, under the policy approved by the Board of Directors.

15. Conduct other tasks as assigned by the Board of Directors on a case-by-case basis. The Chief Executive Officer does not have
the authority to approve connected transactions that are not on normal commercial terms, the acquisition or disposal of the
company's major assets, and/or transactions in which the Chief Executive Officer or any person with a potential conflict of
interest has a stake or other conflict of interest that would affect the company and its subsidiaries, except for transactions on
normal commercial terms for which policies and criteria have been established and approved by the Board of Directors and for
which shareholder approval has been obtained for connected transactions and the acquisition or disposal of major assets of the

company or its subsidiaries, in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange of Thailand in this regard.

1. Subcommittees: To ensure thorough and effective consideration of important matters, the Board of Directors has established
three specialized committees: the Audit Committee, the Executive Committee, and the Sustainability Development Committee. The

scope, duties, and responsibilities of each subcommittee are clearly defined.

1.1 Audit Committee: The Audit Committee comprises no less than 3 independent directors. At least one Audit Committee member must

possess knowledge and experience in accounting and finance to effectively review the reliability of the company's financial
statements and provide independent opinions. The Audit Committee members must meet the qualifications stipulated in the
notifications of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand. Their scope of authority, duties, and
primary responsibilities include: reviewing the accuracy, adequacy, and completeness of the company's financial reporting;
ensuring the appropriateness and effectiveness of the company's internal control and internal audit systems; overseeing the
appointment of auditors; addressing conflicts of interest; and preparing the Audit Committee's corporate governance report. Term
of Office: The Audit Committee consists of no less than 3 independent directors, each serving a 3-year term. They may be

reappointed to the Audit Committee but for no more than 3 consecutive terms or 9 years.

Any Audit Committee member wishing to resign before the end of their term must submit a resignation letter to the Chairman of the
Board. The resignation will take effect from the date the letter is received by the company. The Board of Directors will then
consider appointing another qualified individual to replace the resigning member for the remainder of the term. The

representatives of the Board of Directors must appoint a complete Audit Committee within 90 days from the date of the Audit
Committee member's resignation. In the event that the entire Audit Committee is dissolved for reasons other than disqualification

or prohibited characteristics under the law, the dissolved Audit Committee must remain in office only as long as necessary until

a new Audit Committee is appointed.

Roles, Responsibilities, and Authority of the Audit Committee

1. Ensure that the company and its subsidiaries have financial statements that are accurate and in accordance with accounting

standards as required by law, and that they are adequately disclosed.

2. Ensure that the Company and its subsidiaries have appropriate and effective internal control and internal audit systems,
consider the independence of the internal audit function, and approve the appointment, transfer, termination, and performance
evaluation of the head of the internal audit function or any other unit responsible for internal audit.

3. Ensure that the Company complies with the Securities and Exchange Act, the regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, the
notifications of the SEC, and the notifications of the Capital Market Supervisory Board, as well as other laws related to the

business of the Company and its subsidiaries.

4. Consider, select, and propose the appointment of independent individuals to serve as auditors for the Company and its
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subsidiaries, propose their remuneration, and attend meetings with the auditors without the presence of management at least once

a year.
5. Consider connected transactions or transactions that may have a conflict of interest in accordance with the law, the
notifications of the Capital Market Supervisory Board, and the regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand to ensure that such

transactions are reasonable and in the best interests of the Company and its subsidiaries.

6. Review the Company and its subsidiaries to ensure that they have appropriate and effective risk management systems in place

for presentation to the Board of Directors.

7. Review and approve the Internal Audit Charter, the annual internal audit plan, the performance of the internal audit function,

and coordinate with the external auditors.

8. Prepare a report of the Audit Committee to be disclosed in the Company's Annual Report, which must be signed by the Chairman

of the Audit Committee and must contain at least the following information:

8.1 Opinion on the fairness of presentation of the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries

8.2 Opinions on the adequacy of the internal control system of the company and its subsidiaries (if any)

8.3 Opinion on Compliance with the Securities and Exchange Act, the Regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, or Laws
Related to the Business of the Company and its Subsidiaries (if any)

8.4 Opinion on the appropriateness of the auditor

8.5 Opinions on Transactions with Potential Conflicts of Interest

8.6 Opinion on the Risk Management of the Company and its Subsidiaries (if any)

8.6 Number of Audit Committee meetings and attendance of each Audit Committee member

8.7 Overall comments or observations received by the Audit Committee from the performance of its duties under the charter.

8.8 Other matters deemed relevant for shareholders and general investors to be aware of, within the scope of duties and
responsibilities assigned by the Board of Directors.

9. Conduct an investigation into the facts as notified by the auditor regarding any suspicious conduct that the directors, the

Chief Executive Officer, or any person responsible for the operations of the company and its subsidiaries may have committed an
offense under the Securities and Exchange Act. The Audit Committee shall report the preliminary findings of the investigation to
the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the auditor within thirty days from the date of notification by the
auditor.

10. Report the performance of the Audit Committee to the Board of Directors at least 4 times a year. In performing its duties, if
the Audit Committee discovers or suspects any of the following items or acts that may have a material impact on the Company's
financial position and operating results, the Audit Committee shall report to the Board of Directors for corrective action within

a timeframe deemed appropriate by the Audit Committee:

10.1 Transactions with a conflict of interest

10.2 Fraud, Irregularities, or Material Weaknesses in Internal Control

10.3 Violation of the Securities and Exchange Act, Announcements of the Securities and Exchange Commission, Regulations of the
Stock Exchange of Thailand, or Laws Related to the Business of the Company and its Subsidiaries

If the Board of Directors or executives fail to take corrective actions within the specified timeframe, any member of the Audit
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Committee may report the item or act under Paragraph One to the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission or the Stock

Exchange of Thailand.
11. In performing their duties within the scope of their authority, the Audit Committee has the authority to invite directors,
executives, department heads, or employees of the company and its subsidiaries to provide opinions, attend meetings, or submit

documents deemed relevant and necessary.

12. Consider and approve the hiring of consultants or external parties, in accordance with the regulations of the company and its

subsidiaries, to provide opinions or advice when necessary.

13. Ensure that the Company and its subsidiaries comply with the policy on reporting misconduct and fraud, investigation, and

protection of whistleblowers, including receiving complaints and the results of investigations by the investigation committee.
14. Review the scope and evaluate the performance of the Audit Committee annually.

15. Review the independence of the auditor and consider receiving non-audit services from the same audit firm.

6. Perform other duties as assigned by the Board of Directors with the approval of the Audit Committee.

Executive Committee

Consists of no less than 3 executive directors. The Executive Committee will determine the direction and strategies for
conducting business to achieve the goals set and assigned by the Board of Directors. This ensures smooth and highly efficient
management of the company, as well as stability and sustainability in business operations.

Roles, Responsibilities, and Accountabilities of the Executive Committee

1. Formulate policies, goals, strategies, annual operating plans, budgets, and various management authorities of the company for
submission to the Board of Directors for approval.

2. Oversee the company's business operations to ensure alignment with the policies, goals, strategies, annual operating plans,

and budgets approved by the Board of Directors, in an efficient manner that supports the business environment. Provide advice,
recommendations, and management guidance to senior executives.

3. Consider and approve expenditures for investments, financial transactions with financial institutions for account opening,
borrowing, pledging, mortgaging, guaranteeing, and other transactions, including the purchase, sale, and registration of land

ownership for the Company's normal business operations, within the authorized limits.

4. Establish an efficient organizational structure and management system, encompassing the selection, training, hiring, and
termination of company employees who are executives or senior management. The authority to sign employment contracts may be
delegated to the Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director as the company's representative.

5. Supervise and approve matters related to the company's operations and may appoint or authorize any person or persons to act on
behalf of the Management Committee as it deems appropriate. The Management Committee may revoke, modify, or amend such authority
6. Perform other duties as assigned by the Board of Directors.

Sustainability Development Committee

The Sustainability Development Committee was established to assist the Board of Directors in formulating appropriate, adequate,
effective, and efficient policies for the company's economic, social, and environmental aspects. It also oversees the overall

social and environmental development system or process to ensure it meets acceptable standards.

Director Tenure
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The Sustainability Development Committee has a term of 3 years. Initially, the Executive Committee will select a number of
directors and executives of the Company and/or qualified individuals to be appointed as members of the Sustainability Development
Committee and propose their appointment to the Board of Directors. Subsequently, the Executive Committee will have the authority

to appoint new members every 3 years.

Directors whose terms have expired have the right to be reappointed to the Board of Directors. Scope of Authority and

Responsibilities of the Sustainability Development Committee

1. Formulate strategic policies and operational plans for sustainable development that align with the Company's business
operations in terms of economic, social, and environmental aspects, for submission to the Executive Committee for consideration

and approval.

2. Provide support for various activities such as labor and employee management, employee welfare, employee training and
development, and the promotion and development of the community and society surrounding the Company's location in order to
achieve the goals of the sustainable development policy.

3. Supervise, review, monitor the progress, and evaluate the effectiveness of operations according to the sustainable development

policy plan.

4. Review and propose to the Executive Committee to consider amending the scope of authority, duties, and responsibilities of the
Sustainability Development Committee to be in line with the current situation.

5. The Sustainability Development Committee shall hold meetings as necessary and appropriate, at least once a year, and shall
prepare a sustainability report in the annual report and/or the Company's sustainability report. Independence of the Board of

Directors from Management

1) To ensure that the Board of Directors, under the leadership of the Chairman of the Board, has effective leadership and control
over the management's operations, there is a clear separation of roles and responsibilities between the Chairman of the Board and
the Chief Executive Officer.

2) The Board of Directors must consist of independent directors from outside the company who have knowledge, abilities, and
experience that benefit the company's business. Independent directors must have sufficient access to financial and business
information to be able to express their opinions independently, protect the interests of stakeholders, and attend meetings
regularly. 3) Independent directors must possess the qualifications of independence as per the Notification of the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Thailand, as well as other qualifications specified by the company, to ensure the equitable protection of
all shareholders' interests and prevent conflicts of interest between the company, executives, or major shareholders.

Additionally, they must be able to express their opinions independently during meetings.

Practices for the independence of the Board of Directors from management

The Board of Directors ensures that the management team's performance is monitored by holding regular quarterly meetings with

senior management and department heads. These meetings demonstrate the importance of open and collaborative discussions to gather

valuable insights for the company's operations. They focus on financial targets, the company's strategic plan, and key policies

to oversee and monitor the management team's adherence to the established work plan in accordance with the company's strategies
on a regular and consistent basis. This ensures that the management team can effectively implement the company's vision, goals,
and strategies. The Board of Directors, in collaboration with the management team, undertakes the following:

1) Establish and review the company's business strategies, objectives, and operational plans.

2) Oversee the adequacy of the Company's risk management and internal control systems.

3) Define appropriate operational authority commensurate with the responsibilities of the management.

4) Determine the allocation of resources and budget development of the Company, such as human resource management policies and
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plans and information technology policies.

5) Performance Monitoring and Evaluation

6) Ensuring the disclosure of financial information and other important information that should be disclosed.

Recruitment of Directors and Senior Executives

1. Recruitment of Directors: When a director's term expires or there is a need to appoint additional directors, the existing

Board of Directors will jointly discuss and select directors using established criteria and recruitment methods. This process
considers knowledge, abilities, work experience, and overall suitability for the position. The Company aims to appoint

individuals with the appropriate experience, knowledge, and skills to benefit the Company and possess the qualifications required
to serve as directors. The selection process considers the appropriate number of directors to ensure efficient business
management. The Company has a policy to maintain a Board of Directors with no fewer than 5 members and no more than 15 members,
which is deemed appropriate for the size and nature of the business. The Company also values diversity in the Board's composition
to ensure effective and agile management, maximizing benefits for the Company. Individuals appointed as directors must meet the
qualifications stipulated in Section 68 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535 (as amended) and the Notification of the
Securities and Exchange Commission B.E. 2535 (as amended), other relevant laws, and regulations. After the Board of Directors
approves the appointment, the names of the appointed directors will be submitted to the shareholders' meeting for approval (as
applicable). The resolution of the shareholders' meeting requires a majority vote of the shareholders present at the meeting and

entitled to vote.

Director Nomination and Selection Practices: 1) When a director resigns or when the company reviews and adjusts the Board's
structure based on specific needs, the Board of Directors will collaboratively consider and nominate candidates with the
qualifications and experience required to fulfill the vacant positions. 2) Specific criteria for director nominations are

defined, such as leadership qualities, relevant knowledge and expertise in the company's business, and the willingness to express
dissenting opinions. 3) The company employs multiple channels for director recruitment, including providing shareholders with the
opportunity to nominate qualified individuals for directorship. The company also utilizes the database of professional directors
maintained by the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD) as a reference for recruiting new directors or evaluating

existing ones. Board Diversity

The Board of Directors believes that board diversity is crucial for enhancing operational efficiency and the effectiveness of the
Board of Directors. This diversity is not limited to gender but also encompasses ethnicity, age, educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge, abilities, and work perspectives. Therefore, the recruitment and appointment of
directors are based primarily on knowledge and abilities. The selection criteria also consider the benefits of diversity in

decision-making.

2. Recruitment of Senior Executives

The Board of Directors is responsible for recruiting suitable individuals to serve as Chief Executive Officer and senior

executives who report directly to the Chief Executive Officer. They also develop a succession plan. The selection process

considers qualified candidates both within and outside the organization. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee may consider
hiring independent consultants to assist in the recruitment process.

Director and Executive Development

The Board of Directors is aware of its role as the leader of the organization. More than half of the Board of Directors have

studied or attended lectures on the CG CODE until they understand the benefits and practices of applying it to management and
creating value for the organization to grow sustainably. This is to develop the knowledge and abilities of the Board of Directors

to perform their duties more effectively.

In addition, the company has established practices to encourage and support all directors in pursuing further education and
training to enhance their knowledge and effectiveness in performing their duties as directors on an ongoing basis, as follows:

1) Orientation for New Directors

Part 2 Corporate Governance 108



Newly elected directors will receive a briefing on essential company information relevant to their duties as directors within

three months of their appointment. This is to prepare them and support the effective performance of those elected or appointed to
assume the position of director as quickly as possible. The company has a policy to enhance the knowledge and perspectives of all
directors, both in terms of good corporate governance and business operations. The Company Secretary acts as the coordinator and
facilitator for this process. The orientation for new directors will cover topics such as business structure, board structure,

scope of authority, relevant laws, nature of business information, the company's business direction, relevant regulations, good

corporate governance, business ethics, and information useful for performing their duties as directors.

2) Director Training

The company encourages all directors to continuously pursue education and training to enhance their knowledge and effectiveness
in performing their duties as directors. This includes attending training programs essential for their roles as directors and/or

other relevant programs, as well as refresher courses to stay abreast of current developments. These programs aim to deepen their
understanding of the importance of the Audit Committee in the capital market, the Audit Committee's role in good corporate
governance, overseeing the quality of financial reporting, selecting high-quality auditors, maintaining regular communication

with auditors, and identifying tools for monitoring the performance of duties to ensure effective financial reporting. These

efforts aim to elevate the quality of corporate governance and financial reporting in line with the company's director

development plan, adhering to good corporate governance principles.

Evaluation of the performance of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors has established an annual performance evaluation of the Board of Directors to serve as a framework for
monitoring the performance of the Board of Directors to ensure that they have complied with the approved good corporate
governance policy and/or the Company's best practices. The Board of Directors will jointly consider and summarize the results of
the operations and review the performance of the Board of Directors in order to jointly find ways to improve and correct the
performance of the Board of Directors to be in line with the policies set by the Company and to review the problems and obstacles
that occurred in the past year and to make the work of the Board of Directors more effective. The Company has determined that
there will be a self-assessment of the Board of Directors using three sets of assessment forms adapted from the Stock Exchange of

Thailand's examples, as follows:

1. Self-assessment form for the Board of Directors as a whole

2. Self-assessment form for each subcommittee.

3. Self-assessment form for individual directors and subcommittees

Determination of Remuneration for Directors and Senior Executives

The Company has a policy of setting directors' remuneration at rates comparable to those in the same industry and at levels
sufficient to attract and retain qualified directors. The remuneration of directors and executives will be aligned with the

Company's performance and the performance of each executive. The Board of Directors will determine the appropriate and necessary
remuneration, in monetary terms, for the subcommittees, the Chief Executive Officer, and executives who report directly to the

Chief Executive Officer. The remuneration of directors and subcommittee members will be submitted to the Board of Directors

meeting for approval and to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for approval annually.

1) The Board of Directors has the duty to determine the remuneration of the Board of Directors in terms of determining the

structure/components of the remuneration, which should have the following important characteristics:

- Fair, commensurate with responsibilities, and aligned with performance.

- At a level that can attract and retain qualified directors or is comparable to those in the same industry.

- The structure/components of compensation should be clear, transparent, and easy to understand.
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2) The Board of Directors and senior executives are required to report on the director remuneration policy, principles, and

rationale in the company's annual report and financial statements.

Succession Planning Policy

The company places great importance on developing its management systems, human resource management, and employee developmen

tto

enhance efficiency. This includes strategic workforce planning, enhancing the capabilities of personnel within the organization,

and improving the overall efficiency of organizational management. The company promotes succession planning and continuous
preparation for personnel replacement in appropriate management positions, both in the short and long term. It has a clear and
transparent recruitment process, considering selection based on knowledge, experience, abilities, ethics, and leadership

qualities, to ensure personnel readiness to support and align with business expansion. The company also evaluates the performance
and potential of executives, promotes and develops personnel to have knowledge and skills aligned with the strategic management

direction, and continuously monitors development outcomes. This ensures the continuity of the company's operations.

and to effectively respond to and accommodate changes. (The complete policy and guidelines can be found at www.bigcamera.co.th
(Under the Investor Relations section) Chief Executive Officer, Deputy Chief Executive Officer

The Management Committee will prepare a succession plan for positions from Deputy Chief Executive Officer to Chief Executive

Officer for the Board of Directors' consideration.

When such position becomes vacant or the incumbent is unable to perform the duties of the position, the Company will have a
system for the executive at the next lower level or a subordinate to act as the caretaker of the position until the recruitment
and selection of a person with qualifications according to the criteria set by the Company, and must be a person with vision,
knowledge, ability, experience, and suitability to the organizational culture, by the consideration of the Executive Committee,
to be proposed to the Board of Directors and/or the Shareholders' Meeting for approval to appoint a suitable person to hold the

position instead. Executive level, from the level of department head

When an executive position, from the division president level upwards, becomes vacant or the incumbent is unable to perform their
duties, the Executive Committee will consider and select qualified individuals with appropriate experience to propose to the

Board of Directors for approval to fill the vacant position. Holding Directorships in Other Listed Companies

The Board of Directors has determined that each director may hold a position as a director of no more than 5 other listed
companies in order to ensure efficiency in performing their duties and to allow the directors to devote their time to performing
their duties as directors of the Company to the fullest extent. In addition, being such a director must not be an obstacle to the
performance of the director's duties to the Company and there is no conflict of interest with the Company. Investment Policy and

Supervision of Subsidiaries and Affiliates

The company has a policy on investment and management of subsidiaries. It will invest in related, similar, or beneficial
businesses that can support the company's operations to enhance its stability and growth. The company will consider the
investment proportion, profits, expected returns, potential risks, and the company's financial status before making investment
decisions in various projects. The approval of such investments must be reviewed by the Board of Directors meeting and/or the

shareholders' meeting, in accordance with the scope of authorization defined by the company.

Policy and Practices Regarding Shareholders Shareholders' Rights

The company values the rights of shareholders in making decisions regarding significant changes within the company and receiving
appropriate rights, including accurate, complete, sufficient, timely, and equal access to company information for decision-making
in all matters. The company will not engage in any actions that infringe upon or violate the existing rights of shareholders.

Therefore, the Board of Directors oversees and complies with the following fundamental rights that shareholders should receive:

1. Right to Receive Share Certificates and Right to Trade or Transfer Shares The Company has appointed Thailand Securities
Depository Co., Ltd. to act as the registrar to facilitate shareholders in carrying out the Company's share registration.

2. Right to Submit Agenda Items in Advance, Nominate Directors, and Submit Questions in Advance Regarding the Company for Inquiry
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at the Meeting: The company has established guidelines for submitting agenda items, nominating directors, and submitting

questions regarding the company (the guidelines are disclosed on the company's website www.bigcamera.co.th Investor Relations
Section under the heading "Shareholders' Meeting") to provide an opportunity for minority shareholders to participate in the
company's corporate governance. Recognizing the rights of shareholders and encouraging them to fully exercise their rights at
meetings, the company allows shareholders to propose agenda items for the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, nominate
individuals for election as directors of the company, or submit questions in advance through the company's website at least 3
months prior to the scheduled date of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. For the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders,
the company publishes these guidelines on its website and announces them through the Stock Exchange of Thailand's website to
ensure that all shareholders are aware of their rights and have sufficient time to review the meeting materials. On the day of

the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, the Board of Directors, executives responsible for finance and accounting, as well as

the certified auditors, will attend the meeting to answer shareholders' questions. This is in line with good corporate governance
principles. In the past year, the company provided shareholders with the opportunity to propose agenda items for inclusion in the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and to nominate qualified individuals for consideration as directors of the company at the
2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in advance, from November 15, 2023, to February 15, 2024. The criteria and procedures
are as specified on the company's website (the criteria are disclosed on the company's website www.bigcamera.co.th (Investor
Relations category under the heading "Shareholders' Meeting")

3. Right to Attend Shareholders' Meetings and Call for Meetings

The Company will hold one Annual General Meeting of Shareholders each year within four months from the end of the Company's
fiscal year. The Company will disclose the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to the shareholders in advance so that the
shareholders can plan their schedules to attend the meeting. For the shareholders' meeting, the Company will announce the names
of two independent directors in the notice of the shareholders' meeting so that shareholders who are unable to attend the meeting
can consider selecting a person to be their proxy, or they may appoint an independent director as their proxy, or they may

appoint any other person they deem appropriate as their proxy. In voting on each agenda item at the meeting, shareholders may

vote in advance by specifying their vote in the proxy form, or they may have their proxy vote at the meeting.

The Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd., the company's share registrar, will handle the distribution of the notice of the
meeting along with supporting documents for each agenda item. These documents will contain sufficient details for decision-
making, including objectives, rationale, and the Board of Directors' opinions on each agenda item. This allows shareholders to
review comprehensive information. The annual report and proxy forms, in the format prescribed by the Ministry of Commerce, will
be sent at least 14 days prior to the shareholders' meeting. This is to facilitate shareholders and provide institutional

investors with ample time to prepare, study the details of each agenda item, and make arrangements for proxy voting if they are
unable to attend the meeting in person. The company also provides stamp duty for proxy forms free of charge to alleviate the
burden on shareholders.

In addition, the Company has published the notice of meeting, meeting documents, and proxy forms on the Company's website no less
than 28 days in advance to provide shareholders with access to the same information sent to shareholders in document form. The
Company also announced the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in newspapers and/or on the Company's website no less than 3
days before the meeting date and advertised for 3 consecutive days as required by law.

The Board of Directors encourages the dissemination of the 2023 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders' documents through the
Company's website for the benefit of shareholders to be informed of their rights and to have time to study and consider the
agenda of the meeting and the information accompanying the meeting. The Company has published the Notice of the 2023 Annual

General Meeting of Shareholders, along with the accompanying documents, in both Thai and English, since March 25, 2023.

The Company clearly specifies the agenda items to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, without including
other items that have not yet been submitted for consideration. On the meeting date, the Company also avoids adding other agenda
items that were not previously specified in the notice of meeting, as this would be unfair to shareholders who did not attend the
meeting. For the election of directors, the Company provides the names and short biographies of each director nominated for
shareholders' consideration. The Company allows shareholders to vote for directors individually. Similarly, for the appointment

of auditors, the Company clearly states the name of the auditor, the affiliated firm, their experience, capabilities,

independence, the period they have served as the Company's auditor, and their remuneration to enable shareholders to consider the
suitability of the auditor. For the proposal to approve dividend payments (if any), the Company will inform shareholders of the

Company's dividend payment policy, the proposed dividend rate, and provide reasons and relevant information for their
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consideration. Shareholders' Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders must be attended by not less than 25 shareholders and proxies (if any), or not less
than one-half of the total number of shareholders, and must hold in aggregate not less than one-third of the total number of

issued shares in order to constitute a quorum.

In voting, the Company grants shareholders the right to vote on a one-share, one-vote basis and encourages shareholders to use
their voting cards for all agenda items. The Company prepares separate voting cards for each agenda item so that shareholders can
vote as they see fit. Before the meeting, the Chairman of the meeting assigned the Company's meeting conductor to explain the
voting and vote counting procedures for shareholders to vote on each agenda item in accordance with the Company's Articles of
Association, including the requirement to use voting cards for all agenda items for transparency and verifiability, and to allow
shareholders to vote as they see fit, and to allow shareholders to exercise their voting rights on each agenda item clearly. In

the event that a person attends the meeting after the meeting has commenced, such shareholder shall still have the right to
attend the meeting as a quorum and shall have the right to vote, and may vote from the agenda item that he/she attends onwards.
In conducting the meeting, the Chairman of the meeting presented the matters to the shareholders for their consideration in
accordance with the agenda of the meeting and allowed the shareholders to ask questions on each agenda item. For other matters
not on the agenda, the Company also allowed shareholders to ask questions at the end of the meeting, with each shareholder having

equal rights and sufficient and appropriate time.

In 2024, the Board of Directors held the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on Wednesday, April 25, 2024, at 2:00 PM via
electronic means (E-AGM) at the meeting room of Big Camera Corporation Public Company Limited, located at 115, 115/1 Sawatdikarn
1 Road, Nong Khaem Subdistrict, Nong Khaem District, Bangkok. The Chairman of the Board of Directors presided over the meeting,
met with shareholders, and answered questions regarding the Company's management. The meeting was attended by the Board of
Directors, the Chief Executive Officer, the Chairman of the Audit Committee, the Managing Director, executives, and the Company
Secretary. All 10 directors attended the meeting, representing 100% of the total number of directors. Over 25 shareholders

attended the meeting, representing 2,495,470,152 shares, or 70.7156% of the Company's total issued and outstanding shares,

meeting the quorum requirement as stipulated in the Company's Articles of Association.

At the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, the Board of Directors, executives in charge of finance and accounting, and the
auditor were present at the meeting to answer shareholders' questions. In addition, the Company invited representatives of the
auditor and legal counsel to attend the meeting from the beginning to listen to opinions and prepare answers to shareholders'
questions. Disclosure of Resolutions of the Meeting The Company disclosed the resolutions of the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders, along with the voting results, by letter to the Chairman and the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and on the Company's
website after the meeting, which was on April 26, 2023. In addition, the Company recorded the meeting and posted it on the
Company's website to provide a service to shareholders who were interested in watching the meeting. Minutes of the Shareholders'

Meeting

To ensure that shareholders are informed of and can review the details of the shareholders' meeting within a reasonable timeframe
and to ensure equal access to information between Thai and foreign shareholders, the Company has a policy to publish the minutes
of the shareholders' meeting accurately and completely in both Thai and English. Each agenda item includes important information
such as clarification of voting methods, the substance of the agenda item, the resolution of the meeting, along with the votes

for, against, and abstentions, questions and comments made at the meeting, and a list of the attending directors and their

positions. In 2024, all members of the Board of Directors attended the meeting. The Company published the minutes of the meeting
on the Company's website within 14 days from the date of the shareholders' meeting to provide shareholders with a channel to
verify the accuracy of the information. The Company also disclosed the minutes of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on
the Stock Exchange of Thailand's website.

The Board of Directors has disclosed the minutes of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, held on Wednesday, April
25, 2024, on the company's website. www.bigcamera.co.th Investor Relations section under the heading "Shareholders' Meeting"
since May 8, 2024. The company also submitted the minutes of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to the Stock
Exchange of Thailand on May 8, 2024. 4.

Right to Receive Dividends and Share in Company Profits: The company distributes profits to shareholders in the form of

dividends. The company has a policy of paying dividends to shareholders at a rate of not less than 50% of net profits after

deducting various legal reserves and other reserves (if any). The company discloses its dividend payment policy, the proposed
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dividend rate (if any), along with the reasons and information considered, to shareholders in advance in the meeting invitation.
Based on the operating results for 2024, the Board of Directors proposed that the shareholders' meeting approve the payment of
dividends for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024. The Board of Directors set the record date for shareholders entitled to
receive dividends on March 18, 2025, and scheduled the payment of cash dividends on May 15, 2025. 5.

Right to Consider Directors' Remuneration The payment of directors' remuneration is in accordance with the Public Limited
Companies Act, Section 90, which states that "The payment of directors' remuneration shall be in accordance with the resolution
of the shareholders' meeting, which consists of not less than two-thirds of the total votes of the shareholders present at the
meeting." The Company has therefore established a policy for considering directors' remuneration and presents the policy for
determining remuneration and the criteria for remuneration for each director's position to the shareholders for their information
and approval of the payment of directors' remuneration at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders every year. The Company has
considered the form and criteria for paying remuneration for each director's position based on the size of the business, the
business environment, and the overall economic conditions, the operating results that reflect and are linked to the Company's
operating results, as well as comparing the remuneration rates of companies in the same industry, which are at a level that is
competitive and reasonable. The Company has disclosed the payment of directors' remuneration in accordance with the Public
Limited Companies Act, Section 90, the details of which are contained in the Directors' Remuneration Policy under the heading
"Attendance at Meetings and Remuneration of Individual Directors" on page 229.

6. Right to Receive Adequate, Timely Information on Business Activities: The company places importance on shareholders' meetings
and has a policy to facilitate equal participation for all shareholders in attending meetings, receiving information, asking

questions, and exercising voting rights at shareholders' meetings. All shareholders are treated equally, regardless of whether

they are major or minority shareholders, Thai or foreign shareholders. The company discloses information through the Stock
Exchange of Thailand's news system and presents important information, including current news and updates, on its website. www.

bigcamera.co.th Under the Investor Relations section, to ensure the protection of shareholder rights.

7. Right to Approve the Appointment of Auditors and Determine Audit Fees: The company has a policy of proposing the appointment
of auditors and determining audit fees for shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders every year. This
includes details about the proposed auditors, their affiliated firms, experience, capabilities, independence considerations, and

audit fees, providing shareholders with sufficient information for their consideration. Equal Treatment of Shareholders: The

Board of Directors has established a good corporate governance policy to assure all shareholders, including minority shareholders
and foreign shareholders, that they will receive their fundamental rights under the law and other shareholder rights fairly and
equally, including the opportunity for redress in the event of a violation of their rights. Therefore, to protect the rights of

all shareholders and ensure fair and equal treatment, the Board of Directors has established the following guidelines:

1. The Company will notify the Stock Exchange of Thailand of the schedule for the shareholders' meeting, including relevant
agenda items, and publish the meeting schedule on the Company's website in advance of the meeting within the timeframe stipulated
by relevant laws, announcements, or regulations. The Company will also prepare and publish the notice of meeting in both Thai and

English on the Company's website.

2. The Company has clear and reasonable criteria for considering the appropriateness of including the agenda items proposed by
the shareholders, and the Board of Directors has a policy of not adding agenda items to the shareholders' meeting without prior

notice unless necessary in order to allow shareholders to study the information thoroughly before making a decision.

3. In conducting each shareholders' meeting, the Company will give equal opportunity to all shareholders. Before the meeting, the
Chairman of the meeting will explain the voting procedures and the vote counting method for shareholders to vote on each agenda
item. The Chairman of the meeting will also give all shareholders and proxies attending the meeting the opportunity to express
their opinions, suggestions, and ask questions on each agenda item with appropriate and sufficient time. The Chairman of the

meeting will conduct the meeting in accordance with the agenda.

4. The Company has established guidelines for the safekeeping and prevention of misuse of the Company's insider information.
Individuals or departments with access to insider information are prohibited from disclosing such information to unrelated
departments or individuals. Any person who discloses such information or uses it for their own or others' benefit, or engages in
any act that may create a conflict of interest, will be considered to have committed a serious offense and will be subject to
disciplinary action. The Company also requires all directors and executives who are required to report their securities holdings

by law to submit such reports to the Company Secretary regularly and disclose them in the Company's annual report.
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5. The Company requires directors to report any conflicts of interest in any agenda item at least prior to the consideration of
the relevant agenda item at the Board of Directors meeting and to record such conflicts of interest in the minutes of the Board
of Directors meeting. Directors with a material conflict of interest that could prevent them from providing an independent

opinion on the relevant agenda item are prohibited from participating in the meeting during the consideration of that agenda item.

6. The company has established a policy on related party transactions, which will be conducted fairly, at market prices, and in

accordance with normal business practices. This policy will be disclosed in the annual report or 56-1 One Report.

7. Shareholders will not lose their right to attend the meeting. In the event that a shareholder is unable to attend the meeting

in person, the Company allows the shareholder to have the right to appoint an independent director or a person deemed appropriate
by the shareholder to attend the meeting and vote on his/her behalf. The Company will propose the name of at least one
independent director as an option for the shareholder's proxy. Shareholders can use the proxy form sent by the Company along with
the invitation to the meeting, which will include Forms A, B, and C, which will specify the recommendations, procedures, and
supporting documents that are not difficult to grant a proxy. The Company will also prepare stamp duty to be affixed to the
shareholder's power of attorney.

8. Equal Voting Rights: Shares of the same class have equal voting rights, with one share equaling one vote. If the company has
more than one class of shares, the company will disclose the voting rights of each class of shares to shareholders prior to
voting. Policy on Facilitating and Promoting Shareholder Participation in Meetings: The company values the rights of shareholders
to make decisions regarding significant changes within the company and to receive accurate, sufficient, timely, and equal access
to company information for decision-making in all matters. Therefore, the Board of Directors has established the following

policies:

1. The Company holds its Annual General Meeting of Shareholders transparently, efficiently, and in accordance with the law and

the Company's Articles of Association, within four (4) months from the end of the Company's fiscal year.

2. The Company schedules meetings on non-holiday weekdays and organizes meetings in appropriate formats, whether physical or
electronic (E-AGM), in accordance with the Emergency Decree on Electronic Meetings B.E. 2563 (2020) and relevant laws. The
Company also utilizes technology for shareholder meetings, such as online registration and advance question submission via email,

to ensure that meetings are conducted conveniently, quickly, and accurately.

3. The Company facilitates shareholders by providing opportunities for them to nominate individuals for consideration as
directors and to propose agenda items for the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. Shareholders can also submit questions
about the meeting in advance within the specified timeframe.

4. The company distributes the notice of the meeting along with supporting information for each agenda item, providing sufficient
details, objectives, rationale, and the Board of Directors' opinions on each agenda item. This allows shareholders to review
comprehensive information at least 14 days prior to the shareholders' meeting. The company also disseminates this information in
advance through various channels, including announcements through the Stock Exchange of Thailand and on the company's website,
before the meeting date.

5. The Company places importance on shareholder meetings and facilitates all shareholders equally, whether they are major
shareholders or minority shareholders, Thai shareholders or foreign shareholders, in attending the meetings, including receiving

information, asking questions, and exercising voting rights at the shareholder meetings.

6. The company facilitates shareholders who are unable to attend the meeting in person by allowing them to appoint a proxy or
have at least one independent director attend the meeting and vote on their behalf. The names of such independent directors will

be disclosed in the notice of the shareholders' meeting.

7. Shareholders can download the Proxy Forms B and C from the company's website. Proxy Forms B and C are attached to the meeting
invitation letter for the convenience of shareholders who are unable to attend the meeting in person. This allows shareholders to
authorize the independent directors appointed by the company to act as their proxies, performing duties as representatives of

minority shareholders. Alternatively, they can authorize other individuals to attend the meeting and vote on their behalf,

according to the conditions specified in the proxy form, which are in accordance with general legal requirements.
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8. At the shareholders' meeting, matters will be considered and voted upon according to the agenda without changing material

information or adding agenda items.

9. The Company provides an opportunity for all shareholders to have equal rights to express their opinions or ask questions by
allocating sufficient and appropriate time and will record important questions and suggestions from shareholders in the minutes

of the meeting in full.

10. Announce the resolutions of the shareholders' meeting and the voting results for each agenda item within the day of the
shareholders' meeting or no later than 9:00 AM on the following business day through the Stock Exchange of Thailand's news system
(SETLINK).

11. Meeting Minutes Recording: Ensure accurate, complete, prompt, and transparent recording of meeting minutes. Include important
questions and comments in the minutes for shareholder review. Publish the minutes of the shareholders' meeting on the company's
website for shareholder consideration. Submit the minutes of the meeting to the Stock Exchange of Thailand within 14 days from
the date of the shareholders' meeting.

12. The company records the meeting in video format, including the voting process, and publishes it on the company's website to

facilitate shareholders and interested external parties in reviewing the shareholders' meeting.

13. Assign the company secretary and investor relations department to be the point of contact, coordinate, and facilitate
communication between the company and shareholders and investors. 1.1.2 Policies and Practices Regarding Stakeholders

The Company recognizes and acknowledges the rights of all stakeholder groups to a good relationship and cooperation with each
other, which will be beneficial to the business operations and build confidence in the Company, as well as increase the Company's
competitiveness and generate profits for the Company in the long run so that it can grow sustainably. Therefore, in order to take
care of and be responsible for all stakeholder groups to receive their rights under the relevant laws, the Company has

established the following policies:

1. Policy on Protection of Insider Information

The Company places importance on the use of inside information, which is information used in the operation and management of the

Company. To prevent cases where the Board of Directors, executives, and employees use inside information to seek benefits for
themselves or others, whether directly or indirectly, and whether or not they receive compensation, especially inside information
that has not been disclosed to the public or information that affects the organization's strategic plan, business operations,

trade negotiations, and securities prices, which is taking advantage of and causing damage to the shareholders as a whole and is
an offense under the Securities and Exchange Act, resulting in a decrease in the Company's benefits, causing conflicts of

interest, and affecting the credibility of the Company. In order to comply with the Securities and Exchange Act and the practices
of the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand regarding the disclosure of
information of listed companies, the disclosure and preservation of information affecting securities prices, and the management
of confidential information affecting securities prices, the Company has established an Insider Trading Policy and imposes severe
penalties in the event of a violation or any act that is intentionally not in compliance with the Company's Insider Trading

Policy. Practices

1.1 Educate directors and executives on their duty to report their shareholdings, as well as those of their spouses and minor
children, to the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission, in accordance with Section 59 and the penalties stipulated in
Section 275 of the Securities and Exchange Act of B.E. 2535 (as amended). This includes reporting the acquisition or disposal of
securities by themselves, their spouses, and minor children to the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission, in
accordance with Section 246 and the penalties stipulated in Section 298 of the Securities and Exchange Act of B.E. 2535 (as

amended).

1.2 Establish procedures for the trading of securities by directors and executives, requiring reporting one business day prior to
trading. The Company Secretary is assigned to oversee and classify the information.

1.3 Directors, executives, employees, and agents of the company and its subsidiaries, as well as their spouses and minor
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children, and any other individuals who become aware of the company's material inside information that could affect the company's
share price, are prohibited from trading in, or recommending the trading of, the company's securities during the 30 days prior to

the public disclosure of such financial statements or inside information, and within 24 hours after the public disclosure of such
financial statements or inside information, as well as during other periods as determined by the company from time to time
(Blackout period).

1.4 Prohibit directors, executives, employees, and officers of the company from using inside information that has or may have an
impact on the company's share price, which has not yet been disclosed to the public, for personal gain. This includes using such
information, obtained through their position or capacity, to buy, sell, offer to buy, offer to sell, or induce others to buy or

sell, directly or indirectly, shares or other securities (if any) of the company in a manner that could cause damage to the
company, directly or indirectly. This prohibition applies regardless of whether such actions are for personal gain or for the
benefit of others, or whether such information is disclosed to enable others to take such actions, with or without receiving any

benefit in return.

1.5 Including the determination

1.6 Internal and confidential information of the company can only be disclosed or shared with individuals within the company as

necessary or relevant to their work.

1.7 All employees are responsible for protecting the Company's confidential information that they are aware of or have access to,

in order to prevent any impact and damage to the Company.

1.8 The Company will educate employees about relevant laws and regulations so that they can adhere to them strictly.

1.9 The company considers the misuse of inside information for personal gain to be a disciplinary offense under the company's
work regulations. Disciplinary actions will be considered on a case-by-case basis, ranging from verbal or written warnings,
probation, salary increases and annual bonus adjustments, to termination. In addition, violators and related individuals may face
criminal and civil liabilities under the law.

2. Disclosure and Transparency Policy

The Board of Directors is committed to ensuring strict compliance with laws, regulations, and rules related to information
disclosure and transparency. The company has appointed a dedicated team responsible for investor relations and communication.
This team is tasked with providing information, news, and public relations materials to investors and shareholders, including
institutional investors and retail investors. The company holds regular meetings to analyze its performance and disseminates
information through its website, reports to the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. This information includes operational results, financial information, general updates, and the company's performance,
and is made available in both Thai and English. This ensures that shareholders, investors, stakeholders, and other relevant

parties have access to accurate, complete, timely, and relevant information about the company. The company will continuously
improve and update its information disclosure practices to align with the guidelines and regulations set forth by the Stock
Exchange of Thailand and the Securities and Exchange Commission.

The company places importance on disclosing material information, both financial and non-financial. Financial information is
presented to reflect the true financial position and performance of the company, based on accurate, complete, and sufficient
accounting data in accordance with generally accepted accounting standards. Other information is disclosed in accordance with the
criteria set by the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the SEC Office. This information is accurate, clear, complete, transparent,

and easy to understand, encompassing both positive and negative aspects. It undergoes a thorough review process according to
established procedures to ensure that shareholders and stakeholders receive information equally through various channels, as

follows:

2.1 Annual Information Form (Form 56-1 One Report)

It is a document that shows the overview of the organization, the past performance of the Company, as well as the future plans.

The information will be disclosed within 90 days from the end of the fiscal year. 2.2 Website of the Stock Exchange

Part 2 Corporate Governance

116



The Company will disclose important information of the Company accurately, completely, and clearly by presenting news through the

Stock Exchange of Thailand's Set Portal system in both Thai and English within the timeframe set by the regulatory agencies.

2.3 Company's website

The Company will disclose important information of the Company through the Company's website, which is a fast, accurate,
complete, clear, and easily accessible source of information for shareholders, investors, and other interested parties to study
or learn about publicly disclosed information, including investor relations information, which is available in both Thai and
English.

2.4 Investor Relations

The company recognizes the importance of managing relationships with shareholders, investors, analysts, and other interested
parties. Therefore, the company has established an Investor Relations department and assigned it the responsibility of
communicating information to ensure that all groups receive adequate, accurate, complete, transparent, and equal access to
information, enhancing their understanding of the company's business operations. For further inquiries, interested parties can
contact the company through the following channels: Office of the Company Secretary, BIG Camera Corporation Public Company

Limited, located at 115, 115/1 Swasdikar 1 Road, Nong Khaem, Nong Khaem, Bangkok 10160. Company Website: www.bigcamera.co.th

Telephone number: 02-8099956-65, Fax number: 02-8099950-2 Email: ir@bigcamera.co.th

3. Conflict of Interest Policy

The Board of Directors has established a policy and procedures for considering transactions that have or may have a conflict of
interest in the Company's Good Corporate Governance Policy and Code of Business Conduct for directors, executives, and employees
to adhere to the principles of connected transactions, not to seek personal gain, not to engage in business that competes with

the Company, not to violate the rules and regulations of the SEC and the Stock Exchange, and to avoid entering into transactions
involving themselves that may create a conflict of interest with the Company. Or, if it is necessary to enter into such a

transaction, the Board of Directors will ensure that such transaction is transparent, fair, and at arm's length. In this regard,

the directors, executives, or employees who have an interest in such transaction must not participate in the consideration and

approval of such transaction.

If the executives or the Board of Directors deem any transaction to be a connected transaction or a transaction with a clear
conflict of interest under the regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, the Board of Directors will ensure compliance with
the principles, procedures, and disclosure requirements for connected transactions or transactions with conflicts of interest of
listed companies.

4. Policy on Respect for Law and Human Rights

The company is committed to conducting business ethically and recognizes the importance of respecting human rights as a
fundamental principle in its operations. It upholds its responsibility to society and all stakeholders in accordance with
corporate governance principles and ethical business conduct in the area of human rights protection.

The company has established a Human Rights Policy to demonstrate its commitment to upholding, supporting, and promoting the
respect and protection of the fundamental rights and human dignity of everyone involved in its operations, in accordance with
internationally recognized standards. This policy aligns with domestic laws, the Universal Declaration of Human Rights, the
principles outlined in the United Nations Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights, and best practices for the business
sector. It also reflects the company's commitment to conducting business ethically and in line with its human rights policies.

The Board of Directors recognizes the importance of establishing a Human Rights Policy and Practices to prevent human rights
violations in all of the company's business activities (Direct Activity), including those of its partners, businesses in its

value chain (Suppliers/Contractors in Business Value Chain), and joint ventures. The company has therefore established the
following key human rights policies: The Board of Directors, executives, and employees of Big Camera at all levels must be aware
of the importance of and respect for human rights in all aspects, for all individuals, as well as society and communities, in
accordance with the laws of each country and the treaties to which each country is bound. This includes: 1. Treating all
stakeholders with fairness and respect, based on human dignity and in accordance with human rights principles, without

discrimination. 2. Supporting and respecting the protection of human rights, ensuring that the company's business is not involved
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in human rights violations. 3. Avoiding actions that violate human rights, such as not supporting forced labor and opposing child

labor.

4. Communicate, disseminate, educate, foster understanding, establish guidelines, monitor, and provide support to stakeholders
throughout the business value chain, including joint ventures, contractors, suppliers, and other related parties. This is to
encourage their participation in conducting business ethically, respecting human rights, and treating everyone in accordance with

the principles of human rights as outlined in this policy.

The Company has established policies and practices on human rights in its Corporate Governance Code, with the following
practices: 1. Respect for human rights, treating each other with respect, dignity, and equality for all stakeholders and

vulnerable groups, without discrimination based on physical or mental characteristics, nationality, ethnicity, origin, lineage,
religion, gender, language, age, skin color, education, social status, culture, traditions, or any other factors. 2. Exercise

caution in performing duties to prevent the risk of human rights violations in business operations, and strive to prevent all

forms of harassment, including sexual harassment and other forms of harassment. The Company adheres to a policy of non-
discrimination, anti-harassment, and zero tolerance for all forms of harassment (both sexual and non-sexual). This policy states
that any complaints received by the Company will be taken seriously, treated confidentially, and handled with empathy. If the
allegations are substantiated, appropriate remedial actions, disciplinary measures, termination of employment, or legal action
will be taken. 3. Promote fair employment practices and non-discrimination by treating all employees and workers, including
migrant workers, fairly and transparently in all workplaces. Employment will specify mutually agreed upon terms and conditions,
including wages and benefits, working hours, overtime, work on holidays, leave, holidays, and other benefits not less than those
stipulated by law. 4. Communicate, disseminate policies, provide knowledge, understanding, suidelines, and other support to
employees, partners, business partners in the value chain (Suppliers/Contractors in Business Value Chain), and joint ventures to
participate in ethical business practices, respect human rights, and treat everyone in accordance with the principles of human
rights as outlined in this policy. Regularly review understanding and provide training on human rights, including discrimination
and harassment in the workplace, to all employees and stakeholders. 5. Provide opportunities for employees and workers to
participate or not participate in any activities voluntarily, express their opinions, and express themselves in any way that does
not violate the law or good morals. Employees have the right to peacefully assemble and bargain collectively to consider their
benefits and employment conditions in accordance with the Labor Relations Act and other relevant labor laws. 6. Promote safety
and occupational health for individuals and property of the Company, employees, workers, stakeholders of the Company, businesses

under the Company's management, and the supply chain to ensure a safe working environment. Implement measures and systems to

prevent and monitor safety risks, complying with relevant safety and health laws, international occupational safety and health
standards, and the Company's safety regulations. 7. Monitor and address human rights issues, not neglecting or ignoring any acts
that may constitute human rights violations related to the Company. Report such acts to supervisors or responsible personnel and

cooperate in fact-finding investigations. If there are any doubts or questions, consult with supervisors or responsible personnel

through designated channels. 8. Establish modern and effective whistleblowing and complaint channels, and implement a process for

escalating incident reports to higher levels. Ensure fairmess and protection for individuals who report human rights violations

related to the Company by using measures to protect whistleblowers or those who cooperate in reporting human rights violations as

specified in the Company's Whistleblower Policy. 9. Develop and implement a comprehensive and ongoing human rights due diligence

process to identify, assess, and mitigate the risks and impacts of human rights violations. Define affected groups or

individuals, covering all stakeholder groups. Plan and define remedial actions and preventive measures for human rights

violations in alignment with the organization's risk management framework, covering risks in relevant industries and countries.
Provide appropriate grievance mechanisms and remedies in cases of human rights violations, including monitoring compliance with
human rights policies, and regular reporting and disclosure of information. 10. The Company is committed to creating and
maintaining a corporate culture that upholds respect for human rights in accordance with this Human Rights Policy. Therefore, the
Company will instill and foster a corporate culture of human rights by monitoring, not ignoring any acts that violate human

rights, and communicating, disseminating, and providing training to enhance knowledge and understanding of human rights to the
Board of Directors, executives, and employees of the Company on an ongoing and regular basis. 11. Individuals who violate human
rights, including engaging in discriminatory or harassing behavior, are considered to have violated the Company's Code of Conduct
and this policy. The Company will take corrective actions or consider disciplinary actions in accordance with the Company's
regulations. In addition, the Company will take legal action if such actions are illegal. 12. The Company is committed to
communicating, reporting, and disclosing information on its human rights performance, remediation, and redress, including
incidents of discrimination and harassment, to the public in a comprehensive and transparent manner. 13. Regularly review the
Human Rights Policy, taking into account significant changes within the organization, to ensure that the policy remains

consistent with legal principles, international best practices, and/or the business environment.
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The company has established a process for monitoring, auditing, assessing risks, and the impact on human rights on a regular
basis. It has also defined guidelines and measures for appropriate risk management. Each department is responsible for overseeing
and managing the risks under their purview. The company communicates and disseminates information to promote knowledge,
understanding, and suidelines for respecting human rights. It also provides channels for receiving feedback and suggestions from
employees, external parties, and stakeholders. There are channels for complaints in case of incidents or actions that may
constitute human rights violations. Whistleblowing or complaints can be submitted to the company through designated channels
(Whistleblower System).

5. Policy on Intellectual Property

The company recognizes the value and importance of intellectual property. The company does not support any actions that
constitute intellectual property infringement, including copyright, patent, trademark, information system data, trade secrets,
and all types of intellectual property. The company has established policies and practices regarding non-infringement of

intellectual property, with the following policies and practices in place:

1. The company raises awareness among the Board of Directors, executives, and all employees about intellectual property laws to
foster respect for the intellectual property rights of others. It also provides guidance on the proper use of others'

intellectual property, emphasizing the need to obtain permission from the rightful owners before use, in accordance with the law.

2. The Company has a policy to protect and respect the intellectual property rights of others. The Company will not infringe or
support any action that constitutes an infringement of the intellectual property of others, whether it be copyright, patent,

petty patent, trademark, trade secret, or any other type of intellectual property right.

3. The Company will regularly check that the information, documents, and printed materials to be used for the Company's business,
if they are copyrighted works, the Company will check the terms and conditions of the relevant laws and comply with them

correctly.

4. The Company encourages and supports all employees of the Company to create new works related to the Company's products that

are not identical to works that are trademarks, copyrights, or patents of others.

5. The Company will control and prevent the disclosure or use of the Company's and/or its affiliates' information and secrets,

such as information derived from creativity, research, technical knowledge, and other related information arising from the
Company's and/or its affiliates' businesses, which are considered the Company's intellectual property, whether or not they are
registered under intellectual property laws. Disclosure without prior written permission from the Company or authorized personnel
is prohibited. This includes, for example, any work or research resulting from the performance of duties assigned by the Company
and/or its affiliates, work created or produced by employees or personnel responsible for such work, work that utilizes the
Company's and/or its affiliates' information, and any benefits derived from such work, which are considered the property of the
Company. Employees or responsible personnel must surrender such information, work, or copyrights to the Company, regardless of

the format in which they are stored.

6. The Company owns the copyright and all benefits arising from computer programs created by employees or personnel assigned by
the Company to develop or create for the Company's use, whether or not they are registered under intellectual property laws. The
Company does not permit the use or installation of computer programs unrelated to the Company's business or without a license on

the Company's computers.

7. Employees must not infringe on any intellectual property or copyrights, such as copying, reproducing, modifying, or
distributing any work, including computer software. Employees who infringe on any intellectual property or copyrights will be

considered to have committed a disciplinary offense as defined by the Company and relevant laws.
8. The use of computers and information technology must comply with the Computer Crime Act B.E. 2550, the Royal Decree on the
Supervision of Electronic Payment Service Businesses B.E. 2551, and other relevant electronic laws. If the Company discovers any

improper conduct, it will be considered a disciplinary offense.

9. The company requires all employees to comply with all applicable intellectual property and copyright laws, such as trademark

laws, patent laws, copyright laws, or any other relevant laws. The company also promotes training and education for employees on
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laws related to intellectual property and copyright. The company does not support employees using products that infringe on any

intellectual property or copyright.

10. If any act is found to be an infringement of copyright or an act that may give rise to an issue, dispute, or lawsuit

regarding intellectual property or copyright, the employee must report it to his/her supervisor immediately. Those who violate or
infringe upon such policy shall be subject to disciplinary action in accordance with the Company's work rules or the regulations
of the agency responsible for supervision and control. In the event that the offense is an offense under the law, the offender

shall be brought to justice in accordance with the law.

6. Anti-Corruption Policy

The company is committed to social responsibility and all stakeholders in accordance with good corporate governance principles
and the company's code of business conduct, as well as policies and practices towards various stakeholder groups. To demonstrate
its commitment to combating corruption in all its forms and to provide clear guidelines for conducting business and developing
into a sustainable organization, the company has established this Anti-Corruption Policy. This policy ensures that the company
has policies in place to define responsibilities, best practices, and appropriate operating procedures to prevent corruption in

all of its business activities. To ensure that business decisions with potential corruption risks are carefully considered and
executed, the company prohibits directors, executives, employees, agents, and any other individuals acting on behalf of the
company from engaging in or accepting corruption in any form, both directly and indirectly. This policy covers all businesses in
all countries and all relevant units. The company will regularly review compliance with this Anti-Corruption Policy, as well as
review its practices and operating procedures to ensure they are consistent with changes in the business environment,
regulations, legal requirements, and the company's Anti-Corruption Policy. The company is committed to implementing its Anti-
Corruption Policy and fostering it as an integral part of its corporate culture.

6.1 Practices

1. Prohibit directors, executives, employees, and employees of the Company from engaging in any act related to corruption in any
form in order to obtain or maintain business or competitive advantage, or for the direct or indirect benefit of themselves, their
families, friends, and acquaintances, whether they are in the position of recipient, giver, or offeror of bribes, as well as the
payment of facilitation fees, both monetary and non-monetary, to government or private agencies or stakeholders involved with the
Company with which the Company has done business or contacted, covering all businesses in all countries and all relevant

agencies. Actions that are considered high risk for corruption include:

- Receiving or Giving Gifts, Gratuities, and Entertainment Expenses: Receiving and giving gifts, gratuities, entertainment, or

any other benefits can be a starting point for corruption. Therefore, the company has established guidelines in accordance with

the Anti-Corruption Policy regarding the receiving and giving of gifts, gratuities, entertainment, or any other benefits, and has
announced their implementation throughout the organization. All company personnel are to strictly adhere to these guidelines. The
company will not demand or accept gifts, gratuities, entertainment, or any form of reciprocation from business partners to

prevent any hesitation in performing duties, selective treatment, or any actions that may lead to conflicts of interest. The

company communicates these guidelines to external parties involved in the company's business operations to maintain transparency,
honesty, integrity, and compliance with the law in the company's operations.

- Donations or Sponsorships: Donations or sponsorships can be made as part of corporate social responsibility activities, public
relations, and enhancing the company's image, without expecting business returns. These activities must be conducted
transparently and legally. The donor's name must be stated as the company's name only, following the company's approval
procedures. It must be ensured that such support is not used as a means of circumventing bribery.

- Monetary or In-kind Support: The provision of monetary or in-kind support must align with the company's policies and objectives
as outlined in its plans. It must have a clearly defined start and end date and adhere to legal procedures. It must not be used

for corruption or as a pretext for bribery.

- Bribery and Facilitation Payments: Giving or receiving bribes and facilitation payments in all types of company business is
prohibited, whether conducted directly by the company or through third parties. This includes subsidiaries, associated companies,
other companies under the company's control, business partners, and individuals who may be considered intermediaries or agents of

the company. Additionally, all dealings with government agencies must be transparent, honest, and in accordance with the law.
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- Sales Promotion Compensation or Trade Discounts: The payment or receipt of sales promotion compensation or trade discounts must
be governed by written guidelines, contracts, or trade agreements approved by authorized personnel. Documentation must be
provided to demonstrate the source of the funds, with evidence of payment or receipt of funds that have been reviewed and
approved by authorized personnel. The recipient's name must be specified for auditability.

- Conflict of Interest All employees of the Company must comply with the Company's rules and regulations, as well as perform
their duties to the best of their ability, not use company time to conduct other businesses that are not related to the interests
of the Company, and must act without regard to personal interests, not contrary to the best interests of the Company, and
determine fair and reasonable prices as if they were transacting with outsiders transparently.

- Political Contributions: The Company respects the individual rights of its employees to participate in or support political
activities in their personal capacity. Such activities must be conducted outside of working hours, without using the Company's
name or assets, and without any affiliation with or financial or other support to any political party, political group, political
figure, or candidate for political office, either directly or indirectly, at the local, regional, or national level, for the

purpose of benefiting the Company's business.

- Borrowing, Lending, and Creating Obligations: It is prohibited to demand, accept, offer, or provide financial or other benefits
to any person or entity in order to obtain or grant loans, or to create or eliminate obligations that are inappropriate,

unlawful, or unethical.

- Business Relationships and Procurement with the Public and Private Sectors It is prohibited to give or receive bribes in all
types of business transactions. Contacting and working with the public and private sectors must be transparent, honest, and in

accordance with relevant laws.

2. Regularly review compliance with the Anti-Corruption Policy, as well as review practices and procedures to ensure that they

are in line with changes in the business, regulations, and legal requirements.

6.2 Dissemination and Training

- The Company communicates and disseminates the anti-corruption policy, including channels for reporting, providing information,
or filing complaints to the Company's personnel, through various channels such as employee orientation, training or seminars,

public relations within the workplace, and through the Company's electronic systems. The Company also communicates periodically
to raise awareness among its personnel about various forms of corruption, the risks of involvement in corruption, and reporting
methods to ensure that everyone in the organization understands, agrees with, and complies with the anti-corruption policy and

measures seriously.

- The company communicates and disseminates its Anti-Corruption Policy, including whistleblowing channels, information, or
complaints, to the public, affiliated companies, and stakeholders through various channels such as the company's website and
annual report. This is to foster understanding and encourage adherence to social responsibility standards in combating

corruption, in line with the company's commitment. - If any company personnel have any doubts regarding this policy, they can
consult their supervisor, the Company Secretary, the Audit Committee, the Human Resources Manager, or the Internal Audit Manager.
Company personnel who engage in corruption are considered to have violated the company's code of conduct and will be subject to
disciplinary action according to the company's regulations. Additionally, they may face legal penalties if their actions are

deemed illegal.

6.3 Whistleblowing Measures and Channels: The company provides safe and accessible channels for employees and others to seek
guidance on compliance with the Anti-Corruption Policy. It establishes mechanisms for whistleblowing, receiving complaints, and
handling cases related to violations of laws, regulations, company code of conduct, or actions that may indicate corruption by
company personnel. This includes appropriate protection measures for whistleblowers, as per the Whistleblowing Policy, to provide
clear guidelines and ensure effective complaint handling.

Complaint and Suggestion Channels

(1) By mail
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1.1 Internal Audit Plan, BIG Camera Corporation Public Company Limited, 115, 115/1 Swasdikar 1 Road, Nong Khaem, Nong Khaem,
Bangkok 10160

1.2 Office of the Company Secretary, Big Camera Corporation Public Company Limited 115, 115/1 Sawatdikarn 1 Road, Nong Khaem
Subdistrict, Nong Khaem District, Bangkok 10160

1.3 Human Resources Plan, BIG Camera Corporation Public Company Limited, 115, 115/1 Swasdikar 1 Road, Nong Khaem, Nong Khaem,
Bangkok 10160

(2) Electronic mail bighotline@bigcamera.co.th

(3) Human Resources Department suggestion box. In case of any doubts, all employees can seek advice or clarification regarding

this policy. For actions that may be considered fraud or corruption, consult your direct supervisor, the Internal Audit

Department, the Human Resources Department, or the Legal Department. If unsure whether an action constitutes fraud or if you wish
to discuss before filing a complaint, you can send an email to: law@bigcamera.co.th

Confidentiality Protection and Safeguarding Measures 1. The Company will keep the information of the complainant and the
respondent confidential and will only disclose information as necessary, taking into account the safety and damage to the
complainant. 2. The complainant may request the Company to impose protection measures as appropriate, or the Company may impose
protection measures for the complainant without having to request them if, after consideration, it is deemed that there is a risk

that the complainant will be unsafe or harmed. 3. The Company will not take any unfair action against the complainant, such as
changing the complainant's position, job description, place of work, threatening, interfering with work, or dismissing the

complainant. Investigation Procedures and Disciplinary Action The Company has a process for disciplining personnel who fail to
comply with the Anti-Corruption Policy, with the following steps: 1. Upon receiving a tip-off/complaint, the Executive Committee
may use its discretion to consider the facts and then decide to indict the accused immediately if the complaint clearly shows

that the act is a serious offense against the Company. Or, the Executive Committee may appoint a Fact-Finding Committee, whose
members consist of the Internal Audit Department, the Human Resources Department, the Legal Department, the department of the
accused, and the department of the informant or complainant (if an employee) to expand the scope of the investigation to find
additional facts. 2. Upon receiving a tip-off/complaint, the Audit Committee will assign the Internal Audit or the Fact-Finding
Committee (if appointed) to screen and investigate the facts and report the results of the investigation to the informant or
complainant on a regular basis. 3. If the investigation reveals that the information or evidence available gives reasonable

grounds to believe that the accused has committed corruption, the Company will give the accused the right to be informed of the
allegations and to prove his/her innocence by seeking further information or evidence to show that he/she is not involved in the
alleged corruption. 4. If the accused has committed the corruption, the perpetrator of the corruption, whether a director,

executive, or employee, is deemed to have violated the Anti-Corruption Policy and the Company's Code of Business Conduct and
shall be subject to disciplinary action in accordance with the Company's regulations. If the corruption is an offense under the

law, the offender may be subject to legal penalties. The disciplinary action under the Company's regulations and the decision of

the Executive Committee shall be final. 7. Whistleblowing Policy The Company has a whistleblowing policy, investigation, and
whistleblower protection policy to provide all employees with a channel to report and whistleblow on wrongdoing or corruption
that occurs within the Company. The Company has provided channels for all stakeholders to report or complain about matters that
may cause damage to the Company, the Board of Directors, or infringe on their rights, which is in accordance with the Code of
Conduct. - All stakeholders of the Company, directors, executives, and employees, in the event that they witness or are
pressured/forced to commit any act that violates the Code of Conduct or any other matter that may cause damage to the Company

and/or the Board of Directors, can report it via Email: big.hotline@bigcamera.co.th

- In the case of employees, the performance of duties of employees can be reported via Email: big.hotline@bigcamera.co.th

- In the case of other stakeholders, such as shareholders, stakeholders, partners, customers, creditors, they can report via
Email: ir@bigcamera.co.th Or send information to the Office of the Company Secretary as disclosed in the section on channels for
contacting the Board of Directors and the Office of the Company Secretary. Channels for Contacting the Board of Directors and the

Company Secretary

The Company has provided channels for stakeholders to communicate their opinions, as well as to report any wrongdoing or unfair

treatment by the Company's officers in violation of the law or good ethics. Stakeholders can submit their concerns in writing to
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any one or more of the Company's directors or contact the Company Secretary at the Office of the Company Secretary, Big Camera

Corporation Public Company Limited, 115, 115/1 Sawatdikarn 1 Road, Nong Khaem Subdistrict, Nong Khaem District, Bangkok 10160. In
addition, stakeholders can contact us through the following channels: Company website: www.bigcamera.co.th Telephone: 02-8099956-

65 ext. 1213, 1204 or email the Company Secretary's Office at ir@bigcamera.co.th

6.1.1 Policy and guidelines related to the board of directors

Are there policy and guidelines related to the board of :  Yes
directors
Guidelines related to the board of directors Nomination of directors, Determination of director remuneration,

Independence of the board of directors from the management,

Corporate governance of subsidiaries and associated companies

Nomination of directors

Director and Senior Management Recruitment

1. Director Recruitment

When a director's term expires or there is a need to appoint additional directors, the current Board of Directors will meet to
consider and select directors using the criteria and recruitment methods, taking into account their knowledge, abilities, and

work experience. This is to determine individuals who are suitable in terms of experience, knowledge, and abilities that will
benefit the Company to become directors and who have the qualifications required by the Company to serve as directors of the
Company to replace directors who resign, whose terms expire, or in any other case where they are unable to perform their duties.
The recruitment of directors will take into account the appropriate number of directors to ensure the smooth operation of the
Company's business. The Company, therefore, has a policy to control the number of directors to be not less than 5 and not more
than 15, which is an appropriate number for the size and type of business, as well as the diversity of the Board structure. This

is to ensure that the management is efficient, flexible, and in the best interests of the Company. The person appointed as a
director of the Company must have the full qualifications as stipulated in Section 68 of the Public Limited Company Act B.E. 2535
(including amendments) and the Notification of the Securities and Exchange Commission B.E. 2535 (including amendments), other
relevant laws, and regulations. After the Board of Directors has resolved to appoint the director, the name of such director will

be submitted to the shareholders' meeting for approval (as the case may be).

The resolution of the shareholders' meeting shall be passed by a majority vote of the shareholders present and voting. Practices
for Director Recruitment and Selection

1) When a director resigns or the Company considers reviewing the Board structure in accordance with the specific needs of the
Board of Directors, the Board of Directors will jointly consider recruiting directors with the qualifications and experience that

are still lacking to meet the needs of the Board structure.

2) Specific characteristics are defined for individuals to be nominated as directors, such as leadership, knowledge, and

expertise appropriate to the Company's business, and the courage to express different opinions.

3) The Company has multiple channels for recruiting the Board of Directors, allowing shareholders to nominate qualified
individuals to be appointed as directors and using the database of professional directors of the Thai Institute of Directors
Association (IOD) as comparative information in recruiting new directors or considering existing directors. Board Diversity

The Board of Directors believes that the diversity of the Board is a key factor in enhancing the efficiency of the Company's
operations and the work of the Board of Directors. This diversity is not limited to gender but also includes ethnicity, age,
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge, abilities, and work perspectives. Therefore, the recruitment
and consideration for appointment of the Company's directors will be based primarily on knowledge and ability, including the use
of selection criteria that take into account the benefits and diversity mentioned above.

2. Senior Management Recruitment
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The Board of Directors is responsible for considering and recruiting suitable persons to serve as Chief Executive Officer and

senior executives who report directly to the Chief Executive Officer, including the establishment of a Succession Plan. The
selection will be made from qualified individuals both inside and outside the organization. The Nomination and Corporate
Governance Committee may consider hiring an independent consultant to assist in the recruitment process. Director and Executive
Development

The Board of Directors is aware of its role as the leader of the organization. More than half of the Board of Directors have
studied or attended lectures on the CG CODE until they understand the benefits and practices of applying it to management and
creating value for the organization to grow sustainably. This is to develop the knowledge and abilities of the directors to

perform their duties more effectively.

In addition, the Company has guidelines to promote and support all directors to study and receive further training to enhance

their knowledge of their duties as directors effectively on an ongoing basis, as follows:

1) Orientation for New Directors

Newly elected directors will receive a briefing on the Company's information that is necessary and beneficial to the performance
of their duties as directors within three months from the date of their appointment. This is to prepare and support the effective
performance of those elected or appointed to be able to assume the position of director as soon as possible. The Company has a
policy to enhance the knowledge and new perspectives of all directors, both in terms of good corporate governance and business

operations, with the Company Secretary coordinating and implementing the same.

The orientation for new directors will cover topics such as business structure, board structure, scope of authority, relevant
laws, business information characteristics, the Company's business operations, relevant regulations, good corporate governance,

business ethics, and information useful for performing their duties as directors.

2) Director Training

The Company supports all directors to study and receive further training to enhance their knowledge of their duties as directors
on an ongoing basis, such as attending training courses necessary for the performance of their duties as directors and/or other
related courses, including refresher courses to keep them abreast of current situations. This is to ensure that they understand
the importance of the Audit Committee to the capital market and the role of the Audit Committee in overseeing good corporate
governance, overseeing the quality of financial reporting, selecting quality auditors, and communicating with auditors on a
regular basis. They will also learn about tools to use in monitoring the performance of duties to ensure the quality of financial
reporting effectively in order to enhance the quality of corporate governance and the quality of financial reporting to be

better, in accordance with the Company's good corporate governance development plan.

Determination of director remuneration

Determination of Remuneration for Directors and Senior Management

The Company has a policy of setting directors' remuneration at a rate comparable to the same industry and sufficient to attract

and retain quality directors. The remuneration of directors and executives will be in line with the Company's operating results

and the performance of each executive. The Board of Directors will consider and determine the appropriate and necessary monetary
compensation for the subcommittees, the Chief Executive Officer, and executives who report directly to the Chief Executive

Officer. For the remuneration of directors and subcommittees, it will be submitted to the Board of Directors meeting for approval
and to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for approval every year.

1) The Board of Directors is responsible for determining the remuneration of the company's directors in terms of determining the

structure/components of remuneration, which should have the following characteristics:

- Fair, commensurate with responsibilities, and consistent with performance.

- At a level that can attract and retain quality directors or is comparable to the same industry.
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- The remuneration structure/components should be clear, transparent, and easy to understand.

2) The Board of Directors and senior management must report on the director remuneration policy, principles, and rationale in the
company's annual report and financial statements.

Independence of the board of directors from the management

Independence of the Board of Directors from Management

1) To ensure that the Board of Directors, under the leadership of the Chairman, has leadership and can effectively control the
management's operations, there is a clear separation of roles and responsibilities between the Chairman of the Board and the

Managing Director.

2) The Board of Directors must consist of independent directors from outside the company who possess knowledge, abilities, and
experience beneficial to the company's business. Independent directors must have adequate access to financial and business
information to express their opinions independently, protect the interests of stakeholders, and attend meetings regularly.

3) Independent directors must possess the qualifications of independence as per the Notification of the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Thailand. They must also possess other qualifications as specified by the company to ensure the equitable
protection of all shareholders' interests and prevent conflicts of interest between the company, management, or major
shareholders. Additionally, they must be able to express their opinions independently during meetings.

Guidelines for the Independence of the Board of Directors from Management

The Board of Directors ensures the monitoring of the management's performance by holding regular quarterly meetings with senior
executives and managers of each department. This emphasizes the importance of collaborative and comprehensive idea sharing to
seek beneficial information for the company's operations. Financial goals, corporate strategies, and key policies are used to
supervise and monitor the management's adherence to the established plans in accordance with the company's strategies regularly
and consistently. This ensures that the management can effectively implement the company's vision, goals, and strategies. The

Board of Directors has arranged for the management to carry out the following:

1) Define and Review Business Strategies, Objectives, and Company's Operational Plans

2) Oversee the adequacy of the company's risk management and internal control systems.
3) Define operational authority appropriate to the responsibilities of management.

4) Determine the allocation of resources and the development of the company's budget, such as policies and human resource
management plans, and information technology policies.

5) Monitoring and Evaluation of Operations

6) Overseeing the Disclosure of Financial and Other Material Information

Corporate governance of subsidiaries and associated companies

The company has an investment and management policy in subsidiaries to invest in related, similar, or beneficial businesses that
can support the company's business operations. This is to enhance the company's stability and operational performance for greater
growth. The company will consider investment proportions, profits, expected returns, potential risks, and the company's financial
status before deciding to invest in various projects. The approval of such investments must be considered by the company's board

of directors and/or the shareholders' meeting according to the scope of approval authority specified by the company.

6.1.2 Policy and guidelines related to shareholders and stakeholders

Are there policy and guidelines and measures related to  :  Yes
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shareholders and stakeholders

Guidelines and measures related to shareholders and :  Shareholders

stakeholders

Shareholders

Shareholder Policy and Practices, Shareholder Rights

The Company recognizes the rights of shareholders to make decisions regarding significant changes within the Company and to
receive their due rights, including accurate, complete, adequate, timely, and equal information about the Company to facilitate
their decision-making in all matters. The Company will not take any actions that infringe upon or restrict the existing rights of

shareholders. Therefore, the Board of Directors oversees and complies with the following fundamental rights that shareholders

should receive:

1. The right to receive share certificates and the right to trade or transfer shares. The Company has appointed Thailand
Securities Depository Co., Ltd. to act as its registrar in order to facilitate shareholders in carrying out transactions related
to the Company's share registry.

2. The right to propose agenda items in advance, nominate individuals for directorship, and submit questions about the Company in
advance for inquiry at the meeting. The Company has established criteria for proposing agenda items, nominating individuals for
directorship, and submitting questions about the Company (the criteria are disclosed on the Company's website www.bigcamera.co.th
Investor Relations section under the heading "Shareholders' Meeting") to provide an opportunity for minority shareholders to
participate in the corporate governance of the Company. Recognizing the rights of shareholders and encouraging shareholders to

fully exercise their rights at the meeting, the Company allows shareholders to propose agenda items for the Annual General

Meeting of Shareholders, nominate individuals for election as directors of the Company, or submit questions in advance through

the Company's website at least 3 months prior to the scheduled date of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. At the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders, the Company has published these guidelines on the Company's website and announced the news
through the website of the Stock Exchange of Thailand for the benefit of shareholders to be aware of their rights and to allow
shareholders time to study the meeting materials. On the day of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, the Board of

Directors and executives responsible for finance and accounting, as well as the certified auditors, will attend the Annual

General Meeting of Shareholders together to answer shareholders' questions. This is to comply with good corporate governance
principles. In the past year, the Company has allowed shareholders to propose agenda items to be included in the agenda of the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and to nominate qualified individuals for consideration for election as directors of the
Company at the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in advance from November 15, 2023, to February 15, 2024. The criteria
and procedures are as specified by the Company on the Company's website (the criteria are disclosed on the Company's website www.

bigcamera.co.th Investor Relations section under the heading "Shareholders' Meeting").

3. The right to attend shareholders' meetings and the convening of meetings

Each year, the Company will hold one Annual General Meeting of Shareholders within 4 months from the end of the Company's fiscal
year. The Company will disclose the schedule of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to shareholders in advance to allow

them to plan their schedules accordingly.

For shareholders' meetings, the Company will announce the names of 2 independent directors in the meeting notice to allow
shareholders who are unable to attend the meeting to consider selecting a person to be their proxy. Shareholders may grant a
proxy to an independent director or to any other person they deem appropriate. In voting on each agenda item, shareholders may
vote in advance by specifying their vote in the proxy form or allow their proxy to vote at the meeting.

In addition, the Company publishes the invitation letter, meeting materials, and proxy form on its website no less than 28 days

in advance to provide a channel for shareholders to access the same information that the Company has sent to shareholders in
document form. The Company also announces the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in newspapers and/or on the Company's
website no less than 3 days prior to the meeting date and advertises for 3 consecutive days as required by law.

The Board of Directors encourages the dissemination of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders' documents through the

Company's website for the benefit of shareholders to be aware of their rights and to have time to study and consider the agenda
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items and meeting materials. The Company published the notice of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders along with the
meeting materials in both Thai and English on March 25, 2024.

The Company clearly specifies the agenda items to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders without any other
items that have not been presented for consideration at the meeting. On the meeting day, the Company also avoids adding any other
agenda items that were not previously specified in the invitation letter, as this would be unfair to shareholders who are not

present at the meeting. For the election of directors, the Company provides the names and brief biographies of each director
nominated for shareholders' consideration. The Company allows shareholders to vote for directors individually. Similarly, for the
appointment of auditors, the Company clearly states the name of the auditor, their affiliated firm, experience, capabilities,
independence, the duration of their previous engagement as the Company's auditor, and their remuneration to enable shareholders
to assess the suitability of the auditor. Regarding the proposal for dividend payment approval (if any), the Company will

announce its dividend payment policy, the proposed dividend rate, and provide reasons and relevant information for shareholders'

consideration.

Shareholders' Meeting

To hold the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, there must be at least 25 shareholders and proxies of shareholders (if any)
present at the meeting, or not less than half of the total number of shareholders, and they must hold in aggregate not less than

1/3 of the total number of issued shares to constitute a quorum.

In voting, the Company grants shareholders one vote per share and encourages shareholders to use their voting cards for all

agenda items. The Company prepares separate voting cards for each agenda item to allow shareholders to vote as they see fit.

Before the meeting commences, the chairman of the meeting instructs the Company's meeting conductor to clearly explain the voting
procedures and vote counting methods for shareholders on each agenda item in accordance with the Company's Articles of
Association. The use of voting cards for all agenda items is mandated to ensure transparency, verifiability, and to allow

shareholders to vote as they see fit. This also ensures that shareholders can clearly exercise their voting rights on each agenda

item. In the event that a shareholder arrives after the meeting has commenced, they still have the right to join the quorum and

vote. They can vote on agenda items starting from the point at which they joined the meeting. During the meeting, the chairman
presents matters to shareholders for consideration in accordance with the agenda and provides an opportunity for shareholders to
ask questions on each agenda item. For matters outside the set agenda, the Company allows shareholders to ask questions at the

end of the meeting. Each shareholder has equal rights and is given sufficient and appropriate time.

In the past year 2024, the Board of Directors held the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on Wednesday, April 25, 2024, at 2:

00 p.m. via electronic means (E-AGM) at the meeting room of Big Camera Corporation Public Company Limited, located at 115, 115/1
Sawatdi Karn 1 Road, Nong Khaem Subdistrict, Nong Khaem District, Bangkok. On the meeting day, the Chairman of the Board presided
over the meeting, met with, and addressed shareholders' questions regarding the Company's management. The meeting was attended by
the Board of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer, the Chairman of the Audit Committee, the Managing Director, executives, and

the Company Secretary. All 10 directors were present, representing 100% of the total number of directors. The meeting was

attended by over 25 shareholders, representing 2,495,470,152 shares, or 70.7156% of the total issued shares of the Company,
constituting a quorum in accordance with the Company's Articles of Association.

On the day of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, the Board of Directors, executives responsible for finance and

accounting, and the certified auditors attend the meeting together to answer shareholders' questions. Additionally, the Company
invites representatives from the auditor and legal counsel to attend the meeting from the beginning to listen to opinions and

prepare to answer shareholders' questions. Disclosure of Meeting Resolutions The Company discloses the resolutions of the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders along with the voting results by sending a letter to the directors and the Stock Exchange of

Thailand and publishing them on the Company's website after the meeting concludes, which was on April 26, 2024. The Company also
publishes a recording of the meeting on its website to provide access to shareholders who are interested in viewing the meeting

retrospectively. Minutes of the Shareholders' Meeting

To ensure that shareholders are informed of and can review the details of the shareholders' meeting in a timely manner, and to
ensure equal access to information for both Thai and foreign shareholders, the Company has a policy of disseminating the minutes
of the shareholders' meeting accurately and comprehensively in both Thai and English. Each agenda item includes important
information such as the voting procedure, the essence of the agenda item, the resolution of the meeting, the voting results

(including votes for, against, and abstentions), questions and comments raised during the meeting, and the list of attending
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directors along with their positions. In 2024, all of the Company's directors attended the meeting. The Company published the
minutes of the meeting on its website within 14 days from the date of the shareholders' meeting as a channel for shareholders to
verify the accuracy of the information. The minutes of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders were also submitted to the
Stock Exchange of Thailand's website.

The Board of Directors has published the minutes of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, held on Wednesday, April 25,
2024, on the Company's website. www.bigcamera.co.th Investor Relations section under the heading "Shareholders' Meeting" from May
8, 2024. The Company also submitted the minutes of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to the Stock Exchange of
Thailand on May 8, 2024.

4. The right to receive dividends and share in the Company's profits. The Company distributes profits to shareholders in the form

of dividends. The Company has a policy of paying dividends to shareholders at a rate of not less than 50% of net profit after
deducting legal reserves and other reserves (if any). The Company discloses its dividend payment policy and the proposed dividend
rate (if any), along with reasons and supporting information, to shareholders in advance in the invitation letter. Based on the
operating results for the year 2024, the Board of Directors proposed to the shareholders' meeting for approval the payment of
dividends for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024. The Board of Directors set the record date for shareholders entitled to
receive dividends on March 18, 2025, and the dividend payment date on May 15, 2025.

5. The right to consider directors' remuneration. The payment of directors' remuneration is in accordance with Section 90 of the
Public Limited Company Act, which states that "The remuneration of directors shall be as determined by a resolution of the
shareholders' meeting, which shall consist of not less than two-thirds of the total votes of the shareholders present at the
meeting." Therefore, the Company has established a policy for considering directors' remuneration and presents the remuneration
policy and criteria for each director position to shareholders for their acknowledgment and approval at the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders every year. The Company considers the form and criteria for remuneration for each director position based
on the size of the business, the business environment, the overall economic conditions, the Company's performance that reflects
and correlates with its operating results, and benchmarks against the remuneration rates of companies in the same industry,
ensuring that it is competitive and reasonable. The Company discloses directors' remuneration in accordance with Section 90 of
the Public Limited Company Act, with details provided in the Directors' Remuneration Policy under the heading "Attendance at
Meetings and Remuneration of Individual Directors" on page 229.

6. The right to receive timely and adequate information and news about the Company's operations. The Company places importance on
shareholders' meetings and has a policy of facilitating all shareholders equally in participating in the meeting, receiving

information, asking questions, and exercising voting rights at the shareholders' meeting. The Company treats all shareholders

equally, whether they are major shareholders or minority shareholders, Thai shareholders or foreign shareholders. The Company
discloses information through the Stock Exchange of Thailand's news system and publishes important information and current news

on its website. www.bigcamera.co.th under the Investor Relations section to safeguard the rights of shareholders.

7. The right to approve the appointment of auditors and determine audit fees. The Company has an agenda item for the appointment
of auditors and the determination of audit fees to be proposed to shareholders for approval at the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders every year. The details of the proposed auditors are included, along with details about their affiliated firms,

experience, capabilities, independence, and audit fees to provide sufficient information for shareholders to consider. Treating

shareholders equally

The Board of Directors has established a good corporate governance policy to assure all shareholders, including minority
shareholders and foreign shareholders, that they will receive their fundamental rights under the law and other shareholder rights
fairly and equally, including the opportunity for redress in the event of a violation of their rights. Therefore, to protect the

rights of all shareholders and ensure fair and equal treatment, the Board of Directors has established the following guidelines:

1. The Company will notify the Stock Exchange of Thailand of the date and time of the shareholders' meeting, including the
relevant agenda items, and publish the meeting schedule on the Company's website prior to the meeting in accordance with the
timeframes stipulated by relevant laws, announcements, or regulations. The meeting schedule will also be published on the
Company's website prior to the shareholders' meeting. Additionally, the invitation letter for the meeting will be prepared and
published in both Thai and English on the Company's website.

2. The Company has clear and reasonable criteria for considering the appropriateness of including agenda items proposed by
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shareholders. The Board of Directors has a policy of not adding agenda items to the shareholders' meeting without prior notice

unless necessary. This is to allow shareholders to have sufficient time to study the information before making a decision.

3. In conducting each shareholders' meeting, the Company provides equal opportunity to all shareholders. Before the meeting
commences, the chairman of the meeting will clarify the voting procedures and vote counting methods for shareholders on each
agenda item. The chairman will also provide an opportunity for all attending shareholders and proxies to express their opinions,
suggestions, and ask questions on each agenda item with appropriate and sufficient time. The chairman will conduct the meeting

according to the set agenda.

4. The Company has established guidelines for safeguarding and preventing the misuse of the Company's inside information.
Individuals or departments with access to inside information are prohibited from disclosing such information to unrelated
parties. Any person who discloses such information or uses it for their own or others' benefit, or engages in transactions that
may result in a conflict of interest, will be deemed to have committed a serious offense and will be subject to disciplinary
action. Additionally, the Company requires all directors and executives who are subject to securities reporting requirements to

submit their reports to the Company Secretary regularly and disclose them in the Company's annual report.

5. The Company requires directors to report any conflicts of interest in any agenda item at least prior to the consideration of
the relevant agenda item at the Board of Directors' meeting and to record such conflicts of interest in the minutes of the Board
of Directors' meeting. Directors with a material conflict of interest that could prevent them from providing an independent

opinion on the relevant agenda item are prohibited from participating in the meeting during the consideration of such agenda item.

6. The Company has established a policy for conducting transactions with related parties that will be conducted fairly, at market

prices, and in accordance with normal business practices, which will be disclosed in the annual report or 56-1 One Report.

7. Shareholders will not lose their right to attend the meeting. In the event that a shareholder is unable to attend the meeting

in person, the Company allows the shareholder to grant a proxy to an independent director or a person deemed appropriate by the
shareholder to attend the meeting and vote on their behalf. The Company will propose the name of at least one independent
director as an option for the shareholder's proxy. Shareholders can use the proxy form that the Company has sent along with the
invitation letter, which will include Forms A, B, and C. These forms will specify recommendations, procedures, and uncomplicated
documentary evidence for granting a proxy. Additionally, the Company will provide stamp duty to be affixed to the shareholder's

power of attorney.

8. Equal voting rights. Shares of the same class have equal voting rights, with one share equaling one vote. In the event that

the Company has more than one class of shares, the Company will disclose the voting rights of each class of shares to
shareholders prior to voting. Policy on Facilitating and Encouraging Attendance at Shareholders' Meetings The Company recognizes
the rights of shareholders to make decisions regarding significant changes within the Company and to receive accurate, adequate,
timely, and equal information about the Company to facilitate their decision-making in all matters. Therefore, the Board of

Directors has established the following policies:

1. The Company holds its Annual General Meeting of Shareholders transparently, efficiently, and in accordance with the law and
the Company's Articles of Association. The meeting is held within four (4) months from the end of the Company's fiscal year.

2. The Company has set the date and time of the meeting on a non-public holiday. The meeting format is determined based on
appropriateness, whether it be a physical format or through electronic means (E-AGM) in accordance with the Emergency Decree on
Electronic Meetings B.E. 2563 (2020) and relevant laws. Furthermore, technology is being utilized for the shareholders' meeting,
including online registration and the ability to submit questions in advance via email, to ensure that the meeting proceeds
conveniently, swiftly, and accurately.

3. The Company facilitates shareholders by providing the opportunity to nominate individuals for consideration for election as
directors and to propose agenda items for the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, as well as to submit questions about the

meeting in advance within the specified timeframe.
4. The Company will send out the notice of meeting along with sufficient information on each agenda item, specifying the

objectives, reasons, and opinions of the Board of Directors on all agenda items to allow shareholders to fully review the

information at least 14 days prior to the shareholders' meeting. The Company will also disclose such information in advance
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through various channels, including announcements through the Stock Exchange and on the Company's website prior to the meeting
date.

5. The Company places importance on shareholders' meetings and facilitates all shareholders equally, whether they are major
shareholders or minority shareholders, Thai shareholders or foreign shareholders, in participating in the meeting, including

receiving information, asking questions, and exercising voting rights at the shareholders' meeting.

6. The Company provides additional facilitation for shareholders who are unable to attend the meeting in person by allowing them
to grant a proxy to any individual or to have at least one independent director attend the meeting and vote on their behalf. The
names of such independent directors will be disclosed in the invitation letter for the shareholders' meeting.

7. Shareholders can download proxy forms B and C from the Company's website. Proxy forms B and C are also attached to the meeting
invitation letter to facilitate shareholders who are unable to attend the meeting in person. This allows shareholders to grant

power of attorney to an independent director appointed by the Company to act as their proxy, essentially representing the

minority shareholders. Alternatively, shareholders can grant power of attorney to another person to attend the meeting and vote

on their behalf according to the conditions specified in the proxy form, which are in line with general legal requirements.

8. At the shareholders' meeting, matters will be considered and voted upon according to the set agenda without changing important

information or adding agenda items.

9. The Company provides equal opportunity for all shareholders to express their opinions or ask questions by allocating
sufficient and appropriate time. Important questions and suggestions from shareholders will be fully recorded in the minutes of
the meeting.

10. Disclose the resolutions of the shareholders' meeting and the voting results for each agenda item within the day of the
shareholders' meeting or at the latest by 9:00 a.m. of the next business day through the Stock Exchange of Thailand's news system
(SETLINK).

11. The minutes of the meeting shall be recorded accurately, completely, promptly, and transparently. Important questions and
comments shall be recorded in the minutes of the meeting for shareholders to review. Additionally, the minutes of the
shareholders' meeting shall be published on the Company's website for shareholders' consideration. The minutes of the meeting

shall also be submitted to the Stock Exchange of Thailand within 14 days from the date of the shareholders' meeting.

12. The Company records the meeting in video format and records the voting. These recordings are published on the Company's
website to facilitate shareholders and interested external parties in viewing the shareholders' meeting.

13. Appoint the Company Secretary and Investor Relations department to be the point of contact, coordinate, and facilitate

communication between the Company and shareholders and investors.
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6.2 Business code of conduct

Business code of conduct

Business code of conduct :  Yes

The Company is committed to conducting business in accordance with the principles of good corporate governance, has a policy of
management, conducting business in accordance with laws, regulations, and various applicable regulations, encouraging employees
in the organization to have good practices and conduct themselves in a manner appropriate for conducting business professionally,
as well as having morals and ethics, honesty, integrity, responsibility to society, community, environment, and the overall

economy, conducting business transparently, verifiably, giving importance to customers, taking into account all stakeholders, not
being involved in human rights violations, combating corruption, not accepting unusual rewards, not being involved in soliciting

or paying bribes, not having conflicts of interest, and not committing any act that infringes the intellectual property or

copyright of others, which are important principles based on the "Code of Business Conduct and Work Practices" (CODE OF CONDUCT)
to be used as good practices for the Board of Directors, executives, and employees of the company by conducting business in
accordance with the principles of good governance and responsibility to stakeholders both inside and outside the organization to
achieve the objectives, vision, and goals of the company, as well as to help enhance the efficiency of work in the organization.
(More information can be found on the company's website. www.bigcamera.co.th Under the Investor Relations section)

The company has established practices regarding the "Code of Business Conduct and Work Practices" (CODE OF CONDUCT) to be used as

guidelines as follows:

1. Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors and Executives

The Company expects the directors, sub-committees, and directors of subsidiaries to perform their duties within the framework of
laws, announcements, regulations of regulatory agencies, company regulations, ethics, and corporate governance principles by
performing their duties with honesty, prudence, and diligence for the utmost benefit of the Company's sustainable business
operations and stakeholders, as follows:

- Comply with regulations, rules, and various laws related to the company's business operations.

- Perform duties impartially, honestly, with the best interests of the company in mind.

- Avoid conflicts of interest for transparency in efficient management.

- Maintain the confidentiality of the organization, do not leak information to unrelated persons, which may cause damage to the
organization or stakeholders, except as required by law.

- The acquisition or disposal of listed securities by directors, spouses, and minor children shall be in accordance with the
Notification of the Stock Exchange of Thailand on the Conduct of Directors Regarding the Acquisition or Disposal of Securities B.

E. 2547.

- The Board of Directors and management must be good representatives of the shareholders for the sustainable growth of the

Company and provide appropriate returns on a continuous basis.

2. Code of Conduct for Company Employees

Employees should be aware that a good working environment, safety, and mutual respect require everyone to adhere to the code of
conduct. Starting with every employee must be responsible for their actions and for conducting business with honesty and

integrity. By strictly adhering to the company's policies and the "Code of Business Conduct and Work Practices" manual, as

follows:

- Perform duties with honesty, integrity, responsibility, and prudence, as well as make any decisions fairly.

- Do not engage in any act that may create a conflict of interest with the company.
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- Perform duties with responsibility, dedication to the company's work fully.

- As a representative of the company, employees must be respectful, cooperative, and helpful to customers, business partners,
contractors, other employees, and the general public involved with the company.

- Perform duties diligently, including seeking ways to develop, improve, correct, and develop oneself and one's work to be

efficient at all times.

- Do not use one's authority, either directly or indirectly, to seek benefits for oneself or others.

- Do not insult, slander, or defame the company and other employees, and do not impersonate the company and other employees for

personal gain.

- Strengthen teamwork by cooperating and helping each other for the benefit of the work.

- Prohibited from participating in or concealing any act that may have a conflict of interest with the company or may render it

impossible to perform duties fairly or to participate in concealing illegal acts.

- Perform duties with honesty and awareness that duty must come before all else, not misconduct, fraud, or dishonesty in the

performance of duties.

- Do not drink alcohol or use any illegal drugs or be intoxicated while on duty.

- Prohibited from using company information obtained from performing duties to seek benefits for oneself or others improperly.

- Must maintain the confidentiality of the company by taking care not to leak documents or information that are confidential to

the company or fall into the hands of unrelated persons, which may cause damage to the company.
- Do not engage in any act, either by oneself or one's family, that constitutes soliciting or accepting any object, money, or
other benefit from another person who has a business relationship with the company, except on occasions or festivals that are

customary, but must not be excessive in price or unreasonable.

- Employees must not use the property or funds of colleagues and customers, search, use, or disclose information or details about
other employees or external parties such as business partners and customers who have a confidential relationship with the Company.

- Notify relevant agencies and executives if any wrongdoing or illegal activities are found in the company.

- Manage and maintain the company's assets, use them to the fullest extent, prevent them from being damaged or lost improperly,
and do not use them for personal gain.

- Pay attention and help to carry out any actions that will keep the working environment clean, safe, and pleasant at all times.

- Be careful in expressing opinions to anyone on matters that may affect the reputation, image, and operations of the company.

- Employees must not interfere with, eavesdrop on, monitor, or record conversations, data transmissions, or silent

communications, or disclose information or words, use telephones or communication devices of customers or the Company, unless the
customer or the Company consents or there is a legal provision to do so.

3. Code of Conduct for Stakeholders

The company is committed to sustainable business development by developing processes to create and develop ideas for
responsibility towards all stakeholders, including shareholders, employees, customers, business partners, competitors, society,

communities, and the environment. In addition, the company continuously promotes and supports activities for the benefit of

society and the environment in accordance with the following good practices: Practices and Responsibilities to Shareholders
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The Company recognizes that shareholders are the owners of the business. The Company is therefore committed to creating
shareholder satisfaction by creating long-term value for shareholders and conducting business operations efficiently,
transparently, prudently, with good performance, stable and sustainable growth, as well as respecting the rights and equality of
all shareholders, both executive and non-executive shareholders, Thai or foreign shareholders, large or small shareholders, to be
treated equally by adhering to the principle of shareholder equality and safeguarding the interests of shareholders. The Company

has therefore established the following guidelines:

(1) Perform duties with honesty and integrity, as well as make any decisions carefully, prudently, and fairly under reasonable
judgment based on information believed to be sufficient, accurate, without any conflict of interest, both directly or indirectly,
and made in good faith for the best interests of the company, not acting with a conflict of interest.

(2) Comply with the law, the company's objectives and regulations, Board resolutions, shareholder resolutions, operate in

accordance with good corporate governance practices, and the code of business conduct.

(3) Oversee operations to ensure that the company has a good financial position and operating results, and that the company's
status report, operating results, financial position, accounting information, and other reports are presented fairly and

completely in accordance with the facts.

(4) Manage and ensure that the company's assets are not impaired or lost improperly. Provide an effective internal control system

and risk management system.

(5) Provide accurate, factual, and sufficient information to all shareholders on an equal and timely basis for decision-making.

(6) Oversee that directors, management, and employees do not seek benefits for themselves and others by using any information of
the company that has not yet been disclosed to the public or engage in any act that may create a conflict of interest with the

organization.

(7) Provide channels for reporting wrongdoing or complaints, including websites, mail, and telecommunications, and have a process
for responding to complaints, protecting complainants, and reporting the results of proceedings to complainants in a systematic

and fair manner.

(8) Provide a variety of information dissemination channels, including creating a company website that shareholders can easily
access, and presenting information in an easy-to-understand language. Practices and Responsibilities to the State

The company places importance on complying with laws, regulations, and rules, both in the government sector, especially in
conducting transactions. The company avoids actions that may induce the state or state employees to act inappropriately, but will
focus on building good relations with each other within appropriate and feasible limits, such as meeting and talking in public

places, congratulating on occasions, festivals, or according to customary practices. The following are the main practices:

(1) Proceed correctly when having to contact the competent authority or government agency.

(2) Always be aware that laws, rules, or regulations in various government agencies may have different conditions, steps, or

practices, and the company must be aware of and comply with them strictly. Practices and Responsibilities to Employees

The company is always aware that all employees are the most valuable resource of the company and are a key factor in the success
of achieving the company's goals. The company is therefore committed to developing and fostering a good working culture and
atmosphere, promoting teamwork to build confidence among employees. The company has therefore established a policy to treat
employees fairly by adhering to the principles of equality and fairess in terms of opportunities, employment, compensation,
appointments, transfers, as well as potential development in conjunction with moral development. The following practices have

been adopted:
(1) The company has measures to protect employees who provide information to the authorities in the event of an illegal act, a

violation of the Securities and Exchange Act, or a violation of the Securities and Exchange Act. They will be protected and the

company will not be able to act unfairly, whether it be a change of position, job description, place of work, suspension,
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intimidation, harassment, dismissal, due to the cause of whistleblowing about illegal activities or ethical violations.

(2) Treat employees with courtesy, respect for individuality, and human dignity in accordance with universal human rights.

(3) Maintain the working environment and organize the work system so that employees have safety in life and property, including

good hygiene at all times.

(4) Provide channels for employees to file complaints in case of unfair treatment or report clues about matters that may be

illegal, and have a redress process, including measures to protect complaining employees that are systematic and fair.

(5) The appointment, transfer, reward, and punishment of employees must be done fairly, honestly, and justly, and based on

knowledge, ability, and suitability, including the actions or performance of such employees.
(6) Give importance to developing employees' knowledge and abilities and enhancing their potential by providing them with
opportunities for continuous development, such as organizing seminars, training, and providing equal opportunities to all

employees.

(7) Determine employee compensation fairly, based on market conditions, business competition, the nature of the work, performance

results, and the company's ability to pay such compensation, including the provision of a provident fund.

(8) Avoid any unfair act that may affect the job security of employees or threaten and pressure the mental state of employees.

(9) Listen to ideas and suggestions from employees at all levels equally and fairly.

(10) Be equal, do not use discretion or personal relationships in making decisions, do not discriminate on the basis of race,

nationality, religion, or gender.

(11) Provide opportunities for employees to make suggestions or complaints about work and define solutions to benefit all parties
and build good relationships in working together.

(12) Comply with labor laws, regulations, and rules related to employees strictly.

(13) Provide training to employees to provide knowledge about policies and practices in combating fraud and corruption.

(14) Develop a code of conduct for employees and promote and support employees' understanding of the code of conduct, including
the roles that employees can perform, to provide guidelines for good work practices for employees. Practices and Responsibilities

to Customers

The company conducts business with a commitment to caring for and being responsible to customers, with the intention of creating,
presenting, and managing the company's products and services to customers in an ethical and standardized manner, promoting the
treatment of customers with sincerity and courtesy to create satisfaction and confidence for customers that they will receive

safety, good quality service, as well as maintain good and sustainable relationships by requiring that there be a department or
person to oversee customer relations in order to find ways to meet customer needs more effectively. Therefore, the following

guidelines have been established:

(1) Committed to sourcing, developing products and services to meet customer needs.

(2) Sell certified and standardized products at fair prices and do not profiteer.

(3) Committed to creating satisfaction and confidence for customers to receive safety from good and quality service by

continuously and seriously raising standards.
(4) Provide accurate and sufficient information about products and services to enable customers to make informed decisions

without exaggeration, both in advertising or in other communication channels with customers, which may cause customers to

misunderstand the quality, quantity, or any conditions of the products or services.
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(5) Disclose information about good quality services completely, accurately, timely, and without distorting the truth, including

maintaining good and sustainable relationships.

(6) Strictly comply with the conditions for customers. In the event that any condition cannot be complied with, the customer must

be notified immediately to jointly consider solutions.

(7) Treat customers with courtesy, equality, and be trustworthy to customers.

(8) Provide channels for providing information about a variety of products to enable customers to access information conveniently.

(9) Establish a system/process to enable customers to express their opinions or complaints, report problems with inappropriate
products and services, so that the company can prevent and resolve problems for customers quickly and use such information to

improve, correct, or develop such products and services, as well as inform customers of the results.

(10) Have a system for securely storing customer information, have measures to maintain customer confidentiality, do not disclose
information without consent from customers, and do not use customer information for personal gain and/or related parties

improperly.

(11) Provide product warranties under reasonable timeframes and comply with the Consumer Protection Act. Practices and
Responsibilities to Business Partners and Contractors The Company takes into account equality and honesty in conducting business
and mutual benefits with business partners and contractors. The company's business partners and contractors are expected to
strictly comply with laws and regulations and have good business ethics. In the area of competitive business, the company will
adhere to the rules of good and fair competition. Therefore, in order to comply with these principles, the company has

established the following guidelines:

(1) The company intends for the procurement of goods and services to be efficient under the following principles:

- There is competition based on equal information.

- The criteria for selecting business partners and contractors are based on equality and faimess.

- Develop appropriate contract formats that are fair to both parties.

- Provide a system of management and monitoring to ensure that the terms of the contract are fully complied with and to prevent

fraud and misconduct at every stage of the procurement process.

- Pay business partners and contractors on time, according to the agreed payment terms.

(2) The Company aims to develop and maintain sustainable relationships with partners and contractors with clear objectives in

terms of the quality of goods and services that are value for money and mutual trust.

(3) Executives or employees involved in procurement, hiring, and services must disclose information and/or the nature of personal
relationships of themselves, their spouses, close relatives, or those who have personal relationships with any bidder that may
result in a lack of transparency in performing their duties directly. Show accountability by not participating in the decision-

making process. (4) Comply with the various conditions imposed on the company's business partners on the basis of receiving equal
and fair returns for the mutual benefit of both parties. In the event that the conditions cannot be met, the business partners

will be notified in advance in order to jointly consider solutions using reasonable principles.

(5) Do not solicit or accept gifts, gratuities, entertainment, except on appropriate occasions according to customary practices,
and refrain from giving special favors to the extent that others may think that injustice may occur, especially causing other
vendors to misunderstand and not want to participate in bidding, and may lead to telling and causing the company to lose its

image.

(6) Do not use information learmned as a result of procurement for personal gain or for the benefit of others.
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(7) Use goods and services with the correct copyrights, patents, and trademarks, and do not support products or actions that

infringe on intellectual property.

(8) Refrain from any act that helps business partners and/or creditors avoid paying taxes due to the government.

Practices and Responsibilities to Creditors The Company is committed to conducting business with integrity and discipline to

build trust with creditors. The Company adheres to the following practices:

(1) Comply with the conditions imposed on creditors strictly, including repayment, taking care of collateral, and other
conditions, and not using the funds obtained from borrowing for purposes contrary to the agreement made with the lender.

(2) Report accurate and complete financial information to creditors on a regular basis.

(3) If the Company cannot comply with the agreed-upon conditions, the Company will notify the creditor in advance to jointly

consider solutions.

(4) Be fair to creditors in accordance with the seniority of the debt under the contract entered into without violating the
rights of creditors. Practices and Responsibilities to Competitors The Company aims to conduct business with the intention of
achieving sustainable success and being a leader in the business under ethical and ethical competition in the industry. The

principles of dealing with competitors are as follows: (1) Comply with the framework of good competition rules.

(2) Compare competitors' products and services fairly and realistically, without distorting the facts.

(3) Do not seek confidential information from competitors by dishonest or inappropriate means for the benefit of the Company's

business.

(4) The company will compete fully, independently, fairly, by using competitive offers based on price, product quality, and

service.

(5) Do not make false accusations or intend to damage the reputation of competitors, as well as the products and services of

competitors.

(6) Do not engage in any act that infringes the intellectual property of others or competitors.

(7) Cooperate to enhance business potential for sustainable growth. Practices and Responsibilities to the Community, Society, and

Environment

The company places importance on the surrounding communities and society, recognizing that we are like a part of society that
will move forward together towards the development of society and the environment for sustainability. The company has therefore
continuously carried out activities for the community and society in parallel with conducting business under responsibility to

the community and society as a whole, including giving importance to the conservation of natural resources and promoting the

efficient use of energy. Therefore, the following guidelines have been established:
(1) The company considers it a duty and a key policy to give importance to social and community activities by focusing on
social, community, and environmental development, aiming to create and conserve natural resources, support education for youth,

and support public benefit activities for disadvantaged communities to become strong and self-reliant communities.

(2) Have a policy of conducting business with environmental considerations in mind and comply with applicable environmental laws

and regulations.

(3) Have a clear corporate social responsibility (CSR) policy and adhere to it within the organization.

(4) Act as a good citizen by strictly complying with relevant laws and regulations.

Part 2 Corporate Governance

136



(5) Instill awareness of social, community, and environmental responsibility among employees at all levels on an ongoing basis.

(6) Promote the use and conservation of energy by providing measures to save energy and use resources efficiently and cost-
effectively.

(7) Encourage executives and employees to pay attention to activities that promote and instill awareness of safety, occupational

health, and the environment.

(8) Respect the customs, traditions, and cultures of each locality where the company conducts business.

(9) Participate in activities to jointly create a better society, community, and environment on a regular basis in order to
improve the quality of life of the communities where the company is located, both on its own and in collaboration with government

agencies, the private sector, and communities.

(10) Respond promptly and effectively to events that impact the environment, community, life, and property as a result of the
company's operations by fully cooperating with government officials and relevant agencies.

(11) Comply with, cooperate with, or ensure strict compliance with the intent of laws and regulations issued by regulators.

Investor Relations Code of Conduct

The company places importance on the performance of investor relations duties. As investor relations is responsible for
communicating and disclosing information, news, and various activities of the company to shareholders, investors, both

individuals and institutions, analysts, the press, relevant government agencies, as well as the general public, accurately,
adequately, transparently, comprehensively, timely, and on various events that occur, including building confidence and enhancing
the company's image. In addition, the company promotes the investor relations operations of the company to be based on ethical
principles, in accordance with the principles of good corporate governance and business ethics, by emphasizing information
disclosure, maintaining internal information, and strictly complying with relevant laws and regulations, and upholding the

interests of shareholders and all stakeholders. Therefore, the "Investor Relations Code of Conduct" has been established for
investor relations personnel and personnel involved in investor relations disclosure to use as guidelines for proper and

appropriate work practices as follows:

- Disclosure of important information necessary for making investment decisions accurately, adequately, and timely.

- Maintaining and safeguarding internal information, maintaining confidentiality, not disclosing, and not using any internal
information of the company that has not yet been disclosed to the public to seek benefits for oneself and/or other persons until

the information is disclosed to the public.

- Disclose information equally and fairly, use caution in communicating information through social networks. If issues are found
that cause misunderstandings or misconceptions, it is necessary to clarify the information through the Stock Exchange's system
for all parties involved to be aware of in order to prevent the problem of providing information to only a particular group.

- Performing duties with honesty, to the best of one's ability, with responsibility, and professionalism, as well as honesty in

the profession and conducting oneself on the basis of the principles of correctness and equality, without discrimination based on
any bribes that are personal incentives and benefit oneself or any person or group of persons more than the interests of the
company and stakeholders involved.

Code of Business Conduct

The company is committed to conducting business responsibly towards society and all stakeholders by adhering to the principles of
morality, ethics, transparent management, in accordance with the principles of good corporate governance, good corporate
governance, and the company's business ethics by focusing on establishing an internal control system that is consistent with the
internal control framework according to international standards, covering important work processes and activities, having an

internal audit unit to audit operations based on risk, as well as providing advice on establishing a good internal control

system, and giving importance to the use of internal information, which is information for the company's operations and business
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administration. Expressing commitment to combating corruption in all forms by stipulating that the Board of Directors,

executives, employees, employees, as well as any person acting on behalf of the company, are prohibited from engaging in or
accepting corruption in all forms, whether directly or indirectly, and whether for the benefit of themselves, their families,

friends, acquaintances, or others, and are obligated to strictly comply with the anti-corruption policy. In addition, the company
will conduct business with funds from legal sources and comply with relevant anti-money laundering laws. The company will not
accept transfers or transformations of property or support the transfer or transformation of various assets related to wrongdoing
in order to prevent any person from using the company's business channels for the transfer, concealment, or disguise of the

source of property or using the company's financial transactions for money laundering.

The Company shall conduct a continuous review and follow-up of the performance of the Code of Business Conduct and Work Practices
by providing training on the "Code of Business Conduct and Work Practices" for employees in the organization to ensure that all
employees are aware of, understand, and are able to comply with the Code of Business Conduct and Work Practices correctly and

strictly.

In addition, the company has developed and announced the use of an ethics manual and guidelines for business partners for the
company's business partners to use as guidelines for conducting business together responsibly for the sustainable srowth of the

organization.

Policy and guidelines related to business code of conduct

Guidelines related to business code of conduct :  Anti-corruption, Information and IT system security, Human rights

Anti-corruption

Anti-Corruption
Management Approach

The Company is committed to instilling in its employees the practice of performing their duties with honesty and integrity in

order to create a positive impact on all aspects of its business operations. All forms of fraud and corruption are unacceptable.

The Company has therefore established and regularly reviews its anti-fraud and corruption policy to seriously combat and prevent
fraud and corruption. This policy covers employees and business partners and aims to prevent abuse of authority, deter fraudulent
or bribery-related behavior in all its forms, and provide a framework for conducting business in accordance with the law. For

this reason, details of the anti-fraud and corruption guidelines are included in both the Code of Business Conduct and the

Company's Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy.

1. The Company is committed to conducting business with transparency and fairess by establishing an anti-corruption policy and
guidelines for compliance with the anti-corruption policy, as well as creating awareness, values, attitudes, and instilling them

as an organizational culture that encourages the Board of Directors, executives, and employees at all levels to comply with
relevant laws and regulations, both directly and indirectly, as well as not supporting the achievement of work through fraudulent

means.

2. The Company has established an anti-corruption policy and guidelines, and ensures that the policy and guidelines are regularly
reviewed and revised in accordance with this anti-corruption policy.

3. The Company and its subsidiaries have adopted the Company's anti-corruption policy and related guidelines as a practice in

conducting business.

4. The Company assesses the risk of corruption in advance. The Internal Audit Office has appropriate and effective audit
processes and internal control systems, including processes, finance, accounting, data recording, and others, as well as regular

reviews to prevent corruption.
5. Disseminate, publicize, and organize training to raise awareness and understanding of business ethics and work practices, the

Company's anti-corruption policy and related regulations among the Company's stakeholders, and to create an understanding with
other persons who must perform duties related to the Company or may have an impact on the Company in matters that must be carried
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out in accordance with this anti-corruption policy.

6. The Company provides safe and accessible channels for employees and others to seek guidance on compliance with the anti-
corruption policy, and establishes mechanisms for reporting, receiving complaints, and handling cases related to violations of

laws, regulations, and the Company's Code of Conduct, or conduct that may indicate corruption by the Company's personnel,
including appropriate protection measures for whistleblowers under the Whistleblowing Policy to provide clear guidelines and make

the complaint process effective.
Performance Results 2024

1. The Company has established an anti-corruption policy and guidelines, and reviews and revises the anti-corruption policy and

guidelines to keep pace with the current situation.

2. Communicate and publicize the anti-corruption policy to all employees in the organization, including new partners and existing
customers, to refrain from giving gifts during all festivals, and publicize it to the Board of Directors, executives, and

employees for their cooperation in refraining from accepting and/or giving sifts during festivals and various occasions through
various channels of the Company.

3. The Company has established channels for receiving complaints and reporting misconduct and fraud, and to provide an
opportunity for executives, employees, and all stakeholder groups to report or provide information on misconduct and fraud
occurring within the Company, irregularities in the Company's business operations in various matters, or to exchange information,
receive feedback, suggestions, and complaints in cases of unfair treatment by the Company, including reporting to the Board of
Directors on issues related to violations of laws, the accuracy of financial reporting, deficiencies in internal control, or

various ethical violations. All stakeholders can report or complain about matters that may cause damage to the Company, to the
Board of Directors, or violate their rights, which is in accordance with the Code of Conduct. 4. The Company has not encountered

any complainants or disputes regarding corruption within the organization.

Information and IT system security

Information Technology Security
Information Technology Security Policy and Practices

The company has established information technology security policies and practices to manage information technology security
under the policies and regulations for information technology system security practices. which is effective for all employees in

the organization Including external service providers authorized to access information.
Commitment and goals

The Company is committed to developing its business for continuous growth. By using information technology to increase the
efficiency and effectiveness of products and services to be easily accessible, convenient, and fast to access services. The

Company recognizes the importance of maintaining the security of the information of all stakeholders. Therefore, the policy and
guidelines for information technology security practices have been established to support the management of stakeholder
information. The company aims for all relevant employees to be aware of and study the information technology security policy and
guidelines by 2025.

Management approach

The company places importance on the use of information technology in business management. By focusing on data security, whether

it is information technology security or cybersecurity as well.

1. The company must establish a written information technology security policy and communicate the policy to create understanding

and be able to comply correctly. Especially between the information technology department and other departments within the

company. To coordinate and be able to conduct business according to the set goals.
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2. Establish regulations for protecting information technology system assets, including various resources, from unauthorized
access. Along with setting policies and guidelines for information technology system security practices To serve as guidelines

for employees in the organization to acknowledge and strictly comply with By complying with the principles of cybersecurity law
according to the Cybersecurity Act B.E. 2562

3. Provide communication, public relations, training, and knowledge to employees at all levels of the organization to raise
awareness of threats, risky behaviors in cyberspace, prevention methods, and maintaining cybersecurity and information technology

system security.

4. Define information technology risk indicators (Information Technology Risk Indicator), including monitoring and reporting of
indicators to those responsible for managing risks and contingency plans for information technology systems for various events.

To be able to manage risks appropriately and in a timely manner.

5. Install technology systems to prevent and comply with international standards for information technology security management

according to international security practices.

6. Establish measures to control the installation of information systems in designated areas. Stored in a computer center or
network located in a private area which is a secure area of the company and there is surveillance, equipment management, and data

access systems as strictly specified.

7. The company must review the information technology security policy at least once a year or when there are changes that affect
the company's information technology security.

Performance results in 2024

1. The company has assigned the responsibility for information system management and cybersecurity to senior management only.
Responsible for managing data systems and the security of information technology systems and cybersecurity. Referencing

international standards for information security management systems.

2. The company has established information technology security policies and practices, including risk assessment, risk

management, and contingency plans for information technology systems for various events that may occur.

3. Strictly comply with measures to control and maintain the security of information technology systems and cybersecurity, such
as setting and reviewing system access rights on schedule, backing up data, and recovering data from disruptions in case of force

majeure.

4. Improve the computer network system to be ready for use. To avoid system failure by having a backup network system and other
servers. so that the system can support continuous operation and prevent damage as much as possible To prevent unauthorized
persons from destroying the network and enterprise resource planning system or stealing information for inappropriate use. 5.

Install appropriate technology to prevent, detect, suppress, and alert unauthorized access to networks or information technology
systems.

6. The company has a team ready to work and users can report incidents or emergencies that violate information technology system

access or violate cybersecurity at any time.
7. Communicate and provide knowledge and understanding to employees at all levels of the organization about information
technology system security and cybersecurity, be aware of threats and risky behaviors in cyberspace, and have guidelines to

follow. Ready to deal with cyber threats that can help reduce errors that may arise from ignorance or negligence of computer user

safety in the organization.

Human rights

Human Rights

Human Rights Policy and Guidelines
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The company has established human rights policies and practices to make the board of directors, executives, and employees of Big
Camera at all levels aware of the importance of and respect for human rights in all aspects of all stakeholders, in accordance

with the laws of each country and in accordance with the treaties to which each country is bound. This includes 1. Respecting and
treating all stakeholders fairly on the basis of human dignity, in accordance with human rights principles, without

discrimination. 2. Supporting and respecting the protection of human rights, ensuring that the company's business is not involved

in human rights violations. 3. Avoiding acts that violate human rights, such as not supporting forced labor and opposing child

labor. 4. Communicating, disseminating, providing knowledge, understanding, setting guidelines, monitoring, and providing support
to those involved in business operations throughout the business value chain, joint ventures, business partners (Contractors),
suppliers, and other related parties to participate in doing business ethically, respecting human rights, and treating everyone

in accordance with the human rights principles of this policy. Commitment and Goals

The company is committed to conducting business ethically and recognizes the importance of respecting human rights, which are the
fundamental rights and freedoms that all human beings are entitled to, including the right and freedom to live together in a

society happily and equally, which is an important foundation for doing business. The company adheres to its responsibility to

society and all stakeholders in accordance with the principles of good corporate governance and business ethics in protecting

human rights. Therefore, the company has established a human rights policy to demonstrate its commitment to upholding,
supporting, and promoting the respect and protection of the fundamental rights and human dignity of everyone involved in the
company's operations in accordance with internationally recognized standards. The company is also committed to complying with the
code of conduct, policies, and guidelines on human rights that the company has issued to ensure that its business operations are

free from human rights violations. Management approach

1. The company has established human rights policies and practices for employees in the organization to adhere to and strictly

comply with.

2. The company respects human rights, treats each other with respect, gives each other dignity, and treats all stakeholders and
vulnerable groups equally, without distinction of physical, mental, national, racial, ethnic, religious, gender, linguistic, age,
skin color, educational, social, cultural, traditional, or other differences.

3. Exercise caution in performing duties to prevent the risk of human rights violations in business operations, as well as strive

to prevent all forms of harassment, whether it be sexual harassment or other forms of harassment.

4. Promote fair employment, non-discrimination by treating all employees and workers, including migrant workers, fairly and
transparently in all workplaces. Employment will specify the terms and conditions agreed upon by both parties. There are
regulations on wage rates and welfare, working hours, overtime, working on holidays, holidays, and other benefits not less than

those stipulated by law.

5. Communicate, disseminate policies, provide knowledge, understanding, guidelines, and other support to employees, partners,
business partners in the business value chain (Suppliers/Contractors in Business Value Chain), as well as joint ventures to
participate in doing business ethically, respecting human rights, and treating everyone in accordance with human rights

principles.

6. Monitor respect for human rights, do not ignore or overlook any acts that violate human rights related to the company. Must
report to the supervisor or responsible person and cooperate in verifying the facts. If there are any doubts or questions,

consult with the supervisor or the person in charge through the designated channels.

7. Provide modern and efficient channels for reporting clues and complaints, and have a process for escalating incident reporting
to higher levels. Be fair and protect individuals who report human rights violations related to the company by using measures to
protect complainants or those who cooperate in reporting human rights violations as specified by the company in the Whistleblower

Policy.

8. Develop and implement a comprehensive and continuous human rights due diligence process to identify and assess risks and
impacts of human rights violations, define affected groups or individuals covering all stakeholders, plan and define solutions,
and prevent human rights violations in accordance with the organization's risk management guidelines, including monitoring

compliance with human rights policies and regular reporting and disclosure of information.
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9. The company will be fair and have measures to protect individuals who report human rights violations related to the company.

10. The company is committed to creating and maintaining a corporate culture that adheres to respect for human rights in
accordance with the human rights policy.

11. For individuals who violate human rights, including discriminatory behavior or harassment, it is considered a violation of
the company's code of conduct and this policy. The company must take corrective action or consider disciplinary action according

to the company's regulations. In addition, the company will take legal action if the action is illegal.

12. The company has established a monitoring process, channels for receiving feedback, and suggestions from both employees and

external parties to review, correct, improve, and find ways to prevent the risk of human rights violations.

13. The company is committed to communicating, reporting, and disclosing information on human rights operations, mitigation, and

remedies, including incidents of discrimination and harassment, to the public in a complete and transparent manner.

14. The company will review its human rights policy on a regular basis, taking into account significant changes to the
organization, to ensure that the policy is consistent with legal principles, international best practices, and/or the business

environment.

Performance Results 2024

1. The company has recruited employees to form various committees to represent and provide suggestions on various matters, such

as the Welfare Committee and the Occupational Safety, Health, and Working Environment Committee.

2. The company promotes the careers of all people equally. There is employment of people with disabilities, no child labor, no
illegal migrant workers, and compliance with the laws on employment, payment of remuneration, designation of annual holidays, and
designation of other leave as prescribed by law.

3. There is employment of people with disabilities according to the law, including support and promotion for people with
disabilities to work equally with normal people in positions that they are able to do. In 2024, the company employed people with
disabilities at a rate of 1 percent of all permanent employees. The company still has plans to continue to support the employment

of people with disabilities. The projects that the company has carried out are as follows:
- The health massage project is a project that hires 3 blind masseuses to provide relaxation massages to employees 2 days a week.
There is a lot of interest from employees, with statistics showing that 14-15 employees use the service per week. - The company

employs 2 people with disabilities to work on documents at the head office.

- There is support for a career capital grant project for people with disabilities. One Isan food shop was opened, totaling
119,720 baht, to support the creation of occupations for people with disabilities continuously every year.

4. Communicate, publicize, provide training on human rights policies, make all employees in the organization aware of human
rights policies and guidelines through various channels of the company to create participation and prevent human rights

violations from occurring in the organization.

5. The company has not found any complaints or disputes regarding human rights violations in the organization.
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6.3 Material changes and developments in policy and corporate
governance system over the past year

6.3.1 Material changes and developments related to the review of policy and

guidelines in corporate governance system or board of directors’ charter
In the past year, did the company review the corporate :  Yes
governance policy and guidelines, or board of directors’
charter
Material changes and developments in policy and guidelines :  Yes

over the past year

Big Camera Corporation Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries place great importance and are committed to corporate
governance based on the principles of good corporate governance, best practices for listed companies, rules, regulations, and
relevant practices of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the Securities and Exchange Commission. To develop the organization for
sustainable growth and commitment to conducting business in accordance with the law, adhering to business ethics and principles,
disclosing information with transparency, developing internal control systems, and having appropriate and effective audit
mechanisms. The Company operates with a focus on responsibility towards shareholders, investors, and all stakeholders. Therefore,
the Company has established operational procedures based on management principles that demonstrate potential and responsibility
in various aspects, which are in line with good standard frameworks and the Company's good corporate governance policy. To
enhance the organization's good governance and to serve as good practice guidelines for the Board of Directors, management, and
employees throughout the organization, both the Company and its subsidiaries, as well as all stakeholder groups, will lead to a
truly sustainable organization. The Board of Directors has reviewed and approved the Company's vision, mission, strategies,

goals, and business direction, including reviewing the Company's key policies to ensure they are appropriate and consistent with
good corporate governance practices and the current situation. The Company has disclosed information on its corporate governance

policies and practices, including a code of business conduct that reflects its business practices.

6.3.2 Implementation of the CG Code for listed companies

Implementation of the CG Code as prescribed by the SEC  :  Fully implement

Directors and Management Development

The Board of Directors recognizes its role as the leader of the organization. More than half of the Board of Directors have

studied or attended lectures on CG CODE practices until they understand the benefits and practices in applying them to management
and creating value for the organization to grow sustainably. This is to develop the knowledge and abilities of the Board of

Directors to perform their duties more effectively.

In addition, the Company has guidelines to promote and support all directors to study and receive further training to enhance

their knowledge of effective directorship continuously.
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7. Corporate governance structure and significant information related to the

board of directors, subcommittees, executives, employees, and others

7.1 Corporate governance structure

Corporate governance structure diagram

Corporate governance structure as of date : 31 December 2024

Corporate governance structure diagram
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7.2 Information on the board of directors

7.2.1 Composition of the board of directors

Number (persons)

Percent (%)

Total directors 10 100.00
Male directors 7 70.00
Female directors 3 30.00
Executive directors 3 30.00
Non-executive directors 7 70.00

Independent directors 7 70.00

Non-executive directors who have 0 0.00

no position in independent

directors

7.2.2 The information on each director and controlling person

List of the board of directors
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List of directors

Position

First
appointment
date of director

Skills and expertise

1. Mr. CHAN THIENKANJANAWONG Chairman of the board of 10 Jun 2014 Business Administration,
Gender: Male directors Leadership
Age : 68 years (Executive Directors)

Highest level of education : Below a

bachelor's degree Authorized directors as per the

Study field of the highest level of company’s certificate of

education : null registration : Yes

Thai nationality : Yes

Residence in Thailand : Yes Type of director : Existing

Family relationship between directors and director

executives : Have

Legal offenses in the past 5 years o,

Doesn't Have

DAP course : Yes

DCP course : Yes

2. Mrs. WANKAMON Director 24 Apr 2014 Accounting
THIENKANJANAWONG (Executive Directors)

Gender: Female

Age : 65 years Authorized directors as per the

Highest level of education : Below a company’s certificate of

bachelor's degree registration : Yes

Study field of the highest level of

education : Accounting Type of director : Existing

Thai nationality : Yes director

Residence in Thailand : Yes

Family relationship between directors and

executives : Have

Legal offenses in the past 5 years ©.

Doesn't Have

DAP course : Yes

DCP course : No

3. Mr. ATIT CHUNHACHATRACHAI Director 24 Apr 2014 Economics, Law, Business

Gender: Male

Age : 42 years

Highest level of education : Master's
degree

Study field of the highest level of
education : Business Administration
Thai nationality : Yes

Residence in Thailand : Yes

Family relationship between directors and
executives : Doesn't Have

Legal offenses in the past 5 years " :
Doesn't Have

DAP course : Yes

DCP course : Yes

(Non-executive directors,

Independent director)

Authorized directors as per the
company’s certificate of
registration : Yes

Type of director : Existing

director

Administration
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First

List of directors Position appointment Skills and expertise
date of director

4. Mr. SUVIT THANIYAVARN Director 10 Jun 2014 Economics

Gender: Male (Non-executive directors,

Age : 70 years Independent director)

Highest level of education : Doctoral

degree Authorized directors as per the

Study field of the highest level of company’s certificate of

education : Economics registration : No

Thai nationality : Yes

Residence in Thailand : Yes Type of director : Existing

Family relationship between directors and director

executives : Doesn't Have

Legal offenses in the past 5 years o,

Doesn't Have

DAP course : No

DCP course : Yes

5. Mr. POOMTHAN RANGKAKULNUWAT Director 10 Jun 2014 Economics

Gender: Male (Non-executive directors,

Age : 50 years Independent director)

Highest level of education : Doctoral

degree Authorized directors as per the

Study field of the highest level of company’s certificate of

education : Economics registration : No

Thai nationality : Yes

Residence in Thailand : Yes Type of director : Existing

Family relationship between directors and director

executives : Doesn't Have

Legal offenses in the past 5 years o,

Doesn't Have

DAP course : Yes

DCP course : Yes

6. Mrs. HARUTHAI SUKYING Director 10 Jun 2014 Economics

Gender: Female

Age : 66 years

Highest level of education : Master's
degree

Study field of the highest level of
education : Economics

Thai nationality : Yes

Residence in Thailand : Yes

Family relationship between directors and
executives : Doesn't Have

Legal offenses in the past 5 years ©.
Doesn't Have

DAP course : Yes

DCP course : Yes

(Non-executive directors,
Independent director)

Authorized directors as per the
company’s certificate of

registration : No

Type of director : Existing

director
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First

List of directors Position appointment Skills and expertise
date of director

7. Mr. THANASIT Director 2 Nov 2018 Business Administration,

THIENKANJANAWONG (Executive Directors) Marketing

Gender: Male

Age : 42 years Authorized directors as per the

Highest level of education : Master's company’s certificate of

degree registration : Yes

Study field of the highest level of

education : Business Administration Type of director : Existing

Thai nationality : Yes director

Residence in Thailand : Yes

Family relationship between directors and

executives : Have

Legal offenses in the past 5 years ©.

Doesn't Have

DAP course : Yes

DCP course : No

8. Mr. THITIPONG NANDHABIWAT Director 12 May 2023 Information &

Gender: Male (Non-executive directors, Communication

Age : 48 years Independent director) Technology, IT Management

Highest level of education : Doctoral

degree Authorized directors as per the

Study field of the highest level of company’s certificate of

education : Information Technology registration : No

Thai nationality : Yes

Residence in Thailand : Yes Type of director : Newly

Family relationship between directors and appointed director to replace

executives : Doesn't Have the ex-director

Legal offenses in the past 5 years ©.

Doesn't Have

DAP course : No

DCP course : Yes

9. Mr. NATTAPOL PRADITPHONLERT Director 12 May 2023 Business Administration,

Gender: Male

Age : 53 years

Highest level of education : Doctoral
degree

Study field of the highest level of
education : Management

Thai nationality : Yes

Residence in Thailand : Yes

Family relationship between directors and
executives : Doesn't Have

Legal offenses in the past 5 years " :
Doesn't Have

DAP course : No

DCP course : Yes

(Non-executive directors,

Independent director)

Authorized directors as per the
company’s certificate of
registration : No

Type of director : Newly
appointed director to replace

the ex-director

Marketing
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First

Gender: Female

Age : 41 years

degree

Thai nationality : Yes

Residence in Thailand : Yes

executives : Doesn't Have

Doesn't Have

DAP course : Yes

DCP course : No

Highest level of education : Master's
Study field of the highest level of
education : Business Administration
Family relationship between directors and

Legal offenses in the past 5 years e

(Non-executive directors,

Independent director)

Authorized directors as per the
company’s certificate of

registration : No

Type of director : Newly
appointed director to replace

the ex-director
).

List of directors Position appointment Skills and expertise
date of director
10. Ms. THANIDA CHENVANICH Director 12 May 2023 Marketing

Additional explanation :

(*) Any offense under the Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535 (1992) or the Derivatives Act B.E. 2546 (2003),only in the following cases:

(1) Dishonest act or gross negligence

(2) Disclosure or dissemination of false information or statements that may be misleading or conceal material facts that should be notified, which may affect decision making of

shareholders, investors or other parties involved

(3) Unfair acts or exploitation of investors in trading securities or derivatives, or participation in, or support to, such acts.

(**) Shareholdings by persons related to directors or executives as prescribed in Section 59 of the Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535 (1992), such as spouses or cohabiting couple

(unmarried couples living together openly), minor children, etc.

List of the board of directors by position

Non-
X Authorized
executive
directors as
Non- directors
Executive Independent per the
List of the board of directors | Position . executive i who have no
directors . directors L company’s
directors position in
certificate of
independent
) registration
directors
1. Mr. CHAN Chairman of the v v
THIENKANJANAWONG board of directors
2. Mrs. WANKAMON Director v v
THIENKANJANAWONG
3. Mr. ATIT Director y v v
CHUNHACHATRACHAI
4. Mr. SUVIT Director v v
THANIYAVARN
5. Mr. POOMTHAN Director v v
RANGKAKULNUWAT
6. Mrs. HARUTHAI Director v v
SUKYING
7. Mr. THANASIT Director v v
THIENKANJANAWONG
8. Mr. THITIPONG Director v v
NANDHABIWAT
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Non-
Authorized
executive
directors as
Non- directors
Executive Independent per the
List of the board of directors Position executive who have no
directors directors company’s
directors position in
certificate of
independent . .
registration
directors
9. Mr. NATTAPOL Director v v
PRADITPHONLERT
10. Ms. THANIDA Director y v
CHENVANICH
Total (persons) 3 7 7 0 4
Overview of director skills and expertise
Skills and expertise Number (persons) Percent (%)
1. Economics 4 40.00
2. Information & Communication Technology 1 10.00
3. Law 1 10.00
4. Marketing 3 30.00
5. Accounting 1 10.00
6. IT Management 1 10.00
7. Leadership 1 10.00
8. Business Administration 4 40.00

Information about the other directors
The chairman of the board and the highest-ranking executive :  Yes
are from the same person
The chairman of the board is an independent director :  No
The chairman of the board and the highest-ranking executive :  Yes
are from the same family
Chairman is a member of the executive board or taskforce :  Yes

The company appoints at least one independent directorto  :  Yes

determine the agenda of the board of directors’ meeting

The measures for balancing the power between the board of directors and the Management

The measures for balancing the power between the board of :  Yes
directors and the Management
Methods of balancing power between the board of directors :  Increasing the proportion of independent directors to more than

and Management half

The Company has a management structure consisting of the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee, each with clearly defined
scope of authority. This ensures that the Company's operating system is standardized and easily auditable. Moreover, the
Company's Board of Directors comprises six independent directors out of a total of ten, and the Audit Committee comprises three
independent directors, each of whom is highly qualified. This enables the Audit Committee to review the Company's operations with
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transparency and to balance the power in presenting matters for the shareholders' meeting to consider to a certain extent. In
addition, the Group has established regulations for transactions involving directors, major shareholders, or persons having
control over the business, as well as persons who may have a conflict of interest. Such persons shall not have independent
authority to approve such transactions, thereby mitigating potential risks.

7.2.3 Information on the roles and duties of the board of directors

Board charter :  Yes

According to the company's regulations, the Board of Directors has the authority to make decisions and oversee the company's
operations, except for the following matters, for which the Board of Directors must obtain approval from the shareholders'
meeting before proceeding.

1. Matters required by law to be approved by the shareholders' meeting

2. Long-term investments and joint ventures with affiliated and non-affiliated companies, and investments in new businesses,

including

- Capital increase with subsidiaries and/or joint ventures

- Joint ventures and/or acquisition of shares in other companies

- Opening new businesses and/or closing down businesses

3. Related party transactions

- Transactions for assets or services with connected persons or businesses with a transaction value exceeding or equal to 20

million baht or exceeding or equal to 3% of NTA (whichever is higher)

- Financial assistance transactions with connected persons or businesses with a transaction value exceeding or equal to 20

million baht or exceeding or equal to 3% of NTA (whichever is higher)

- Short-term real estate lease/rental transactions (contracts less than 3 years)
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7.3 Information on subcommittees
7.3.1 Information on roles of subcommittees

Roles of subcommittees
Board of Directors

Role
« Director and executive nomination
« Remuneration

« Corporate governance

Scope of authorities, role, and duties

Board of Directors' Scope of Authority

1. Perform duties by using knowledge, abilities, and experience to benefit the Company's business operations in accordance with

the law, the Company's objectives, the Company's Articles of Association, and the resolutions of the shareholders' meeting.

Exercise care and honesty to protect the Company's interests and be accountable to shareholders.

2. Consider, determine details, and approve the vision, business strategies, business direction, business policies, goals,

operational approaches, plans, and budgets of the Company and its subsidiaries as prepared by the Chief Executive Officer and
management.

3. Supervise the administration and performance of the Chief Executive Officer, management, or any person assigned to such duties
to ensure compliance with the policies set by the Board of Directors.

4. Continuously monitor the performance and strategies of the Company and its subsidiaries to ensure alignment with the Company's
operational plans and budget.

5. Ensure that the Company and its subsidiaries adopt appropriate and effective accounting systems, including the establishment

of internal control and internal audit systems.

6. Ensure the preparation of financial statements at the end of the Company's fiscal year and sign to certify such financial
statements for presentation to the shareholders' meeting at the Annual General Meeting for approval.

7. Consider and approve the selection and appointment of auditors and consider appropriate remuneration as proposed by the Audit
Committee before presenting it to the shareholders' meeting at the Annual General Meeting for approval.

8. Establish written corporate governance policies and effectively implement such policies to ensure that the Company is
accountable to all stakeholders fairly.

9. Consider and approve the appointment of individuals who possess the qualifications and are free from prohibited

characteristics as stipulated in the Public Limited Company Act B.E. 2535 (including amendments), the Securities and Exchange Act
B.E. 2535 (including amendments), as well as relevant announcements, regulations, and/or rules, to hold office in the event of a
vacancy on the Board of Directors for reasons other than retirement by rotation. Also, consider and approve the appointment of
directors to replace those retiring by rotation and determine director remuneration for proposal to the shareholders' meeting for
approval.

10. Appoint subcommittees, such as the Audit Committee, Executive Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Risk
Management Committee, Corporate Governance Committee, or any other subcommittee, and define the authority and responsibilities
of

such subcommittees to assist and support the Board of Directors in performing its duties.

11. Consider, determine, and amend the names of directors authorized to sign and bind the Company.

12. Consider the appointment of executives as defined by the Securities and Exchange Commission or the Capital Market Supervisory
Board and the Company Secretary, including consideration of remuneration for such executives as proposed by the Board of
Directors.

13. Seek professional opinions from external organizations, if necessary, to facilitate appropriate decision-making.

14. Encourage directors and executives of the Company to participate in training seminars offered by the Thai Institute of

Directors Association in courses relevant to their duties and responsibilities.

15. Appoint ad hoc subcommittees as deemed necessary and appropriate.

16. The Board of Directors may delegate authority to any person to act in any matter or matters as it deems appropriate. Such
delegation of authority shall not constitute a delegation or sub-delegation that enables the delegate of the Board of Directors
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to approve transactions in which such person or any person who may have a conflict of interest (as defined in the Notification of
the SEC or the Capital Market Supervisory Board) or has any interest or benefit or any other conflict of interest with the
Company or its subsidiaries, except for the approval of transactions that are in accordance with the policies and criteria
approved by the shareholders' meeting or the Board of Directors.

Reference link for the charter
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Audit Committee

Role
« Audit of financial statements and internal controls

« Risk management

Scope of authorities, role, and duties

Roles and Responsibilities of the Audit Committee

1. To review the Company's and its subsidiaries' financial reports to ensure they are accurate, prepared in accordance with
applicable accounting standards, and contain adequate disclosures.

2. To review the Company's and its subsidiaries' internal control and internal audit systems to ensure they are appropriate and
effective. This includes considering the independence of the internal audit function, providing recommendations on the
appointment, transfer, and termination of the head of internal audit or other individuals responsible for internal audit, and
evaluating their performance.

3. To review the Company's compliance with the Securities and Exchange Act, the Stock Exchange of Thailand's regulations, the
SEC's notifications, the Capital Market Supervisory Board's notifications, and other relevant laws and regulations applicable to
the Company and its subsidiaries.

4. To consider, select, and propose the appointment of independent auditors for the Company and its subsidiaries, including

recommending their fees. The committee should also meet with the auditors at least once a year without the presence of manageme

nt.
5. To review connected transactions or transactions that may involve conflicts of interest to ensure compliance with relevant
laws, regulations, and the Stock Exchange of Thailand's requirements. This is to ensure that such transactions are reasonable and
in the best interests of the Company and its subsidiaries.
6. To review and ensure the Company and its subsidiaries have appropriate and effective risk management systems in place, and to
present their findings to the Board of Directors.
7. To review and approve the internal audit charter, annual internal audit plans, and the performance of the internal audit
function. The committee should also coordinate with the external auditors.
8. To prepare the Audit Committee Report, which is included in the Company's annual report. This report must be signed by the
Audit Committee Chairman and include at least the following information:

8.1 Opinion on the accuracy, completeness, and reliability of the Company's and its subsidiaries' financial statements.

8.2 Opinion on the adequacy of the Company's and its subsidiaries' internal control systems (if any).

8.3 Opinion on compliance with the Securities and Exchange Act, the Stock Exchange of Thailand's regulations, or other
relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Company and its subsidiaries (if any).

8.4 Opinion on the suitability of the external auditors.

8.5 Opinion on transactions that may involve conflicts of interest.

8.6 Opinion on the risk management of the Company and its subsidiaries (if any).

8.7 Number of Audit Committee meetings held and the attendance of each member.

8.8 Overall comments or observations of the Audit Committee based on its performance of duties as defined in its charter.

8.9 Other matters that the Audit Committee deems appropriate for shareholders and investors to be aware of, within the scope
of its duties and responsibilities assigned by the Board of Directors.
9. To investigate any matters reported by the auditors regarding suspected violations of the Securities and Exchange Act by the
directors, executive officers, or individuals responsible for the Company's and its subsidiaries' operations. The Audit Committee
must report its findings to the SEC and the auditors within thirty days of being notified by the auditors.
10. To report on the Audit Committee's performance to the Board of Directors at least four times a year. If, in the performance
of its duties, the Audit Committee discovers or suspects any of the following matters that could have a material impact on the
Company's financial position and operating results, it must report them to the Board of Directors for corrective action within a
timeframe deemed appropriate by the Audit Committee:

10.1 Transactions involving conflicts of interest.

10.2 Fraud, irregularities, or material weaknesses in internal control.

10.3 Violations of the Securities and Exchange Act, the SEC's notifications, the Stock Exchange of Thailand's regulations, or
other laws and regulations applicable to the Company and its subsidiaries.

If the Board of Directors or management fails to take corrective action within the specified timeframe, any Audit Committee
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member may report the matter to the SEC or the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

11. In performing its duties and responsibilities, the Audit Committee has the authority to invite directors, executives,
department heads, or employees of the Company and its subsidiaries to provide opinions, attend meetings, or submit relevant
documents.

12. To consider and approve the hiring of consultants or external experts, in accordance with the Company's and its subsidiaries'
procedures, to provide opinions or advice as necessary.

13. To review the Company's and its subsidiaries' compliance with policies on whistleblowing, fraud reporting, investigation, and
whistleblower protection. The committee should also acknowledge complaints received and the investigation results from the
investigation committee.

14. To review the scope and evaluate the performance of the Audit Committee annually.

15. To review the independence of the external auditors and consider the acceptance of non-audit services from the same audit
firm.

16. To perform other duties as assigned by the Board of Directors with the approval of the Audit Committee.

Reference link for the charter

Executive Committee

Role
« Sustainability development

« Climate-related risks and opportunities governance

Scope of authorities, role, and duties

1. Formulate policies, objectives, strategies, operational plans, annual budgets, and various administrative regulations of the

company for the Board of Directors' approval.

2. Supervise the company's business operations to ensure alignment with the policies, objectives, strategies, operational plans,

and annual budgets approved by the Board of Directors, ensuring effectiveness and adaptability to the business environment, while
providing consultation, guidance, and management to senior executives.

3. Consider and approve expenditures for investments, financial transactions with financial institutions for account opening,
borrowing, lending, mortgages, guarantees, and other related matters, including the purchase, sale, or registration of land

ownership for the company's ordinary transactions, within the authorized financial limits.

4. Establish an efficient organizational structure and management system, encompassing the selection, training, employment, and
termination of the company's employees, including executives and senior management. The authority may be delegated to the Chief
Executive Officer or Managing Director to sign employment contracts on behalf of the company.

5. Supervise and approve matters related to the company's operations and may appoint or authorize any person or persons to act on
behalf of the Executive Committee as deemed appropriate. The Executive Committee may revoke, modify, or amend such authority.

6. Perform other duties as assigned by the Board of Directors.

Reference link for the charter

7.3.2 Information on each subcommittee

List of audit committee
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Appointment
date of audit

List of directors Position 5 Skills and expertise
committee
member
1. Mr. THITIPONG NANDHABIWAT Chairman of the audit 12 May 2023 Information &
Gender: Male committee Communication
Age : 48 years (Non-executive directors, Technology, IT
Highest level of education : Doctoral Independent director) Management
degree
Study field of the highest level of Director type : Newly
education : Information Technology appointed director to replace
Thai nationality : Yes the ex-director
Residence in Thailand : Yes
Expertise in accounting information review
: No
2. Mr. NATTAPOL PRADITPHONLERT Member of the audit 12 May 2023 Business Administration,
Gender: Male committee Marketing
Age : 53 years (Non-executive directors,
Highest level of education : Doctoral Independent director)
degree
Study field of the highest level of Director type : Newly
education : Management appointed director to replace
Thai nationality : Yes the ex-director
Residence in Thailand : Yes
Expertise in accounting information review
: No
3. Ms. THANIDA CHENVANICH" Member of the audit 12 May 2023 Marketing

Gender: Female

Age : 41 years

Highest level of education : Master's
degree

Study field of the highest level of
education : Business Administration

Thai nationality : Yes

Residence in Thailand : Yes

Expertise in accounting information review

1 Yes

committee
(Non-executive directors,
Independent director)

Director type : Newly
appointed director to replace

the ex-director

Addiitional explanation :

(*) Directors with expertise in accounting information review

List of executive committee members
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List of directors

Position

Appointment
date of
executive
committee

member

1. Mr. CHAN THIENKANJANAWONG

Gender: Male

Age : 68 years

Highest level of education : Below a bachelor's
degree

Study field of the highest level of education : null
Thai nationality : Yes

Residence in Thailand : Yes

Chairman of the executive committee

24 Apr 2014

2. Mrs. WANKAMON THIENKANJANAWONG
Gender: Female

Age : 65 years

Highest level of education : Below a bachelor's
degree

Study field of the highest level of education :
Accounting

Thai nationality : Yes

Residence in Thailand : Yes

Vice-chairman of the executive committee

24 Apr 2014

3. Mr. THANASIT THIENKANJANAWONG
Gender: Male

Age : 42 years

Highest level of education : Master's degree
Study field of the highest level of education :
Business Administration

Thai nationality : Yes

Residence in Thailand : Yes

Member of the executive committee

2 Nov 2018

4. Ms. Parisara Thiankanjanawong

Gender: Female

Age : 39 years

Highest level of education : Master's degree
Study field of the highest level of education :
Business Administration

Thai nationality : Yes

Residence in Thailand : Yes

Member of the executive committee

13 Feb 2015

5. Ms. Chutima Klongprateepphol

Gender: Female

Age : 42 years

Highest level of education : Master's degree
Study field of the highest level of education :
Accounting

Thai nationality : Yes

Residence in Thailand : Yes

Member of the executive committee

23 Jul 2014
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7.4 Information on the executives
7.4.1 List and positions of the executive

List of the highest-ranking executive and the next four executives
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List of executives

Position

First appointment
date

Skills and expertise

1. Mr. CHAN THIENKANJANAWONG
Gender: Male

Age : 68 years

Highest level of education : Below a
bachelor's degree

Study field of the highest level of
education : null

Thai nationality : Yes

Residing in Thailand : Yes

Highest responsibility in corporate
accounting and finance : No

Accounting supervisor : No

Chief Executive Officer

(The highest-ranking executive)

10 Jun 2014

Business Administration,

Leadership

2. Mr. THANASIT THIENKANJANAWONG
Gender: Male

Age : 42 years

Highest level of education : Master's
degree

Study field of the highest level of
education : Business Administration
Thai nationality : Yes

Residing in Thailand : Yes

Highest responsibility in corporate
accounting and finance : No

Accounting supervisor : No

Board of Directors

2 Nov 2018

Business Administration,

Marketing

3. Mrs. WANKAMON THIENKANJANAWONG
Gender: Female

Age : 65 years

Highest level of education : Below a
bachelor's degree

Study field of the highest level of
education : Accounting

Thai nationality : Yes

Residing in Thailand : Yes

Highest responsibility in corporate
accounting and finance : No

Accounting supervisor : No

Executive Vice President

24 Apr 2014

Accounting

4. Ms. Parisara Thiankanjanawong
Gender: Female

Age : 39 years

Highest level of education : Master's
degree

Study field of the highest level of
education : Business Administration
Thai nationality : Yes

Residing in Thailand : Yes

Highest responsibility in corporate
accounting and finance : No

Accounting supervisor : No

Chief Operating Officer

13 Feb 2015

Business Administration
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Additional Explanation :

(*) Highest responsibility in corporate accounting and finance
(**) Accounting supervisor

(***) Appointed after the fiscal year end of the reporting year

Organization structure diagram of the highest-ranking executive and the next four

executives
Organization structure of the highest-ranking executive and the : 31 Dec 2024

next four executives as of date

7.4.2 Remuneration policy for executive directors and executives

The Company has a policy of setting remuneration for directors at a rate comparable to the same industry and high enough to
attract and retain quality directors. For the remuneration of directors and executives, it will be in line with the Company's

operating results and the performance of each executive. The Board of Directors will consider and determine the appropriate and
necessary monetary compensation for the Subcommittees, the Chief Executive Officer, and the executives who report directly to the
Chief Executive Officer. For the remuneration of directors and subcommittees, it will be submitted to the Board of Directors

meeting for approval and submitted to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for approval annually.

1) The Board of Directors is responsible for determining the remuneration of the Board of Directors in terms of determining the

structure/components of remuneration, which should have the following characteristics:

- Fair, appropriate to responsibilities, and consistent with performance.

- At a level that can attract and retain quality directors or comparable in the same industry.

- The remuneration structure/components should be clear, transparent, and easy to understand.

2) The Board of Directors and senior management must report on the Board remuneration policy, principles, and rationale in the

company's annual report and financial statements.

Does the board of directors or the remuneration committee :  Yes
have an opinion on the remuneration policy for executive

directors and executives

The remuneration of directors is in accordance with the Public Limited Companies Act, Section 90, which states that "the

remuneration of directors shall be as resolved by the shareholders' meeting, consisting of not less than two-thirds of the total

votes of the shareholders present at the meeting." The Company has therefore established a policy for considering directors'
remuneration and presents the remuneration policy and criteria for each director's position to the shareholders for their
acknowledgement and approval of directors' remuneration at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. The Company has considered
the format and criteria for the remuneration of each director's position based on the size of the business, the business

environment, and the overall economic situation. The performance reflects and links to the Company's operating results, including

consideration of comparable remuneration rates of companies in the same industry, which are competitive and reasonable.
7.4.3 Remuneration of executive directors and executives

Monetary remuneration of executive directors and executives

2022 2023 2024

Total remuneration of executive directors and 38,540,112.00 39,763,675.70 43961,568.56
executives (baht)
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The company has criteria for executive compensation, considering overall knowledge, capabilities, and past performance, which are

comparable to other companies in the same industry.

Other remunerations of executive directors and executives

2022 2023 2024
Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP) No No No
Employee Joint Investment Program (EJIP) No No No

Outstanding remuneration or benefits of executive directors and executives

Outstanding remuneration or benefits of executive directors
and executives in the past year
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7.5 Information on employees

Information on the company's employees

Employees
2022 2023 2024
Total employees (persons) 592 625 665
Male employees (persons) 220 231 247
Female employees (persons) 372 394 418
Significant changes in the number of employees
Significant changes in number of employees over the past 3 No
Years
Information on employee remuneration
Employee remuneration
2022 2023 2024
Total employee remuneration (baht) 187,000,000.00 194,000,000.00 224,000,000.00
Total male employee remuneration (Baht) 80,000,000.00 84,000,000.00 95,000,000.00
Total female employee remuneration (Baht) 107,000,000.00 110,000,000.00 129,000,000.00
Provident fund management policy
Provident fund management policy Have

The Company registered the provident fund on September 15, 2007, under the management of Thanachart Fund Management Co., Ltd.,
currently known as Eastspring Asset Management (Thailand) Co., Ltd. The objective is to boost employee morale and encourage long-

term employment with the Company. In 2024, 255 employees participated in the provident fund, representing 38.35 percent of the

total number of employees.

Provident Fund

The Group and its employees have jointly established a provident fund in accordance with the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530. The
Group and its employees contribute to the fund monthly at a rate of 3.0 - 4.5 percent of salary. The provident fund is managed by

Eastspring Asset Management (Thailand) Co., Ltd. and will be paid to employees upon their resignation in accordance with the

Group's provident fund regulations. During the year 2024, the Group recognized a contribution expense of 4 million baht (2023: 4

million baht) (Company's separate financial statements: 4 million baht (2023: 4 million baht)).

Provident fund for employees (PVD)

2022 2023 2024
Number of employees joining in PVD (persons) 0 293 255
Proportion of employees who are PVD members (%) 0.00 46.88 38.35
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2022

2023

2024

Total amount of provident fund contributed by the
company (baht)

N/A

N/A

224,000,000.00
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7.6 Other significant information

7.6.1 Assigned person

List of persons assigned for accounting oversight

General information

Email

Telephone number

1. Ms. yuwadee Langkhunsen

yuwadee.l@bigcamera.co.th

0879192622

List of the company secretary

General information

Email

Telephone number

1. Ms. Piyaporn Sripornsawan

piyaporn.s@bigcamera.co.th

0632026968

List of the head of internal audit or outsourced internal auditor

General information

Email

Telephone number

1. Ms. natthapass Jameekornrak

natthapass.j@bigcamera.co.th

02-809-9956

7.6.2 Head of investor relations

Does the Company have an appointed head of investor :  Yes

List of the head of investor relations

relations

General information

Email

Telephone number

1. Ms. Piyaporn Sripornsawan

piyaporn.s@bigcamera.co.th

063-2026968

7.6.3 Company's auditor

Details of the company’s auditor

Audit fee Names and general information
Audit firms Other service fees
(Baht) of auditors
EY OFFICE LIMITED 2,860,000.00 Types of non-audit service: 1. Ms. KRONGKAEW LIMKITTIKUL

33RD FLOOR, LAKE RAJADA OFFICE
COMPLEX, 193/136-137
RAJADAPISEK ROAD KHLONG TOEI
KHLONG TOEI Bangkok 10110
Telephone +66 2264 9090

Travel and Printing Expenses

Details of non-audit
service: Travel and Printing

Expenses

Amount paid during the
fiscal year: 0.00 baht
Amount to be paid in the
future: 0.00 baht

Total non-audit fee:
68,194.00 baht

Email:
Krongkaew.Limkittikul@th.ey.com

License number: 5874

Part 2 Corporate Governance

165



7.6.4 Assigned personnel in case of a foreign company

Does the company have any individual assigned tobe :  No

representatives in Thailand
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8. Report on key operating results on corporate governance

8.1 Summary of duty performance of the board of directors over the past year
8.1.1 Selection, development and evaluation of duty performance of the board of directors

Information about the selection of the board of directors

List of newly appointed director to replace the ex-director

First appointment
List of directors Position Skills and expertise
date of director

Mr. THITIPONG NANDHABIWAT Director 12 May 2023 Information & Communication
(Non-executive directors, Technology, IT Management

Independent director)

Mr. NATTAPOL PRADITPHONLERT Director 12 May 2023 Business Administration,
(Non-executive directors, Marketing
Independent director)

Ms. THANIDA CHENVANICH Director 12 May 2023 Marketing
(Non-executive directors,

Independent director)

Selection of independent directors

Criteria for selecting independent directors

Criteria for Selecting Independent Directors

The Board of Directors will jointly consider the qualifications of individuals to serve as independent directors by considering

their qualifications and the absence of prohibited characteristics under the Public Limited Companies Act, the Securities and
Exchange Act, the notifications of the Capital Market Supervisory Board, including relevant regulations and/or rules. In

addition, the Board of Directors will consider selecting independent directors from qualified individuals with work experience

and other relevant suitability. The selection will then be proposed to the shareholders' meeting for appointment as directors of
the Company. The Company has a policy of appointing at least one-third of the total number of directors as independent directors,
and there must be no less than three independent directors.

The Board of Directors has determined the qualifications of independent directors as follows:

(1.) Holding no more than 0.5 percent of the total voting shares of the Company, its parent company, subsidiary, joint venture,
major shareholder, or person controlling the Company, including the shareholding of persons related to such independent director,
and the term of office of an independent director shall not exceed 9 years.

(2.) Not being or having been a director involved in management, employee, staff, salaried consultant, or person controlling the
Company, its parent company, subsidiary, joint venture, subsidiary of the same tier, major shareholder, or person controlling the
Company, unless such characteristics have ceased to exist for at least two years prior to the appointment date. However, such
prohibited characteristics shall not include the case where the independent director was a government official or advisor to a
government agency which is a major shareholder or person controlling the Company.

(3.) Not being a person who has a blood relationship or a relationship by registration under the law as a father, mother, spouse,

sibling, and child, including the spouse of a child of another director, executive, major shareholder, person controlling, or

Part 2 Corporate Governance 167



person to be proposed as a director, executive, or person controlling the Company or its subsidiary.

(4.) Having no or never having had a business relationship with the Company, its parent company, subsidiary, joint venture, major
shareholder, or person controlling the Company in a manner that may hinder the exercise of independent judgsment, including not
being or having been a significant shareholder or person controlling a person who has a business relationship with the Company,
its parent company, subsidiary, joint venture, major shareholder, or person controlling the Company, unless such characteristics
have ceased to exist for at least two years prior to the appointment date. The business relationship as mentioned in paragraph
one includes normal trade transactions for business purposes, lease or rental of real estate, transactions relating to assets or
services, or the giving or receiving of financial assistance by way of loans, guarantees, provision of assets as security for

debts, including other similar acts, which result in the Company or the counterparty having a liability to pay to the other party
of at least 3.0 percent of the Company's net tangible assets or from 20 million baht, whichever is lower. The calculation of such
liabilities shall be in accordance with the method of calculating the value of connected transactions under the Notification of
the Capital Market Supervisory Board on the Rules for Connected Transactions, mutatis mutandis. However, in considering such
liabilities, liabilities incurred within 1 year prior to the date of having a business relationship with the same person shall be

included.

(5.) Not being or having been an auditor of the Company, its parent company, subsidiary, joint venture, major shareholder, or
person controlling the Company, and not being a significant shareholder, person controlling, or partner of an audit firm to which
the auditor of the Company, its parent company, subsidiary, joint venture, major shareholder, or person controlling the Company

belongs, unless such characteristics have ceased to exist for at least two years prior to the appointment date.

(6.) Not being or having been a professional service provider, including legal or financial advisory services, receiving fees
exceeding two million baht per year from the Company, its parent company, subsidiary, joint venture, major shareholder, or person
controlling the Company, and not being a significant shareholder, person controlling, or partner of such professional service

provider, unless such characteristics have ceased to exist for at least two years prior to the appointment date.

(7.) Not being a director appointed to represent the Company's directors, major shareholders, or shareholders related to major

shareholders.

(8.) Not engaging in a business that is identical and materially competitive with the business of the Company or its subsidiary,
or not being a significant partner in a partnership, or being a director involved in management, employee, staff, salaried
consultant, or holding more than one percent of the total voting shares of another company that engages in a business that is

identical and materially competitive with the business of the Company or its subsidiary.

(9.) There are no other characteristics that would prevent the expression of independent opinions regarding the Company's

operations.

Business or professional relationships of independent directors over the past year

Business or professional relationships of independent : No

directors over the past year
Selection of directors and the highest-ranking executive

Method for selecting directors and the highest-ranking executive

Method for selecting persons to be appointed as :  Yes
directors through the nomination committee

Method for selecting persons to be appointed as the :  Yes
highest-ranking executive through the nomination

committee

Rights of minority shareholders on director appointment

Part 2 Corporate Governance

168



Currently, the Company's major shareholder is the Thirakamjohnwong family, holding 69.30 percent of the total number of issued
shares of the Company. In addition, Mr. Chan Thirakamjohnwong also serves as the Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief
Executive Officer, and is an authorized director of the Company. This allows the aforementioned shareholder group to have the
power to manage and control the voting rights in almost all important resolutions, whether it is the appointment of directors or
other resolutions that require a majority vote of the shareholders' meeting. The exception is in the case of laws or company
regulations that require a 3/4 vote of the shares present and voting, such as capital increases or reductions. Therefore, other
shareholders who attend the meeting and are entitled to vote may not be able to gather enough votes to scrutinize or

counterbalance the management of the major shareholder group.

Method of director appointment :  Method by which shareholders can divide their votes among candidates in
accordance with the Public Limited Companies Act (Cumulative voting),
Method whereby each director requires approval votes more than half of

the votes of attending shareholders and casting votes

Information on the development of directors

Development of directors over the past year
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Details of the development of directors over the past year

Participation in
List of directors training in the past History of training participation

financial year

1. Mr. CHAN Participating -
THIENKANJANAWONG
Chairman of the board of
directors

2. Mrs. WANKAMON Participating -
THIENKANJANAWONG

Director

3. Mr. ATIT Participating -
CHUNHACHATRACHAI

Director

4. Mr. SUVIT THANIYAVARN Participating -
Director

5. Mr. POOMTHAN Participating -
RANGKAKULNUWAT

Director

6. Mrs. HARUTHAI SUKYING Participating -
Director

7. Mr. THANASIT Participating -
THIENKANJANAWONG

Director

8. Mr. THITIPONG Participating -
NANDHABIWAT

Director

9. Mr. NATTAPOL Participating -
PRADITPHONLERT
Director

10. Ms. THANIDA Participating -
CHENVANICH

Director

Information on the evaluation of duty performance of directors

Criteria for evaluating the duty performance of the board of directors

Board Performance Evaluation

The Company requires an annual performance evaluation of the Board of Directors and its sub-committees. This serves as a
framework for reviewing the Board's performance to ensure alignment with the approved good corporate governance policy and/or the
Company's best practices. This process facilitates a collective review and summarization of performance, leading to the

identification of areas for improvement and adjustments to align with company policies. It also provides a platform for reviewing
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challenges and obstacles encountered in the past year, ultimately enhancing the effectiveness of the Board's operations. The
Company mandates self-assessments for the Board of Directors using three evaluation forms adapted from the Stock Exchange of

Thailand's templates:
1. Board of Directors Self-Assessment Form (Individual)
2. Sub-Committee Self-Assessment Form (Group)

3. Board of Directors and Sub-Committees Self-Assessment Form (Individual). The Board of Directors, Audit Committee, Executive
Committee, and Sustainability Development Committee conduct annual self-evaluations, both as a group and individually. This
process serves as a framework for reviewing the performance of the Board of Directors and considers, reviews, and summarizes
feedback on various issues related to the Company's operations and the Board's responsibilities throughout the past year. This
information can then be used to make improvements and enhance work efficiency. The self-assessment criteria are divided into 5
levels:

0 = Strongly disagree, or the matter has not been implemented.

1 = Disagree, or the matter has been minimally implemented.

2 = Agree, or the matter has been moderately implemented.

3 = Agree somewhat, or the matter has been well implemented.

4 = Strongly agree, or the matter has been very well implemented.

In 2024, the Company conducted a performance evaluation of the Board of Directors and all sub-committees, both collectively and
individually. This self-assessment was based on forms adapted from the Stock Exchange's templates to suit the Company's specific
context. The Company Secretary distributes these forms to all directors for self-evaluation at the end of each year. The

Secretary then compiles and reports the summarized results to the Board of Directors meeting for acknowledgement and discussion
annually. The overall average score for the self-assessments of all Board committees, both collectively and individually, ranged
from 3.6 to 3.9, indicating a relatively high level of performance.

Evaluation of the duty performance of the board of directors over the past year

Summary of the Board of Directors' Performance in the Past Year

The Board of Directors plays a crucial role as the representative of shareholders, overseeing the setting of objectives, key
business goals, vision, mission, strategic plans, and budgets for management execution. It promotes a corporate culture rooted in
morality and ethics, leading by example. The Board ensures the structure and operations of the Board are appropriate, achieving
business objectives and goals effectively, including the recruitment, development, compensation, and performance evaluation of
directors. The Board collaborates with management to define and review strategies, goals, annual operating plans, and jointly
oversees the adequacy of the risk management and internal control systems. It defines appropriate operational authority aligned
with management responsibilities, sets frameworks for resource allocation, personnel development, and budgeting, such as human
resources policies and practices, information technology policies, and risk management policies. It also monitors and evaluates
performance, ensuring the disclosure of reliable financial and non-financial information to achieve business objectives and
oversee management's operations in accordance with established policies. This ensures fairmness, transparency, compliance with
laws, regulations, rules, business ethics, professional conduct, and company policies. In 2024, the Board of Directors diligently
fulfilled its responsibilities in managing and operating the company in accordance with laws, regulations, objectives, and
shareholder resolutions, prioritizing the company's best interests. In the past year, the Board of Directors held 4 meetings and

1 meeting among non-executive directors to formulate key policies and strategies to enhance the company's capabilities, closely
monitor performance, and review the company's financial status. The company also maintains the effectiveness of its internal

control system and corporate risk management by holding 4 Audit Committee meetings in 2024.
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8.1.2 Meeting attendance and remuneration payment to each board member

Meeting attendance of the board of directors

Meeting attendance of the board of directors

Number of the board of directors meeting over the past : 4
year (times)
Date of AGM meeting 25 Apr 2024
EGM meeting No

Details of the board of directors' meeting attendance

List of directors

Meeting attendance of the

board of directors

AGM meeting attendance

EGM meeting attendance

Attendance
(times)

Meeting
rights (times)

Attendance
(times)

Meeting
rights (times)

Attendance

(times)

Meeting
rights (times)

1. Mr. CHAN
THIENKANJANAWONG
(Chairman of the board of

directors)

N/A

N/A

2. Mrs. WANKAMON
THIENKANJANAWONG

(Director)

N/A

N/A

3. Mr. ATIT
CHUNHACHATRACHAI
(Director, Independent
director)

N/A

N/A

4. Mr. SUVIT THANIYAVARN
(Director, Independent

director)

N/A

N/A

5. Mr. POOMTHAN
RANGKAKULNUWAT
(Director, Independent

director)

N/A

N/A

6. Mrs. HARUTHAI SUKYING
(Director, Independent

director)

N/A

N/A

7. Mr. THANASIT
THIENKANJANAWONG
(Director)

N/A

N/A
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Meeting attendance of the X X
AGM meeting attendance EGM meeting attendance
board of directors
List of directors
Attendance Meeting Attendance Meeting Attendance Meeting
(times) rights (times) (times) rights (times) (times) rights (times)
8. Mr. THITIPONG 4 / a 1 / 1 N/A / N/A
NANDHABIWAT
(Director, Independent
director)
9. Mr. NATTAPOL a / a 1 / 1 NA | N/A
PRADITPHONLERT
(Director, Independent
director)
10. Ms. THANIDA a / a 1 / 1 NA | N/A
CHENVANICH
(Director, Independent
director)

Remuneration of the board of directors

Types of remuneration of the board of directors

vDirector's Remuneration
Directors' Remuneration Policy
The company has a policy of setting directors' remuneration at rates comparable to those in the same industry and high enough to

attract and retain qualified directors. For the remuneration of directors and executives, it will be in line with the company's

operating results and the performance of each executive. The Board of Directors will recruit, consider remuneration, and

determine the appropriate and necessary monetary compensation for the Subcommittees, the Chief Executive Officer, and executives

who report directly to the Chief Executive Officer. For the remuneration of directors and subcommittees, the Board of Directors
will propose it to the Board of Directors' meeting for approval and to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for approval
every year. The Company has set the directors' remuneration for 2024, consisting of remuneration for the Board of Directors and
the Audit Committee, by setting the remuneration for the Board of Directors for 2024 within a total amount not exceeding 2
million baht, paid in the form of meeting fees and director's fees, with the following details:

(a) Monetary Compensation

The 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders held on April 26, 2024, resolved to approve the directors' remuneration for the
year 2024 not exceeding 2 million baht.

Position Meeting Fee per Session (Baht)

1. Chairman of the Board of Directors 22,000

2. Chairman of the Audit Committee 22,000
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3. Director / Audit Committee Member 15,000 / 15,000

Remuneration of the board of directors

Details of the remuneration of each director over the past year

Names of directors / Board of

Company

Total monetary

remuneration

from
directors Meeting Other monetary Non-monetary o Ty
Total (Baht) subsidiaries
allowance remuneration remuneration
(Baht)
1. Mr. CHAN 88,000.00 N/A
THIENKANJANAWONG
(Chairman of the board of
directors)
Board of Directors 88,000.00 0.00 88,000.00 No
Executive Committee N/A N/A N/A No
2. Mrs. WANKAMON
e © 60,000.00 N/A
THIENKANJANAWONG
(Director)
Board of Directors 60,000.00 0.00 60,000.00 No
Executive Committee N/A N/A N/A -
. Mr. ATIT
2 Mr 60,000.00 N/A
CHUNHACHATRACHAI
(Director)
Board of Directors 60,000.00 0.00 60,000.00 No
4. Mr. SUVIT THANIYAVARN
' 104,000.00 N/A
(Director)
Board of Directors 104,000.00 0.00 104,000.00 No
5. Mr. POOMTHAN 90,000.00 N/A
RANGKAKULNUWAT
(Director)
Board of Directors 90,000.00 0.00 90,000.00 No
. Mrs. HARUTHAI KYIN
6. Mrs. HARUTHAI SUKYING 90,000.00 N/A

(Director)
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Names of directors / Board of

Company

Total monetary

remuneration

from
directors i H
Meeting Other monetary Total Baht) Non-monetary subsidiaries
allowance remuneration remuneration
(Baht)
Board of Directors 90,000.00 0.00 90,000.00 No
7. Mr. THANASIT 60,000.00 N/A
THIENKANJANAWONG
(Director)
Board of Directors 60,000.00 0.00 60,000.00 No
Executive Committee N/A N/A N/A -
8. Mr. THITIPONG 89,000.00 N/A
NANDHABIWAT
(Director)
Board of Directors 89,000.00 0.00 89,000.00 No
Audit Committee N/A N/A N/A -
9. Mr. NATTAPOL 75,000.00 N/A
PRADITPHONLERT
(Director)
Board of Directors 75,000.00 0.00 75,000.00 No
Audit Committee N/A N/A N/A -
10. Ms. THANIDA 75,000.00 N/A
CHENVANICH
(Director)
Board of Directors 75,000.00 0.00 75,000.00 No
Audit Committee N/A N/A N/A -
11. Ms. Parisara N/A N/A
Thiankanjanawong
(Member of the executive
committee)
Executive Committee N/A N/A N/A No
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Company

Total monetary

remuneration
Names of directors / Board of
direct from
irectors i H
Meeting Other monetary Total Baht) Non-monetary subsidiaries
allowance remuneration remuneration
(Baht)
12. Ms. Chuti
s. Chutima N/A N/A
Klongprateepphol
(Member of the executive
committee)
Executive Committee N/A N/A N/A No

Summary of the remuneration of each committee over the past year

Names of board members

Meeting allowance

Other monetary

remuneration

Total (Baht)

1. Board of Directors 791,000.00 0.00 791,000.00
2. Audit Committee N/A N/A N/A
3. Executive Committee N/A N/A N/A

Remunerations or benefits pending payment to the board of directors

Remunerations or benefits pending payment to the

board of directors over the past year

(Baht)

0.00

8.1.3 Supervision of subsidiaries and associated companies

Mechanism for overseeing subsidiaries and associated companies

Does the Company have subsidiaries and associated :  Yes
companies

Mechanism for overseeing subsidiaries and associated : Yes
companies

Mechanism for overseeing management and taking
responsibility for operations in subsidiaries and

associated companies approved by the board of

directors

The appointment of representatives as directors, executives, or controlling
persons in proportion to shareholding, The determination of the scope of
duties and responsibilities of directors and executives as company

representatives in establishing important policies, Disclosure of financial

condition and operating results, Transactions between the company and

related parties

Investment and Supervision Policy for Subsidiaries and Associated Companies

The Company has an investment and management policy for its subsidiaries. The Company will invest in related, similar, or

beneficial businesses that can support the Company's business operations to enhance the Company's stability and operational

performance for greater growth. In doing so, the Company will consider the investment proportion, profit, expected returns,

potential risks, and the Company's financial status before making investment decisions in various projects. The approval of such

investments must be considered by the Board of Directors' Meeting and/or the Shareholders' Meeting according to the scope of
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approval authority specified by the Company.
Supervision of Subsidiaries and Associated Companies

The Company has an investment and management policy for its subsidiaries and associated companies to comply with good corporate
governance principles in terms of establishing a framework and mechanisms for overseeing policies and operations in subsidiaries.

The Company has established and reviewed the Corporate Governance Policy and the Management of Subsidiaries engaged in the core
business. For investment considerations in subsidiaries, the Company will invest in related, similar, or beneficial businesses

that can support the Company's business operations to enhance the Company's stability and operational performance for greater
growth. In doing so, the Company will consider the investment proportion, profit, expected returns, potential risks, and the

Company's financial status before making investment decisions in various projects. The approval of such investments must be
considered by the Board of Directors' Meeting and/or the Shareholders' Meeting according to the scope of approval authority

specified by the Company. To safeguard the Company's investment, the Company can control, manage, and be responsible for the
operations of the subsidiaries as if they were a unit of the Company. These are the management of subsidiaries and associated
companies. The Company should propose representatives to be directors on the Board of Directors of subsidiaries or associated
companies (if any) at least in proportion to its shareholding. The nominated directors and executives must possess

qualifications, roles, responsibilities, and not possess any disqualified characteristics as per the Notification of the

Securities and Exchange Commission regarding the Determination of Disqualified Characteristics for Directors and Executives of

the Company. The appointed qualified individuals must possess the following qualifications:
1. Have no prohibited characteristics as stipulated by relevant laws or regulations.
2. Have knowledge, abilities, and experience beneficial to business operations, and possess leadership qualities.

3. Make sound decisions in accordance with the Company's corporate governance principles and code of ethics. In the event that a
subsidiary's business operations significantly impact the Company, such as entering into connected transactions or acquiring or
disposing of significant assets, the subsidiary must obtain prior approval from the Company's Board of Directors' Meeting. The
disclosure and maintenance of information, including accounting records, must adhere to the criteria for preparing consolidated
financial statements within the stipulated timeframe. Additionally, the principal policies implemented by the subsidiary must

receive approval from the Company's Board of Directors and comply with the principles stipulated by law for such transactions.

8.1.4 The monitoring of compliance with corporate governance policy and guidelines

Prevention of conflicts of interest

Operations for conflict of interest prevention over the past year

Has the company operated in preventing conflicts of :  Yes

interest over the past year

Conflict of Interest Prevention Monitoring Results

The Board of Directors has established a policy and procedures for considering transactions that have or may have conflicts of
interest in the Company's Good Corporate Governance Policy and Code of Business Conduct. This is to ensure that directors,
executives, and employees adhere to the principles of related party transactions, do not seek personal gain, do not engage in
businesses that compete with the Company, do not violate the regulations of the SEC and the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and avoid
engaging in self-dealing that may result in conflicts of interest with the Company. In cases where such transactions are

necessary, the Board of Directors will ensure that such transactions are transparent, fair, and equal to transactions with

outside parties. In the event that directors, executives, or employees who have an interest in such transactions, they shall not
participate in the consideration and approval process. In the past year 2024, the Company has disseminated knowledge to

directors, executives, and employees within the organization, including monitoring and investigating cases that may involve

conflicts of interest. No actions were found to be in conflict with the Company's conflict of interest prevention policy.
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Number of cases or issues related to conflict of interest

2022 2023 2024

Total number of cases or issues related to 0 0 0

conflict of interest (cases)

Prevention of the use of inside information to seek benefits

Operations for prevention of the use of inside information to seek benefits over the past year

Has the company operated in preventing the use of : No / In Progress
inside information to seek benefits over the past year

Results of monitoring the use of inside information for personal gain

To protect against cases where directors, executives, and employees use inside information for the benefit of themselves or

others, whether directly or indirectly, and whether or not they receive any compensation, especially inside information that has

not yet been disclosed to the public or information that affects the organization's strategic plan, business operations, trade
negotiations, and securities prices, which is taking advantage of and causing damage to the overall shareholders and is an

offense under the Securities and Exchange Act, resulting in a decrease in the company's benefits, causing conflicts of interest,

and affecting the credibility of the company, the company has established an Insider Trading Policy. The company has set a
procedure for the trading of securities by directors and executives to report one business day prior to trading, including

prohibiting directors, executives, employees, and employees of the company and subsidiaries, including spouses and minor children
of such persons, as well as any person who becomes aware of the company's material inside information that affects the price of
the company's securities, from trading or recommending the trading of the company's securities during the period of 30 days

before the financial statements or such inside information is disclosed to the public and within 24 hours after the financial
statements or such inside information has been disclosed to the public, as well as during other periods as the company may
determine from time to time (Blackout period). In the past year 2023, the Company has disseminated knowledge about the Insider
Trading Policy to directors, executives, and employees in the organization and has asked employees to sign an acknowledgement of
the policy. From the follow-up of the implementation in the past year, no directors, executives, employees, and employees of the
company and subsidiaries, including spouses and minor children of such persons, as well as any person who becomes aware of the

company's inside information, have traded in the company's securities during the said period.

Number of cases or issues related to the use of inside information to seek benefits

2022 2023 2024
Total number of cases or issues related to 0 0 0
the use of inside information to seek
benefits (cases)
Anti-corruption action
Operations in anti-corruption in the past year
Has the company operated in anti-corruption over the :  Yes
past year
Form of operations in anti-corruption : Communication and training for employees on anti-corruption policy and
guidelines
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Corruption Monitoring Results

The company has communicated and raised awareness among employees within the organization. It has also participated in campaigns

against corruption to prevent it from occurring within the organization. The company has implemented the following anti-

corruption policy:

1.1 The company has communicated and disseminated the anti-corruption policy and has guidelines for anti-corruption practices,
including channels for reporting clues or complaints. It has also communicated the code of business conduct and work practices to
the board of directors, executives, and employees. The company stipulates that all operations must be strictly within the scope

of the law. This is achieved through various communication channels of the company, such as orientation for new directors and
employees, posting announcements on the organization's bulletin boards, and campaigning against receiving gifts (No Gift Policy)
through media such as email and the company's website. The company also provides training to enhance understanding of the anti-
corruption policy, including guidelines for anti-corruption practices, along with the code of business conduct and work

practices. The objective is to promote a shared awareness of the company's ethics, which will help build confidence and

acceptance, as well as create sustainable growth for the company.
1.2 The company provides channels for reporting any violations of the policy or any corruption. It also has measures to protect

whistleblowers. The company has disclosed the details of its anti-corruption policy, including anti-corruption practices, and has

made them publicly available on the company's website ( www.bigcamera.co.th )

Number of cases or issues related to corruption

2022 2023 2024

Total number of cases or issues related to 0 0

corruption (cases)

Whistleblowing

Operations related to whistleblowing over the past year

Has the company implemented whistleblowing :  Yes

procedures over the past year

Complaint and Whistleblower Report Follow-up Results

The company has channels for stakeholders to report and file complaints through channels provided by the company via electronic
means, postal mail, suggestion boxes, telephone, and various social media such as Facebook, Line Official, etc. There is a
customer service center to receive such complaints in order to forward them to the relevant departments to manage and resolve the

issue. The marketing department is responsible for considering and filtering such whistleblowing and complaints.

In the past year, the company has received 64 complaints, of which 16 were customer complaints regarding products and delivery,
and 48 were complaints regarding the service provided by the storefront branches. The company has taken action to manage these
complaints and coordinated with the relevant departments to acknowledge them. The company has also established measures to
resolve the issues for stakeholders, including presenting the various impacts at the Sustainability Development Committee meeting

to present to the executives to find ways to reduce dissatisfaction and enhance satisfaction to a higher level.

Number of cases or issues related to whistleblowing
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http://www.bigcamera.co.th

2022 2023 2024
Total number of cases or issues received 0 0 0
through whistleblowing channels (cases)
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8.2 Report on the results of duty performance of the audit committee in the

past year

8.2.1 Meeting attendance of audit committee

Meeting attendance of audit committee (times)

q

Meeting attendance of audit committee

List of directors
Meeting attendance / Meeting attendance rights
(times) (times)

1 Mr. THITIPONG NANDHABIWAT 4 / 4

(Chairman of the audit committee)
2 Mr. NATTAPOL PRADITPHONLERT 4 / 4

(Member of the audit committee)
3 Ms. THANIDA CHENVANICH q / 4

(Member of the audit committee)

8.2.2 The results of duty performance of the audit committee

Duties of the Audit Committee

If any of the following items or actions are found or suspected, which may have a significant impact on the Company's financial

position and operating results, the Audit Committee shall report to the Company's Board of Directors for improvement within the

timeframe deemed appropriate by the Audit Committee: 10.1 Transactions with conflicts of interest 10.2 Fraud, irregularities, or

material weaknesses in internal control 10.3 Violations of the Securities and Exchange Act, the Capital Market Supervisory

Board's notifications, the Stock Exchange of Thailand's regulations, or laws related to the business of the Company and its

subsidiaries.

If the Company's Board of Directors or executives fail to make improvements within the specified timeframe, any Audit Committee

member may report the item or action under paragraph one to the Securities and Exchange Commission or the Stock Exchange of

Thailand.
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8.3 Summary of the results of duty performance of subcommittees

8.3.1 - 8.3.2 Meeting attendance and the results of duty performance of subcommittees

Meeting attendance Executive Committee

Meeting Executive Committee (times)

List of Directors

Meeting attendance Executive Committee

Meeting attendance / Meeting attendance right
(times) (times)

1 Mr. CHAN THIENKANJANAWONG 0 / 0
(Chairman of the executive committee)

2 Mrs. WANKAMON THIENKANJANAWONG 0 / 0
(Vice-chairman of the executive committee)

3 Mr. THANASIT THIENKANJANAWONG 0 / 0
(Member of the executive committee)

4 Ms. Parisara Thiankanjanawong 0 / 0
(Member of the executive committee)

5  Ms. Chutima Klongprateepphol 0 / 0
(Member of the executive committee)

The results of duty performance of Executive Committee
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9. Internal control and related party transactions

9.1 Internal control

Summary of the opinion of the board of directors regarding the internal control of the

company
Internal Control

The Company recognizes the importance of a good internal control system, which will help build confidence for management in
mitigating business risks and support efficient and effective business operations, appropriate resource allocation, and

achievement of established goals.
1 Sufficiency and Appropriateness of the Internal Control System

The Company has a good organizational structure and environment, resulting in an appropriate level of effectiveness in the
Company's internal control system. The Company has established an organizational structure to define responsibilities separated
by function, aligning with the business strategy and good corporate governance. The Internal Audit Department is an independent

unit reporting directly to the Audit Committee. Control and Supervision

The Board of Directors has appointed and assigned the Audit Committee, consisting of 3 audit committee members, to oversee,
review the effectiveness and adequacy of the Company's internal control and risk management systems to ensure their
appropriateness and effectiveness. The Audit Committee also ensures that the Company conducts its business in accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and other applicable laws. The Audit Committee is independent
from management, possesses sufficient knowledge and expertise in auditing, and can express independent opinions. Additionally,

the Board of Directors has the ability to oversee and manage the organization, with clearly defined and appropriate authority for

operations at both the management and operational levels.

In addition, performance targets and indicators have been set by preparing an annual business plan and ensuring that the
organization's goals are reviewed and adjusted to align with the economic climate and competitive landscape appropriately and
regularly. The Company has established a business plan, implemented related party transaction reporting, and established
monitoring, control, and supervision of the Company's operations to prevent the misuse or unauthorized use of the Company's
assets. This also helps protect the Company's assets from leakage, loss, or fraud and misconduct. A control system is in place to
ensure that management and employees within the organization possess ethical and business ethics and have clear guidelines for
conduct to avoid conflicts of interest with the Company. The Company has a good corporate governance policy in line with the

Stock Exchange of Thailand's practices and appropriate international standards.
Risk Assessment

The Company places importance on risk management by establishing a risk assessment process that aligns with the objectives and
goals of the business operations. There are methods for identifying and analyzing all types of risks, both present and future.
Appropriate measures are in place to control, monitor, and manage risks. If there are events that prevent the achievement of
objectives, the Company has guidelines in place to control both the level of impact and the likelihood of occurrence, considering

all aspects that are significant to the Company's business operations. There is an assessment of factors that may have an impact

both internally and externally to the Company, including consideration of the potential for fraud risks. The Company therefore
conducts reviews of organizational policies and practices by communicating to employees when fraud is detected and the procedures
to follow as prescribed. The Company has an Internal Audit Department responsible for overseeing risk within the organization,

and the Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness and efficiency of risk management within the organization.
Management is responsible for continuously assessing and managing risks at the departmental level to ensure efficient business

operations.

Control Activities
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The Company recognizes the importance of a good internal control system to support efficient business operations. The Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors have assigned the Internal Audit Department to prepare the 2024 Annual Audit Plan and
monitor the implementation of recommendations in the report on the assessment of the adequacy of the internal control system. The
Internal Audit Department regularly reports to the Audit Committee every quarter and conducts audits on the preparedness for the
Personal Data Protection Act, store management systems, control of the operating systems of the Operations Department and store
support systems, control of cash receipt systems, and audits of the logistics and packaging systems, sales and product management
systems, human resource management systems, management systems of Pikachus Company Limited, management systems of Image Soluti
on

Plus Company Limited, and the printing department. The Company has assigned the Internal Audit Department to follow up on the
audit results and then report to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis. The Audit Committee has assigned the Secretary of the
Audit Committee to summarize the minutes of the Audit Committee meetings to the Board of Directors every quarter. Then, the

report is submitted to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis, and the Audit Committee has assigned the Secretary of the Audit

Committee to summarize the minutes of the Audit Committee meetings to the Board of Directors every quarter.

In the case of transactions with businesses or individuals related to the Company that may lead to conflicts of interest between
the Company and the related businesses or individuals, such transactions must go through the approval process according to the
Company's regulations, similar to regular transactions. The best interests of the Company and shareholders must be considered as
if the transactions were conducted with external parties and in accordance with the law. In transactions that may lead to
conflicts of interest, the interested parties shall not have voting rights, and information disclosure shall be made as required

by law.

Information and Communication

The Company's financial reporting uses accounting policies that are appropriate to the nature of the Company's business and are
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The Company has procedures for data preparation, information
systems, and financial reporting in accordance with established standards. In addition, the Company has an information system
that provides sufficient information for decision-making. Information related to operations, policies, and regulations of the

Company is communicated to employees and stakeholders to support the efficient operation and activities of the Company.

Supervision, Monitoring, and Evaluation

The Company continuously and appropriately monitors its performance. Management will carefully and effectively manage all

activities that pose risks to the organization's business operations.

In 2024, the Company’s Internal Audit Office (“Internal Auditor”) conducted an audit, provided recommendations, and monitored the
improvement of the established internal control system. The Internal Auditor continuously reported the audit results and the
follow-up on improvements to the Audit Committee to ensure that the operations of the Company, its subsidiaries, and the related
party transactions of the Company with related persons are effective and comply with the provisions of the law. This is also to

allow the Audit Committee to review and approve the annual audit plan to cover all high-risk operations and to ensure that

various departments within the organization have adequate operational controls in terms of finance, operations, compliance with

laws, regulations, rules, and various other regulations.

The Company has established a self-assessment of internal controls. The Internal Audit Department is responsible for assessing
the adequacy and appropriateness of the internal control system as defined in the Company's Internal Audit Manual. Management is
responsible for making improvements and addressing issues identified from audit results and/or other appropriate and timely

reviews to ensure that the internal control system is up-to-date, practical, and adaptable to changes in all situations.

At the Board of Directors Meeting No. 1/2025 held on February 26, 2025, all 3 members of the Audit Committee were present at the
meeting with the Board of Directors. The Audit Committee assessed the adequacy of the internal control system of the Company and
its subsidiaries by inquiring about information from management and referring to the report on the assessment of the adequacy of

the internal control system of Big Camera Corporation Public Company Limited dated February 26, 2025. The Company has prepared an
internal control adequacy assessment form for submission to the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors is of the opinion that

the Company's internal control system is adequate and appropriate for the size of the Company and the current situation.
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2 Observations of the Internal Control Auditor on the Internal Control System of Big Camera Corporation Public Company Limited

(“Big Camera”)

The Company has assigned the Company's Internal Audit Office to conduct internal control audits of Big Camera Corporation Public
Company Limited, the first audit (1/2024) between January and March 2024, the second audit (2/2024) between April and June 2024,
the third audit (3/2024) between July and September 2024, and the fourth audit (4/2024) between October and December 2024. In the
past, management has received advice and has made improvements to various issues based on the recommendations of the internal

auditors.

The Internal Audit Department reported the audit results to the Audit Committee at the Company's Audit Committee meetings No.
2/2024 on May 14, 2024, No. 3/2024 on August 14, 2024, No. 4/2024 on November 14, 2024, and No. 1/2025 on February 26, 2025. The
meetings resolved to acknowledge the recommendations from the Internal Audit report and assigned the Company's management to make

improvements according to the recommendations. The Company also monitors the improvements and follows up through the Company's

Internal Audit Office, which submits monitoring reports every quarter.

3 Observations of the Auditor on the Internal Control System of Big Camera Corporation Public Company Limited (“Big Camera”)

EY Office Limited, the appointed auditor of Big Camera Corporation Public Company Limited for the year ended December 31, 2024,
reviewed the Company's accounting processes. The information reviewed was sufficient and appropriate for the preparation of the
financial statements. The Audit Committee Meeting No. 1/2025 held on February 26, 2025, resolved to acknowledge the audit results

of EY Office Limited and report them to the Board of Directors for further consideration.

4 Risk Management

The Company recognizes the importance of risk assessment as a tool to signal potential damage. The Board of Directors has

assigned the Audit Committee to ensure that the Company has an appropriate and effective Risk Management system. The Company
supports the shared responsibility of all employees for risk management that affects the organization's strategic goals. The risk
management structure, measures, and risk management plans are determined based on risk factors that may arise in the Company's
business, goals, and operations, both from internal and external factors. In addition, the Company has also mandated the

reporting of significant risks and has established the following risk management policies:

- Conduct assessments and develop the quality of internal control and risk management within the organization.

- Identify, assess, and compile the organization's Risk Profile for each department. Develop a risk management plan every quarter.
- Determine the level of risk that the Company can accept.

- Identify key risks within the scope of responsibility of each department to ensure that there are controls for managing such
risks. Require monitoring of the implementation and effectiveness of such controls, along with regular reviews to ensure that the

risk management implemented is consistent and effective for the Company.

- Carefully consider the balance between risk and return/opportunity in various business decisions (investment/asset

acquisition/disposal and investment projects).

- Review key risks resulting from changes in both internal and external environments, such as investments in new projects and/or
changes in the economic and political landscape. - Anticipate and manage risks, including potential damage, in accordance with
the Company's Risk Tolerance.

- Identify and assess leading indicators for key risk factors (Key Risk Indicators) and take appropriate actions to mitigate such

risks. - Implement and/or integrate risk management into business processes, as well as create a culture of risk awareness within

the organization.
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The Company has established a Risk Management Working Group, reporting directly to the Audit Committee and reporting to the Board
of Directors. The Risk Management Meeting has been scheduled, and the assessment of significant risks revealed that the critical

event that could potentially arise from a crisis and prevent the Company from conducting its core business is the inability to

sell products at storefronts in each branch. This could arise from problems with the information system, which is a risk arising

from various crises or emergencies, including natural disasters, accidents, or malicious acts against the organization, such as

fires or power outages. The Information Technology Department has already prepared a contingency plan for such events.
5 Risk Management and Control

The Internal Audit Department provides assurance and advice by assessing the effectiveness and efficiency of the internal control
system, risk management system, and corporate governance to support the Company in achieving its business objectives and goals.
The department has clearly defined missions, scope of work, responsibilities, and operational guidelines, which are regularly

reviewed to ensure their relevance to the current situation.

The Internal Audit Department is independent from management. The Internal Audit Department reports directly to the Audit
Committee, which oversees the independence, fairness, ethics, and professionalism of the audit work in accordance with internal
audit professional standards. The Internal Audit Department's annual internal audit plan, approved by the Audit Committee, will
be based on a risk assessment and will cover key business processes. The Internal Audit Department also serves as a channel for
receiving complaints of wrongdoing and fraud, both from within and outside the organization, to ensure that operations are in

line with the Business Ethics Policy, the Code of Conduct, and the Anti-Corruption Policy.

The position of Internal Audit Manager of the Company is held by Ms. Nattapat Jamikarak. The Internal Audit Manager also serves
as the Secretary of the Audit Committee to support the Audit Committee in carrying out its duties as assigned by the Board of
Directors and to provide advice on various matters such as internal control, risk management, business ethics, and information
system security. The Audit Committee believes that the qualifications of the Internal Audit Manager are appropriate and that they
perform their duties effectively. The appointment, evaluation, removal, transfer, or termination of the Internal Audit Manager of
the Company must be approved by the Audit Committee.

The Internal Audit Manager of the Company (Internal Audit) has the following responsibilities:

1. Assess the adequacy and effectiveness of operational processes, information systems, internal control, and risk management

within the assigned missions and scope of audit work.

2. Report on significant issues related to the internal control processes of various activities of the Company and guidelines for
improving the processes in those activities.

3. Provide recommendations to management to ensure that operations are appropriate, efficient, economical, and in accordance with

good corporate governance principles.
4. Provide information on the progress and results of the annual audit plan and the adequacy of resources required for the work.

5. Coordinate and oversee other monitoring and control activities such as risk management, regulatory compliance, security,

ethics, environment, auditing, and fraud and corruption.

6. Perform other internal audit-related tasks as assigned by the Audit Committee.

9.1.1 Adequacy and appropriateness of the company’s internal control system

Company’s internal control system :  COSO - Enterprise Risk Management Framework (ERM)

COSO - Enterprise Risk Management Framework (ERM)
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At the Board of Directors' Meeting No. 1/2025 held on February 26, 2025, three audit committee members attended the meeting with

the Board of Directors. The committee assessed the adequacy of the internal control system of the Company and its subsidiaries by
inquiring information from the management and referring to the internal control adequacy assessment report of Big Camera
Corporation Public Company Limited dated February 26, 2025. The Company has prepared an internal control adequacy assessment
for the Board of Directors' consideration. The Board of Directors is of the opinion that the Company's internal control system is
adequate and appropriate for the size of the Company and the current circumstances.

9.1.2 Deficiencies related to the internal control system

form

2022 2023

2024

Total number of deficiencies related to the internal 0 0

control system (cases)

9.1.3 Opinions of the audit committee and auditor's observations on internal control

Does the audit committee have opinions on internal control  :  No

different from the board of directors' opinions?

Does the auditor have any observations on the company’s :  No

internal control?

9.1.4 Opinions of the audit committee on the position of the head of the internal audit uni
Head of the internal audit unit :  Internal personnel
Case of the Head of Internal Audit being an internal employee of the company

At the 2567 Annual Audit Committee Meeting, Ms. Natthapat Jamikarak was appointed as the Head of Internal Audit of the company

due to (e.g., experience in auditing and having attended training courses related to internal audit work, such as
1. Chief Audit Executive (CAE) Professional Leadership Program, CAE Class 3
2. Personal Data Protection Law for Internal Audit, 11th edition, Political Science Association of Thammasat University

3. Personal Data Protection Act for Practitioners in Agencies and Business Organizations," 5th edition, Center for Legal Research

and Development, Faculty of Law, Chulalongkorn University
University

and understanding of the company's activities and operations, it is considered that she is qualified and capable of performing

such duties appropriately. The qualifications of the Head of Internal Audit are shown in Annex 3.

9.1.5 Appointment, discharge, and transfer of the head of the internal audit unit

Does the appointment, discharge, and transfer of the head of :  No

the internal audit unit require the audit committee approval?
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9.2 Related party transactions

Related party transactions

Does the company have any related party transactions? :  Yes

9.2.1 - 9.2.2 Names of the group of persons who may have a conflict of

interest, nature of relationship, and information on related party transactions

Persons/entities with potential conflicts

Name of person or

entity/type of business

Nature of relationship

Information as of
date

Image Solution Plus Company
Limited

Provide photo printing services
Distribute and repair
photographic equipment

Subsidiary company

31 Dec 2024

Pikachu Company Limited
Distribution and repair of

photographic equipment

Subsidiary company

31 Dec 2024

Midas Development Company
Limited
Rental of personal and

household goods n.e.c.

It is an enterprise with joint shareholders and directors.

31 Dec 2024

Miss Nattaporn

Thirakarnjanawong

She is the daughter of Mr. Chan Thienkanjanawong and Mrs.

Wankamol Thienkanjanawong

31 Dec 2025

Miss Prisara Thirakachanawong

Is an executive and a major shareholder of the company.

31 Dec 2024
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Details of related party transactions

Transaction value at the end of the fiscal year (baht)

Related party transactions
2022 2023 2024
Image Solution Plus Company Limited
Transaction 1 0.00 9,963,488.74 9,745,194.25
Nature of transaction
Printing service charges
Service income
Interest from loans
Details
As per the agreement and conditions stipulated
As per the agreement and conditions stipulated
As per the agreement and business necessity
Necessity/reasonableness
The Company has entered into transactions with related
parties. These transactions are in the ordinary course of
the Company's business and are on normal commercial
terms. The Company has a policy to disclose related party
transactions that fall under the regulations of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand regarding Rules, Conditions, and
Procedures for Disclosure of Connected Transactions by
Listed Companies.
Audit committee's opinion
During the year 2023, the Company engaged in transactions
with related parties, as disclosed by the Company's
auditor in the notes to the audited financial statements.
The Audit Committee has reviewed these transactions and
is of the opinion that all related party transactions
were conducted on an arm's length basis and in the
ordinary course of business. The Company determined the
purchase and sale prices of goods and services with
related parties at reasonable prices and under normal
commercial terms.
Pikachu Company Limited
Transaction 1 0.00 531,923,086.51 1,109,927,001.21
Nature of transaction
Purchase of goods
Purchase discounts
Sales
After-sales service
Management fee income
Interest from loans
Sales promotion and others
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Related party transactions

Transaction value at the end of the fiscal year (baht)

2022 2023 2024

Details

In accordance with the agreed-upon contracts and
conditions.

Market price, which is reasonable for conducting business.
As per the agreement and deemed necessary for business

operations.

Necessity/reasonableness

The Company has entered into transactions with related
parties. These transactions are in the ordinary course of
the Company's business and are on normal commercial
terms. The Company has a policy to disclose related party
transactions that fall under the regulations of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand regarding Rules, Conditions, and
Procedures for Disclosure of Connected Transactions by

Listed Companies.

Audit committee's opinion

During the year 2023, the Company engaged in transactions
with related parties, as disclosed by the Company's

auditor in the notes to the audited financial statements.
The Audit Committee has reviewed these transactions and
is of the opinion that all related party transactions

were reasonable and conducted in the ordinary course of
business. The Company has determined the purchase and
sale prices of goods and services with related parties at

reasonable prices and under normal business terms.

Midas Development Company Limited

Transaction 1
Nature of transaction

Rental and Common Area Expenses
Land and Building Tax

Details

As per the agreement, with the price determined by an

independent appraiser approved by the SEC.

Necessity/reasonableness

The Company has entered into transactions with related
parties. These transactions are in the ordinary course of
the Company's business and are on normal commercial
terms. The Company has a policy to disclose related party
transactions that fall under the regulations of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand regarding Rules, Conditions, and

Procedures for Disclosure of Connected Transactions.

Audit committee's opinion

0.00 4,909,178.03 5,948,729.70
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Related party transactions

Transaction value at the end of the fiscal year (baht)

2022

2023

2024

During the year 2023, the Company engaged in transactions
with related parties, as disclosed by the Company's

auditor in the notes to the audited financial statements.
The Audit Committee has reviewed these transactions and
is of the opinion that all related party transactions

were conducted on an arm's length basis and in the
ordinary course of business. The Company determined the
purchase and sale prices of goods and services with
related parties at reasonable prices and under normal

business terms.

Miss Nattaporn Thirakarnjanawong

Transaction 1
Nature of transaction

{

"building_rental": "Building Rental",
"property_tax": "Property Tax"

}

Details

As per the agreement, with the price determined by an

independent appraiser approved by the SEC.

Necessity/reasonableness

The Company has entered into transactions with related
parties. These transactions are in the ordinary course of
the Company's business and are in accordance with normal
commercial terms. The Company has a policy to disclose
related party transactions that fall under the

regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand Re: Rules,
Conditions, and Procedures for Disclosure of Connected

Transactions.

Audit committee's opinion

During the year 2023, the Company engaged in transactions
with related parties, as disclosed in the notes to the
audited financial statements by the Company's auditor.
The Audit Committee has reviewed these transactions and
is of the opinion that all related party transactions

were conducted on an arm's length basis and in the
ordinary course of business. The Company determined the
purchase and sale prices of goods and services with
related parties at reasonable prices and under normal

business terms.

0.00

3,828,310.86

3,828,373.38

Miss Prisara Thirakachanawong

Transaction 1

0.00

331,108.32

330,352.14
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Transaction value at the end of the fiscal year (baht)

Related party transactions

2022 2023 2024

Nature of transaction

Rental fee for warehouse
Building and land tax

Rental fee for land used as canteen and dormitory
Details

As per the agreement, with the price determined by an

independent appraiser approved by the SEC.

Necessity/reasonableness

The Company has entered into transactions with related
parties. These transactions are in the ordinary course of
the Company's business and are on normal commercial
terms. The Company has a policy to disclose related party
transactions that fall under the regulations of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand regarding Rules, Conditions, and

Procedures for Disclosure of Connected Transactions.

Audit committee's opinion

During the year 2023, the Company engaged in transactions
with related parties, as disclosed by the Company's

auditor in the notes to the audited financial statements.
The Audit Committee has reviewed these transactions and
is of the opinion that all related party transactions

were conducted on an arm's length basis and in the
ordinary course of business. The Company determined the
purchase and sale prices of goods and services with
related parties at reasonable prices and under normal

business terms.

9.2.3 Policy and future trends of related party transactions and the compliance

with the obligations specified in the prospectus of the company

Measures and procedures for approving related party transactions or connected transactions

Procedures for the Company's Related Party Transactions

When the Company agrees to enter into a transaction which is deemed to be a related party transaction under the Notification of
the Board of Governors of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, the Company has established procedures for considering such
transactions to ensure that such related party transactions are transparent, do not create a conflict of interest, and are in the
best interests of the Company and all shareholders, as follows:

(1) The Company will consider the type of related party transaction and, if it is an ordinary course of business transaction or a
support of ordinary course of business transaction, will further consider whether the terms and conditions of such transaction

are customary for such transactions. The Company will use the criteria of price and terms and conditions offered to general
customers or the price and terms and conditions generally used in the market for similar or comparable transactions. In the event
that there is no market price that can be used as a reference due to the unique nature of the goods or services under the
transaction or for any other reason, the Company may have the Audit Committee, the Company's auditor, or an independent expert

review and provide an opinion on the appropriateness of the price and the reasonableness of the transaction.
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(2) In cases where the related party transaction is an ordinary course of business transaction with terms and conditions

customary for such transactions, and the consideration cannot be calculated from the assets or reference value, or is an ordinary
course of business transaction or a support of ordinary course of business transaction without terms and conditions customary for
such transactions, or is a lease or rental of immovable property for a period not exceeding 3 years and it cannot be shown that
the terms and conditions are customary for such transactions, or is a transaction of any other type, the Company will calculate
the size of the transaction as small-size, medium-size, or large-size in order to determine how to proceed, such as whether to

seek approval for the transaction from the Board of Directors or from the shareholders' meeting, as the case may be.

(3) The Company will submit its related party transactions to the Audit Committee for acknowledgement or consideration, as the
case may be. For any related party transaction that requires approval from the Board of Directors or the shareholders' meeting,
the Company will submit the Audit Committee's opinion on such transaction to the Board of Directors and/or the shareholders'

meeting for consideration.

(4) The Company will report the agreement to enter into related party transactions to the Stock Exchange of Thailand, with
complete details in accordance with the criteria specified in the Notification of the Board of Governors of the Stock Exchange of
Thailand, and will disclose the related party transactions in the annual report, the annual registration statement, and/or other
reports as required by the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and in the financial statements in accordance with generally accepted

accounting standards.

(5) For related party transactions that may occur in the future, the Board of Directors shall comply with the Securities and
Exchange Act and the rules, regulations, orders, or requirements of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, including compliance with the
requirements for disclosure of related party transactions and the acquisition or disposal of significant assets of the Company or

its subsidiaries in accordance with the accounting standards prescribed by the Federation of Accounting Professions of Thailand.

(6) In the case of the Company's related party transactions other than ordinary course of business transactions that occur with
persons who may have a conflict of interest or have an interest or may have a conflict of interest in the future, the Company

will have the Audit Committee provide an opinion on the necessity and appropriateness of such transactions. In the event that the
Audit Committee does not have expertise in considering the related party transactions that may occur, the Company will have an
independent expert or the Company's auditor provide an opinion on such related party transactions for the consideration of the
Board of Directors or the shareholders, as the case may be. The Company will disclose related party transactions in the notes to

the financial statements audited by the Company's auditor.

(7) An interested person in any transaction shall not be entitled to vote on or approve such transaction.

Procedures for Approving Related Party Transactions

(1) In the case of a related party transaction that is an ordinary course of business transaction or a support of ordinary
course of business transaction with terms and conditions customary for such transactions, the Chief Executive Officer shall have
the authority to approve such transaction. (2) For other related party transactions or related party transactions that are
ordinary course of business transactions or support of ordinary course of business transactions without terms and conditions
customary for such transactions, or support of ordinary course of business transactions with terms and conditions customary for
such transactions but the consideration cannot be calculated from the assets or reference value, the authorized person to approve
such transactions shall be determined based on the size of the transaction, whether it is a small-size, medium-size, or large-
size transaction, which is calculated from the value of the transaction compared to the net tangible assets (NTA) as follows:

- A small-size transaction is a transaction with a value less than or equal to 1 million baht or less than or equal to 0.03

percent of net tangible assets, whichever is higher.

- A medium-size transaction is a transaction with a value greater than 1 million baht but less than 20 million baht or greater
than 0.03 percent but less than 3 percent of net tangible assets, whichever is higher.

- A large-size transaction is a transaction with a value greater than or equal to 20 million baht or greater than 3 percent of

Part 2 Corporate Governance
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net tangible assets, whichever is higher (except for transactions for giving or receiving Type 1 financial assistance, the lower

value shall be used as the criteria).

9.2.4 Information on appraised assets and appraisal price in conjunction with

the execution of related party transactions

Can be referred in attachment 4: assets for business undertaking and details of asset appraisal
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BiIc & camera

corporation

Section 3

Financial statements

The Report on the Responsibility of the Board of Directors toward Financial Reports

The Board of Directors of Big Camera Corporation Public Company Limited has giving importance to the
financial reports and financial information indicated in the annual report, to ensure the appropriate, complete and
accuracy of the reports, in preparing the financial statements, appropriate accounting policies have been adopted
and regularly adhered to, using careful discretion and estimates. As well, key information has been adequately
disclosed in the notes to the financial statement. The purpose is to ensure that the disclosed information rightly

reflect the Company’s financial status and performance, which are beneficial to the investing publics.

The Board of Directors has appointed the Audit Committee with all of its members being independent
directors who have expertise in profession and qualified according to the requirement of the SEC and SET. The
Committee is responsible for reviewing accounting policies and ensuring the quality of financial reports. It is also
responsible for reviewing internal control systems, the internal audit systems, and the risk management systems.

The opinion of the Audit Committee is given in its report which is already included in this annual report.

The Board of Directors is of the opinion that the overall internal control systems are adequate and
appropriate and gives rise to the reasonable confidence that the financial of the Company for the year end 31
December 2024 are reliable and in compliance with the accounting standard as well as the related laws and

regulations.

(Mr. Chan Thienkanjanawong)

Chairman
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Big Camera Corporation Public Company Limited
and its subsidiaries

Report and consolidated and separate financial statements
31 December 2024



Independent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholders of Big Camera Corporation Public Company Limited

Opinion

| have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Big Camera Corporation
Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the related consolidated statements
of comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy
information, and have also audited the separate financial statements of Big Camera Corporation

Public Company Limited for the same period (collectively “the financial statements”).

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Big Camera Corporation Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries and of
Big Camera Corporation Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2024, their financial performance

and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. My responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of my report. | am independent of the Group in accordance with the
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants including Independence Standards issued by the
Federation of Accounting Professions (Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants) that are
relevant to my audit of the financial statements, and | have fulfilled my other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. | believe that
the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

| draw attention to the Note 28.3 to the financial statements regarding the Company’s receipt of
subpoena as a guarantor under the bank overdraft agreement including the outcome of the case

according to the judgment of the Court. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.



Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, were of most significance
in my audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of my audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming my opinion thereon,

and | do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

I have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of

the Financial Statements section of my report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
my audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to my assessment of

the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of my audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for my audit

opinion on the accompanying financial statements as a whole.
Key audit matters and how audit procedures respond to each matter are described a below.
Revenue recognition from sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is one of the Company’s significant accounts because the amounts
of revenue recorded directly affect the Company’s profit or loss for the year. Combined with

the nature of the retail business operated by the Company, with a large number of stores, this
means there are risks with respect to the amount and timing of revenue recognition. For this reason,

| have paid particular attention to the Company’s recognition of revenue from sales of goods.

In examining the revenue recognition of the Company, | have assessed and tested the internal
controls with respect to revenue cycle by making enquiry of responsible executive, gaining

an understanding of the controls and selecting representative sample to test the operation of
the designed control. On a sampling basis, | also examined supporting documents for sales
transactions occurring during the year and near the end of the accounting period. In addition,

| performed analytical review procedures on the sales account to identify possible irregularities

in sales transactions.
Revenue recognition from sales supporting promotion

| have focused on to the Company’s recognition of revenue from sales supporting promotion
because the Company receives such revenue from a large number of vendors and the nature
and conditions of the sales promotions and the calculation methods for vendors vary. There are
therefore risks with respect to the amount and timing of the recognition of revenue from sales

supporting promotion.



| have examined the recognition of revenue from sales supporting promotion of the Company by
examined, on a sampling basis, the supporting documents for the revenue transactions occurring
during the year, such as sales supporting promotion memorandums, confirmation letters between the
Company and vendors, credit notes issued by vendors and receipts for revenue recognised during
the audited accounting period. In addition, | performed analytical review procedures on the revenue
from sales supporting promotion account to identify possible irregularities in revenue from sales

supporting promotion transactions.
Allowance for diminution in value of inventory

Estimating the net realisable values of inventory, which are disclosed in Note 9 to the financial
statements, required management to exercise significant judgement, and the inventories of the
Company are technology products, which become obsolete more rapidly than other products.
There is therefore a risk with respect to the amount of allowance set aside for diminution in the

value of inventory.

| have assessed the method and the assumption applied by management in determining such
allowance by gaining an understanding of the basis applied in determining the allowance and
reviewing the consistency of the application of that basis. | also compared the data on inventory
aging and inventory movement to identify product lines with indicators of lower than normal
inventory turnover and tested calculation. In addition, | compared the net amounts that the Company
realised from the sale of inventory after the date of the financial statements with the cost value of

the inventory in each product line.
Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprise
the information included in annual report of the Group, but does not include the financial statements
and my auditor’s report thereon. The annual report of the Group is expected to be made available

to me after the date of this auditor’s report.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and | do not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.



In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When | read the annual report of the Group, if | conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, | am required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance for correction
of the misstatement.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as

a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue

an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing, | exercise professional

judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.



¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am
required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However,

future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. | am responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of

the group audit. | remain solely responsible for my audit opinion.

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that | identify during my audit.

| also provide those charged with governance with a statement that | have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where

applicable, related safeguards.



From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, | determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. | describe these matters in my auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
| determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits

of such communication.

| am responsible for the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report.

Krongkaew Limkittikul
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 5874

EY Office Limited
Bangkok: 26 February 2025
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Big Camera Corporation Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2024
(Unit: Baht)

Consolidated financial statements  Separate financial statements

Note 2024 2023 2024 2023
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 7 205,954,153 169,004,646 174,616,373 142,732,320
Trade and other receivables 6,8 100,506,997 91,022,908 112,755,997 92,245,024
Inventories 9 1,365,441,597 995,489,284 1,316,961,401 985,269,791
Other current financial assets 10 - 405,338,276 - 405,338,276
Short-term loans to subsidiaries 6 - - 50,000,000 -
Other current assets 11 72,524,471 62,296,261 32,670,316 29,658,775
Total current assets 1,744,427,218 1,723,151,375 1,687,004,087 1,655,244,186
Non-current assets
Restricted bank deposits 12 120,175,000 120,175,000 120,175,000 120,175,000
Investments in subsidiaries 13 - - 57,499,778 44,999,785
Long-term loan to subsidiaries 6 - - 50,000,000 50,000,000
Building and equipment 14 125,686,347 113,922,079 98,966,500 94,558,687
Right-of-use assets 15 408,770,773 412,634,317 408,770,773 412,634,317
Intangible assets 16 41,828,247 36,761,749 39,360,619 33,310,389
Deferred tax assets 24 73,151,749 66,196,153 64,989,189 62,071,950
Other non-current assets 17 118,879,824 112,764,998 118,879,824 112,764,998
Total non-current assets 888,491,940 862,454,296 958,641,683 930,515,126
Total assets 2,632,919,158 2,585,605,671 2,645,645,770 2,585,759,312

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Big Camera Corporation Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Statement of financial position (continued)
As at 31 December 2024
(Unit: Baht)

Consolidated financial statements  Separate financial statements

Note 2024 2023 2024 2023

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 6, 18 380,417,831 397,502,577 434,229,150 427,219,216
Current portion of lease liabilities 15 196,198,561 206,995,759 196,198,561 206,995,759
Income tax payable 17,520,089 9,951,330 13,849,245 7,794,965
Other current liabilities 6,133,572 6,267,339 5,798,020 5,959,454
Total current liabilities 600,270,053 620,717,005 650,074,976 647,969,394
Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities - net of current portion 15 178,396,113 170,505,632 178,396,113 170,505,632
Provision for long-term employee benefits 19 62,537,807 55,761,348 60,105,456 53,948,652
Provision for decommissioning cost 8,933,756 8,612,885 8,933,756 8,612,885
Total non-current liabilities 249,867,676 234,879,865 247,435,325 233,067,169
Total liabilities 850,137,729 855,596,870 897,510,301 881,036,563
Shareholders' equity
Share capital

Registered, issued and fully paid

3,528,878,800 ordinary shares of Baht 0.10 each 352,887,880 352,887,880 352,887,880 352,887,880

Retained earnings

Appropriated-statutory reserve 20 35,288,788 35,288,788 35,288,788 35,288,788

Unappropriated 1,394,604,761 1,341,832,133 1,359,958,801 1,316,546,081
Total shareholders' equity 1,782,781,429 1,730,008,801 1,748,135,469 1,704,722,749
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 2,632,919,158 2,585,605,671 2,645,645,770 2,585,759,312

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Directors




Big Camera Corporation Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Profit or loss:

Revenues

Sales

Service income

Other income

Total revenues

Expenses

Cost of sales

Cost of services

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Total expenses

Operating profit

Finance cost

Profit before income tax expenses
Income tax expenses

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Note

22

24

25

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

2024

3,684,886,414
93,182,888
116,062,258

2023

2,958,119,213
88,475,717
108,569,956

2024

3,637,573,706
86,115,003
137,365,132

2023

2,922,256,217
76,665,917
114,418,178

3,894,131,560

3,155,164,886

3,861,053,841

3,113,340,312

2,994,894,175

2,358,383,305

3,010,080,106

2,377,490,051

26,797,219 33,465,430 23,444,535 25,131,070
532,259,921 465,851,048 513,310,395 452,961,510
202,338,707 186,227,369 188,180,191 175,754,763

3,756,290,022 3043927152 3735015227  3,031,337,394
137,841,538 111,237,734 126,038,614 82,002,918

(4,494,094) (8,258,124) (4,494,094) (8,258,124)
133,347,444 102,979,610 121,544,520 73,744,794
(27,642,311) (21,046,750) (25,199,295) (15,117,990)
105,705,133 81,932,860 96,345,225 58,626,804
105,705,133 81,932,860 96,345,225 58,626,804

0.030 0.023 0.027 0.017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Big Camera Corporation Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Statement of changes in shareholders' equity

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Balance as at 1 January 2023

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Dividend paid (Note 21)

Balance as at 31 December 2023

Balance as at 1 January 2024

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Dividend paid (Note 21)

Balance as at 31 December 2024

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements
Issued and
fully paid Retained earnings Total
share capital Appropriated Unappropriated shareholders' equity
352,887,880 35,288,788 1,330,475,945 1,718,652,613
- - 81,932,860 81,932,860
- - 81,932,860 81,932,860
- - (70,576,672) (70,576,672)
352,887,880 35,288,788 1,341,832,133 1,730,008,801
352,887,880 35,288,788 1,341,832,133 1,730,008,801
- - 105,705,133 105,705,133
- - 105,705,133 105,705,133
- - (52,932,505) (52,932,505)
352,887,880 35,288,788 1,394,604,761 1,782,781,429




Big Camera Corporation Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Balance as at 1 January 2023

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Dividend paid (Note 21)

Balance as at 31 December 2023

Balance as at 1 January 2024

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Dividend paid (Note 21)

Balance as at 31 December 2024

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

(Unit: Baht)
Separate financial statements
Issued and
fully paid Retained earnings Total

share capital Appropriated Unappropriated shareholders' equity
352,887,880 35,288,788 1,328,495,949 1,716,672,617

- - 58,626,804 58,626,804

- - 58,626,804 58,626,804

- - (70,576,672) (70,576,672)

352,887,880 35,288,788 1,316,546,081 1,704,722,749
352,887,880 35,288,788 1,316,546,081 1,704,722,749

- - 96,345,225 96,345,225

- - 96,345,225 96,345,225

- - (52,932,505) (52,932,505)

352,887,880 35,288,788 1,359,958,801 1,748,135,469




Big Camera Corporation Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Cash flow statement

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to

net cash provided by (paid from) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Reversal of allowance for expected credit losses

Reduction of cost to net realisable value

of inventories (reversal)

Allowances for impairment loss on assets (reversal)
Loss (gain) on sales and write-off of equipments

Net difference of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

arising from contract termination
Provision for long-term employee benefits
Interest income
Interest expenses

Reduction in lease payments by lessors

Profit from operating activities before changes in

operating assets and liabilities
Operating assets (increase) decrease
Trade and other receivables
Inventories
Other current assets
Other non-current assets
Operating liabilities increase (decrease)
Trade and other payables
Other current liabilities
Cash paid for long-term employee benefits
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from interest income
Cash paid for corporate income tax
Cash received from withholding tax refund

Net cash flows from operating activities

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

2024 023 2024 023
133,347,444 102,979,610 121,544,520 73,744,794
39,470,799 38,935,050 31,967,070 34,955,190
259,369,711 250,287,572 259,369,711 250,287,572
(1,331,037) (605,755) (1,331,037) (91,755)
11,551,390 (3,906,726) 11,551,390 (3,906,726)
(418,046) 400,565 (418,046) 400,565
(1,905,058) 338,369 (544,601) (12,560)
(363,864) (190,909) (363,864) (190,909)
8,007,659 7,212,503 7,388,004 6,695,781
(6,454,875) (10,411,694) (11,369,927) (12,719,201)
4,494,094 8,258,124 4,494,094 8,258,124
- (11,578,906) - (11,578,906)
445,768,217 381,717,803 422,287,314 345,841,969
(7,956,006 (24,316,424 (18,983,426 4,392,759

)
(381,503,703)
(10,164,532)

)

)
(189,313,140)
(19,791,698)

)

)
(343,243,000)
)

(191,385,776)

(3,011,541 (9,356,180)
(6,114,826 (6,932,119 (6,114,826) (6,932,119)
(17,825,629) 56,527,301 6,332,565 94,600,921
(178,400) (335,735) (206,067) (420,065)
(1,231,200) - (1,231,200) -
20,793,921 197,555,988 55,829,819 236,741,509
6,257,829 8,542,024 11,173,417 10,849,601
(27,092,826) (18,309,071) (22,062,254) (7,654,161)
- 133,450 : .
(41,076) 187,922,391 44,940,982 239,936,949

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Big Camera Corporation Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Cash flow statement (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash paid for short-term loans to subsidiaries

Cash paid for long-term loan to subsidiary

Decrease in other current financial asset

Cash paid for investment in subsidiary

Acquisition of equipments

Acquisition of intangible assets

Proceeds from sales of equipments

Net cash flows from (used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Dividend paid

Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities

Cash paid for interest expenses

Net cash flows used in financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplement cash flow information:
Non-cash transaction
Payable of acquisition of equipment

Net increase in right-of-use assets under lease liabilities

Net increase (decrease) in right-of-use assets from change in

provision for decommissioning costs

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

2024

405,338,276

(47,077,779)

023

102,983,019

(53,551,661)

2024

(50,000,000)
405,338,276

(12,499,993)
(32,086,713)

023

(50,000,000)
102,983,019

(45,605,957)

(11,199,780) (14,987,674) (11,065,580) (13,028,171)
5,039,981 1,463,509 2,367,196 1,450,467

352,100,698 35,907,193 302,053,186 (4,200,642)

(52,887,872) (70,487,362) (52,887,872) (70,487,362)

(257,920,048)  (229,903,188)  (257,920,048)  (229,903,188)
(4,302,195) (8,114,893) (4,302,195) (8,114,893)
(315,110,115)  (308,505,443)  (315,110,115)  (308,505,443)
36,949,507 (84,675,859) 31,884,053 (72,769,136)
169,004,646 253,680,505 142,732,320 215,501,456
205,954,153 169,004,646 174,616,373 142,732,320
740,883 473,860 677,369 -
255,377,195 93,521,900 255,377,195 93,521,900
(128,972) 29,413 (128,972) 29,413

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Big Camera Corporation Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Notes to financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

2.1

2.2

General information of the Company

Big Camera Corporation Public Company Limited (“‘the Company”) is a public company
incorporated and domiciled in Thailand. The Company is principally engaged in
the distribution of cameras, mobile phones, and photography and mobile phone related
products, together with the related services such as the provision of photographic processing
and photographic equipment repair services, etc. The registered office of the Company is at
115, 115/1 Sawatdikarn 1 Road, Nongkheam Subdistrict, Nongkheam District, Bangkok 10160.
The Company has more than 163 branches countrywide.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting
Standards enunciated under the Accounting Professions Act B.E. 2547 and their presentation
has been made in compliance with the stipulations of the Notification of the Department of

Business Development, issued under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543.

The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements of the
Company. The financial statements in English language have been translated from

the Thai language financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where

otherwise disclosed in the accounting policies.
Basis of consolidation

a) The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Big Camera
Corporation Public Company Limited (“the Company”) and the following subsidiary

companies (“the subsidiaries”) (Collectively as “the Group”):

Country of Percentage of
Company’s name Nature of business incorporation shareholding
2024 2023
Percent Percent
Image Solution Plus  Printing services Thailand 100 100
Co., Ltd.
Piccasus Co., Ltd. Distribution and repair of Thailand 100 100

photographic equipment



23

3.1

3.2

b) The Company is deemed to have control over an investee or subsidiaries if it has rights,
or is exposed, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and it has the

ability to direct the activities that affect the amount of its returns.

c) Subsidiary are fully consolidated, being the date on which the Company obtains control,

and continue to be consolidated until the date when such control ceases.

d) The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared using the same significant

accounting policies as the Company.

e) Material balances and transactions between the Group have been eliminated from the

consolidated financial statements.
The separate financial statements present investments in subsidiaries under the cost method.
New financial reporting standards
Financial reporting standards that became effective in the current year

During the year, the Group has adopted the revised financial reporting standards which are
effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2024. These financial reporting
standards were aimed at alignment with the corresponding International Financial Reporting
Standards with most of the changes directed towards clarifying accounting treatment and

providing accounting guidance for users of the standards.

The adoption of these financial reporting standards does not have any significant impact on

the Group’s financial statements.

Financial reporting standards that will become effective for fiscal years beginning on

or after 1 January 2025

The Federation of Accounting Professions issued a number of revised financial reporting
standards, which are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2025. These
financial reporting standards were aimed at alignment with the corresponding International
Financial Reporting Standards with most of the changes directed towards clarifying

accounting treatment and providing accounting guidance for users of the standards.

The management of the Group believes that adoption of these amendments will not have any

significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.



4.2

4.3

4.4

Accounting policies
Revenue and expenses recognition
Sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of assets is
transferred to the customer, generally upon delivery of the goods. Revenue is measured at
the amount of the considerations received or receivable, excluding value added tax, of goods

supplied after deducting discounts.

Rendering of services

Service revenue is recognised at a point in time upon completion of the services.
Revenue from sales supporting promotion

Revenue from sales supporting promotion is recognised at a point in time when the right to

receive the revenue from sales supporting promotion is established.
Interest income

Interestincome is calculated using the effective interest method and recognised on an accrual

basis. The effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset.
Finance cost

Interest expense from financial liabilities at amortised cost is calculated using the effective

interest method and recognised on an accrual basis.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and at banks, and all highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal

restrictions.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) and net realisable value.
Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for in the separate financial statements using

the cost method net of allowance for impairment loss (if any).



4.5

4.6

Building and equipment/Depreciation

Buildings and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and allowance for

loss on impairment of assets (if any).

Depreciation of building and equipment is calculated by reference to their costs on

the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Useful life
Building and constructions 20 years
Tools and equipment used in photographic labs 3and 5 years
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Computer 3 years

Depreciation is included in determining income.
No depreciation is provided on assets under installation.

An item of building and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is

included in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. Following the initial recognition, the
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated

impairment losses (if any).

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on the straight-line basis over the economic
useful life and tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method of such intangible
assets are reviewed at least at each financial year end. The amortisation expense is charged

to profit or loss.

A summary of the intangible assets with finite useful lives is as follows:

Useful life
Computer software 3and 10 vyears
Rights for store operating and sales of goods and services 10  vyears



4.7

4.8

Related party transactions

Related parties comprise individuals or enterprises that control, or are controlled by,

the Group, whether directly or indirectly, or which are under common control with the Group.

They also include associates and individuals or enterprises which directly or indirectly own a
voting interest in the Group that gives them significant influence over the Group, key
management personnel and directors with authority in the planning and direction of the

Group’s operations.
Leases

At inception of contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an

identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
The Group as a lessee

The Group applied a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. At the commencement date of the lease
(i.e. the date the underlying asset is available for use), the Group recognises right-of-use
assets representing the right to use underlying assets and lease liabilities based on lease

payments.
Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation, any accumulated
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-
of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities initially recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, lease payments made at or before the commencement date of the lease and an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying

asset or the site on which it is located less any lease incentives received.

Depreciation of right-of-use assets are calculated by reference to their costs, on the straight-

line basis over the shorter of their estimated useful lives and the lease term.

Useful life
Land 6 years
Buildings and constructions 3-20 years
Computer 3 years
Motor vehicles 5 vyears



4.9

If ownership of the leased asset is transferred to the Group at the end of the lease term or
the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over
the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be payable under residual value guarantees. Moreover, the lease payments include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
an option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as expenses in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment
occurs.

The Group discounted the present value of the lease payments by the interest rate implicit in
the lease or the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments or a change in the
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

A lease that has a lease term less than or equal to 12 months from commencement date or
a lease of low-value assets is recognised as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Foreign currencies

The consolidated and separate financial statements are presented in Baht, which is also

the Company’s functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rate ruling at
the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies

are translated into Baht at the exchange rate ruling at the end of reporting period,

Gains and losses on exchange are included in determining income.



4.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

4.11

At the end of each reporting period, the Group performs impairment reviews in respect of the
buildings and equipment, right-of-use assets and other intangible assets whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that an asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is
recognised when the recoverable amount of an asset, which is the higher of the asset’s fair

value less costs to sell and its value in use, is less than the carrying amount.
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund are recognised as

expenses when incurred.
Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plans

The Group and its employees have jointly established the provident fund. The fund is monthly
contributed by employees and by the Group. The fund’s assets are held in a separate trust

fund and the Group’s contributions are recognised as expenses when incurred.
Defined benefit plans

The Group has obligations in respect of the severance payments it must make to employees
upon retirement under labor law. The Group treats these severance payment obligations as

a defined benefit plan.

The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined by a professionally qualified

independent actuary based on actuarial techniques, using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefit plans are recognised immediately in

other comprehensive income.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of the date of the plan

amendment or curtailment and the date that the Group recognises restructuring-related costs.



4.12 Provisions

4.13

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of

the obligation.
Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of corporate income tax currently payable and

deferred tax.
Current tax

Current income tax is provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to the

taxation authorities, based on taxable profits determined in accordance with tax legislation.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts at the end of each reporting period, using the tax

rates enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The Group recognises deferred tax liabilities for all taxable temporary differences while they
recognise deferred tax assets for all deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried
forward to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which

such deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried forward can be utilised.

At each reporting date, the Group reviews and reduces the carrying amount of deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available

to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

The Group records deferred tax directly to shareholders' equity if the tax relates to items that

are recorded directly to shareholders' equity.



4.14 Financial instruments

The Group initially measures financial assets at its fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. However,
trade receivables, that do not contain a significant financing component, are measured at the

transaction price as disclosed in the accounting policy relating to revenue recognition.
Classification and measurement of financial assets

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”), or fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”). The classification of financial assets at initial recognition is
driven by the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual

cash flows characteristics of the financial assets.
Financial assets at amortised cost

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if the financial asset is held in order
to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest
rate (“EIR”) method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit

or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets that are lease deposits paid to lessors is initially recognised at fair value at
the contract date and subsequently measured of those lease deposits at their amortised
costs. The difference between the fair value as of the contract date and the transaction price

is recognised as a part of right-of-use assets.
Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

At initial recognition the Group’s financial liabilities are recognised at fair value net of
transaction costs and classified as liabilities to be subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. In determining amortised
cost, the Group takes into account any fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The

EIR amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.



Derecognition of financial instruments

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired or have been transferred and either the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or the Group has transferred control of the asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) for all debt
instruments not held at FVTPL. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate.

For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance
is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure (a lifetime ECL).

However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to have a significant
increase in credit risk and to be in default using other internal or external information, such

as credit rating of issuers.

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.

ECLs are calculated based on its historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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Significant accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with financial reporting standards at
times requires management to make subjective judgements and estimates regarding matters
that are inherently uncertain. These judgements and estimates affect reported amounts and
disclosures; and actual results could differ from these estimates. Significant judgements and
estimates are as follows:

Reduction of inventory cost to net realisable value

In determining a reduction of inventory cost to net realisable value, the management makes
judgement and estimates net realisable value of inventory based on the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary to make sale.
Also, the management makes judgement and estimates expected loss from stock
obsolescence based upon approximate aging profile of each type of inventory.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences and losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of estimate future taxable profits.

Post-employment benefits under defined benefit plans

The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial techniques.
Such determination is made based on various assumptions, including discount rate, future
salary increase rate, mortality rate and staff turnover rate.

Leases
Determining the lease term with extension and termination options

In determining the lease term, the management is required to exercise judgement in
assessing whether the Group is reasonably certain to exercise the option to extend or
terminate the lease considering all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic
incentive for the Group to exercise either the extension or termination option.

Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, the
management is required to exercise judgement in estimating its incremental borrowing rate
to discount lease liabilities. The incremental borrowing rate is the rate of interest that the Group
would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to
obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.

11



Litigation

The Company has contingent liabilities as a result of litigation. The Company’s management has
used judgement to assess of the results of the litigation and believes that no loss will result.
Therefore, no contingent liabilities are recorded as at the end of reporting period.

Related party transactions

During the years, the Group had significant business transactions with related parties. Such

transactions, which are summarised below, arose in the ordinary course of business and
were concluded on commercial terms and bases agreed upon between the Group and those

related parties.

Transactions with subsidiaries

(eliminated from the consolidated
financial statements)

Purchases of goods

Hire of work

Sales of goods
Repair fee paid
Management income
Revenue from sales
supporting promotion
Trade discount
Interest income

Repair fee income
Other expenses
Other income

Transactions with related
parties

Rental fee paid

Utilities expenses

Transactions with shareholders

and director
Rental fee paid

Consolidated

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

financial Separate Transfer pricing
statements financial statements policy
2024 2023 2024 2023
- - 1,036,181 494,234 Mutual agreed prices
- - 9,439 9,663 Contract prices
- - 49 489 Mutual agreed prices
- - 2,078 2,366 Mutual agreed prices
- - 22,182 10,581 Contract prices
- - 39,107 17,768 Contract prices
- - 5,495 4,239 Contract prices
- - 5,057 2,407 5.505% and 6.205%
per annum (2023:
5.505% per annum)
- - 32 42 Mutual agreed prices
- - - 97 Mutual agreed prices
- - 52 - Mutual agreed prices
5,683 4,820 4,201 4,202 Contract prices
266 90 - - Mutual agreed prices
4,166 4,167 3,496 3,497 Contract prices

12



As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the balances of the accounts between the Group and

those related parties were as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements

2024 2023 2024 2023

Trade and other receivables - subsidiaries

(Note 8)
Trade receivables - - 1 111
Other receivables - - 4,144 2,744
Accrued revenue - - 11,940 7,591
Total - - 16,085 10,446
Deposits paid to related parties
Related party (related by common

shareholders) 921 921 921 921
Shareholders and director 685 685 685 685
Total 1,606 1,606 1,606 1,606
Trade and other payable - related parties

(Note 18)
Trade payables - subsidiaries - - 63,188 39,728
Trade payables - shareholders and directors 78 76 - -
Total 78 76 63,188 39,728

Short-term loans to subsidiaries

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Separate financial statements

Balance as at Balance as at
1 January 31 December
Loans to 2024 Increase Decrease 2024
Piccasus Co., Ltd. - 80,000 (30,000) 50,000
Image Solution Plus Co., Ltd. - 2,000 (2,000) -
- 82,000 (32,000) 50,000

During the year, the Company had short-term loans to subsidiaries carried interest rate at
6.205% per annum. The loans will repaid in the second quarter of 2025.
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Long-term loan to subsidiary

On 10 March 2023, the Company entered into a loan agreement amounting to Baht 50 million
with Piccasus Co., Ltd., a subsidiary. Interest on loan is 5.505% per annum. The loan will be
paid in March 2026.

Agreements with related parties

- Image Solution Plus Co., Ltd., a subsidiary, entered into 1-year office space rental agreement
with the Company’s shareholder for its operation. This contract will expire in December 2025.
The subsidiary has to pay a monthly rental fee approximately Baht 0.06 million.

- Piccasus Co., Ltd., a subsidiary, entered into 1-year office space rental agreement with
Midas Development Company Limited, a related company, for its operation. This contract
will expire in December 2025. The subsidiary has to pay a monthly rental fee approximately
Baht 0.12 million.

Directors and management’s benefits

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group had employee benefit
expenses payable to their directors and management as below.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated financial statements/
Separate financial statements

2024 2023
Short-term employee benefits 44,768 40,555
Post-employment benefits 2,583 2,395
Total 47,351 42,950

Cash and cash equivalents

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2024 2023 2024 2023
Cash 2,470 2,455 2,470 2,455
Saving deposits 202,651 161,820 171,763 135,828
Current deposits 833 4,730 383 4,449
Total 205,954 169,005 174,616 142,732

As at 31 December 2024, saving deposits carried interests between 0.15 percent and 0.40
percent per annum (2023: between 0.15 percent and 0.60 percent per annum).
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Trade and other receivables
(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2024 2023 2024 2023
Trade receivables
Trade receivables - related parties (Note 6) - - 1 111
Trade receivables - unrelated parties
Aged on the basis of due dates
Not yet due 17,891 16,040 16,649 11,768
Past due
Up to 3 months 13,370 11,032 12,819 10,700
3 - 6 months 23 1 23 -
1 -2 years 1 - - -
Total trade receivables 31,285 27,073 29,492 22,579
Other receivables
Other receivables - related party (Note 6) - - 4,144 2,744
Other receivables - unrelated parties 831 857 831 857
Accrued revenue from sales supporting
promotion 69,203 64,948 67,165 60,338
Accrued revenue - related party (Note 6) - - 11,940 7,591
Interest receivables 540 343 539 343
Others 216 701 213 692
Total other receivables 70,790 66,849 84,832 72,565
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (1,568) (2,899) (1,568) (2,899)
Total other receivables, net 69,222 63,950 83,264 69,666
Total trade and other receivables, net 100,507 91,023 112,756 92,245

The normal credit term is 7 - 30 days.
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Set out below is the movements in the allowance for expected credit losses of trade and other

receivables:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2024 2023 2024 2023
Beginning balance 2,899 3,505 2,899 2,991
Allowance for expected credit losses - 614 - 175
Debt repayment (1,331) (1,220) (1,331) (267)
1,568 2,899 1,568 2,899

Ending balance

Inventories

Finished goods
Printing supplies
Supplies

Total

Finished goods

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Reduction of cost to net

Cost realisable value Inventories-net
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
1,586,923 1,206,177 (225,245)  (213,694) 1,361,678 992,483
290 290 - - 290 290
3,474 2,716 - - 3,474 2,716

1,590,687 1,209,183 (225,245)  (213,694) 1,365,442 995,489

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

Reduction of cost to net

Cost realisable value Inventories-net

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
1,542,206 1,198,964 (225,245)  (213,694) 1,316,961 985,270

During the current year, the Company reduced cost of inventories by Baht 12 million, to reflect

the net realisable value. This was included in cost of sales. (2023: reversed the write-down

of cost of inventories by Baht 4 million and reduced the amount of inventories recognised as

expenses during the year).
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10. Other current financial assets

As at 31 December 2023, the Company had debt instrument at amortised cost which is fixed
deposit receipt (FDR) amounting to Baht 405 million. Interest is 1.60 to 2.50 percent per
annum (2024: Nil).

11. Other current assets

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

2024 2023 2024 2023
Input vat 27,538 17,403 17,969 11,220
Prepaid expenses 6,518 8,706 5,685 7,928
Advance payments for goods 28,662 25,074 - -
Withholding tax deduct at sources 8,879 8,815 8,308 8,308
Others 927 2,298 708 2,203
Total 72,524 62,296 32,670 29,659

12. Restricted bank deposits
The balances represent fixed deposits pledged with the banks to secure credit facilities.
13. Investments in subsidiaries

Details of investments in subsidiaries as presented in the separate financial statements are as

follow:

Company’s name Paid-up capital Shareholding percentage Cost

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
(Million Baht) (Million Baht) (Percent) (Percent) (Thousand (Thousand
Baht) Baht)
Image Solution Plus
Co., Ltd. 37.5 25.0 100 100 37,500 25,000
Piccasus Co., Ltd. 20.0 20.0 100 100 20,000 20,000
Total 57,500 45,000

On 17 April 2024, a meeting of the Board of Directors of Image Solution Plus Co., Ltd.
("Image") resolved to approve an additional call for share payment, increasing from 50% to
75% for 5,000,000 ordinary shares, amounting to Baht 12.5 million. Image has received the
payment for the shares from the Company and has completed the registration of the increase
in the issued and paid-up share capital in April 2024. As of 31 December 2024, the Company
had investment in Image of Baht 37.5 million.

No dividend was received from the subsidiaries for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.
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14. Building and equipment

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Tools and
equipment Furniture,
Buildings used in fixtures and
and photographic office Motor Assets under
constructions labs equipment vehicles Computer installation Total

Cost:
As at 1 January 2023 5,890 192,507 382,702 36,546 74,224 12,777 704,646
Additions - 7,299 3,989 9,550 2,008 31,180 54,026
Disposals - (19,693) (214) (4,133) (2,301) - (26,341)
Write-off - (934) (31,442) - (4,363) (35) (36,774)
Transfer in (out) - - 34,522 - - (34,522) -
As at 31 December 2023 5,890 179,179 389,557 41,963 69,568 9,400 695,557
Additions - 15,559 5,810 - 3,031 23,419 47,819
Disposals - (65,182) (4,153) (8,909) (3,206) - (81,450)
Write-off - (96) (17,565) - (32) - (17,693)
Transfer in (out) - - 21,140 - 2 (21,142) -
As at 31 December 2024 5,890 129,460 394,789 33,054 69,363 11,677 644,233
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Accumulated depreciation:
As at 1 January 2023
Depreciation for the year
Depreciation on disposals
Depreciation on write-off

As at 31 December 2023
Depreciation for the year
Depreciation on disposals
Depreciation on write-off

As at 31 December 2024

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Tools and
equipment Furniture,
Buildings used in fixtures and
and photographic office Motor Assets under
constructions labs equipment vehicles Computer installation Total
2,965 172,008 334,025 30,056 69,145 - 608,199
290 9,828 20,679 1,705 1,829 - 34,331
- (19,257) (209) (3,675) (2,215) - (25,356)
- (867) (30,910) - (4,180) - (35,957)
3,255 161,712 323,585 28,086 64,579 - 581,217
290 7,204 21,254 2,191 2,398 - 33,337
- (63,756) (4,071) (8,017) (3,112) - (78,956)
- (42) (16,978) - (31) - (17,051)
3,545 105,118 323,790 22,260 63,834 - 518,547
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Allowance for impairment loss:

As at 1 January 2023

Increase during the year

As at 31 December 2023
Decrease during the year
As at 31 December 2024
Net book value:

As at 31 December 2023
As at 31 December 2024

Depreciation for the year

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2023 (Baht 7 million included in cost of services, and the balance in selling and administrative expenses)

Tools and
equipment Furniture,
Buildings used in fixtures and
and photographic office Motor Assets under
constructions labs equipment vehicles Computer installation Total
- - 17 - - - 17
- - 401 - - - 401
- - 418 - - - 418
- - (418) - - - (418)
2,635 17,467 65,554 13,877 4,989 9,400 113,922
2,345 24,342 70,999 10,794 5,529 11,677 125,686
34,331
33,337

2024 (Baht 4 million included in cost of services, and the balance in selling and administrative expenses)
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

Tools and
equipment Furniture,
Buildings used in fixtures and
and photographic office Motor Assets under
constructions labs equipment vehicles Computer installation Total

Cost:
As at 1 January 2023 5,890 149,383 382,188 36,546 72,353 8,316 654,676
Additions - 1,563 3,395 9,550 1,762 29,336 45,606
Disposals - (19,133) (214) (4,133) (2,302) - (25,782)
Write-off - (900) (31,415) - (4,363) (35) (36,713)
Transfer in (out) - - 28,217 - - (28,217) -
As at 31 December 2023 5,890 130,913 382,171 41,963 67,450 9,400 637,787
Additions - 1,233 5,458 - 2,654 23,419 32,764
Disposals - (48,925) (4,152) (8,909) (3,206) - (65,192)
Write-off - (44) (17,564) - (32) - (17,640)
Transfer in (out) - - 21,140 - 2 (21,142) -
As at 31 December 2024 5,890 83,177 387,053 33,054 66,868 11,677 587,719
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Accumulated depreciation:

As at 1 January 2023
Depreciation for the year
Depreciation on disposals
Depreciation on write-off
As at 31 December 2023
Depreciation for the year
Depreciation on disposals
Depreciation on write-off

As at 31 December 2024

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Separate financial statements

Tools and
equipment Furniture,
Buildings used in fixtures and
and photographic office Motor Assets under
constructions labs equipment vehicles Computer installation Total

2,965 138,849 333,683 30,056 67,469 - 573,022
290 6,871 20,273 1,705 1,706 - 30,845
- (19,020) (209) (3,675) (2,215) - (25,119)
- (859) (30,899) - (4,180) - (35,938)
3,255 125,841 322,848 28,086 62,780 - 542,810
290 2,435 19,829 2,191 2,207 - 26,952
- (48,760) (4,070) (8,017) (3,113) - (63,960)
- (41) (16,977) - (31) - (17,049)
3,545 79,475 321,630 22,260 61,843 - 488,753
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Allowance for impairment loss:

As at 1 January 2023

Increase during the year
As at 31 December 2023

Decrease during the year
As at 31 December 2024
Net book value:

As at 31 December 2023
As at 31 December 2024

Depreciation for the year

Separate financial statements

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2023 (Baht 7 million included in cost of services, and the balance in selling and administrative expenses)

Tools and
equipment Furniture,
Buildings used in fixtures and
and photographic office Motor Assets under
constructions labs equipment vehicles Computer installation Total
- - 17 - - - 17
- - 401 - - - 401
- - 418 - - - 418
- - (418) - - - (418)
2,635 5,072 58,905 13,877 4,670 9,400 94,559
2,345 3,702 65,423 10,794 5,025 11,677 98,966
30,845
26,952

2024 (Baht 2 million included in cost of services, and the balance in selling and administrative expenses)
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15.

15.1

As at 31 December 2024, certain items of equipment had been fully depreciated but were still
in use. The gross carrying amount before deducting accumulated depreciation and allowance
impairment loss of those assets amounted to approximately Baht 507 million (2023: Baht 516 million)
(Separate financial statements: Baht 444 million (2023: Baht 483 million)).

Lease

As a lessee, the Group has lease contracts for various items of assets used in its operations.
Leases generally have lease terms between 3 - 20 years.

Right-of-use assets

Movements of right-of-use asset accounts for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023

are summarised below.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated financial statements/

Separate financial statements

Building and

Land construction Total
At 1 January 2023 273 569,098 569,371
Increase during the year 23 97,950 97,973
Depreciation for the year (98) (250,190) (250,288)
Decrease during the year - (4,422) (4,422)
At 31 December 2023 198 412,436 412,634
Increase during the year - 257,563 257,563
Depreciation for the year (99) (259,271)  (259,370)
Decrease during the year - (2,056) (2,056)
At 31 December 2024 99 408,672 408,771
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15.2 Lease liabilities
(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated
financial statements/ Separate

financial statements

2024 2023
Lease payments 379,540 384,139
Less: Deferred interest expenses (4,945) (6,637)
Total 374,595 377,502
Less: Portion due within one year (196,199) (206,996)
Lease liabilities - net of current portion 178,396 170,506

Movements in lease liabilities for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 are

summarised below.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated
financial statements/ Separate

financial statements

2024 2023

Balance at beginning of year 377,502 525,653

Add: New lease contracts during the year 44,776 43,266

Change in lease fee estimations 212,215 54,540

Accretion of interest during the year 4,290 8,115

Less: Payments during the year (262,210) (238,018)
Termination of the lease due to branch closure

during the year (1,978) (4,475)

Reduction in lease payments by lessors - (11,579)

Balance at end of year 374,595 377,502

A maturity analysis of lease payments is disclosed in Note 29 to the consolidated financial

statements under the liquidity risk.
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15.3 Expenses relating to leases that are recognised in profit or loss

15.4

16.

Consolidated

financial statements

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Separate

financial statements

2024 2023
Depreciation expenses of right-of-use assets 259,370 250,288

Interest expenses on lease liabilities 4,290 8,115
Expense relating to short-term leases 3,644 2,967
Other

2024 2023
259,370 250,288
4,290 8,115
1,312 1,499

The Group has total cash outflows for leases for the year ended 31 December 2024 of
Baht 266 million (2023: Baht 241 million) (Separate financial statements: Baht 264 million
(2023: Baht 240 million)), including the cash outflow related to short-term leases.

Furthermore, the Company recognised the reduction in lease payments already fell due from
the lessors without substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease in profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2023 amounting to Baht 12 million (2024: Nil).

Intangible assets

The net book value of intangible assets as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 is presented below.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Rights for store
operating and sales

Computer of goods and

software services Total
As at 31 December 2024:
Cost 91,296 15,966 107,262
Less: Accumulated amortisation (40,687) (9,860) (50,547)
Less: Allowance for impairment loss (14,887) - (14,887)
Net book value 35,722 6,106 41,828
As at 31 December 2023:
Cost 85,476 10,587 96,063
Less: Accumulated amortisation (35,413) (9,001) (44,414)
Less: Allowance for impairment loss (14,887) - (14,887)
Net book value 35,176 1,586 36,762
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17.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

Rights for store
operating and sales

Computer of goods and

software services Total
As at 31 December 2024:
Cost 86,469 15,966 102,435
Less: Accumulated amortisation (38,327) (9,860) (48,187)
Less: Allowance for impairment loss (14,887) - (14,887)
Net book value 33,255 6,106 39,361
As at 31 December 2023:
Cost 80,782 10,587 91,369
Less: Accumulated amortisation (34,171) (9,001) (43,172)
Less: Allowance for impairment loss (14,887) - (14,887)
Net book value 31,724 1,586 33,310

A reconciliation of the net book value of intangible assets for the years 2024 and 2023 is

presented below.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2024 2023 2024 2023
Net book value at beginning of year 36,762 26,378 33,310 24,392
Acquisition 11,199 14,988 11,066 13,028
Amortisation for the year (6,133) (4,604) (5,015) (4,110)
Net book value at end of year 41,828 36,762 39,361 33,310

Other non-current assets

Deposit for lease and others
Others

Total

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial

statements/Separate
financial statements

2024 2023
118,492 112,301
388 464

118,880 112,765

27



Trade and other payables

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2024 2023 2024 2023

Trade payables - related parties

(Note 6) - - 63,188 39,728
Trade payables - unrelated parties 324,569 328,517 323,943 327,766
Other payables - related parties

(Note 6) 78 76 - -
Other payables - unrelated parties 17,308 38,659 13,168 34,435
Accrued expenses 34,143 27,115 30,301 23,060
Others 4,320 3,136 3,629 2,230
Total 380,418 397,503 434,229 427,219

Provision for long-term employee benefits

Provision for long-term employee benefits, which represents compensation payable to

employees after they retire, is as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2024 2023 2024 2023
Provision for long-term employee
benefits at beginning of the year 55,761 48,549 53,949 47,253
Included in profit or loss:
Current service cost 6,649 6,002 6,067 5,515
Interest cost 1,359 1,210 1,320 1,181
Benefits paid during the year (1,231) - (1,231) -
Provision for long-term employee
benefits at end of the year 62,538 55,761 60,105 53,949

The Group expects to pay Baht 0.6 million of long-term employee benefits during the next year
(2023: Baht 1.7 million) (Separate financial statements: Baht 0.6 million (2023: Baht 1.3 million)).

As at 31 December 2024, the weighted average duration of the liabilities for long-term
employee benefit was 7 years and 9 years (2023: 7 years and 9 years) (Separate financial

statements: 7 years (2023: 7 years)).
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Significant actuarial assumptions are summarised below:

Discount rate
Salary increase rate

Turnover rate

Consolidated

financial statements

(Unit: % per annum)
Separate

financial statements

2024

1.73-2.65

5-6
0-42

2023
1.73-2.65
5-6
0-42

2024 2023
2.50 2.50
6 6
0-41 0-41

The result of sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions that affect the present value of

the long-term employee benefit obligation as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 are summarised

below:

Discount rate
Salary increase rate

Turnover rate

Discount rate
Salary increase rate

Turnover rate

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

31 December 2024

Consolidated

financial statements

Separate

financial statements

Increase 1%

Decrease 1%

Increase 1%  Decrease 1%

(3,374)
5,150
(3,682)

3,870
(4,566)
2,746

(3,220) 3,695
4,922 (4,365)
(3,508) 2,627

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

31 December 2023

Consolidated

financial statements

Separate

financial statements

Increase 1%

Decrease 1%

Increase 1%  Decrease 1%

(2,945)
3,979
(3,213)

3,396
(3,523)
2,463

(2,820) 3,252
3,808 (3,371)
(3,071) 2,367
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20.

21.

22,

Statutory reserve

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is

required to set aside a statutory reserve at least 5 percent of its net profit after deducting

accumulated deficit brought forward (if any), until the reserve reaches 10 percent of

the registered capital. The statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution.

At present, the statutory reserve has fully been set aside.

Dividends

Dividends declared during the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 consisted of the

follows:
Dividends
Dividends Approved by Total dividends per share
(Thousand Baht) (Baht)
Final dividends for 2022 Annual General Meeting of the
shareholders on 26 April 2023 70,577 0.02
Total 70,577 0.02
Final dividends for 2023 Annual General Meeting of the
shareholders on 25 April 2024 52,933 0.015
Total 52,933 0.015

Other income

Revenue from sales supporting promotion

Others
Total

Consolidated

financial statements

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Separate

financial statements

2024 2023 2024 2023
103,409 91,490 93,665 80,560
12,653 17,080 43,700 33,858
116,062 108,570 137,365 114,418
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23.

24.

Expenses by nature
Significant expenses classified by nature are as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2024 2023 2024 2023

Purchase of finished goods 3,515,781 2,685,365 3,520,344 2,716,056
Discounts and sales promotions received (151,411) (134,170) (178,127) (143,997)
Changes in finished goods (380,746) (188,936) (343,242) (191,386)
Depreciation and amortisation 298,841 289,223 291,337 285,243
Salary and wages and other employee

benefits 230,090 206,101 212,997 191,631
Related selling expenses, advertising and

sales promotions 201,615 141,086 156,105 137,243
Income tax

Income tax expenses for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 are made up as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2024 2023 2024 2023

Current income tax:
Current income tax charge 34,598 21,624 28,116 15,449
Deferred tax:

Relating to origination and reversal of

temporary differences (6,956) (577) (2,917) (331)
Income tax expense reported in profit or
loss 27,642 21,047 25,199 15,118
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The reconciliation between accounting profit and income tax expenses is shown below.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2024 2023 2024 2023

Accounting profit before tax 133,347 102,980 121,545 73,745
Applicable tax rate 20% 20% 20% 20%
Accounting profit before tax multiplied by

income tax rate 26,669 20,596 24,309 14,749
Deferred tax assets which are not

recognised during the year 124 1 - -
Utilisation of previously unrecognised

tax losses (5) (129) - -
Effects of:

Non-deductible expenses 515 374 500 293

Additional expense deductions allowed (42) (168) (42) (168)

Others 381 373 432 244
Total 854 579 890 369
Income tax expenses reported in profit or

loss 27,642 21,047 25,199 15,118

The components of deferred tax assets are as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2024 2023 2024 2023

Deferred tax assets
Allowance for diminution in value of

inventories 45,049 42,739 45,049 42,739
Suppliers’ discounts 2,415 1,517 2,415 1,517
Provision for long-term employee benefits 12,021 10,790 12,021 10,790
Allowance for expected credit losses 314 580 314 580
Allowance for impairment in assets 2,977 3,061 2,977 3,061
Contract liabilities 33 6 33 6
Leases 2,180 3,379 2,180 3,379
Gain on sale of inventories among related

parties 8,163 4,124 - -
Total 73,152 66,196 64,989 62,072
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25.

26.

As at 31 December 2024, a subsidiary had deductible temporary differences and unused tax
losses totaling Baht 11 million (2023: Baht 12 million), on which deferred tax assets have not
been recognised as there was uncertainty to utilisation of the temporary differences and

unused tax losses.
Details of expiry dates of unused tax lossed are summarised as below:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated

financial statements

2024 2023
31 December 2024 - 1,030
31 December 2025 6,479 6,479
31 December 2026 4,602 4,602

11,081 12,111

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year attributable to equity
holders of the Company (excluding other comprehensive income) by the weighted average

number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2024 2023 2024 2023
Profit for the year (Thousand Baht) 105,705 81,933 96,345 58,627
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(Million shares) 3,529 3,529 3,529 3,529
Basic profit per share (Baht per share) 0.030 0.023 0.027 0.017

Segment information

Operating segment information is reported in a manner consistent with the internal reports
that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order to make decisions
about the allocation of resources to the segment and assess its performance. The chief

operating decision market has been identified as Chief Executive Officer.
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27.

28.

28.1

28.2

The three principal operating segments of the Group are the distribution of cameras and
photography-related products segment, the distribution of mobile phones segment and the
photographic lab service segment. However, the distribution of mobile phones segment and
the photographic lab services segment are not material. Their operations are carried on only
in Thailand. Segment performance is measured based on operating profit or loss, on a basis
consistent with that used to measure operating profit or loss in the financial statements. As a
result, all of the revenues, operating profits and assets as reflected in these financial
statements pertain exclusively to the aforementioned reportable operating segment and

geographical area.
Provident fund

The Group and their employees have jointly established the provident fund in accordance
with the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530. Both employees and the Group contribute to the fund
monthly at the rates of 3.0 - 4.5 percent of basic salary. The fund, which is managed by
Eastspring Asset Management (Thailand) Company Limited, will be paid to employees upon
termination in accordance with the fund rules. The contributions for the year 2024 amounting
to approximately Baht 4 million (2023: Baht 4 million) (Separate financial statements: Baht 4

million (2023: Baht 4 million)) are recognised as expenses.
Commitments and contingent liabilities
Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had capital commitments of approximately
Baht 5 million (2023: Baht 7 million) (Separate financial statements: Baht 5 million (2023:

Baht 5 million)), relating to the purchase of equipment and installation of computer software.
Guarantees

As at 31 December 2024, the Company had outstanding bank guarantees of approximately
Baht 47 million (2023: Baht 62 million) issued by banks on behalf of the Company as required

in the normal course of business.
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28.3 Litigation

29.
29.1

In November 2019, the Company received a writ of summons since serving as a guarantor
under the overdraft agreement of a former subsidiary, which the Company had acquired
through a reverse acquisition in 2014. This subsidiary defaulted on its loan payments to bank,
leading to the bank’s decision to file a lawsuit against the Company in its capacity as the
guarantor and demand settlement of the principal and interest thereon totaling Baht 9.7 million.
However, both legal advisor and the management were of the opinion that the Company has
no obligations in respect of the guarantee because the obligations arising from this guarantee were
included in the rehabilitation process of that business, and the bank opted to receive loan
payments directly from the subsidiary. Subsequently, the subsidiary completed the business
rehabilitation plan, and the Central Bankruptcy Court granted the requested cancellation of
the business rehabilitation plan before the Company proceeded with the business
combination under the reverse acquisition. Furthermore, on 25 December 2020, the Court of
First Instance reviewed and issued a judgment dismissing the case. On 23 November 2021,
the Appeal Court rendered a judgment affirming that the Central Bankruptcy Court has
jurisdiction over this case. Therefore, the initial judgment of the Court of First Instance was
upheld, but the right to initiate a lawsuit with the Central Bankruptcy Court remained intact.
Subsequently, in October 2022, the Supreme Court obtained the bank’s petition and the
Company’s answer brief concerning the Court’s jurisdiction. On 17 August 2023, the Supreme
Court issued a judgment overturning the prior verdict rendered by the Appeal Court and
ordering the case to be retried and reconsidered. On 16 May 2024, the Court of Appeal upheld
the judgment of the Court of First Instance. Subsequently, the plaintiff filed a petition for
permission to appeal to the Supreme Court. Subsequently, the plaintiff filed a petition for
permission to appeal and the Company has also submitted an objection to the plaintiff's
request for permission to appeal to the Supreme Court. The case is currently under
consideration for acceptance of the petition by the Supreme Court. However, the Company’s
management is of the opinion that the litigation will not result in any losses, and therefore, no
provision has been recorded in the accounts.

Financial instruments
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s financial instruments principally comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other receivables, long-term loan, investments and lease liabilities. The financial risks

associated with these financial instruments and how they are managed is described below.
Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to trade accounts receivable,
long-term loan, deposits with banks and other financial instruments, the maximum exposure

to credit risk is limited to the carryings amounts as stated in the statements of financial position.
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Trade receivables

The Group manages the risk by adopting appropriate credit control policies and procedures
and therefore does not expect to incur material financial losses. Outstanding trade receivables
are regularly monitored. An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date to
measure expected credit losses. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments with similar credit risks. The Group classifies
customer segments by customer type and rating.

Financial instruments and cash deposits

The Group manages the credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions by
making investments only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to
each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Group’s management on an
annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the Group’s
management. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate

financial loss through a counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

Market risk

There are two types of market risk comprising foreign currency risk and interest rate risk.
Foreign currency risk

The Group considers itself no foreign currency risk because it has no financial assets and

liabilities denominated in foreign currencies outstanding as at the year-ended date.
Interest rate risk

The exposure to interest rate risk of the Group relates primarily to its cash at banks and
financial institutions, long-term loan, and lease liabilities. Most of financial assets and liabilities
of the Group bears floating interest rates or fixed interest rates which are close to the market

rate.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, significant financial assets and liabilities classified by type
of interest rate are summarised in the table below, with those financial assets and liabilities
that carry fixed interest rates further classified based on the maturity date, or the repricing

date if this occurs before the maturity date.
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(Unit: Million Baht)

Consolidated financial statement

As at 31 December 2024

Fixed interest rates

Within 1-5 Over Floating Non- interest Effective

1 year years 5 years interest rate Bearing Total interest rate

(% per annum)

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalent - - - 203 3 206 0.15-0.40

Trade and other receivables - - - - 101 101 -

Restricted bank deposits 120 - - - - 120 0.30-2.05
120 - - 203 104 427

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables - - - - 380 380 -
Lease liabilities 196 177 2 - - 375 0.79-3.44
196 177 2 - 380 755

(Unit: Million Baht)

Consolidated financial statement

As at 31 December 2023

Fixed interest rates

Within 1-5 Over Floating Non- interest Effective

1 year years 5 years interest rate Bearing Total interest rate

(% per annum)

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalent - - - 162 7 169 0.15-0.60

Trade and other receivables - - - - 91 91 -

Other current financial assets 405 - - - - 405 1.60 - 2.50

Restricted bank deposits 120 - - - - 120 0.15-1.35
525 - - 162 98 785

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables - - - - 398 398 -
Lease liabilities 207 164 7 - - 378 0.79 - 3.44
207 164 7 - 398 776
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Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalent
Trade and other receivables

Restricted bank deposits

Loan to related parties

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables

Lease liabilities

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalent
Trade and other receivables
Other current financial assets

Restricted bank deposits

Long-term loan to related party

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables

Lease liabilities

(Unit: Million Baht)

Separate financial statement

As at 31 December 2024

Fixed interest rates

Within 1-5 Over Floating Non-interest Effective
1 year years 5 years interest rate Bearing Total interest rate
(Percent per
annum)
- - - 172 3 175 0.15-0.40
- - - - 113 113 -
120 - - - - 120 0.30 - 2.05
50 50 - - - 100 5.51-6.21
170 50 - 172 116 508
- - - - 434 434
196 177 2 - - 375 0.79 - 3.44
196 177 2 - 434 809

(Unit: Million Baht)

Separate financial statement

As at 31 December 2023

Fixed interest rates

Within 1-5 Over Floating Non-interest Effective
1 year years 5 years interest rate Bearing Total interest rate
(Percent per
annum)
- - - 136 7 143 0.15-0.60
- - - - 92 92 -
405 - - - - 405 1.60-2.50
120 - - - - 120 0.15-1.35
- 50 - - - 50 5.51
525 50 - 136 99 810
- - - - 427 427 -
207 164 7 - - 378 0.79-3.44
207 164 7 - 427 805
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The Group has interest rate risk to cash at banks and fixed deposit receipt (FDR) because

interest rates received are considered low and has a slight change. Therefore, the

management believes that the impact of interest rate risk is immaterial.

Liquidity risk

The Group needs liquidity to meet its obligations and is responsible for its own cash balances

to cover the liquidity needs. The Group monitors the risk of a shortage of liquidity position by

recurring liquidity planning an adequate level of cash and cash equivalent, unused committed

and uncommitted credit lines with various banks to meet its liquidity requirements.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at

31 December 2024 and 2023 based on contractual undiscounted cash flows:

Trade and other payables
Lease liabilities
Total

Trade and other payables
Lease liabilities
Total

Trade and other payables
Lease liabilities

Total

(Unit: Million Baht)
Consolidated financial statements

As at 31 December 2024

Less than 1t05 Over
1 year years 5 years Total
380 - - 380
199 178 2 379
579 178 2 759

(Unit: Million Baht)
Consolidated financial statements

As at 31 December 2023

Less than 1to5 Over
1 year years 5 years Total
398 - - 398
211 166 7 384
609 166 7 782

(Unit: Million Baht)
Separate financial statements

As at 31 December 2024

Less than 1to5 Over
1 year years 5 years Total
434 - - 434
199 178 2 379
633 178 2 813
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29.2

30.

31.

32.

(Unit: Million Baht)
Separate financial statements
As at 31 December 2023

Less than 1to5 Over
1 year years 5 years Total
Trade and other payables 427 - - 427
Lease liabilities 211 166 7 384
Total 638 166 7 811

Fair values of financial instruments

Since the majority of financial instruments of the Group are short-term in nature or carrying
interest at rates close to the market interest rates, their fair value is not expected to be

materially different from the amounts presented in the statement of financial position.
Capital management

The primary objective of the capital management of the Group is to ensure that it has
appropriate capital structure in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.
As at 31 December 2024, the Group's debt-to-equity ratio was 0.48:1 (2023: 0.49:1) and the
Company's was 0.51:1 (2023: 0.52:1).

Event after the reporting period

On 26 February 2025, the meeting of the Company’s Board of Directors approved to propose
dividend payment for 2024 of Baht 0.015 per share, totaling Baht 52.9 million. The Company will

propose this matter for approval in the Annual General Meeting of the Company’s shareholders
Approval of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors
on 26 February 2025.
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Attachment 1 : Details of directors, executives, controlling persons, the person assigned to take the highest responsibility in Accounting
and Finance, the person assigned to take direct responsibility for accounting supervision, the Company’s secretary, and the

representative for contact and coordination in case of a foreign company
Link to attachment:  https://eonemedia.setlink.set.or.th/report/0234/2024/1742687796878.pdf

Attachment 2 : Details of the directors of subsidiaries
Link to attachment:  https://eonemedia.setlink.set.or.th/report/0234/2024/1742687796880.pdf

Attachment 3 : Details of the Heads of the Internal Audit and Compliance Units
Link to attachment:  https://eonemedia.setlink.set.or.th/report/0234/2024/1742687796882.pdf

Attachment 4 : Assets for business undertaking and details of asset appraisal
Link to attachment:  https://eonemedia.setlink.set.or.th/report/0234/2024/1742687796884.pdf

Attachment 5 : Unabridged policy and guidelines on corporate governance and unabridged code of business conduct prepared by the

Company
Link to attachment:  https://eonemedia.setlink.set.or.th/report/0234/2024/1742687796886.pdf

Attachment 6 : Report of the Audit Committee
Link to attachment:  https://eonemedia.setlink.set.or.th/report/0234/2024/1742687796888.pdf
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	1. General information of the Company
	Big Camera Corporation Public Company Limited (“the Company”) is a public company incorporated and domiciled in Thailand. The Company is principally engaged in                      the distribution of cameras, mobile phones, and photography and mobil...
	2. Basis of preparation
	2.1 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards enunciated under the Accounting Professions Act B.E. 2547 and their presentation has been made in compliance with the stipulations of the Notificatio...
	The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements of the Company. The financial statements in English language have been translated from                          the Thai language financial statements.
	The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where otherwise disclosed in the accounting policies.
	3. New financial reporting standards
	3.1 Financial reporting standards that became effective in the current year
	3.2 Financial reporting standards that will become effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2025

	4.1 Revenue and expenses recognition
	Sales of goods
	Revenue from sales of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of assets is transferred to the customer, generally upon delivery of the goods. Revenue is measured at the amount of the considerations received or receivable, excluding valu...
	Rendering of services
	Service revenue is recognised at a point in time upon completion of the services.
	Revenue from sales supporting promotion
	Revenue from sales supporting promotion is recognised at a point in time when the right to receive the revenue from sales supporting promotion is established.
	Interest income
	Interest income is calculated using the effective interest method and recognised on an accrual basis. The effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset.
	Finance cost
	Interest expense from financial liabilities at amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest method and recognised on an accrual basis.
	4.2 Cash and cash equivalents
	Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and at banks, and all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal restrictions.
	4.3 Inventories
	Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) and net realisable value.
	4.4 Investments in subsidiaries
	Buildings and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and allowance for loss on impairment of assets (if any).
	Depreciation of building and equipment is calculated by reference to their costs on               the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:
	Depreciation is included in determining income.
	No depreciation is provided on assets under installation.
	4.6 Intangible assets
	Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. Following the initial recognition, the intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any).
	Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on the straight-line basis over the economic useful life and tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisati...
	A summary of the intangible assets with finite useful lives is as follows:
	4.7 Related party transactions
	Related parties comprise individuals or enterprises that control, or are controlled by,                                              the Group, whether directly or indirectly, or which are under common control with the Group.
	They also include associates and individuals or enterprises which directly or indirectly own a voting interest in the Group that gives them significant influence over the Group, key management personnel and directors with authority in the planning and...
	4.8 Leases
	At inception of contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
	The Group as a lessee
	The Group applied a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. At the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the underlying asset is available for use), the Group rec...
	Right-of-use assets
	Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation, any accumulated impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities initially rec...
	Depreciation of right-of-use assets are calculated by reference to their costs, on the straight-line basis over the shorter of their estimated useful lives and the lease term.
	4.9 Foreign currencies
	The consolidated and separate financial statements are presented in Baht, which is also                             the Company’s functional currency.
	Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rate ruling at                              the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exc...
	Gains and losses on exchange are included in determining income.
	4.10 Impairment of non-financial assets
	At the end of each reporting period, the Group performs impairment reviews in respect of the buildings and equipment, right-of-use assets and other intangible assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset may be impaired. A...
	An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.
	4.11 Employee benefits
	Short-term employee benefits
	Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund are recognised as expenses when incurred.
	Post-employment benefits
	Defined contribution plans
	The Group and its employees have jointly established the provident fund. The fund is monthly contributed by employees and by the Group. The fund’s assets are held in a separate trust fund and the Group’s contributions are recognised as expenses when i...
	Defined benefit plans
	The Group has obligations in respect of the severance payments it must make to employees upon retirement under labor law. The Group treats these severance payment obligations as a defined benefit plan.
	The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined by a professionally qualified independent actuary based on actuarial techniques, using the projected unit credit method.
	Actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefit plans are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income.
	Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of the date of the plan amendment or curtailment and the date that the Group recognises restructuring-related costs.
	Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of th...
	4.13 Income tax
	Income tax expense represents the sum of corporate income tax currently payable and deferred tax.
	Current income tax is provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to the taxation authorities, based on taxable profits determined in accordance with tax legislation.
	Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts at the end of each reporting period, using the tax rates enacted at the end of the reporting period.
	The Group recognises deferred tax liabilities for all taxable temporary differences while they recognise deferred tax assets for all deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried forward to the extent that it is probable that future taxable ...
	At each reporting date, the Group reviews and reduces the carrying amount of deferred tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
	The Group records deferred tax directly to shareholders' equity if the tax relates to items that are recorded directly to shareholders' equity.
	The Group initially measures financial assets at its fair value plus, in the case of financial assets that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. However, trade receivables, that do not contain a significant financi...
	Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as to be subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”), or fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”). The classification of financial assets...
	The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if the financial asset is held in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of pr...
	Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate (“EIR”) method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
	At initial recognition the Group’s financial liabilities are recognised at fair value net of transaction costs and classified as liabilities to be subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit...
	A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or have been transferred and either the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or the Group has transfe...
	A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an...
	The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at FVTPL. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the ...
	For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For t...
	However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to have a significant increase in credit risk and to be in default using other internal or external information, such as credit rating of issuers.
	For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
	ECLs are calculated based on its historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
	A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
	Offsetting of financial instruments
	The preparation of financial statements in conformity with financial reporting standards at times requires management to make subjective judgements and estimates regarding matters that are inherently uncertain. These judgements and estimates affect re...
	Reduction of inventory cost to net realisable value
	In determining a reduction of inventory cost to net realisable value, the management makes judgement and estimates net realisable value of inventory based on the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs neces...
	Deferred tax assets
	Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which                               the temporary differences and losses can ...
	Post-employment benefits under defined benefit plans
	The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial techniques. Such determination is made based on various assumptions, including discount rate, future salary increase rate, mortality rate and staff turnover rate.
	12. Restricted bank deposits
	13. Investments in subsidiaries
	Details of investments in subsidiaries as presented in the separate financial statements are as follow:
	No dividend was received from the subsidiaries for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.
	14. Building and equipment
	15. Lease
	16. Intangible assets
	17. Other non-current assets
	18. Trade and other payables
	19. Provision for long-term employee benefits
	20. Statutory reserve
	22. Other income
	23. Expenses by nature
	25. Earnings per share
	26. Segment information
	27. Provident fund
	28. Commitments and contingent liabilities
	The Group needs liquidity to meet its obligations and is responsible for its own cash balances to cover the liquidity needs. The Group monitors the risk of a shortage of liquidity position by recurring liquidity planning an adequate level of cash and...
	30. Capital management
	31.  Event after the reporting period
	On 26 February 2025, the meeting of the Company’s Board of Directors approved to propose dividend payment for 2024 of Baht 0.015 per share, totaling Baht 52.9 million. The Company will propose this matter for approval in the Annual General Meeting of...
	32. Approval of financial statements
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